
Mayor       Councilmembers 
  Ben White         John Crompton 
Mayor Pro Tem        James Massey 
Ron Gay         Lynn McIlhaney 
City Manager         Chris Scotti 
Glenn Brown         David Ruesink 

 
 

Agenda 
College Station City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, October 25, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, absence requests 
 Presentation:  Sister City Russia delegation   
  
Hear Visitors:  A citizen may address the City Council on any item which does not appear on the posted 
Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk of the City  Secretary.  This form should 
be completed and delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.   Please limit remarks to three minutes.  A timer 
alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining to conclude your remarks.  The City 
Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a future agenda.  
Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City Manager. 
 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITIZENS OF COLLEGE STATION, HOME OF TEXAS A&M UNIVERSITY, WE WILL CONTINUE TO 
PROMOTE AND ADVANCE THE COMMUNITY'S QUALITY OF LIFE.   

 
Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not posted as a public 
hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of the agenda item.  Registration 
forms are available in the lobby and at the desk of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will recognize individuals who 
wish to come forward to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the 
record and allowed three minutes.  A timer will sound at 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining for 
remarks.   

 
 2. Presentation, possible action and discussion of consent agenda items which consists of ministerial or 

"housekeeping" items required by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda by majority vote of the 
Council.  

 
a. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on minutes of October 11, 2007 workshop and 

regular meetings.   
 
b. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding renewal of an annual price agreement 

with Nafeco Inc., in an amount not to exceed $56,448.00 for fire protective clothing.  
 
c. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding rejection of bid proposals received 

from Bid Number 07-115 for construction of a new Bath House at Adamson Lagoon.  

1



d. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding renewal of bid #07-03 to Knife River to 
provide Type D Hot Mix Asphalt for the maintenance of streets in an amount not to exceed 
$547,800.00 ($49.80 per ton).  

 
e. Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving a renewal agreement with National 

Reimbursement Services to provide ambulance billing services in an amount not to exceed 
$60,000. 

 
f. Presentation, possible action and discussion on an annual bid for heavy equipment rental with 

Mustang Rental Services of Bryan, TX as the primary vendor in the amount of $95,000 and 
Equipment Support Services as the secondary vendor in the amount of $30,000. 

 
g. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Bid Number 07-119.  Presentation, 

possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution awarding the bid and approving a 
construction contract (Contract Number 07-275) with JaCody, Inc., in the amount of 
$619,496.00 for the construction of Phase II-A of the Veterans Park and Athletic Complex, the 
extension of Veterans Parkway. 

 
h. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a contract with Sungard 

HTE for the purchase of the Click2Gov Customer Information Systems (CX) module in an 
amount not to exceed $36,090.00. 

 
i. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the approval of a resolution for the City 

of College Station to continue the Clinical Affiliation Agreement with the Texas Engineering 
Extension Service for emergency medical certification purposes.  

 
j. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a contract with Land Design Partners to 

develop plans for adding landscaping, specifically trees where possible, along Texas Avenue 
within the TxDOT right-of-way.  The amount of the contract is not to exceed $69,100.    

 
k. Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a Real Estate Contract with The Board 

of Trustees of the Texas Conference of the United Methodist Church to authorize the purchase 
of easements needed for the Church Avenue, Phase II Project. 

 
l. Presentation, possible action, and discussion for Oversize Participation (OP) for a streets 

improvement in the The Lofts, Wolf Pen Creek Subdivision being made per City Code of 
Ordinances, Chapter 9, Subdivision Regulations, Section 9, Responsibility for Payment for 
Installation Costs, 9-A Oversized Participation for a total requested City participation of 
$22,013.88. 

 
m. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a resolution awarding the professional 

services contract (Contract No. 07-269) with Bleyl & Associates in the amount not to exceed 
$94,960 for engineering design services for the 2005 Bike Loop Project (ST-0530). 

 
n. Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a Real Estate Contract with Freddie A. 

Wolters and wife, Mary M. Wolters that will authorize the purchase of land needed for the 
Wastewater Capital Improvement Project - Carters Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 
o. Presentation, discussion and possible action on a resolution stating that the City Council has 

reviewed and approved the City's Investment Policy and Investment Strategy. 
 
p. Presentation, possible action and discussion to authorize expenditures for the Brazos Animal 

Shelter in the amount of $65,334. 
 
q. Presentation, discussion and possible action on approving the budget of the George Bush 

Presidential Library Foundation; and presentation, discussion and possible action on a funding 

2



agreement between the City of College Station and the George Bush Presidential Library 
Foundation for FY08 in the amount of $100,000. 

 
r. Presentation, possible action and discussion to approve a funding addendum that will authorize 

expenditures for the Brazos County Health Department in the amount of $211,255. 
 
s. Presentation, possible action and discussion on a funding agreement between the City of 

College Station and the Keep Brazos Beautiful for FY08 in the amount of $60,240. 
 
t. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding adoption of a resolution authorizing the 

award of contract 07-278 to Bryan Construction Company in the amount of $483,000 for the 
installation of a new Ultra Violet Disinfection System at the Carters Creek Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 

 
 

Regular Agenda 
 

Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted as a public hearing 
shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of the agenda item.  The Mayor will recognize 
you to come forward to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the 
record and allowed three minutes. A timer will sound at 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining for 
remarks.   

 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing shall register with the 
City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the public hearing.   The Mayor will recognize 
individuals who wish to come forward to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and 
address for the record and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound at 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty 
seconds remaining to conclude remarks.    After a public hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public 
comments.  If Council needs additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be 
allowed at the discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded in the official minutes 
as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual may complete the registration form provided 
in the lobby by providing the name, address, and comments about a city related subject.  These comments will 
be referred to the City Council and City Manager.   
 
1. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance rezoning 12.55 acres located 

at 3501 Longmire Drive from C-2 Commercial-Industrial to C-1 General Commercial. 
 
2. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on the ordinance rezoning 1.583 acres 

located at 701 Luther Street West from R-1, Single-Family Residential to R-4, Multi-Family. 
 
3. Public hearing, presentation, possible action and discussion of an ordinance amending the Subdivision 

Regulations making developers responsible for the cost of construction testing in. 
 
4. Public Hearing, presentation, discussion, and possible action on consideration of an ordinance amending 

Chapter 9, “Subdivision Regulations” Section 9, “Responsibility for Payment for Installation Costs”, 
Subsection 9-H, “Street Signs”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas. Currently 
the City installs street signs at no cost to the subdivider. This amendment will transfer the responsibility of 
street name signs and associated poles and hardware to the subdivider at no cost to the City. 

 
5. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the approval of a resolution for a contract for 

consulting services (Contract #08-041) with Kendig Keast Collaborative for the preparation of Phase II of a 
new Comprehensive Plan, in the amount of $322,590. 

 

3



6. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an Ordinance amending Chapter 10 of the 
Traffic Code in the Code of Ordinances by adding a new Section 11; 2) Presentation, discussion and 
possible action on accepting the Red Light Camera Committee report; approving a contract with American 
Traffic Solutions, LLC and authorizing expenditures not to exceed $300,000 annually; and approving the 
TxDOT Amendment to the Municipal Maintenance Agreement.   

 
7. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of expenditures for administrative fees for 

employee medical and dental insurance with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Texas, employee prescription drug 
plan with Caremark (formerly Pharmacare), employee assistance program with Deer Oaks, voluntary vision 
plan with Spectera, and the approval of expenditures for projected claims for a total amount of $5,336,494 
for 2008. 

 
8. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of expenditures for employee life, accidental 

death & dismemberment (AD&D), voluntary life and AD&D, and dependent life insurance in the amount of 
$98,276 to Minnesota Life Insurance Company for 2008. 

 
9. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of expenditures for long term disability insurance 

(LTD) with the Standard Insurance Company in the amount of $60,855 for 2008. 
 
10. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular meeting to discuss matters 

posted on the executive session agenda for October 25, 2007. 
 
11. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
12. Adjourn. 
 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an executive session will be 
held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
________________________________ 
City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas will be 
held on the Thursday, October 25, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, 
College Station, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda. 
 
Posted this the 22nd day of October, 2007 at 2:30 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of the City of 
College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of 
said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s 
website, www.cstx.gov .  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said 
Notice and Agenda were posted on October 22, 2007 at 2:30 p.m. and remained so posted continuously for at 
least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station City Hall on the following 
date and time:  __________________________ by ________________________. 
 

4



    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2007. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2007. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any request for sign 
interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or 
(TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are broadcast live on 
Cable Access Channel 19. 

5



 

Mayor      Council members 
Ben White        John Crompton 
Mayor Pro Tem       James Massey 
Ron Gay        Lynn McIlhaney 
City Manager        Chris Scotti  
Glenn Brown        David Ruesink  
 
 

Draft Minutes 
City Council Workshop Meeting 

Thursday October 11, 2007 at 3:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Gay, Council 
members Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  Council members McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary 
Hooks, Assistant City Secretary Casares, Management Team. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gay called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 1 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
items listed on the consent agenda. 
 
Council member Crompton removed consent agenda items 3k and 3m. 
 
City Manager Glenn Brown and Assistant Director of Public Works and Director of 
BVSWMA Pete Caler clarified and answered questions on the consent agenda items. 
 

• 3k – Presentation, possible action and discussion on a funding agreement between 
Brazos Valley solid Waste Management (BVSWMA) and the United Way of the 
Brazos Valley in the amount of $50,000. 

 
• 3m – Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of an 

annual renewal of contract #05-251 in an amount not to exceed $179,474 with 
Clean Harbors to provide Household Hazardous Waste collection services. 

 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 2 -- Presentation, possible action and discussion on a 
timetable for implementing a new capital improvements program. 
 

6



City Council Workshop Meeting 10/11/07  Page 2 

Director of Public Works Mark Smith illustrated factors pertaining to a timetable for 
implementing a new capital improvements program.  Mr. Smith described the financial 
impact and recommended the adoption of the proposed timetable and asked Council to 
direct staff to proceed with the action plan for developing a new capital improvements 
program. 
 
After a brief discussion, the consensus of the City Council was to proceed with the 
projected timetable, action plan for developing a new capital improvements program and 
hold a bond election on Tuesday, November, 2008. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 3 -- Presentation, possible action and discussion 
regarding a report of the results of Citizens Congress II-Neighbor to Neighbor, held 
on September 22, 2007. 
 
Community Relations Manager Peggy Calliham presented a summary of the results of 
Citizens Congress II held on September 22, 2007.  Ms. Calliham demonstrated the 
neighborhood solutions, communications, connectedness, and the evaluation of the 
Citizens Congress II. 
 
No formal action was taken. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 4 -- Presentation, possible action and discussion 
regarding recent changes and guidance related to the Public Safety Interoperability 
Communications grant program. 
 
Director of IT Ben Roper presented a summary of the recent modifications in the grant 
strategy that recommends partnering with the Harris County Regional Radio system.  Mr. 
Roper discussed the goals, funding, conceptual proposal statistics, timeline, risks and 
continuing tasks related to the grant application.   
 
The Council members directed staff to move forward with the grant and purse a 
leadership role. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 5 -- Presentation, possible action and discussion 
regarding a report from the fraternal city in Spain. 
 
This item was removed by staff and will schedule on a future agenda. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 6 -- Council Calendar 
 
a. Oct. 15   IGC Meeting, BVCOG office, noon   
b. Oct. 18   100th yr. celebration Bryan Coca-Cola, Hilton, 11:30 am  
c. Oct. 20  Kids Klub 20th Anniversary Party, Wolf Pen Creek 

Amphitheater 
d. Oct. 25    Council Workshop and Regular Meetings, 3:00 and 7:00pm  
e. Oct. 26   TMPA Park site tour, 11:00 am  

7



City Council Workshop Meeting 10/11/07  Page 3 

f. Nov. 3   Employee Awards Banquet, Hilton 6:00 pm  
g. Nov. 5   Council Workshop and Regular Meetings, 1:00 pm  
 
Council reviewed their upcoming events. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 7 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on 
future agenda items: A Council Member may inquire about a subject for which 
notice has not been given.  A statement of specific factual information or the 
recitation of existing policy may be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a 
proposal to place the subject on an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 
 
Council member Crompton requested a regular agenda item regarding the Council travel 
policy and the amounts of money that is allocated in the travel budget.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Gay seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 5-0 
 
FOR:  White, Gay Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
Council member Crompton requested a regular agenda item pertaining to a policy for 
sponsorship of tables at numerous events.  Mayor Pro Tem Gay seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
FOR:  White, Gay Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
Council member Crompton requested a workshop agenda item regarding the feasibly of a 
tree preservation ordinance.  Council member Massey seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
FOR:  White, Gay Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 8 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding 
the following meetings:  Arts Council Subcommittee of the Council, Audit 
Committee, Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, 
Cemetery Committee, Design Review Board, Historic Preservation Committee, 
Interfaith Dialogue Association, Intergovernmental Committee, Joint Relief 
Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Metropolitan Planning 
Organization, Outside Agency Funding Review, Parks and Recreation Board, 
Planning and Zoning Commission, Sister City Association, TAMU Student Senate, 
Research Valley Partnership, Regional Transportation Committee for Council of 
Governments, Transportation Committee, Wolf Pen Creek Oversight Committee,  
 

8



City Council Workshop Meeting 10/11/07  Page 4 

Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, Zoning Board of Adjustments  
 
Council member Ruesink presented a brief report regarding the Sister Cities program. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 9 -- Executive Session will immediately follow the 
workshop meeting in the Administrative Conference Room. 
 
At 4:34 p.m., Mayor White announced in open session that the City Council would 
convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, and 551.072 of the Open 
Meeting Act, to seek the advice of our city attorney, and to consider the purchase of real 
property. 
 
Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}; The City Council may seek 
advice from its attorney regarding a pending and contemplated litigation subject or 
settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  Litigation is an ongoing 
process and questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or settlement offer, which needs 
to be discussed with the City Council.  Upon occasion the City Council may need 
information from its attorney as to the status of a pending or contemplated litigation 
subject or settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  After executive 
session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be in public.  The following 
subject(s) may be discussed: 
Application with TCEQ in Westside/Highway 60 area, near Brushy Water Supply 
Corporation. 
Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility 
District. 
Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed Intervention 
7/6/05) 
Sewer CCN request. 
Legal aspects of Water Well and possible purchase of or lease of another water site. 
Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, JK Development v. College Station. 
Cause No. 06-002318-CV-272, 272nd Judicial District Court, Brazos County, Texas, 
Taylor Kingsley v. City of College Station, Texas and Does 1 through 10, inclusive. 
Cause No. 485-CC, County Court at Law No. 1, Brazos County, Texas, City of College 
Station v. David Allen Weber, et al. 
Bed & Banks Water Rights Discharge Permits for College Station and Bryan 
Cause No. 07-001241-CV-361, 361st Judicial District Court, Brazos County, 
TexasGregory A. & Agnes A. Ricks v. City of College Station  
Water CCN request 
Evaluation of City's legal options in regard to city funds provided to the Arts Council.  
 

 Real Estate {Gov’t Code Section 551.072};  The City Council may deliberate the 
purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the City in negotiations with a third 
person. After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be in 
public. The following subject(s) may be discussed: 

9



City Council Workshop Meeting 10/11/07  Page 5 

a. Land Acquisition regarding southwest portion of Northgate  
b. Land Acquisition for Greenways project  
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 10 -- Action on executive session, or any workshop 
agenda item not completed or discussed in today’s workshop meeting will be 
discussed in tonight’s Regular Meeting if necessary.  
 
No action was taken. 
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 11 -- Adjourn. 
 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. on October 11, 2007. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 

10



 

Mayor      Council members 
Ben White        John Crompton 
Mayor Pro Tem       James Massey 
Ron Gay        Lynn McIlhaney 
City Manager        Chris Scotti  
Glenn Brown        David Ruesink  
 
 

Draft Minutes 
City Council Regular Meeting 

Thursday October 11, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor White, Mayor Pro Tem Gay, Council 
members Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Brown, City Attorney Cargill Jr., City Secretary 
Hooks, Assistant City Secretary Casares, Management Team. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 – Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, consider absence 
request. 
 
Mayor White opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m.  He led the audience in the pledge of 
allegiance.  Director of IT Ben Roper provided the invocation.  Mayor Pro Tem Gay 
moved to approve the absence request from Council members McIlhaney and Scotti.  
Council member Massey seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Assistant City Manager Kathy Merrill introduced Mike Mullen, Teen Court Coordinator 
and presented a brief summary of the Youth Advisory Council.  Mike Mullen introduced 
seven members of its newly implemented College Station Youth Advisory Council.  The 
members who are all students at A&M Consolidated High School were selected by 
school administrators.   
 
City Manager Glenn Brown introduced Wayne Lawson, the new Public Communications 
Director for the City of College Station.  
 
The College Station City Council members and College Station Historic Preservation 
Committee Chairman Hillary Jessup and member Marguerite Anthony presented Historic 
Home Marker #78 to residents Don and Carol Lewis for their home located at 1205 

11



City Council Regular Meeting 10/11/07  Page2 

Winding Road.  The Lewis’ applied for the marker prior to selling the home to longtime 
local residents, Quinn and Kim Williams, the new owners. 
 
Hear Visitors 
 
Brett Blankner, 4412 Pickering Place, urged the City Council to update the Bike Plan to 
enhance the interconnectivity.  He requested a cyclist serve on the Transportation 
Committee to alert staff of cyclist concerns before development occurs and enhanced 
improvements. 
 
Jonathan Coppersmith, 1811 Sherwood Drive stressed the need to enhance the current 
biking plan for the current and future generations.  Mr. Coopersmith requested a cyclist to 
become a member of the Transportation Committee to help modify and extend the 
Bicycle Master Plan into the ETJ.   
 
Mayor White read a letter Sherry Ellison, thanking City staff for the meeting with 
Windwood residents regarding their concerns. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gay moved to approve 3a-3n.  Council Ruesink seconded the motion.  
Council member Crompton amended the motion to remove 3k for a separate vote.  Mayor 
Pro Tem Gay seconded the notion, which carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gay moved to approve 3a – 3j and 3 l – 3n.  Council member Massey 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
a. Approved by common consent minutes for Thursday, September 27, 2007.   

 
b. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-11-2007-3b approving the FY 

2008 budget of the Brazos County Emergency Communications District. 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE BUDGET OF THE BRAZOS COUNTY 
EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
c. Approved by common consent a grant application to the Criminal Justice Division 

of the Office of the Governor for a special investigations unit in Brazos County, 
including approval of a Cooperative Working Agreement. 

 
d. Approved by common consent the rejection of bid 07-92 and approval of 

Resolution No. 10-11-2007-3d awarding contract 07-219 for the Lift Station 
Rehabilitation Project to Elliott Construction, Ltd., in the amount of $236,374. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR 

12



City Council Regular Meeting 10/11/07  Page3 

THE LIFT STATION REEHABILITATION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 

 
e. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-11-2007-3e granting an 

exception to Policy to allow V&M Rentals to construct sewer infrastructure 
necessary to connect the Aggie Acres development to the City sewer system. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, APPROVING AN EXCEPTION TO THE CITY’S 
UTILITY EXTENSION POLICY TO ALLOW THE EXTENSION OF SEWER 
UTILITY SERVICES TO AGGIE ACRES, LOCATED OFF WALNUT ROAD, 
WITHIN THE EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ) OF THE CITY 
OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS.  

f. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-11-2007-3f authorizing staff to 
obtain sanitary control easements for Water Wells #1 and #2. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, RELATING TO: (1) THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY TO 
INITIATE, COMPLETE, AND ACQUIRE, BY PURCHASE OR 
CONDEMNATION, RIGHT-OF-WAY AND EASEMENT INTEREST IN 
CERTAIN PROPERTY FOR THE SANITARY CONTROL EASEMENTS FOR 
WELLS #1 AND #2 PROJECT; (2) A DECLARATION THAT PUBLIC 
NECESSITY EXISTS FOR THE CITY TO ACQUIRE SUCH INTEREST, 
THROUGH PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION; AND (3) ESTABLISHING 
PROCEDURES FOR THE ACQUISITION OF SUCH INTEREST IN THE 
PROPERTY. 

 
g. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-11-2007-3g for the acquisition 

of additional easement pursuant to the construction and operation of Well 7 and 
attendant collection line.  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 6-14-2007-3a. 

 
h. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-11-2007-3h suspending the 

proposal by Atmos Energy Corporation to implement a rate increase. 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION SUSPENDING 
THE OCTOBER 25, 2007, EFFECTIVE DATE OF ATMOS ENERGY CORP., 
MID-TEX DIVISION REQUESTED RATE CHANGE TO PERMIT THE CITY 
TIME TO STUDY THE REQUEST AND TO ESTABLISH REASONABLE 
RATES; APPROVING COOPERATION WITH ATMOS CITIES STEERING 
COMMITTEE AND OTHER CITIES IN THE ATMOS ENERGY CORP., MID-
TEX DIVISION SERVICE AREA TO HIRE LEGAL AND CONSULTING 
SERVICES AND TO NEGOTIATE WITH THE COMPANY AND DIRECT 
ANY NECESSARY LITIGATION AND APPEALS; REQUIRING 

13



City Council Regular Meeting 10/11/07  Page4 

REIMBURSEMENT OF CITIES’ RATE CASE EXPENSES; FINDING THAT 
THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO 
THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW;  REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS 
RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL  

 
i. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 10-11-2007-3i that will amend 

Resolution Determining Need No. 11-20-2006-13.06.  The Resolutions relate to 
the acquisition of easements for the College Main Sidewalk Project. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 11-20-2006-13.06 

 
j. Approved by common consent a construction contract between BCS 

Development Co. and Brazos Valley Services for the construction of an 18-inch 
and 15-inch gravity sewer trunkline in the amount of $429,704.52.   

 
k. Presentation, possible action and discussion on a funding agreement between 

Brazos Valley Solid Waste Management (BVSWMA) and the United Way of the 
Brazos Valley in the amount of $50,000.  Crompton moved to be referred to the 
citizens committee.  Council member Crompton moved to refer this item to the 
Citizens Committee who is reasonable for making recommendation to the City 
Council.  Council member Massey seconded the motion, which carried 5-0. 

 
FOR: White, Gay, Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 

 
l. Approved by common consent a contract with ESO Solutions for the purchase of 

an electronic Patient Care Reporting System for the Fire Department, in an 
amount not to exceed $25,918.00, for an interface from the City’s Computer 
Aided Dispatch application (Enroute CAD) with Enroute Public Safety, Inc. in an 
amount not to exceed $20,000.00, and for additional hardware and software 
purchases through the City’s standard purchasing policies in an amount not to 
exceed $74,082.00, for a total project total of $120,000.00.  

 
m. Approved by common consent an annual renewal of contract #05-251 in an 

amount not to exceed $179,474 with Clean Harbors to provide Household 
Hazardous Waste collection services. 

 
n. Approved by common consent the reimbursement of $320,182.81 to Gameday 

Centers Southeastern, L.L.C. for five (5) lots located in Northgate originally sold 
as part of an Economic Development Agreement.  

 
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on an ordinance granting a Conditional Use Permit for a night club 
located at 913 Harvey Road, Suites A & B in the Woodstone Center Courtyard. 

14



City Council Regular Meeting 10/11/07  Page5 

Staff Planner Crissy Hartl presented a brief overview of a proposed ordinance granting a 
Conditional Use Permit for a night club located at 913 Harvey Road, Suites A & B in the 
Woodstone Center Courtyard.  The Planning and Zoning Commission and staff 
recommended approval of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Mayor White opened the public hearing. 
 
Gary Seabeck, Applicant, 9215 Timber Knoll Drive, College Station spoke in favor of the 
proposed Conditional Use Permit and offered to answer questions of the City Council. 
 
Mayor White closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gay moved approve Ordinance N. 3010 granting a Conditional User 
Permit for a night club located at 913 Harvey Road, Suites A&B in the Woodstone 
Center Courtyard.  Council member Massey seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
FOR: White, Gay, Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE,” SECTION 3.13, “DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES,” 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT”, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY CHANGING THE REZONING DISTRICT 
BOUNDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN PROPERTIES AS DESCRIBED BELOW; 
DECLARING A PENALTY, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 2 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on an ordinance rezoning 43.94 acres from A-O, Agricultural Open to R-
1, Single Family Residential located at 9007 Sandstone Drive in the general vicinity 
of the termination of Emerald Parkway. 
 
Staff Planner Lindsey Boyer presented a staff report on the proposed ordinance to rezone 
43.94 acres from A-O Agricultural Open to R-1, Single Family Residential located at 
9007 Sandstone Drive in the vicinity of the termination of Emerald Parkway.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval of the rezoning for 
the portions of the property located outside the 100-year floodplain.   
 
Director of Water/Wastewater Services David Coleman discussed sewer issues and 
solutions that Mr. & Mrs. Wisneski had brought forth to staff. 
 
Mayor White opened the public hearing. 
 
The following citizens addressed the City Council regarding the proposed rezoning. 
 
Paul Leventis, 2008 Oakwood Trail 

15



City Council Regular Meeting 10/11/07  Page6 

Larry Wisneski. 2208 Bent Oak 
 
Mayor White closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Gay moved to approve Ordinance No. 3011 rezoning 43.94 acres from 
A-O, Agricultural Open to R-1, Single Family Residential located at 9007 sandstone 
Drive in the general vicinity of the termination of Emerald Parkway.  Council member 
Massey seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 5-0.   
 
FOR: White, Gay, Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 3 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and 
discussion on a Rezoning for 3370 Greens Prairie Road West (Preserve at Stone 
Creek) consisting of approximately 188 acres from A-O, Agricultural Open to R-1, 
Single Family located at 3370 Greens Prairie Road West in the general area 
northeast of the intersection of Greens Prairie Road West and Sweetwater Drive 
between Castlegate Subdivision and Sweetwater Forest Subdivision. 
 
Staff Planner Lindsey Boyer described the proposed ordinance to rezone 188 acres from 
A-O, Agricultural Open to R-1 Single Family located at 3370 Greens Prairie Road West, 
northeast of the intersection of Greens Prairie Road West and Sweetwater Drive between 
Castlegate Subdivision and Sweetwater Forest Subdivision.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended denial; however staff recommended approval with the 
condition that no residential lots be platted within 130 feet of the compressor station. 
 
Mayor White opened the public hearing.  The following citizens addressed the city 
council regarding the proposed rezoning. 
 
Joshua Benn, 4420 Edinburg  
Glenn Rierson, 16085 Calumet Trail 
 
Mayor White closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pr Tem Gay moved to approve Ordinance No. 3012 rezoning for 3370 Greens 
Prairie Road West (Preserve at Stone Creek) consisting of approximately 188 acres from 
A-O, Agricultural Open to R-1, Single Family located at 3370 Greens Prairie Road West 
in the general area northeast of the intersection of Greens Prairie Road West and 
Sweetwater Drive between Castlegate Subdivision and Sweetwater Forest Subdivision.  
Council member Massey seconded the motion, which carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
FOR: White, Gay, Crompton, Massey, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 

16



City Council Regular Meeting 10/11/07  Page7 

Regular Agenda Item No. 4 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding a resolution approving a construction contract with JaCody, Inc in the 
for the amount of $2,247,634.00 for the Police Station Renovations Project. 
 
Graduate Civil Engineer Donald Harman presented a brief summary of a resolution 
approving a construction contract with JaCody, Inc., in the amount of $2,247,634.00 for 
the Police Station Renovations Project. 
 
Council member Massey moved to approve Resolution No. 10-11-2007-04 approving a 
construction contract with JaCody, Inc., in the amount of $2,247,634.00 for the Police 
Station Renovations Project.  Council member Ruesink seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
FOR: White, Gay, Crompton, Masse, Ruesink 
AGAINST:  None 
ABSENT:  McIlhaney, Scotti 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF THE POLICE STATION RENOVATIONS PROJECT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 5 -- The City Council may convene the executive session 
following the regular meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session 
agenda for October 11, 2007. 
 
Council concluded the executive session prior to the regular meeting. 
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 6 -- Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
Regular agenda Item No. 7 -- Adjourn. 
 
Hearing no objections, the meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m. on Thursday, October 11, 
2007. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Connie Hooks City Secretary 

17



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2b 

Annual price agreement for the purchase of protective clothing. 
 

To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: R. B Alley III, Fire Chief                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding renewal of an 
annual price agreement with Nafeco Inc., in an amount not to exceed $56,448.00 for fire 
protective clothing.  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of this contract.  
 
 
Summary: Nafeco Inc. was the successful bidder for the FY2006 annual contract, Bid #06-
126. Fire protective clothing includes bunker gear pants, coats, suspenders and a new NFPA 
requirement for 2007 drag devices in bunker coats. The FY2007 renewal is the first of two 
optional annual renewals of the FY2006 contract. (P.O. 061122) This renewal includes an 
increase of 5% over the previous contract amount. If this contract were re-bid the contract 
amount would need to be increased substantially more to compensate for the increase in 
market prices.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds are budgeted in 001-4251-562-2550 and 001-
4253-562-2550 for this expenditure. Funds are budgeted to provide each new hire with 
protective clothing and to provide for annual replacement protective clothing as outlined by 
the NFPA.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Renewal Letter 
2. Bid tabulation #06-126 
3. Resolution 

 
 
 

18



******************************************************************************
RENEW AL ACCEPTANCE

By signing herewith, I acknowledge and agree to renew bid #06-126, for Fire department
protective clothing in accordance with all terms and conditions previously agreed to and
accepted including a proposed 5 % increase due to increased material and delivery costs.

I understand this renewal term will be for a one year period beginning August 28, 2007 through
August 27,2008 and with the 5 % increase, the new total amount of the contract is $56,448.00
(Fifty Six Thousand Four Hundred Forty Eight and No/Dollars).

NAFECO

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION

Mayor DATE

ATTEST:

DATEConnie Hooks, City Secretary

APPROVED:

DATE

j
CJ -j )--07

DATE

Chief Financial Officer DATE

19



STATE OF Ac;
COUNTYOF a01A/1

Thisinstrumentwasacknowledgedonthe ;;? tJ dayof Aa3asl ,2007,

byJpff,J () A-'~ i~er capacity as See h(C'It.:Th,-r-,Lof

JVDft"I-fA",,1'(I,ll- ?t~ ~";I'.q.a Corporation,onbehalfofsaidcorporation.

~/~~~N Publicinandforthe
Stateof ...4k

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

-

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF BRAZOS

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

This instrumentwas acknowledgedon the day of , 2007,

by Ben White, in his capacity as Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas

home-rule municipality, on behalf of said municipality.

Notary Public in and for the
State of Texas

******************************************************************************

20



BUNKER GEAR AND ACCESSORIES
BID TABULATION #06.126

FIRE

Total $ 53,760.00 $ 53,834.90

NAFECO F

$ 65,680.00

0001
Delivery

Contact Person

Telephone Number
Brand/Style No.

Exceptions
Staff Award Recommendation

Ferrara - Upcharges for Overslzes
Coats - 3XL 56-58" Chest add 30% to price of coat
Coats -4XL 60-62" Chest add 50% to price of coat
Sleeve Lengths other than standard add $12.00
Pants - 4XL 54-56" Waist add 30% to price of pants
Pants -5XL 58-60" Waist add 50% to price of pants
Charges for inseams 33" and up, add 10% to price of pants.

Ferrara- UpchargesCostsfor Oversizes
Employee Uniform
Varner sleeve lengthshorten
Copeland sleeve lengthshorten
Simmons lengthenpants
Thraen lengthenpants
Thraen sleeve length longer
Warren lengthenpants
Warren sleeve length longer
Warren 3xl coat add 30%
Phillips lengthenpants
Spain lengthenpants

Cost
$12.00
$12.00
$55.00
$55.00
$12.00
$55.00
$12.00

$231.90
$55.00
$55.00

$554.90

NAFECO Ferrara DooleyTackaberry
Item Est. Coats& Trousers Unit Total Unit Total Unit Total
No. Qty. Unit Description Price Price Price Price Price Price
1 40 ea. Protectivecoats(standardsize) $ 780.00 $ 31,200.00 $ 773.00 $ 30,920.00 $ 1,022.00 $ 40,880.00
2 40 ea. Protectivetrousers (standardsize) $ 564.00 $ 22,560.00 $ 559.00 $ 22,360.00 $ 620.00 $ 24,800.00
3 1 ea. Ucchargefor oversizegear Included See Below. $ 554.90 Included
4 400 ea. Lettering Included Included Included
5 40 ea. Sewingchargeper coat for lettering Included Included Included- . .

. .. .

45-65 Days 90 Days 30-45 Days
Kirby Wilson Jr. Ryan Manual Jason Karr
713-398-7295 800-443-9006 713-427-3913
Lion Body Guard Liberty Fire Dex Assault Gear Gemin Matrix
No Yes Yes

21



O/group/legal/resolutions/narcotics.doc 
10/16/2007 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE ANNUAL PRICE AGREEMENT FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF PROTECTIVE CLOTHING FROM NAFECO, INC. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, is obligated to protect the 
health, safety and welfare of the population and our emergency response personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS, Nafeco, Inc., is authorized to perform the functions or services contemplated by this 
Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station City Council approved the FY 2006 annual contract, Bid 
#06-126, for the purchase of fire protective clothing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the FY 2007 renewal is the first of two optional annual renewals of the FY 2006 
contract; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby approves the renewal of the annual price agreement 

for the purchase of protective clothing from Nafeco, Inc., in an amount not to 
exceed $56,448.00. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby agrees to protect the health, safety and welfare of the 

population and our emergency response personnel by entering into said 
Agreement. 

 
PART 3: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________________, A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
City Secretary      Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

22



O/group/legal/resolutions/narcotics.doc 
10/16/2007 

____

E-Signed by Mary Ann Powell
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

___________________________ 
City Attorney 

23



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2c 

Adamson Bath House Replacement Rejection of Bids 
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Eric Ploeger, Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation Department 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding rejection of bid 
proposals received from Bid Number 07-115 for construction of a new Bath House at 
Adamson Lagoon.  
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends rejection of bids for the Adamson Bath House 
Construction Project.  Staff and the architect will review and reconfigure the project and re-
bid.  
 
 
Summary:   This project was for the demolition of the existing bath house and the 
construction of a new bath house at Adamson Lagoon located in Bee Creek Park.  On 
September 5, 2007, two bids were received in response to bid Number 07-115.  The low bid 
is well above available funding.  The project design was completed by Arkitex Studio of 
Bryan, Texas.  Project design began in early 2007.  Staff and the architect reviewed the 
budget on a number of occasions and compared potential costs with other projects that 
were under construction.  Estimates of $150 to $160 per square foot were used based upon 
discussions with contractors and review of other projects.  The low bid was approximately 
$196 per square foot. 
 
Following the bid opening, the architect reviewed the bids with both contractors that 
submitted bids.  Both firms indicated that they had been somewhat surprised at the final 
cost and indicated that they initially thought the budget estimate provided with the bid 
documents was adequate.  Review of the individual components of the bids did not indicate 
any specific areas of unexpected costs but rather an overall escalation of construction costs 
over all trades. 
 
Staff intends to closely review and reconfigure the project.  A re-bid of the project would 
occur during the summer of 2008, because the time needed for a re-bid will not allow 
construction to be completed before the pool reopens in the spring of 2008.  The summary 
of the two bids received is attached. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Funds are budgeted and available for this project in the 
Parks Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $990,000.  Design fees for the project were 
$90,000. 
 
 
Attachments:   
 
1)  Bid Tabulation Number 07-115 

24



City of College Station
Bid Tabulation

BID TAB FOR: Adamson Pool Bath House Replacement
DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation
BID: 07-115

Qty Unit
Meas. Description

Adamson Pool Bath House Replacement
1 Lot Base Bid - Pool Bathouse Replacement

Alternates
1 Lot Alt #1 - Concession Grille and Exhaust Fan
1 Lot Alt #2 - Interior Cabinets and Horizontal Blinds
1 Lot Alt #3 - Rolling Shutters
1 Lot Alt #4 - Tile

Unit Prices
Lin. Ft #1 - Drilled Piers
Sq. Yd #2 - Lime Stabalized Subgrade
Sq. Yd #3 - Cement Stabalized Subgrade
Cu. Yd #4 - Select Fill
Cu. Yd #5 - Excavation and Removal
Lin. Ft #6 - 1 1/2" Gas Line

Total Number of Calendar Days to Completion
Number of Addenda Acknowledged
Bid Bond
Bid Cetification Page

Unit Price Unit Price

09/05/07
JaCody

$1,059,650.00

$13,650.00
$45,166.00
$18,295.00
$29,713.00

$3.00

College Station, TX

Y
Y

$1,207,000.00

$8,000.00
$36,000.00
$18,000.00
$25,000.00

$3.50

Dudley Construction

195
1

College Station, TX

$3.00
$10.00
$8.00

$10.00

Y
Y

$6.55
$12.00

195
1

$12.00
$14.50
$4.50

$11.00

 Page 1 of 1 
25



October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2d 

Hot Mix Asphalt Annual Price Agreement 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding renewal 
of bid #07-03 to Knife River to provide Type D Hot Mix Asphalt for the maintenance 
of streets in an amount not to exceed $547,800.00 ($49.80 per ton).  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the purchase agreement 
renewal with Knife River. 
 
Summary:  Knife River (Young Contractors) was the successful bidder for the 
FY2006 annual price agreement.  This renewal is at the same rate and is the first of 
two optional annual renewals. The Purchase Agreement supports maintenance 
operations in the Street Maintenance Division.   
 
The bid was a cooperative effort with the City of Bryan. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funding is available in the operating budget of 
the Street Maintenance Division.   
 
Attachments: Renewal Letter 
 

26



27



28



October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2e 

Renewal Agreement with National Reimbursement Services for               
Ambulance Billing Services    

 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer                        
 
 

Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving a renewal 
agreement with National Reimbursement Services to provide ambulance billing services in 
an amount not to exceed $60,000.   

 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends the approval of the renewal agreement with 
National Reimbursement Services.   
  
Summary: This renewal agreement provides ambulance billing services for the City’s EMS 
operation.  The original contract with National Reimbursement Services was approved on 
February 8, 2007. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available in the City’s general fund budget of 
the accounting division.  
 
 
Attachments:   
 
Renewal Agreement 

29



- - -

~~ ~.I...~ ~..J
RENEWAL ACCEPTANCE

By signingherewith, I acknowledgeand agree to renew contractnumber 07-096 for Ambulance.
Billing Servic~sin accordancewith an tenns and conditionspreviously agreed to and accepted.

I understandthis renewal teITnwill be for the period beginningOctob~r28, 2007 through
October27,2008 . .

001 /Z/"2-oe>/
DATE

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION

Mayor DATE

ATTEST:

City Secretary DATE

APPROVED:

City Manager

ttr1J{t:;m (j]~City'

DATE

DATE

Chief Financial-Officer D-ATE

2:121 39\;;1d 18NI SCIN 95PE:99PE:1L

30



, '

STA TE OF TEXAS

COUNTYOF~

CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

This instrumentwas acknowledgedon the

keltDn
'l;r}hdayofCb.+ober' ,2007,

Vi~.f~_,."P~ of

l.eslleGressett
My CommissionExpires
04/2512009

STATE OF TEXAS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

COUNTY. OF BRAZOS

UJ llUll UIHlU,lll Ul! U!1JHllLYJ! IVl!~Ul Ul W! LiLYU1LUl1I:!M~~HUlUll,u IH~!lli,

home-rule municipality, on behalf of said municipality.

Notary Public in and for the
State of Texas

E0 39\;;1d 18NI S~N g6PEg9PETL

31



October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2f 

Rental of Heavy Machinery  
 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 

Agenda Caption:  Bid No. 07-112 Presentation, possible action and discussion on an 
annual bid for heavy equipment rental with Mustang Rental Services of Bryan, TX as the 
primary vendor in the amount of $95,000 and Equipment Support Services as the secondary 
vendor in the amount of $30,000. 

 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends that Council approve an agreement with 
Mustang Rental Services for annual rental of heavy equipment for an amount not to exceed 
$95,000 and Equipment Rental Support Services for an amount not to exceed $30,000. 
 
Summary: The City of College Station and the City of Bryan combined their annual 
requirements for heavy machinery rental and jointly solicited formal bids.  As a result of this 
joint effort, three bids were received.  Staff at the City of College Station and the City of 
Bryan independently reviewed the bids and both Cities are recommending award to Mustang 
Rental Services as the primary vendor and Equipment Support Services as the secondary 
vendor.  Award of this contract will meet the needs of various city departments requiring 
the rental of heavy and/or specialized equipment.   
 
Sealed competitive bids were solicited from 8 bidders.  Three (3) bids were received and 
opened on September 12, 2007.  Evaluations were based on the daily rate; however, prices 
were requested for weekly and monthly rates. Bid tabulation is attached. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds are budgeted and available in General Fund, 
Public Works and Parks Operations; BVSWMA Fund, Landfill Operations; Public Utilities 
Fund, Electric/Water/WasteWater Operations. 
 
 
Attachments: Bid Tabulation 
 

32



Annual Bid for Heavy Machinery Rental 
Bid Tabulation #07-112

Item Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price
No. Description Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily

Loaders
1 Backhoe/Loader & accessories; 74 HP $1,200.00 $535.00 $190.00 $1,250.00 $535.00 $200.00 $1,325.00 $569.50 $220.00
2 Backhoe/Loader & accessories; 100 HP NB NB NB $2,700.00 $1,080.00 $435.00 NB NB NB
3 Backhoe/Loader & accessories; 74 HP (4x4) $1,300.00 $650.00 $220.00 $1,250.00 $535.00 $200.00 $1,550.00 $599.25 $235.00
4 Backhoe/Loader & accessories; 100 HP (4x4) NB NB NB $2,700.00 $1,080.00 $435.00 NB NB NB

5
Backhoe/Loader & accessories; 74 HP w/1000# 
Hammer $5,000.00 $1,580.00 $565.00 $4,800.00 $1,750.00 $600.00 $2,350.00 $790.50 $310.00

6
Backhoe/Loader and accessories; 100 HP w/1000# 
Hammer NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB

7 Backhoe/Loader and accessories; 74 HP w/Extendahoe $1,738.00 $680.00 $264.00 $1,840.00 $614.00 $261.00 $1,725.00 $658.75 $260.00

8
Backhoe/Loader and accessories; 100 HP 
w/Extendahoe NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB

9
Backhoe/Loader and accessories 74 HP w/Extendahoe, 
18' 2" digging depth $1,565.00 $610.00 $205.00 $1,840.00 $614.00 $261.00 NB NB NB

10
Backhoe 74 HP - w/IT tool carrier w/ldr. Bucket and 
forks $1,675.00 $575.00 $195.00 $1,350.00 $600.00 $250.00 $1,900.00 $743.75 $295.00

11 Skid Steer Loader - 57 HP - 5700 lbs. $1,360.00 $510.00 $170.00 $1,200.00 $425.00 $175.00 $1,150.00 $459.00 $175.00
12 Track Skid Steer Loader - 57 HP - 6618 lbs. $2,500.00 $855.00 $285.00 $1,650.00 $600.00 $250.00 $2,150.00 $701.25 $275.00

Loader Box Blade Tractors
13 Tractor w/1 yd. loader bucket & box blade $1,360.00 $480.00 $155.00 $1,250.00 $535.00 $200.00 NB NB NB
14 Tractor (4x4) w/1yd. Loader bucket & hyd box blade $1,550.00 $550.00 $175.00 $1,250.00 $535.00 $200.00 NB NB NB

Wheel & Track Mini Skid Loaders
15 Wheel skid steer - 57 HP - Wt. 5700 lbs $1,360.00 $510.00 $170.00 $1,200.00 $425.00 $175.00 $1,400.00 $544.00 $215.00
16 Mini track loader - 57 HP - wt. 6618 $2,500.00 $855.00 $285.00 $1,650.00 $600.00 $250.00 $2,400.00 $786.25 $315.00

Skid Steer Atttachments
17 Cold planner $2,100.00 $700.00 $235.00 $2,435.00 $975.00 $390.00 NB NB NB
18 Hydraulic auger $450.00 $150.00 $50.00 $428.00 $142.00 $57.00 $560.00 $225.25 $90.00
19 Hydraulic hammer $845.00 $285.00 $95.00 $1,350.00 $475.00 $185.00 $975.00 $459.00 $180.00
20 72" Angle Blade $650.00 $230.00 $75.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
21 Grapple Bucket $610.00 $210.00 $70.00 $428.00 $142.00 $57.00 $560.00 $225.25 $90.00
22 Grapple Forks $610.00 $210.00 $70.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Mini Excavators
23 Cat 301.5 (or equal) 6' 10"' depth -11'10" Reach $1,495.00 $495.00 $165.00 $1,340.00 $540.00 $220.00 NB NB NB
24 Cat 303.5 (or equal) 9' 11"' depth - 16' 10" Reach $1,800.00 $600.00 $200.00 $1,890.00 $630.00 $252.00 $1,475.00 $497.25 $195.00
25 Cat 302.5 (or equal) 9' 7" depth - 15' 9" Reach $1,685.00 $560.00 $185.00 $1,755.00 $585.00 $234.00 $1,375.00 $446.25 $175.00

Excavators
26 17,730 lbs - 22' 3" Reach 15' 5" Depth $2,660.00 $890.00 $295.00 $3,350.00 $1,125.00 $450.00 $3,375.00 $956.25 $375.00
27 28,970 lbs - 28' 3" Reach - 19' 10" Depth $3,360.00 $1,125.00 $375.00 $3,780.00 $1,260.00 $504.00 $3,800.00 $1,262.25 $495.00
28 36,930 lbs - 28' 8" Reach - 19' 19" Depth $3,950.00 $1,320.00 $440.00 $4,080.00 $1,360.00 $600.00 $4,100.00 $1,364.25 $535.00
29 43,320 lbs - 29' 11" Reach - 20' 10" Depth $4,100.00 $1,380.00 $460.00 NB NB NB $4,900.00 $1,746.75 $705.00
30 46,300 lbs - 31' 10" Reach - 21' 7" Depth $4,400.00 $1,495.00 $495.00 $4,300.00 $1,450.00 $575.00 $4,900.00 $1,746.75 $705.00
31 46,300 lbs - 31' 10" Reach - 21' 7" Depth w/thumb $5,850.00 $2,100.00 $700.00 $5,580.00 $1,860.00 $827.00 $588.00 $2,078.25 $835.00
32 64,460 lbs - 35' Reach - 23' 11" Depth $6,900.00 $2,300.00 $780.00 $7,650.00 $2,600.00 $1,050.00 $6,975.00 $2,537.25 $995.00
33 79,700 lbs - 36' 1" Reach - 24' 7" Depth $8,260.00 $2,755.00 $920.00 $8,460.00 $2,820.00 $1,300.00 $8,000.00 $3,315.00 $1,300.00

Wheel Excavators
34 40,000 lbs - 151 HP - 30'1" Reach - 19'2" Depth $5,700.00 $1,890.00 $630.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Specialty Excavators
35 46,300 lbs - w/5000 lb hammer $14,445.00 $4,850.00 $1,625.00 $15,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,000.00 $9,800.00 $3,786.75 $1,505.00
36 46,300 lbs w/Pin and thumb attachment $5,850.00 $2,100.00 $700.00 $5,580.00 $1,860.00 $827.00 $5,885.00 $2,078.25 $835.00
37 Long Reach - w/60' Reach - 45' Depth $9,600.00 $3,200.00 $1,085.00 $9,200.00 $3,250.00 $1,350.00 $10,000.00 $3,600.00 $1,450.00

979-775-7368

Equipment Support ServicesMustang Rental Services
Andy GarnerBetty Wallace

Neff Rental Inc.
Robert Vealey
813-2675095979-219-6402

Page 1

33



Annual Bid for Heavy Machinery Rental 
Bid Tabulation #07-112

Item Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price
No. Description Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily

979-775-7368

Equipment Support ServicesMustang Rental Services
Andy GarnerBetty Wallace

Neff Rental Inc.
Robert Vealey
813-2675095979-219-6402

Dozers
38 70 HP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $2,250.00 $750.00 $260.00 $3,060.00 $1,035.00 $450.00 $2,600.00 $892.50 $375.00
39 80 HP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $2,700.00 $900.00 $300.00 $3,600.00 $1,200.00 $480.00 $2,995.00 $1,083.75 $400.00
40 90 HP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $3,100.00 $1,050.00 $360.00 $3,800.00 $1,300.00 $475.00 $3,900.00 $1,313.25 $515.00
41 121 HP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $3,800.00 $1,270.00 $450.00 $5,130.00 $1,710.00 $725.00 NB NB NB
42 125 HP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $4,900.00 $1,650.00 $560.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
43 36,497 lbs - 150 HP Dozer w/6-way Blade $5,400.00 $1,800.00 $600.00 $7,280.00 $2,910.00 $1,165.00 NB NB NB
44 44,200 lbs - 175 HP Clearing Dozer Rake & Blade $7,900.00 $2,650.00 $850.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
45 200 HP Dozer w/Straight Blade w/Tilt 44,420 lbs $6,900.00 $2,350.00 $780.00 $8,900.00 $3,560.00 $1,430.00 NB NB NB

46
175 HP Cat D6R-XL Dozer (or equal) with Straight 
Blade w / Tilt $6,900.00 $2,350.00 $780.00 $8,900.00 $3,590.00 $1,430.00 NB NB NB

Low Ground Pressure Dozers
47 70 HP LGP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $3,000.00 $1,000.00 $325.00 $3,060.00 $1,035.00 $450.00 $2,650.00 $1,020.00 $375.00
48 80 HP LGP Dozer w/ 6-way Blade $3,800.00 $1,270.00 $425.00 $3,600.00 $1,200.00 $480.00 NB NB NB
49 90 HP LGP Dozer w/6-way Blade 19,700 lbs $4,050.00 $1,350.00 $450.00 $3,800.00 $1,300.00 $475.00 $3,900.00 $1,313.25 $515.00
50 121 HP LGP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $4,700.00 $1,600.00 $550.00 $5,130.00 $1,710.00 $725.00 NB NB NB
51 150 HP LGP Dozer w / 6-way Blade $6,600.00 $2,230.00 $745.00 $7,280.00 $2,910.00 $1,165.00 NB NB NB
52 175 HLGP Dozer w/ straight Blade w / Tilt $8,000.00 $2,700.00 $900.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
53 200 HP LGP Dozer w/straight Blade w/ Tilt CAB $8,000.00 $2,700.00 $900.00 $8,900.00 $3,560.00 $1,430.00 NB NB NB

Landscape Tractor
54 40 HP Tractor Box Blade / Front End Loader 4x4 NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB

Wheel Loaders
55 2.3 Yard Bucket - 129 HP $2,800.00 $950.00 $315.00 $3,780.00 $1,260.00 $504.00 NB NB NB
56 2.6 Yard Bucket - 143 HP $3,250.00 $1,080.00 $375.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
57 3 Yard Bucket - 149 HP $3,650.00 $1,215.00 $405.00 $4,050.00 $1,350.00 $550.00 $3,750.00 $1,262.25 $495.00
58 3.25 Yard Bucket - 160 HP $4,300.00 $1,450.00 $490.00 $4,950.00 $1,650.00 $660.00 $4,250.00 $1,518.25 $615.00
59 4Yard Bucket - 196 HP  $5,400.00 $1,800.00 $600.00 $6,750.00 $2,250.00 $900.00 NB NB NB

Integrated Tool Carrier Wheel Loaders
60 2.3 Yard Bucket - 129 HP $3,200.00 $1,075.00 $350.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
61 2.6 Yard Bucket - 143 HP $3,600.00 $1,200.00 $400.00 $4,770.00 $1,910.00 $765.00 NB NB NB
62 3.3 Yard Bucket - 160 HP w/Cab $4,400.00 $1,450.00 $500.00 $5,830.00 $2,330.00 $935.00 NB NB NB

Scrapers
63 11 CY Self Loading NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB
64 17 CY Self Loading NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB
65 22 CY Self Loading NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB
66 Pneumatic Compactor - 9 wheel 14 Ton $2,075.00 $690.00 $230.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Pad Drum Compactors
67 50" Single Vibratory Drum 83 HP $2,300.00 $790.00 $260.00 NB NB NB $2,495.00 $845.75 $335.00
68 66" Single Vibratory Drum - 100 HP $2,900.00 $970.00 $325.00 $3,800.00 $1,270.00 $525.00 $2,850.00 $1,032.75 $405.00
69 84" Single Vibratory Drum - 150 HP $3,650.00 $1,275.00 $410.00 $4,050.00 $1,350.00 $540.00 $3,795.00 $1,224.00 $480.00

Smooth Drum Compactors
70 66" Single Vibratory Drum - 100 HP $2,600.00 $870.00 $290.00 $3,800.00 $1,270.00 $525.00 $2,850.00 $1,032.75 $405.00
71 84" Single Vibratory Drum - 150 HP $3,650.00 $1,220.00 $405.00 $4,050.00 $1,350.00 $540.00 $3,795.00 $1,224.00 $480.00

Asphalt Equipment
72 39" Static Steel Drum Roller $1,575.00 $540.00 $180.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
73 47" Static Steel Drum Roller $1,800.00 $600.00 $205.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
74 Asphalt Recycler NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB
75 Pulver Mixer 335 HP - 8' Drum Soil Stabilizer $8,495.00 $2,950.00 $995.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
76 Water Truck 200 Gallon $2,550.00 $930.00 $310.00 NB NB NB $2,400.00 $918.00 $360.00
77 Self Propelled Mechanical 7' 6" Broom Diesel $1,800.00 $600.00 $200.00 NB NB NB $1,350.00 $433.50 $170.00
78 Catepillar 815F Soil Compactor $8,350.00 $2,785.00 $930.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Page 2

34



Annual Bid for Heavy Machinery Rental 
Bid Tabulation #07-112

Item Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price
No. Description Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily

979-775-7368

Equipment Support ServicesMustang Rental Services
Andy GarnerBetty Wallace

Neff Rental Inc.
Robert Vealey
813-2675095979-219-6402

Motor Graders
79 Noram 65E/Leeboy686B 68 HP $2,750.00 $935.00 $315.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
80 Cat 120 (or equal) 125 HP - 12' Moldboard $3,750.00 $1,250.00 $425.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
81 Cat 135H 135 HP 14' Moldboard $4,585.00 $1,600.00 $540.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
82 Cat 12H 140 HP 14' Moldboard $4,875.00 $1,670.00 $550.00 $6,500.00 $2,200.00 $800.00 NB NB NB
83 Cat 140H 165 HP 14' Moldboard $5,300.00 $1,800.00 $600.00 $6,500.00 $2,200.00 $800.00 NB NB NB

Articulated Off Road Trucks
84 25 Ton Off Road Truck $8,750.00 $3,250.00 $1,095.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
85 Noram 65E/Leeboy686B 68 HP NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB NB

Forklifts
86 6000 lb. Straight Mask Rought Terrain w / 21' Lift $1,575.00 $525.00 $175.00 $1,650.00 $585.00 $205.00 $1,585.00 $514.25 $215.00
87 6600 lb Tele Handler 42' Lift 30' Reach $2,250.00 $760.00 $255.00 NB NB NB $2,050.00 $790.50 $335.00
88 7000 lb Tele Handler 44' 4" Life - 30' Reach $2,250.00 $760.00 $255.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
89 8800 lb. Tele Handler 44' 4" Lift - 30' Reach $2,475.00 $840.00 $280.00 NB NB NB $2,400.00 $905.25 $355.00
90 8=9000 Lb Tele Handler - 43' Lift - 31' 5" Reach $2,475.00 $840.00 $280.00 NB NB NB $2,650.00 $981.75 $385.00

Trench Compators
91 Remote 24/33 Width - Diesel $1,750.00 $675.00 $225.00 NB NB NB $1,750.00 $527.00 $232.00
92 Walk Behind 24/33 Width - Diesel $150.00 $580.00 $190.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Trash Pumps (Hoses Extra)
93 2" Gasoline  $315.00 $105.00 $35.00 NB NB NB $318.75 $127.50 $50.00
94 3" Gasoline $405.00 $135.00 $45.00 NB NB NB $420.75 $153.00 $60.00
95 4" Diesel - Trailer Mounted     $540.00 $180.00 $60.00 NB NB NB $590.75 $204.00 $80.00
96 6" Diesel - Trailer Mounted $990.00 $330.00 $110.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Air Compressors (Hoses Extra) and Light Towers
97 185 CFM - Diesel Trailer Mounted $600.00 $205.00 $70.00 NB NB NB $550.00 $234.60 $92.00
98 400 CFM - Deisel Trailer Mounted  $1,020.00 $340.00 $115.00 NB NB NB $1,020.00 $420.75 $165.00
99 Portable Light Tower w/30' Mast $690.00 $230.00 $80.00 NB NB NB $510.00 $204.00 $82.00

Generators
100 3600 Watts $385.00 $130.00 $44.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
101 6000 Watts $495.00 $166.00 $55.00 NB NB NB $535.50 $178.50 $70.00
102 20 KW - Trailer Mounted $895.00 $300.00 $100.00 NB NB NB $1,080.00 $420.00 $165.00
103 36 KW - Trailer Mounted $1,055.00 $350.00 $119.00 NB NB NB $1,100.00 $497.25 $195.00
104 56 KW - Trailer Mounted $1,350.00 $450.00 $150.00 NB NB NB $1,395.00 $548.25 $215.00

Trenchers
105 Walk Behind 1030 Ditchwitch $1,200.00 $395.00 $135.00 NB NB NB $950.00 $446.25 $175.00
106 Ride-On Vermeer RT350 $1,700.00 $570.00 $190.00 NB NB NB $1,595.00 $658.75 $260.00

Rammers
107 Tamper - Multiquip MT5 / MT85 (or equal) $495.00 $165.00 $55.00 NB NB NB $531.25 $204.00 $80.00

Crawler Loaders
108 2.3 Yd Bucket 128 HP - 33,389 lbs $4,950.00 $1,650.00 $550.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB
109 3.0 Yd Bucket 158 HP - 45,500 lbs $6,900.00 $2,300.00 $760.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Disc Plows - 36 Hinge Offset
110 Plow 20 x 30 w/Plow 16/32 $1,600.00 $540.00 $180.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Vibratory Plate Compactors

111
Multiquip = 17" to a 19" X 17" to 22"                       3350 
Centrifical Force or Equivalent $450.00 $150.00 $50.00 NB NB NB $505.75 $178.50 $70.00

Reversible Vibratory Plate Compactors
112 Multiquip - MVH 2000GH - 8 HP $1,035.00 $345.00 $120.00 NB NB NB $556.75 $250.75 $95.00

Welders
113 Lincoln 250 Amps & Multiquip 300 Amps $495.00 $345.00 $120.00 NB NB NB $395.00 $165.75 $65.00

Hydraulic Cranes
114 Carrry Deck Crane - 8 Ton $2,500.00 $875.00 $290.00 NB NB NB $3,300.00 $1,147.50 $450.00

Submersible Pumps (Trash and Centrifugal)
115 2" Electric Centrifugal $240.00 $80.00 $27.00 NB NB NB $297.50 $119.00 $47.00
116 2" Electrical Trash $285.00 $95.00 $32.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Page 3

35



Annual Bid for Heavy Machinery Rental 
Bid Tabulation #07-112

Item Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price
No. Description Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily

979-775-7368

Equipment Support ServicesMustang Rental Services
Andy GarnerBetty Wallace

Neff Rental Inc.
Robert Vealey
813-2675095979-219-6402

Paving Breakers (runs off air)
117 60 lbs $220.00 $75.00 $25.00 NB NB NB $283.05 $94.35 $37.00
118 90 lbs $245.00 $81.00 $27.00 NB NB NB $283.05 $94.35 $37.00

Concrete Vibrators
119 2 HP (Furnished w/shaft & head) $245.00 $81.00 $27.00 NB NB NB $314.50 $76.50 $30.00
120 3 HP (Furnished w/shaft & head) $285.00 $95.00 $32.00 NB NB NB NB NB NB

Page 4

36



Annual Bid for Heavy Machinery Rental 
Bid Tabulation #07-112

Item Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price
No. Description Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily Monthly Weekly Daily

979-775-7368

Equipment Support ServicesMustang Rental Services
Andy GarnerBetty Wallace

Neff Rental Inc.
Robert Vealey
813-2675095979-219-6402

Delivery Charge

Pick Up Charge

Fuel Charge per gallon 
Charge for Cleaning Equipment if Returned Dirty
Delivery ARO
Location of Nearest Branch

NOTES/EXCEPTIONS
Cities to supply insurance.  

Houston, TX
2 days

$175.00 to $250.00

$175.00 to $250.00

6.50/gallon
N/A

101 H.P. or more - $100.00 ea. way on frt.

Bryan, TX

$150.00

$150.00

Market Rate
$75.00 

1 to 3 days
Bryan, TX

100 H.P. or Less - $75.00 ea.way on frt.

1 to 2 days

100 H.P. or Less - $75.00 ea.way on frt.
101 H.P. or more - $100.00 ea. way on frt.

$5.50/gallon
$150.00

 Only if Excessivly Dirty will the rate apply, 
Normal Use No Charge

Charge for Cleaning:

Page 5

37



 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2g 

Construction Contract #07-275  
for Phase II-A of the Veterans Park and Athletic Complex 

Extension of Veterans Parkway 
 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Eric Ploeger, Assistant Director of Parks and Recreation                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding Bid Number 
07-119.  Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution awarding the 
bid and approving a construction contract (Contract Number 07-275) with JaCody, Inc., in 
the amount of $619,496.00 for the construction of Phase II-A of the Veterans Park and 
Athletic Complex, the extension of Veterans Parkway. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the resolution and award of the 
construction contract with JaCody, Inc., for the construction of Phase II-A of Veterans Park 
and Athletic Complex, the extension of Veterans Parkway.  This includes Alternate #1 for 
sod installation within a drainage control ditch that is part of the project. 
 
 
Summary:  This item will construct the extension of Veterans Parkway through Veterans 
Park and connect the park to Highway 60 (University Drive).  This 800 foot extension will 
provide a second entry/exit point for Veterans Park and greatly improve access and safety 
for park users.  The project includes landscaping and a sign similar to the existing entrance 
on Highway 30.  A number of significant drainage improvements are included to direct water 
flowing across the north end of the park towards Carter Creek. 
 
Phase II of Veterans Park was bid in early 2006 and was under budget.  The remaining 
funds will be used to complete the Veterans Parkway Extension.  This will reduce funding 
needed for future completion of the park.  The design contract for this part of the project 
was approved by Council on December 14, 2006. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Four (4) sealed, competitive bids were received and 
opened on September 25, 2007.  The bid summary is attached.  Funds are available and 
budgeted in the FY2007 Parks Capital Projects Fund.  There is approximately $700,000 
remaining in project funds.  
 
 
Attachments:   
 
1)  Resolution 
2)  Bid Tabulation 07-119 
3)  Project Location Map 
4)  Veterans Parkway Extension Site Plan 
 
 
 

38



 
                             RESOLUTION NO. ________________________ 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR PHASE II-A OF THE 
VETERANS PARK AND ATHLETIC COMPLEX – VETERANS PARKWAY EXTENSION 
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT, PROJECT NUMBER 0501, AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited bids for the construction phase of 
Veterans Park and Athletic Complex, Phase II-A, Veterans Parkway Extension Construction 
Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of JaCody, Inc., is being recommended as the lowest responsible 
bidder for the construction services related to the Veterans Park and Athletic Complex, Phase II-
A, Veterans Parkway Extension Construction Project; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that JaCody, Inc., is the lowest responsible 

bidder. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with JaCody, Inc., in the 

amount of $619,496.00 for the labor, materials, and equipment required for the 
Veterans Park and Athletic Complex, Phase II-A, Veterans Parkway Extension 
Construction Project.  This amount includes Alternate #1. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this contract shall be as budgeted from the Parks Capital 

Improvement Projects Fund in the amount of $619,496.00  
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.  
 
 
ADOPTED this the 25h day of October, A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

 

E-Signed by Mary Ann Powell
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

     
City Attorney 

39



 

40



 Unit Item Unit Item Unit Item Unit Item
Item Qty Unit Description Price Total Price Total Price Total Price Total

1 1 LS 800' Extension of Veterans Parkway 614,996.000 614,996.00$      646,020.000 646,020.00$   657,319.000 657,319.00$   671,500.000 671,500.00$   
Alternate No. 1

2 1 LS Drainage Ditch 4,500.000 4,500.00$          6,540.000 6,540.00$       15,000.000 15,000.00$     4,200.000 4,200.00$       

Base Bid & Alternate 1 TOTAL 619,496.00$     652,560.00$   672,319.00$  675,700.00$  

Trench Safety unit price per lf $2.00 $1.00 $1.00 $1.00
Bid Certification Yes Yes Yes Yes
Bid Bond Yes Yes Yes Yes
Number of Days to Substantial Completion 100 100 60 60
Addenda Received Yes Yes Yes Yes

Dudley Construction

VETERANS PARK AND ATHLETIC COMPLEX - PHASE II-A
BID TABULATION #17-119 - 9/25/07

PARKS AND RECREATION

JaCody, Inc. Brazos Valley ServicesBrazos Paving

  

41



42



43



 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2h  

Click2Gov for Customer Information Systems 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Ben Roper, Director of Information Technology                        
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
contract with Sungard HTE for the purchase of the Click2Gov Customer Information 
Systems (CX) module in an amount not to exceed $36,090.00. 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends contract approval. 
 
Summary:  The Click2Gov – CX module will be put in place of the current ePay website for 
on-line electronic Utility payments.  This module will offer services that currently exist on 
the Utility Billing ePAY site plus additional options for customers including: Customers’ 
ability to update their mailing address, phone number and e-mail online, Customers’ ability 
to schedule recurring credit card payments, and Customers’ ability to pay and/or schedule 
payments via e-check rather than using a debit/credit card for online payments. 
  
This contract (08-045) is a Supplement to the H.T.E., Inc. Software and License Agreement 
dated March 13, 1998 between Sungard HTE Inc. and the City of College Station.  The 
contract is exempt from competitive bidding by LGC 252.022(a)(7)(A) due to one source 
based on software copyrights.  Sungard HTE is the software vendor for approximately 23 
modules (applications) hosted on the IBM i5 computer and used by virtually every City 
department including, but not limited to Utility Billing and Collection, Finance, Budget and 
Accounting, Fleet Management and Development Services. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds exist in the Automated Customer Service Capital 
Improvement Project, supplemented by funds approved via SLA in the FY08 Utility Billing 
operating budget to cover this purchase.  Ongoing costs of $5,160, incorporated into the 
contract amount, exist for the maintenance and support of this module. 
 
Attachments: 
Supplement contract for Click2Gov – CX Software and License Agreement 
A copy of the master agreement with HTE is available in the City Secretary’s office 
 

 

44



SUNGARD" PUBLIC SECTOR 
HTE 

SUPPLEMENT TO H.T.E., INC. SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN SUNGARD HTE INC. AND CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TX 

SCHEDULE A-PRICING AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
CONTRACT NO. COLG-071162 

This Supplement is to the H.T.E., Inc. Software License and Services Agreement dated March 13, 1998 (Agreement), between 
SunGard HTE Inc. (HTE) and City of College Station, TX (Customer). Unless otherwise stated below, all tenns and 
conditions as stated in the Agreement shall remain in effect. 

SunGard HTE Licensed Programs 
C2G CIS Module - K2 
OnePoint C2G Credit Card Payment Activation (K2) - K4 
OnePoint Core Module - KL 
OnePoint eCheck (CIS) - KN 

SunGard HTE Licensed Program Totals 

Payment Schedule* I Contract I Execution I Delivered I Noted 
License Fees 1 % 25.780.00 1 % 25.780.00 1 

Total 

License Fees 
$ 20,580.00 

Included 
5,200.00 

$ 25,780.00 

I 
Grand Total I $ 36,090.00 1 $ 25,780.00 1 $ 5,150.00 1 $ 5,160.00 

APPLICABLE TAXES ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THIS SCHEDULE, AND, IF APPLICABLE, WILL BE ADDED 

Due Upon 
Contract 

Installation Fees 

TO THE AMOUNT IN THE PAYMENT INVOICE(S) BEING SENT SEPARATELY TO THE CUSTOMER. 
CUSTOMER IS A TAX EXEMPT ENTITY AND WILL PROVIDE ITS TAX EXEMPTION NUMBER. 

Installation 
Fees 

$ 1,800.00 
1,900.00 

1,450.00 

$ 5,150.00 

5,150.00 1 1 $ 5,150.00 1 

*Payments: 
THE AMOUNTS NOTED ABOVE SHALL BE PAYABLEAS FOLLOWS: 

License Fees: Upon execution of this Supplement. 
Installation Fees: On invoice; upon completion. 
Annual Support Fees: Prior to the commencement of the initial tenn of support. Support fees for subsequent 

terms of support will be due prior to the start of that term at the then prevailing rate. Rates 
for subsequent years of support service are subject to change. 

Travel and Living Expenses: Travel and living expenses are in addition to the prices quoted above and will be invoiced 
as incurred and shall be governed by the HTE Corporate Travel and Expense 
Reiniburseinent Policy. 

Annual 
Support 

$ 4,120.00 

1,040.00 

$ 5,160.00 

Due As 
Incurred1 

ClicWGov Conditions 
Customer agrees to meet the requirements of the HTE Click2Gov HardwarelSoflware recommendations attached. Click2Gov 
Licensed Programs do not include source code. 

Due As 
Otherwise 

Annual Support 

Licensed Program Testing and Acceptance 
The Licensed Program Testing and Acceptance as defined in Section V1 of the Agreement shall extend for a period of sixty 
(60) days commencing on the first day of Installation and Configuration services of each Licensed Program. 

5,160.00 1 I 1 $ 5,160.00 

Warranty 
SunGard HTE warrants that for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days after testing and acceptance of the Licensed 
Programs, the SunGard HTE Licensed Programs herein will perform in substantial compliance with the reference 
documentation supplied by SunGard HTE, provided the Licensed Programs are used in the proper operating environment. 
SunGard HTE does not warrant that the functions contained in the Licensed Programs will meet the Customer's requirement or 
will operate in the combinations which may be selected for use by the Customer after the one hundred twenty (120) day period. 

SunGard HTE Schedule A 
Ver. 03/23/05 

COLG-071162 SunGard HTE Sch A.doc 
September 11,2007 45



Any other utility or incidental software distributed by SunGard HTE will be on an "AS IS" and "WITH ALL FAULTS" basis 
without warranty of any kind either expressed or implied. SunGard HTE shall be responsible only for the Licensed Programs 
and products as originally supplied and accepted by Customer, and for changes made to the Licensed Programs by SunGard 
HTE's authorized representatives. SunGard HTE will not be responsible for the consequences of attempts at changes or 
modifications to the products and Licensed Programs made by the Customer or any other unauthorized party. 

SunGard HTE warrants that it has the right to license the SunGard HTE Licensed Programs listed herein and that the SunGard 
HTE Licensed Programs do not infringe any intellectual property of any third party. SunGard HTE agrees to defend and 
indemnify Customer against expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, costs, expert fees and other fees and expenses and 
liability arising from any claim of infringement related to SunGard HTE Licensed Programs provided SunGard HTE shall have 
the right to control the defense or settlement of any such claim. If use of the SunGard HTE Licensed Programs by the 
Customer is enjoined by any infringement proceeding, SunGard HTE shall, if possible, obtain without unreasonable expense 
the right of License for the Customer to use the SunGard HTE Licensed Programs or if that is not possible, SunGard HTE shall 
rehnd to the Customer the license fees paid under this Supplement for the particular Licensed Program that is determined to be 
infringing. 

SunGard HTE does not make any representations or warranties with respect to intellectual property rights of any third party 
products. Any such representations or warranties are made solely by the Vendor of such products, and shall not be construed 
as a warranty with respect to infringement and the like by SunGard HTE. 

SUNGARD HTE MAKES NO WARRANTIES, OTHER THAN AS STATED HEREIN, WITH RESPECT TO THE 
PARTICULAR LICENSED PROGRAM(S), EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED 
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

Remedies and Limitation of Liability 
In situations involving performance or nonperformance of Licensed Programs hrnished under this Supplement, the Customer's 
remedy is (1) the prompt correction by SunGard HTE of Licensed Program defects, or (2) if, after commercially reasonable 
efforts, HTE is unable to make the Licensed Programs operate as warranted, HTE shall reimburse Customer actual, direct 
damages to the limits set forth in Section XI of the Agreement. Customer shall return or destroy the Licensed Programs for 
which damages are sought once the reimbursement has been received. 

SunGard HTE's liability for claims related to bodily injury, death and damage to real property and tangible personal property, 
as provided in Section XI of the Agreement, is intended to include, and does include, claims in which automobiles are 
involved. 

HTE Support Services 
The initial term of HTE support services shall commence one hundred twenty (120) days after installation/configuration of the 
Licensed Program(s), and extend for a twelve (12) month term. Subsequent terms of support will be for twelve (12) month 
periods, commencing at the end of the initial support period. Support Services do not include maintenance on modifications 
made to the Licensed Program(s) at Customer's request. 

Scheduled Resource Changes 
Customer acknowledges that HTE makes every effort to schedule training and project management sessions sufficiently in 
advance to make effective use of HTE's personnel and to obtain favorable prices for travel and living. In the event Customer 
schedules and then cancels training or project management, Customer shall be obligated to reimburse HTE for any non- 
refundable expenses incurred by HTE for travel expenses. Notwithstanding the above, HTE will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to reschedule HTE personnel in order to mitigate Customer's costs and expenses under this paragraph. To the extent 
HTE is successful in such rescheduling, Customer's payment obligations shall be reduced. 

Provisions of Insurance 
The provisions for insurance as defined in the Agreement are hereby terminated for this and subsequent SunGard HTE 
supplements and shall be replaced with the attached "Certificate of Liability Insurance". 

Preprinted Terms and Conditions 
Preprinted conditions and all other terms, not included in this Supplement or in the Agreement, on any purchase order or other 
document submitted hereafter by Customer are of no force or effect, and the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and if 
applicable, this Supplement and the Hardware Purchase Agreement if applicable, shall control unless expressly accepted by 
HTE in writing to the Customer. 

SunGard HTE Schedule A 
Ver. 03/23/05 

COLG-071162 SunGard HTE Sch A.doc 
September 1 I ,  2007 46



Non-Hiring Statement 
During the term of this Supplement and for a period of twenty-four (24) months after the termination of this Supplements, 
neither party may offer to hire or in any way employ or compensate any of the employees of the other Party or persons who 
have been employed by that party within the immediate past twenty-four (24) months without prior consent of the other party. 

Estimated Travel and Living Expenses 
The Travel and Living Expense estimated below includes travel and living expenses associated with services performed for the 
Licensed Programs in this Supplement. Customer agrees to pay actual travel and living expenses incurred by HTE. HTE will 
use commercially reasonable efforts not to exceed the projected expense defined below. 

Airfare $600 (booked at least 21 days in advance) 1 Flight 
Hotel $125/Night 3 Nights - $375 
Per diem $45/Day 3 Days - $135 
Car Rental $ 90IDay 3 Days - $270 
Miscellaneous Expenses (Parking, Tolls, Mileage etc.) = $ 100 
Customer is Tax Exempt 

The terms and conditions contained in this Supplement, including the prices, will be honored as set forth herein, 
provided this Supplement is fully executed by October 31,2007. 

Customer warrants that the amounts to be paid hereunder will be paid out of Customers budgeted funds. 

CITY O F  COLLEGE STATION, TX SUNGARD HTE INC. 

Authorized Signature Authorized Signature 
RONALD E. GOODROW 

Executive Vice President 
Print Name & Title Print Name & Title 

PY Bu/7 
Date ~ a t e l  

ATTEST: 

City Secretary 

City Manager 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Chief Financial Officer 

SunGard HTE Schedule A 
Ver. 03/23/05 

Date 

COLG-071162 SunGard HTE Sch A.doc 
September 11,2007 

47



Marsh USA Inc 
TWO LOGAN SQUARE TEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE 
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19103-2797 
Attn Contract.ReviewCSS@marsh com Fax: 212-948-1306 

ALL OWNED AUTOS DEDUCTIBLES: 
SCHEDULED AUTOS COMP:$1000 PPT, HIRED PPT, 

HIRED AUTOS LT TRUCK1 $3000 OTHER 

COLL $1000 PPT, HIRED PPT, 

THE PROPRIETOR1 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TX 
A N :  ROGER EARWOOD 
1101 TEXAS AVENUE 
COLLEGE STATION, TX 77842 

VALID AS OF: 09/14/07 

48



SunGard HTE Inc. 

~ l i c k 2 ~ o v ~  
H T E  INC. 

Hardwarelsoftware Requirements 

0) based products: 

IBM iSeries (AS400) 

Minimum Sizing Recommendations (Requires a Pre contract Systems 
Assurance): 

Processor Rating: 115 CPW (Minimum rating dependent upon current and expected resource 
utilization) 

Memory: Determined by HTE (Considerations: User Load, Existing CPU Utilization, etc.) 
Network Adapter: 101100Mbps Ethernet, Token Ring, or Fiber Adapter 
Operating System: V5R1 or later 
Additional Software: DB2 Query Manager and SQL Development Kit for AS1400 (5769-ST], 5722-ST1 

if running v5r 1 or higher) 

Additional Requirements: Click2Gov CIS Inquiry: 1MB per 1,000 customers 
Click2Gov Payment: Approximately 1 OMB per 1,000 customer annually 
All Others: No additional requirements at this time 

Requires Secure Internet Access including; a Registered Domain Name and a Registered TCPJIP 
Address. 

Windows 2000 Based Server (Minimum Recommendations): 

Requires Secure Internet Access, including a Registered Domain Name and a Registered TCPIIP Address. 

Low Volule 
lGHz Pentium IV 
Network Adapter & UPS 
512Mb RAM (HW Expandable to 1Gb) 
40Gb Disk Storage (RAID-5 Protect.) 
Windows 2000 Server 
Protocol: TCPJIP only 
BEA WebLogic Express (Ver 8.1) * 

Note: Compatibility issues between software products are difficult to predict, therefore HTE recommends 
that the customer utilize a dedicated server for hosting Click2Gov Applications. All exceptions regarding 
HTE's recommendations need to be reviewed by the HTE's Click2Gov Application Team. 

* Note: Both license fees and first year (required) support for the WebLogic Express product are offered as a 
per processor charge. Click2Gov does not require more than a single processor. 

Mediuni Volume 
1.5GHz Pentium IV 
Network Adapter & UPS 
1Gb RAM (HW Expandable to 2Gb) 
60Gb Disk Storage (RAID-5 Protect.) 
Windows 2000 Server 
Protocol: TCPJIP only 
BEA WebLogrc Express (Ver 8. I )  * 

SunGard HTE Inc Proprietary Information 

copyrighte 2000 H.T.E., Inc. 

High Volume 
2GHz Pentium IV 
Network Adapter & UPS 
2Gb RAM (HW Expandable to 2Gb) 
80Gb Disk Storage (RAID-5 Protect.) 
Windows 2000 Server 
Protocol: TCPJIP only 
BEA WebLogic Express (Ver 8.1) * 

Page 1of 2 

49



SunGard HTE Inc. 

~ l i c k 2 ~ o v '  
H T E  I N C .  

Hardwarelsoftware Requirements 

User Browser 

m Workstation w/ Internet Access (Capable of running Internet Browser) 

9 -  - a Internet Browser: Microsoft Internet Explorer 4.0 or later 
Netscape Navigator 4.0 or later 

Note: Web TV is not a recommended client for Click2Gov 

Other Reauirements: 

Mail Server: Fully Compatible SMTP e-mail Server. 

Verisign Digital Certificate 128-Bit Recommended when applications that enable credit card 
processing are purchased. 

Established relationship with Merchant Bank Required when applications that enable credit card processing 
are purchased. 

Hardware Environmental Specifications: Customers need to follow the Environmental Specifications 
provided by the hardware manufacturer. 

Training: 

Internet Connectivity 

SunGard HTE Inc Proprietary Information 

copyrightG 2000 H.T.E., Inc. 

Customers must be fully familiar with their Intranet 
infrastructure (Web Server Software, Firewalls, Routers, etc ...). 

Adequate bandwidth will vary depending on the expected end- 
user participation. The customer is responsible for assuring and 
configuring adequate security for their network (i.e., firewall), 
and providing adequate bandwidth for their environment. 

Page 20f 2 

50



 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2i   

Clinical Affiliation Agreement with Texas Engineering Extension Service  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Robert Alley, Fire Chief                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the approval of a 
resolution for the City of College Station to continue the Clinical Affiliation Agreement with 
the Texas Engineering Extension Service for emergency medical certification purposes.  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  
 
Summary: The City of College Station currently provides the students affiliated with the 
Texas Engineering Extension Service with opportunities for hands-on experiences at Basic 
and Advanced levels for emergency medical certification training. This agreement provides 
direction and requirements for students and emergency response personnel who participate 
in this agreement. This agreement is required to be updated to meet Texas Department of 
Health licensing and certification requirements.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None.  
 
Attachments:  
          Clinical Affiliation Agreement 
          Resolution 

51



52



53



54



55



O/group/legal/resolutions/narcotics.doc 
10/19/2007 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE CLINICAL AFFILIATION AGREEMENT WITH TEXAS 
ENGINEERING EXTENSION SERVICE (TEEX) TO WORK COOPERATIVELY IN 
PROVIDING TEEX EMERGENCY MEDICAL STUDENTS WITH A CLINICAL 
LEARNING ENVIRONMENT FOR CERTIFICATION PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, is obligated to protect the 
health, safety and welfare of the population; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Engineering Extension Service offers a certification program in 
Emergency Medical Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties represent that both are independently authorized to perform the functions 
or services contemplated by this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the TEEX emergency medical students are currently assigned ride-along times with 
the College Station Fire Department to meet clinical requirements for state certification ; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, wishes to partner and 
collaborate on emergency medical training with the Texas Engineering Extension Service for basic 
certification purposes; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby approves this Clinical Affiliation Agreement for 

participation in the TEEX Emergency Medical Services certification program. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby agrees to protect the health, safety and welfare of the 

population by collaborating with its partners at the Texas Engineering Extension 
Service. 

 
PART 3: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________________, A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

_____

E-Signed by Mary Ann Powell
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

__ 
City Attorney 

56



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2j 

Texas Avenue Streetscape Project 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: RFQ #07-91. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a 
contract with Land Design Partners to develop plans for adding landscaping, specifically 
trees where possible, along Texas Avenue within the TxDOT right-of-way.  The amount of 
the contract is not to exceed $69,100.     
 
Recommendation(s):     Staff recommends approval of the contract. 
 

Summary:  This resolution will approve a professional services contract with Land Design 
Partners for the development of plans, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) for the Texas 
Avenue Streetscape Phase II project (ST9915).  This project will add streetscaping, 
specifically trees where possible, within the Texas Avenue right-of-way between Harvey 
Mitchell Parkway (FM 2818) and George Bush Drive (FM 2347).   

 

TxDOT has included some landscaping in some medians in the Texas Avenue Widening 
Project.  This project seeks to enhance the appearance of this key corridor in College Station 
by identifying opportunities and installing additional landscaping.  As part of this project, the 
consultant will develop a master plan for the corridor and then design the PS&E.  Also, the 
consultant will develop an annual maintenance cost to ensure that sufficient funds are set 
aside annually to maintain the desired look of the corridor. 

 
Since this project is within TxDOT right-of-way, city staff is working closely with TxDOT and 
will request their comments on each level of the design submitted by the consultant.  It is 
anticipated that the PS&E documents will be completed by April 1, 2008, so that the 
installation of the landscaping can begin soon after the Texas Avenue construction is 
completed. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The total cost for the professional services proposed by 
Land Design Partners is $69,100.  $672,000 is available for this project through the Streets 
CIP fund. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2.  Location Map 
 
 

57



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE DESIGN OF LANDSCAPING ALONG TEXAS AVENUE PHASE 
II PROJECT (ST 9915). 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the design of the Texas 
Avenue Streetscape Phase II Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Land Design Partners is being recommended as the most highly 
qualified provider of the landscaping design services; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Land Design Partners is the most highly 

qualified provider of the services for the design of the Texas Avenue Streetscape 
Phase II Project on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Land Design Partners for an 

amount not to exceed $69,100 for the design services related to the Texas Avenue 
Streetscape Phase II Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Streets Capital 

Improvements Project Fund in the amount of $69,100. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
       
City Attorney 

58



Location Map Ê

Texas Avenue

Harv
ey

 R
oad

Geo
rg

e B
ush

 D
riv

e

Har
ve

y M
itc

hell
 P

kw

59



 

 

October 11, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2k 

Real Estate Contract with The Board of Trustees of the Texas Conference of 
the United Methodist Church for the Church Avenue Phase II Project 

 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a Real 
Estate Contract with The Board of Trustees of the Texas Conference of the United 
Methodist Church that will authorize the purchase of easements needed for the 
Church Avenue, Phase II Project. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff is recommending that the Real Estate Contract be 
approved, which will authorize the Mayor to sign the contract will enable staff to 
finalize the real estate transaction. 
 
Summary:   City Council authorized a Resolution Determining Need on November 
20, 2006, which authorized staff to negotiate for the purchase of easements needed 
for the Church Avenue, Phase II project.  To build the project, additional permanent 
easements and temporary easements are needed on both sides of Church Avenue, 
from College Main Street to Nagle Street.  Since approval of the resolution, staff has 
successfully negotiated the acquisition of all the needed property. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   The purchase price for the property is Eighty 
Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Eight Dollars ($87,978.00).  Closing costs 
and associated expenses should not exceed an additional Three Thousand Dollars 
($3,000).  Funding for this project is available in the Streets Capital Projects Fund.   
 
Attachments: 

Project Location Map 
Real Estate Contract 

60



Church Ave Project

UNIV
ERSITY D

R

CHURCH AVE

NAGLE ST

CHERRY S
T

TAUBER ST
COLLEGE MAIN

BOYETT ST

CROSS S
T

STASNEY ST

FIRST ST

IRELAND ST

ASBURY ST

COLLEGE  AVE

MILAM AVE

SECOND ST

IN
LO

W
 B

LV
D

NEW ST

ROSS ST

BALL ST

W
ELLBORN RD N

HOUSTON ST

DOGWOOD ST

JONES ST

HOGG ST

LODGE ST

CULPEPPER DR
LO

UIS
E AVE

COLLEGE  AVE

CROSS S
T

¹

Church Avenue Phase II Project

61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2L 

Manuel Drive – Streets Oversize Participation Request 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion for Oversize Participation 
(OP) for Manuel Street extension in The Lofts, Wolf Pen Creek Subdivision being made per 
City Code of Ordinances, Chapter 9, Subdivision Regulations, Section 9, Responsibility for 
Payment for Installation Costs, 9-A Oversized Participation for a total requested City 
participation of $22,013.88. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
Summary:  The City required that the developer of The Lofts extend Manuel Street a 
Minor Collector Street in accordance with the Thoroughfare Plan.  The developer’s engineer 
demonstrated that a smaller local street is adequate to meet the needs for the developer’s 
specific development.  This oversized participation request is the construction cost 
difference for upsizing a local street to a minor collector street for a 312 linear foot section. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds for this request are budgeted in the Streets 
Capital Improvement Project Fund as part of the Streets Oversize Participation project 
(ST0519). $540,000 is budgeted in FY07 for Oversize Participation projects. To date, no 
FY07 Streets Oversize Participation funds have been expended or committed. This contract 
is for $22,013.88. 
 
 
Attachments:  
1. Oversize Participation Agreement 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Street Extension Location Map 
4. Exhibit A – Plat 
5. Exhibit B – Engineer’s Estimate and Request Letter 
 
 

90



OVERSIZE PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into this day of , 200-, by and 
between the City of College Station, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (hereinafter 
"CITY"), and APSHV - Wolf Pen, LP, a Texas limited partnership (hereinafter "OWNER). 

WHEREAS, OWNER owned, subdivided, platted and is developing property within the City of 
College Station, more particularly described as The L o h  - Wolf Pen Creek Subdivision, 
College Station, Brazos County, Texas (hereinafter "Property") as depicted and described on the 
Final plat approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on September 20, 2007, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, CHAPTER 9 of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES requires that 
OWNER conform to CITY's standards and master plans for streets and utilities and pay for all 
costs of materials and installation of streets, alleys, sidewalks, drainage, and utilities except 
where CITY agrees to participate in the cost of oversize of such improvements; and 

WHEREAS, CITY's Thoroushfare Plan requires a minor collector street with 37 foot pavement 
width; and 

WHEREAS, OWNER has requested that CITY cost participate in street improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has reviewed the data, reports and analysis provided by 
OWNER'S engineers and determined that OWNER'S request for street participation qualifies for 
participation funding under the criteria established in CHAPTER 9, SECTION 9, CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the recitations above and the promises and 
covenants herein expressed, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

I. 
DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Approved Plans means the plans and specifications that meet the requirements of this 
Oversize Participation Agreement, the City of College Station Codes and Ordinances and any 
other applicable laws and that have been submitted to, reviewed and approved by the City of 
College Station Development Services Department, the City Engineer. 

1.2 CITY or College Station means the City of College Station, a Texas home rule 
municipal corporation located at 1 101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas 77840. 

Contract No. 
C: Darcments and S e t t i n o  Settings\Temporary Internet FileslContent.OutlookKH8K2BRH\Revised OP Agreemenl.doc 

91



1.3 Certificate of Acceptance: A certificate issued by the City Engineer stating that the 
construction conforms to the plans, specifications and standards contained in or referred to in 
CHAPTER 9 of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

1.4 Certificate of Completion/Compliance. As defined in Section 1702 of the 
INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, 2000 Edition, as adopted and amended by the City Council of 
the City of College Station, a certificate stating that work was done in compliance with approved 
construction documents1Approved Plans. 

1.5 Effective Date. The date on which this Agreement is signed by the last party whose 
signing makes the Agreement fully executed. 

1.6 Final Completion. The term "Final Completion" means that all the work on the Project 
has been completed, all final punch list items have been inspected and satisfactorily completed, 
all payments to materialmen and subcontractors have been made, all documentation, and all 
closeout documents have been executed and approved by the OWNER, Certificates of 
Completion and Acceptance have been issued for the Project, all Reports have been submitted 
and Reporting Requirements have been met, and OWNER has fully performed any other 
requirements contained herein. 

1.7 OWNER means APSHV - Wolf Pen, LP, a Texas corporation whose principal office is 
located at 5 15 1 San Felipe, Suite 2050, Houston, Texas 77056. 

1.8 Property means The Lofts - Wolf Pen Creek Subdivision, College Station, Brazos 
County, Texas, as depicted and described on the final plat approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on September 20,2007, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

1.9 Project means the construction of the street improvements as detailed in Exhibit B 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

11. 
OVERSIZE COST PARTICIATION 

CITY agrees to cost participate to oversize the improvements as follows: 

The difference between the construction of a 38 foot pavement width minor 
collector street and a 27 foot pavement width local street for an approximate 300 
linear foot section. 

2.2 The total cost of the project is $137,015.78. CITY agrees to cost participate with 
OWNER for the actual construction cost not to exceed 6.22% or $22,013.88 of the specified 
improvements, whichever is less. If CITY'S participation exceeds 30% of the Project, then the 
Project must be competitively bid under SECTION 252.002 et seq. of the TEXAS LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT CODE as amended. If CITY participation exceeds 30% of the Project, CITY shall 
be responsible for advertising and obtaining bids or negotiating proposals for the construction of 

2 o f 8  
Contract No. 
C:\Documents and ~Ningskhusmann\Loca~ SettingslTemporary Inkmet Files\Content.Outlook\KHBK2BRHWevised OP Agreement. doc 

92



the Project. OWNER shall pay for all costs associated with advertising, printing, and 
distributing plans and specifications for the Project. 

2.3 OWNER's engineer's detailed cost estimate of the improvements is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit B. 

2.4 This Agreement and payments made hereunder are contingent upon but not limited to 
each of following terms and conditions: 

(1) the Final Completion of the improvements in accordance with the 
Approved Plans; 

(2) issuance of Letter of Completion and Acceptance for public infrastructure; 
(3) OWNER's compliance with all CITY Codes, Ordinances and standards 

relating to the Property and its subdivision and development; 
(4) dedication of the land for the right-of-way either by plat or by general 

warranty deed; 
( 5 )  a current title report as of the date of land dedication and updated within 

sixty (60) days of the date of this Agreement; 
(6) lien releases or subordinations from all lenders as required by CITY. 

2.5 Oversize Participation Payment. OWNER shall submit the written application for 
oversize participation payment within thirty (30) days after Final Completion or OWNER shall 
be ineligible to receive the oversize participation payment specified in this Agreement and 
CITY'S obligation to cost participate shall terminate without any liability. Applications may not 
be submitted prior to Final Completion. 

2.6 CITY will pay oversize participation funds in one payment within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of a complete written application for oversize payment from OWNER. 

2.7 Reports, books and other records. OWNER shall make its books and other records 
related to the project available for inspection by CITY. OWNER shall submit to CITY any and 
all information or reports requested to verify the expenditures submitted for oversize 
participation eligibility including but not limited to bid documents, payment applications, 
including any supporting information, cancelled checks, copies of construction and engineering 
documents, as determined by the City Engineer in his sole discretion, for the verification of the 
cost of the infrastructure detailed in Exhibit B of this Agreement. The submission of these 
reports and information shall be the responsibility of OWNER and shall be certified by 
OWNER's Licensed Professional Engineer at OWNER's expense and signed by an authorized 
official of the entity. 

111. 
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY, INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE 

CITY is a political subdivision of the state and enjoys governmental immunity. By entering 
into this Agreement, CITY does not consent to suit, waive its governmental immunity, or 
the limitations as to damages under the Texas Tort Claims Act. 

Contract No. 
C:\Documeius andSettings\rhusrnannUamI Settings\Temporary Inlernet FileJ\Co~ent.~look\KH8K2BRH\Revised OP Agreement. doc 

93



OWNER agrees to and shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend CITY and its officers, 
agents, and employees from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of 
action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, 
expert fees and attorney's fees, for injury to or  death of any person, or for damage to any 
property, or for breach of contract, arising out of or in connection with the work done by 
OWNER under this Agreement, regardless of whether such injuries, death, damages or 
breach are caused in whole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party 
indemnified hereunder, or the OWNER. 

OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any claims of suppliers or 
subcontractors of OWNER for improvements constructed or caused to be constructed by 
OWNER 

OWNER shall indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any and all injuries to or claims of 
adjacent property owners resulting from or relating to their performance under this 
Agreement. 

OWNER assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed hereunder, and releases, 
relinquishes and discharges CITY, its officers, agents and employees, from all claims, 
demands, and causes of action of every kind and character, including the cost of defense 
therefore, for any injury to or death of any persons and any loss of or damage to any 
property that is caused by, alleged to be caused by, arising out of, or in connection with, 
OWNER'S work to be performed hereunder. This release shall apply whether or not said 
claims, demands, and causes or action are covered in whole or in part by insurance and 
regardless of whether or not said claims, demands, and causes of action were caused in 
whole or in part by the negligence of CITY, any other party released hereunder, or 
OWNER. 

IV. 
PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTION 

4.1 Right to Inspect the Work. CITY may inspect the improvements for compliance with 
the Approved Plans during construction. In the event that it is determined by CITY that any of 
the work or materials furnished is not in strict accordance with the Approved Plans, CITY may 
withhold funds until the nonconforming work conforms to the Approved Plans or terminate this 
Agreement at CITY'S election without any further liability. 

4.2 Independent Contractor. OWNER shall be solely responsible for selecting, 
supervising, and paying the construction contractor(s) or subcontractors and for complying with 
all applicable laws, including but not limited to all requirements concerning workers 
compensation and construction retainage. 

The parties to this Agreement agree and understand that all employees, volunteers, personnel and 
materials furnished or used by OWNER in the installation of the specified improvements shall be 

4 o f 8  
Contract No. 
C: Documents and Settings\rhusmann\LowI Sellings\Temporary Internet FilesIContenl. OI(rfook\KH8K2BRHWevised Of Agreement.doc 

94



the responsibility of OWNER and shall not be deemed employees or agents of CITY for any 
purpose. 

4.3 Payment for materials and labor. OWNER shall be solely and exclusively responsible 
for compensating any of its contractors, employees, subcontractors, materialmen andor suppliers 
of any type or nature whatsoever and insuring that no claims or liens of any type will be filed 
against any property owned by CITY arising out of or incidental to the performance of any 
service performed pursuant to this Agreement. In the event a statutory lien notice is sent to 
CITY, OWNER shall, where no payment bond covers the work, upon written notice from the 
CITY, immediately obtain a bond at its expense and hold CITY harmless from any losses that 
may result from the filing or enforcement of any said lien notice. 

4.4 Affidavit of bills paid. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Acceptance of the 
improvements, OWNER shall provide CITY a notarized affidavit stating that all bills for labor, 
materials, and incidentals incurred have been paid in full, that any claims from manufacturers, 
materialmen, and subcontractors have been released, and that there are no claims pending of 
which OWNER has been notified. 

4.5 This Agreement does not alter, amend modify or replace any other requirements 
contained in the Code of Ordinances, Unified Development Code, or other applicable law. 

v. 
GUARANTEE OF PERFORMANCE 

5.1 OWNER shall execute a performance bond for the construction of the improvements to 
ensure completion of the project and payment of subcontractors. The bonds must be executed by 
a corporate surety in accordance with CHAPTER 2253, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE. The bonds 
shall be in the total amount of the contract price as approved by CITY. 

VI. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

6.1 Amendments. No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless 
and until it is reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties. 

6.2 Choice of law and Venue. This Agreement has been made under and shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of Texas. Performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Brazos 
County, Texas, United States of America. 

6.3 Authority to enter into Agreement. Each party represents that it has the full power and 
authority to enter into and perform this Agreement. The person executing this Agreement on 
behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement. 
The person executing this Agreement on behalf of OWNER represents that he or she is 
authorized to sign on behalf of OWNER and agrees to provide proof of such authorization to the 
CITY upon request. 

5 o f 8  
Contract No. 
C: \Documents and S e ~ i n n n l  Settings\Temporary Inkrnef Files\Co~enf.OuflmkKH8K2BRMRe~ised OP Agreement.doc 

95



6.4 Agreement read. The parties acknowledge that they have read, understand and intend to 
be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

6.5 Notice. All notices and documents required herein shall be sent and provided to the 
parties at the addresses and telephone numbers listed below: 

APSHV - Wolf Pen, LP 
Mark Lindley, Sr. Vice President 
5 15 1 San Felipe, Suite 2050, 
Houston, Texas 77056. 

City of College Station 
City Engineer 
P. 0. Box 9960 
College Station, TX 77842 

With copies to: 
City Attorney and City Manager 
1 1 0 1 Texas Avenue 
College Station, TX 77842 

All notices and documents shall be deemed received when mailed with sufficient postage and 
deposited in a regular mailbox of the United States Post Ofice. The parties may change 
addresses upon thirty (30) days' written notice sent certified mail, return receipt requested. 

6.6 Assignment. This Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be 
assigned by OWNER without the prior written approval of the CITY. 

6.7 Default. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by OWNER, CITY may terminate 
this Agreement and exercise any and all legal remedies available to it. 

Executed this day of ,200-. 

APSHV - Wolf Pen, LP 
A Texas limited partnership 

CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

BY: APGP - Wolf Pen, Inc 
A Texas Corporation 
Its General Partner 

t z L G 5 - L  
Steve Spessard, President Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Secretary 

6 of 8 
Contract No. 
C: Documents and S e i t i n g s h  Seiiings\Tempomry Internet FileslCo~nt..OurlookV(H8K2BRH\Revised OP Agreement.doc 

96



APPROVED: 

City Manager 

THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
1 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 1 

Chief Financial Oficer 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

, m . ~  
se name is subscribid to the 

foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and 
consideration therein expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of oEce on this the %y of 8 , 2 0 0 1 .  

A& 
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

Contract No. 
C:\Documenls and Setlings\rhurmam\Loca[SeNings\Temporary Internel Files\Conlenl.Ourlook\KH8K2BRH\Revised OP Agreemenl.doc 

97



THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 
1 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 
as Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, known to me 
to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of office on this the day of ,200-. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

Contract No. 
C: \Documents and Setfings\rhusmann\Local Set fingsITemporary Internet Files\Content.Ou1look\KH8K2BRH\Revised OP Agreement.doc 

98



99



100



101



IIPS Group 

Alan G i b b  P a  Acthg City Engineer 
City Or Cow $taw Development Services 
1111 Tcrxas Avmw South 
Collm Station, Texas 77842 

Attached p l w  find our crrlcullltiolrs for tUe m b  p d k i p d h  request of W2,013.88. As 
p r e v i ~ l y ~  the additioaal10' of +-of-wtry requid by the City wiil bs h d b d  thm& a 
p u r c h w e ~ t i n t b s a m w m t o f S 4 ~ 5 7 .  T h a n k y o u f b r a U o f y o t l r b l p i n ~ ~ ~  
r r o d w e t o d r ~ ~ ~ t b e ~ ~ ~ C i t y ~ i l n t e e t i n g o n ~ , ~ 2 5 ,  
2007. 

5 1 1 University Drive East, Suite 2 1 1 College Station, TX 77840 979-846-9259 www.IPSGroup.us 
102



103



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2m 
2005 Bike Loop Project 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on a resolution awarding 
the professional services contract (Contract No. 07-269) with Bleyl & Associates in the 
amount not to exceed $94,960 for engineering design services for the 2005 Bike Loop 
Project (ST-0530). 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends Council approval of the resolution and award 
of the professional services contract to Bleyl & Associates. 
 
 
Summary:  The 2005 Bike Loop Project is phase III of the College Station Bike Loop 
Project (ST-9409).  The bike path, which will be constructed in part along the maintenance 
shelf of the Bee Creek Combined Drainage Improvements project, will extend from its 
terminus in Bee Creek Park following Bee Creek to Texas Ave.  The path will then turn north 
along Texas Ave. and loop around the arboretum near the cemetery property line.  The bike 
loop will be connected in the future to a Texas Avenue crossing, completing the Bike Loop 
connection between Bee Creek Park and Central Park.  
 
The Longmire Bike and Pedestrian Improvements and Bee Creek bridge crossing will also be 
designed in conjunction with this project.  The improvements to the Longmire corridor and 
2818 intersection include curbs, medians, sidewalks, bicycle facilities striping and signage, 
and pedestrian traffic signals.  The bridge across Bee Creek will make the connection 
between South College Station and the Bike Loop via Longmire. 
 
  
Budget & Financial Summary:  Funds in the amount of $1,012,826 are budgeted and 
available for the engineering and construction of phase III of the College Station Bike Loop 
project. This project is funded General Obligation debt and grant funds. Funds for the 
construction of the Longmire Bike and Pedestrian Improvements and Bee Creek bridge 
crossing have not yet been budgeted, but the improvements will be engineered in 
conjunction with phase III of the College Station Bike Loop.    
 
 
Attachments: 1.)  Resolution 
   2.)  Project Location Map 
 
 
 

104



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE 2005 BIKE LOOP PROJECT (ST-0530). 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the engineering services 
for the 2005 Bike Loop Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Bleyl & Associates is being recommended as the most highly 
qualified provider of the engineering services; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Bleyl & Associates is the most highly 

qualified provider of the services for the 2005 Bike Loop Project on the basis of 
demonstrated competence and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Bleyl & Associates for an 

amount not to exceed $94,960.00 for the engineering services related to the 2005 Bike 
Loop Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Streets Capital 

Projects Fund in the amount of $94,960.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this 25th day of October, A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
       
City Attorney 

105



106



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2n 

Real Estate Contract for the purchase of land needed for the Carters Creek 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving a Real 
Estate Contract with Freddie A. Wolters and wife, Mary M. Wolters that will authorize 
the purchase of land needed for the Wastewater Capital Improvement Project - 
Carters Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff is recommending that the Real Estate Contract be 
approved, which will authorize the Mayor to sign the contract and will enable staff to 
finalize the real estate transaction. 
 
Summary:   City Council authorized a Resolution Determining Need on June 28, 
2007, which authorized staff to negotiate for the purchase of 14.3 acres of land 
needed for the Wastewater Capital Improvement Project - Carters Creek Wastewater 
Treatment Plant.  The tract of land is located near the end of North Forest Parkway, 
adjacent to Emerald Forest, Phase 11-A and the Carters Creek Wastewater treatment 
plant.   
 
The land will be used as buffer space to reduce the potential of sounds and odors 
between the plant and nearby homes.  Other possible uses include sites for a pump 
station, brackish water well and/ or desalinization facility. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   The purchase price for the property is Eighty Eight 
Thousand Dollars ($88,000.00).  Closing costs and associated expenses should not 
exceed an additional Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000).  Funding for this project is 
available in the Wastewater Capital Improvement Project fund. 
 
Attachments: 

Project Location Map 
Real Estate Contract 

107



FR
O

N
TA

G
E 

6 
 R

D
 W

EA
R

L 
R

U
D

D
ER

 F
W

Y 
S

EMERALD PKWY

RAINTREE DR

SEBESTA
 R

D

A
PPO

M
ATTO

X D
R

SANDSTONE DR

NORTH FO
REST P

KWY

FROST DR

SPRING CREEK

FRONTAGE 6  RD E

O
N

R
A

M
P 6 N

LAUREN DR

BENT O
AK S

T

OAKWOOD TRL

R
O

SE
W

O
O

D
 D

R

A
M

B
ER

 R
ID

G
E 

D
R

ALLEY

ST
 T

HO
M

AS
 R

D

BUTLER RIDGE DR

WILDERNESS DR 

MAPLE
W

OOD C
T

APPOMATTOX DR

¹

14.3 Ac - Wastewater Capital Improvement Project

Carter Creek WWTP

Wolters Property

108



REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT OF SALE is made by and between FREDDIE A. WOLTERS and 
wife MARY M. WOLTERS ("SELLERS"), and the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, a 
Texas Home Rule Municipal Corporation, situated in Brazos County, Texas ("BUYER), upon 
the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

1.1 SELLERS agree to sell and convey in fee simple by General Warranty Deed, and BUYER 
agrees to purchase and pay for a 14.392 acre tract out of a 18.644 acre tract conveyed to Freddie 
A. Wolters and wife, Mary M. Wolters, in Volume 5602, Page 61 of the Official Records of 
Brazos County, Texas, more particularly described by metes and bounds in Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes ("PROPERTY"), together with all and singular the 
rights and appurtenances pertaining to the PROPERTY, including all right, title and interest of 
SELLERS in and to adjacent roads, streets, alleys or rights-of-way (all of such real property, 
rights, and appurtenances being herein referred to as the "PROPERTY"), together with 
SELLERS' interest in any improvements and fixtures situated on and attached to the 
PROPERTY, for the consideration and subject to the terms, provisions, and conditions set forth 
herein. This Contract by BUYER to purchase the PROPERTY is subject to approval by the City 
Council of the City of College Station, Texas; such approval indicated by signature of BUYER's 
representatives to this CONTRACT OF SALE. 

1.2 BUYER has requested Brazos County Abstract Company furnish a Commitment for Title 
Insurance (the "Title Commitment") to insure title to the BUYER for BUYER's review together 
with legible copies of all instruments referred to in the Title Commitment. The BUYER shall 
request the title company to furnish these items to BUYER within fifteen (15) calendar days of 
the date of this Contract. BUYER shall have a period of five (5) business days (the "Title 
Review Period") after receipt of the Title Commitment and the copies of the instruments referred 
to in Schedule B as exceptions within which to notify SELLERS of BUYER's objection to any 
item shown on or referenced by those documents (the "Reviewable Matters"). Any Reviewable 
Matter to which BUYER does not object within the Title Review Period shall be deemed to be 
accepted by BUYER. If BUYER objects to any such Reviewable Matter and gives notice to 
SELLER as provided herein, SELLERS may at their election, on or before closing, attempt to 
cure same. If SELLERS fail to cure same by the closing date, or are unwilling to cure same, the 
closing date shall be extended for five (5) business days for BUYER to either (a) waive such 
objections and accept such title as SELLERS are able to convey or (b) terminate this Contract by 
written notice to the Title Company and to SELLERS, in which case the earnest money shall be 

Page 1 
Contract No. 07-299 
C: WOCUME-I IMMCAUL-I.OOO\LOCALS-I ITempWGrp WiselReal Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

109



refunded to BUYER, and neither SELLERS nor BUYER shall have any further rights or 
obligations under this Contract. 

1.3 (a) The City of College Station, Texas, at its expense, will provide a survey of the 
PROPERTY, showing, without limitation, all adjacent property lines, record ownership 
of adjoining properties, encroachments, easements, rights-of-way and other encumbrances 
of record. The survey will reflect any encroachments onto or by the PROPERTY onto 
adjoining properties. BUYER shall have a period of five (5) business days (the "Survey 
Review Period") after receipt of the Survey within which to notify SELLERS of 
BUYER'S objection to any item shown on or referenced on the Survey. Any Reviewable 
Matter to which BUYER does not object within the Survey Review Period shall be 
deemed to be accepted by BUYER. If BUYER objects to any such Reviewable Matter 
and gives notice to SELLERS as provided herein, SELLERS may at their election, on or 
before closing, attempt to cure same. If SELLERS fail to cure same by the closing date, 
or are unwilling to cure same, the closing date shall be extended for five (5) business days 
for BUYER to either (a) waive such objections and accept such title as SELLERS are 
able to convey or (b) terminate this Contract by written notice to the Title Company and 
to SELLERS, in which case any earnest money shall be refunded to BUYER, and neither 
SELLERS nor BUYER shall have any further rights or obligations under this Contract. 

(b) The survey drawing shall be addressed to and certified in favor of the BUYER and 
the Title Company. The field notes description, as prepared by the surveyor, shall be 
substituted for the description attached to this Contract and shall be used in the General 
Warranty Deed. 

1.4 BUYER may at its cost order a Level 1 Environmental Site Assessment. BUYER shall 
have a period of ten (10) business days after receipt of the Environmental Site Assessment to 
review the assessment and notify SELLERS of BUYER'S rejection of the PROPERTY. BUYER 
at its option may elect to provide SELLERS with an opportunity to cure the environmental 
problem. If BUYER elects not to provide SELLERS with an opportunity to cure or if SELLERS 
fail to cure once BUYER provides that opportunity, this Contract shall be terminated and neither 
party will have any further liability. 

1.5 The parties agree that general real estate taxes on the PROPERTY for the then current 
year, interest on any existing indebtedness, and rents, if any, shall be prorated as of the closing 
date and shall be adjusted in cash at the closing. SET,T,ERS alone shall be liable for any taxes 
assessed and levied for prior years resulting from any change in use subsequent to the 
conveyance to BUYER. If the closing shall occur before the tax rate is fixed for the current year, 
the apportionment of taxes shall be upon the basis of the tax rate for the next preceding year 
applied to the latest assessed valuation. All installments that have matured prior to the closing 
date on any special taxes or assessments shall be paid by SELLERS; and any installments that are 
provided in the special assessment to mature after closing shall be assumed by BUYER. 

Page 2 
Contract No. 07-299 
0: \Real Estate\ WoltersIReal Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

110



1.6 The sale of the PROPERTY shall be made by a General Warranty Deed fiom SELLERS 
to BUYER in the form prepared by BUYER attached hereto as Exhibit "B". 

ARTICLE I1 
PURCHASE PRICE 

2.1 The purchase price for said PROPERTY shall be the sum of EIGHTY-EIGHT 
THOUSAND AND NO1100 DOLLARS ($88,000.00). The purchase price shall be payable in 
full at closing. 

ARTICLE I11 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER 

3.1 SELLERS hereby represent and warrant to BUYER as follows: 

(a) SELLERS have the full right, power, and authority to enter into and perform their 
obligations under this Contract. 

(b) SELLERS have no actual knowledge of any parties in possession of any portion of 
the PROPERTY, either as lessees, tenants at sufferance, trespassers, or other persons in 
possession. Additionally, SELLERS have no actual knowledge of any action by adjacent 
landowners, or any natural or artificial conditions upon the PROPERTY, or any significant 
adverse fact or condition relating to the PROPERTY, which has not been disclosed in writing to 
BUYER by SELLERS, which would prevent, limit, impede or render more costly BUYER'S 
contemplated use of the PROPERTY. 

(c) SELLERS have no actual knowledge of any pending or threatened condemnation 
or similar proceedings or assessment affecting the PROPERTY or any part thereof. SELLERS 
have no actual knowledge of any such proceedings or assessments contemplated by any govern- 
mental entity. 

(d) SELLERS have no actual ktluwledge that the PROPERTY does not have full and 
fiee access to and from public highways, streets, or roads. SELLERS have no actual knowledge 
that there are pending or threatened governmental proceedings that would impair or result in the 
termination of such access. If SELLERS obtain actual knowledge of any such matter subsequent 
to the date of this Contract that would make any of the representations or warranties untrue if 
made as of closing, SELLERS shall notifl BUYER, and BUYER shall have the election of 
terminating the Contract and receiving back its earnest money, in which case neither party shall 
have any further obligation to the other. 

(e) The PROPERTY has not been illegally subdivided or otherwise held, managed, or 
maintained in violation of any federal, state, or local law. 

Page 3 
Contract No. 07-299 
0: Weal Estatel Wolters Weal Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

111



(0 SELLERS have no actual knowledge that SELLERS have not complied with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules and restrictions relating to the 
PROPERTY or any part thereof. 

(g) If SELLERS obtain actual knowledge of any such matter subsequent to the date of 
this Contract that would make any of the representations or warranties untrue if made as of 
closing, SELLERS shall notify BUYER, and BUYER shall have the election of terminating the 
Contract and receiving back its earnest money, in which case neither party shall have any further 
obligation to the other. 

(h) SELLERS have no knowledge that the PROPERTY contains any environmental 
hazard not shown on the environmental assessment provided by SELLERS to BUYER. 

(i) SELLERS are not "foreign persons" within the meaning of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, Sections 1445 and 7701 (i.e., SELLERS are not non-resident aliens, a 
foreign corporation, foreign partnership, foreign trust or foreign estate as those terms are defined 
in the Code and regulations promulgated thereunder). 

(j) To the best of SELLERS' knowledge there are no unpaid charges, debts, 
liabilities, claims or obligations arising fiom any construction, occupancy, ownership, use or 
operation of the PROPERTY, or the business operated thereon, if any, which could give rise to 
any mechanic's or materialmen's or other statutory lien against the PROPERTY, or any part 
thereof, or for which BUYER will be responsible. 

ARTICLE IV 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER 

4.1 BUYER represents and warrants to SELLERS as of the effective date and as of the 
closing date that: 

(a) BUYER has the full right, power, and authority to purchase the PROPERTY fiom 
SELLERS as provided in this Contract and to carry out BUYER'S obligations under this 
Contract, and all requisite action necessary to authorize BUYER to enter into this Contract and to 
carry out BUYER'S obligations hereunder has been obtained or on or before closing will have 
been taken. 

ARTICLE V 
CLOSING 

5.1 The closing shall be held at Brazos County Abstract Company, within forty-five (45) 
calendar days fiom the execution and tender of this Contract by BUYER, at such time and date as 

Page 4 
Contract No. 07-299 
0: Real Estate\ WoltersVZeal Estate Conlract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

112



SELLERS and BUYER may agree upon (the "closing date"). The City Attorney is authorized to 
extend the time for closing. 

5.2 At the closing, SELLERS shall: 

(a) Deliver to BUYER the duly executed and acknowledged General Warranty Deed 
prepared by BUYER conveying good and marketable title in the PROPERTY, free and clear of 
any and all liens, encumbrances, except for the Reviewable Matters and subject to the BUYER's 
election to terminate this Contract in the event BUYER disapproves of any Reviewable Matter, 
which objection is to be cured by SELLERS on or prior to the closiilg as provided by Article I of 
this Contract. 

(b) Deliver possession of the PROPERTY to BUYER. 

(c) Deliver to BUYER, at BUYER's expense, a Title Policy insuring indefeasible title 
issued by Brazos County Abstract Company, in BUYER's favor in the full amount of the 
purchase price, insuring BUYER's fee simple interest in the PROPERTY subject only to such 
exceptions as shown on the Title Commitment and not objected to by BUYER prior to closing. 

(d) Pay any and all required property taxes and prorated taxes for the year 2007. 

(e) Pay any and all homeowner's or maintenance fees for prior years and for the 
current year prorated up to the date of closing. 

( 0  Pay the SELLERS' expenses and attorney fees. 

5.3 Upon such performance by SELLERS at closing, BUYER shall: 

(a) Pay the balance of the purchase price. 

(b) Pay the escrow fees. 

(c) Prepare, at its cost, the General Warranty Deed. 

(d) Pay the title insurance. 

(e) Pay the costs to obtain, deliver and record all documents. 

( 0  Pay the BUYER's expenses or attorney fees. 

(g) Pay the additional premium for the surveyhoundary deletion in the title policy, if 
the deletion is requested by BUYER. 

Page 5 
Contract No. 07-299 
0: Weal Estate \ Wo[ters\Real Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

113



(h) Pay the costs of work required by BUYER to have the survey reflect matters other 
than those required under this contract. 

ARTICLE VI 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

NONE 

ARTICLE VII 
BREACH BY SELLER 

7.1 In the event SELLERS fail to hlly and timely perform any of their obligations under this 
Contract or fail to consummate the sale of the PROPERTY for any reason except BUYER'S 
default, BUYER may: 

(a) Enforce specific performance of this agreement; andlor 

(b) Bring suit for damages against SELLERS. 

ARTICLE VIII 
BREACH BY BUYER 

8.1 In the event BUYER fails to consummate the purchase of the PROPERTY (BUYER 
being in default and SELLERS not being in default hereunder), SELLERS shall have the right to 
bring suit against BUYER only for expectancy and incidental damages, if any. 

ARTICLE IX 
MISCELLANEOUS 

9.1 Survival of Covenants: Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and 
agreements of the parties, as well as any rights and benefits of the parties, pertaining to the period 
of time following the closing date, shall survive the closing and shall not be merged by deed or 
otherwise be extinguished. 

9.2 Notice: Any notice required or permitted to be delivered by this Contract shall be 
deemed received when sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed to SELLERS or BUYER, as the case may be, at the addresses set forth 
below: 

Page 6 
Contract No. 07-299 
O:\Real Estate\ Wolters\Real Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 064 9/03 

114



SELLERS: Freddie & Mary Wolters 
8603 Walnut Bend 
College Station, TX 77845 

BUYER: City of College Station 
Legal Department 
1 10 1 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 77840 

9.3 Texas Law to Apply: This Contract shall be construed under and in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created by this Contract are to be 
performed in Brazos County, Texas. 

9.4 Parties Bound: This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and 
assigns. The persons executing this Contract do so in their capacities as set forth below and in 
no other capacity whatsoever, and such persons shall have no personal liability for executing this 
Contract in a representative capacity. All such liability is limited to the principal for which they 
execute this document as a representative. 

9.5 Invalid Provision: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract 
shall for any reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Contract, and this 
Contract shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 
contained in the Contract. In lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there shall 
be added automatically as part of this Contract a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, 
invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and enforceable. 

9.6 Construction: The parties acknowledge that each party and its counsel have reviewed and 
revised this Contract and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities 
are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this 
Contract or any amendments or exhibits hereto. 

9.7 Prior Agreements Superseded: This Contract embodies the entire agreement of the 
parties and supersedes any and all prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the 
parties respecting subject matter within and may only be amended or supplemented by an 
instrument in writing executed by the party against whom enforcement is sought. 

9.8 Time of Essence: Time is of the essence to this Contract. 

9.9 Gender: Words of any gender used in this Contract shall be held and construed to 
include any other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, 
and vice versa, unless the context requires otherwise. 

Page 7 
Contract No. 07-299 
0:Weal Estate1 WoltersWeal Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

115



9.10 Multiple Counterparts: This Contract may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts. If so executed, each of the counterparts shall, collectively, constitute but one 
agreement. In making proof of this Contract it shall not be necessary to produce or account for 
more than one counterpart. 

9.1 1 Memorandum of Contract: Upon request of either party, both parties shall promptly 
execute a memorandum of this agreement suitable for filing of record. 

EXECUTED on this the day of ,2007. 

SELLERS: BUYER: 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 

BY: 
DDIE A. WOLTERS Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Secretary 

APPROVED: 

City Manager 

Chief Financial Officer 

City Attorney 

Page 8 
Contract No. 07-299 
C: IDOCUME-1 IMMCAUL-I. OOOILOCALS-1 \Temp W G r p  WiseIReal Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

116



THE STATE OF TEXAS 3 
3 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 3 

This instrument was acknowledge before me on the day of ,2007, 
by , as Mayor of the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a 
Texas Home Rule Municipal Corporation, on behalf of said municipality. 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for 
the STATE OF TEXAS 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 3 
9 ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 3 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of a ~ ~ i 3 c l G 2 0 0 7 ,  
by FREDDIE A. WOLTERS and MARY M. WOLTERS. 

w QPf\lrAw 1,'. 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for / I  
the STATE OF TEXAS 

Page 9 
Contract No. 07-299 
0: Real Estate\ Wolters\Real Estate Contract - Wolters.doc 
Rev. 06/19/03 

117



Joe Orr, Inc. 
Surveyors &Engineers 

2 167 Post Oak Circle 
College Station, TX 77845 

(979) 690-3378 

Freddie A. Wolters Tract 
14.392 Acres 
Morgan Rector League 
College Station, Texas 
26 July 2007 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in the Morgan Rector 
League, Abstract no. 46, in College Station, Brazos County, Texas, being a part of that 
18.644 acre tract conveyed to Freddie A. Wolters and wife, Mary M. Wolters by deed 
recorded in Volume 5602, Page 61 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, 
Texas, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a %" iron rod with an orange plastic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045" 
set (2005) at the south comer af that 7.685 acre tract conveyed to the City of College 
Station by deed recorded in Volume 7030, Page 109 of the Official Public Records of 
Brazos County, Texas, in the northeast line of Emerald Forest Phase 1 l-B as described by 
plat recorded in Volume 571 1, Page 177 of the Official Public Records of Brazos County, 
Texas, from where a 518" iron rod with a plastic cap stamped 'Kerr 4502" was found S 
39" 27' 56" E - 2.42 feet at the common comer of Lots 3 and 4 in Block 21 of the said 
Emerald Forest Phase 11 -B. 

Thence N 41 48' 34" E - 228.58 feet along the southeast line of the said 7.685 acre tract 
to the common comer of the said Wolters 18.644 acre tract and that called 37 acre tract 
conveyed to Freddie A. Wolters by deed recorded in Volume 207, Page 1 of the Deed 
Recor&~&Brazos .. , County, Texas, within a 26" oak tree; 

., ' )' 

Thence S 47" 55' 41" E - 1330.32 feet along tlie line between the said Wolters 18.644 
acre tract and the said Wolters 37 acre tract to a ?4" iron rod with an orange plastic cap 
stamped "H.P. Mayo RPLS 5045' set at the east corner of this tract ; 

Thence S 41" 02' 37" W - 865.72 feet through the said Wolters 18.644 acre tract to a ?4" 
iron rod with a1 brulge plaslic cap stamped "H.P. Mayo H L S  5045" set in the line 
between the said 18.644 acre tract and that 17.847 acre tract conveyed to Philip R 
Hemmer and wife, Anne B. Hemmer by deed recorded in Volume 6370, page 165 of the 
Official Public Records of Brazos County, Texas, fiom where a 518" iron rod with a 
plastic cap stamped "Kerr 4502" was found S 25" 3 1 ' 23" E - 48.49'; 

EXHIBIT A 
118



Thence N 25" 3 1' 23" W - 610.84 feet along the line between the said Wolters 18.644 
acre tract and the said Hemmer 17.847 acre tract to a 518" iron rod with a plastic cap 
stamped 'Xerr 4502" found in the southeast line of Emerald Forest Phase 11-A according 
to plat of record in Volume 4580, Page 196 of the Official Public Records of Brazos 
County, Texas; 

Thence N 72" 44' 56" E - 109.02 feet along the southeast line of the said Emerald Forest 
Phase 11-A to a 518' iron rod with a plastic cap stamped 'Xerr 4502" found at an angle 
point; 

Thence N 41" 57' 00" E -186.14 feet to a 518" iron rod with a plastic cap stamped "Ken 
4502" found at the east comer of the said Emerald Forest Phase 11-A; 

Thence N 39" 27' 56" W - 844.50 feet along the northeast line of the said Emerald Forest 
Phase 1 1 -A and Emerald Forest Phase 1 1 -B to the Point of Beginning and containing 
14.392 acres of land more or less. 

Bearings are Texas State Plane, NAD(83)1986 datum, based on City of College Station 
GPS control monument nos. 128 and 129 ( S 9" 25' 23" E ). 

Wolters 14.392 Acres Page 2 of 2 
119



120



NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU 
ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE 
OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING 
INFORMATION FROM THIS INSTRUMENT 
BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY 
NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER. 

EXHIBIT "B" 

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED 

DATE: 

GRANTOR: 

GRANTOR'S MAILING ADDRESS: 
(including county) Brazos County 

College Station, Texas 77845 

GRANTEE: CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

GRANTEEf S MAILING ADDRESS: 1 1 0 1 Texas Avenue 
(including county) Brazos County 

College Station, Texas 77840 

CONSIDERATION: Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration. 

PROPERTY: 

INSERT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

RESERVATIONS FROM AND EXCEPTIONS 
TO CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY: None. 

GRANTOR waives all rights with respect to the surface and no owner of the mineral estate shall 
ever have rights of ingress or egress except as may have been reserved by GRANTOR under the 
reservations and exceptions expressly listed in this deed or its predecessors in title. 

121



GRANTOR, for the consideration and subject to the reservations from and exceptions to 
conveyance and warranty, GRANTS, SELLS, and CONVEYS to GRANTEE the property, 
together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any wise belonging, to have 
and hold it to GRANTEE and GRANTEE'S successors and assigns forever. GRANTOR binds 
GRANTOR and GRANTOR'S heirs, executors and administrators, to warrant and forever defend 
all and singular the property to GRANTEE and GRANTEE'S successors and assigns against 
every person whomsoever lawfilly claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof, except as to 
the reservations from and exceptions to conveyance and warranty. 

When the context requires, singular nouns and pronouns include the plural. 

NAME 

THE STATE OF TEXAS ) 

) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF BRAZOS ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the day of 9 

2007, by and 

PREPARED IN THE OFFICE OF: 
City of College Station 
Legal Department 
P. 0. Box 9960 
College Station, Texas 77842-9960 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

RETURN ORIGINAL DOCUMENT TO: 
City of College Station 
Legal Department 
P. 0. Box 9960 
College Station, Texas 77842-9960 

o/group/legal/reaI estate fordgen war deed 
JS 0911 9/07 

122



October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2O  

Investment Policy/Strategy Resolution 
 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer                        
 
 

Agenda Caption:  Presentation, discussion and possible action on a resolution stating 
that the City Council has reviewed and approved the City's Investment Policy and 
Investment Strategy.  

 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends review and approval of the resolution. 
  
Summary: The Public Funds Investment Act requires an annual review and approval of 
the City's investment policy and investment strategies.  The Act further requires the 
following: 
 

(1) that the governing body adopt a written instrument by rule, order, ordinance, or 
resolution stating that it has reviewed the investment policy and investment 
strategies, and 

(2) that the written instrument so adopted records any changes to either the investment 
policy or investment strategies. 

 
Staff proposes no changes to the existing investment policy or investment strategy. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None  
 
 
Attachments:   
 
Investment Policy 
Investment Strategy 
Resolution 

123



 1 

 
Investment Policy for the  

City of College Station 
 
 
 
The Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code, as Amended 
(”PFIA” herein), prescribes that each City is to adopt rules governing its investment 
practices and to define the authority of the investment officer.  The following Investment 
Policy addresses the methods, procedures, and practices that must be exercised to ensure 
effective and judicious fiscal management of the City’s funds. 
 
 
I. POLICY 
 
It is the policy of the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) to invest public funds in a 
manner which will provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while 
meeting the daily cash flow demands of the entity and conforming to all federal, state and 
local statutes governing the investment of public funds. 
 
 
II. SCOPE 
 
This investment policy applies to all the financial assets held by the City.  These funds are 
defined in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and include: 
 
  General Fund   Special Revenue Funds  
  Debt Service Fund  Capital Projects Funds  
  Enterprise Funds  Internal Service Funds 
  Trust Funds 
 
Any new funds created by the City will be subject to this policy unless specifically 
exempted by the City Council.  To maximize the effective investment of assets, all funds 
mentioned above will pool their cash balances for investment purposes.  The income 
derived from investing activities will be distributed to the various funds based on 
calculation of their average balances. 
 
 
III. STANDARD OF CARE 
 
Investments shall be made with the judgement and care which persons of prudence, 
discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for 

124



 2 

speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as 
the probable income to be derived. 
 
The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the “prudent person” 
standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall portfolio.  Investment 
officers acting in accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and 
exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual 
security’s credit risk or market price changes provided deviations from expectations are 
reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to control adverse 
developments. 
 
 
IV. OBJECTIVE 
 
The primary objectives of the City’s investment activities shall be (in order of priority): 
 
Safety of Principal 
 
Safety of Principal is the foremost objective of the City.  Investments of the City shall be 
undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation of capital in the overall 
portfolio. 
 
Liquidity 
 
The City’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet all 
operational requirements that might reasonably be anticipated. 
 
Yield 
 
The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining the 
maximum rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account 
the City’s risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 
 
 
V. DELEGATION OF INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
 
The Chief Financial Officer or his Designee is designated the City’s Investment Officer.  
The Investment Officer shall be responsible for the investment of funds consistent with this 
Policy, and shall have the authority necessary to carry out such responsibilities. An 
investment committee consisting of the Investment Officer and at least two other staff 
members designated by the City Manager will also be formed.  This committee will be 
responsible for selecting eligible broker/dealers and reviewing and updating the investment 
policy annually. All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as 
custodians of the public trust. 
 

125



 3 

The Investment Officer shall establish written procedures for the operation of the 
investment program consistent with this investment policy. No person may engage in an 
investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the 
procedures established by the Investment Officer.  The Investment Officer shall be 
responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to 
regulate the activities of subordinate officials. 
 
 
VI. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal 
business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or 
which could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.  Employees and 
investment officials shall disclose to the City Manager any material financial interest in 
financial institutions that conduct business within this jurisdiction, and they shall further 
disclose any large personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the 
performance of the City, particularly with regard to the time of purchases and sales. 
 
 
VII. CASH FLOW ANALYSIS 
 
Supplemental to the financial and budgetary systems, the Investment Officer will maintain 
a cash flow forecasting process designed to monitor and forecast cash positions for 
investment purposes.  Cash flow analysis will include the historical researching and 
monitoring of specific cash flow items, payables and receivables as well as overall cash 
position and patterns. 
 
 
VIII. AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS 
 
The Investment Officer shall maintain a list of financial institutions authorized to provide 
investment services.  In addition, a list will also be maintained of approved security 
broker/dealers selected by credit worthiness who are authorized to provide investment 
services in the State of Texas.  These may include “primary” or regional dealers that 
qualify under SEC rule 15C3-1.  No public deposit shall be made except in a qualified 
public depository as established by state laws. 
 
All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified bidders for 
investment transactions must supply the Investment Officer with a completed 
Broker/Dealer Questionnaire and Certification which shall include the following: 
 
• An audited financial statement for the most recent period. 
 
• Proof of certification by the National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD). 
  

126



 4 

• Proof of current registration with the State Securities Commission. 
 
• A signed certificate stating they have read the City’s investment policy. 
 
An annual review of the financial condition and registrations of qualified bidders will be 
conducted by the Investment Committee. 
 
A current audited financial statement is required to be on file for each financial institution 
and broker/dealer with which the City invests.   
 
 
IX. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 
 
Acceptable investments under this policy shall be limited to the instruments as described 
by the Government Code; Chapter 2256, Sections 2256.009 through 2256.011 and 
Sections 2256.013 through 2256.016 of the PFIA, which include: 
  

A. Obligations of the United States Government, its agencies and 
instrumentality’s 

B. Direct obligations of this state or its agencies and instrumentality’s 
C. Certificates of deposit 
D. Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements 
E. Commercial paper 
F. Mutual funds 
G. Guaranteed investment contracts 
H. Investment pools 

 
X. SECURITY PURCHASES/TRADES 
 
Securities will be purchased or sold after three (3) offers/bids are taken to verify that the 
City is receiving fair market value/price for the investment.  New securities still in 
syndicate and priced at par may be purchased without competitive offers. 
 
 
XI. COLLATERALIZATION 
 
Collateralization will be required on two types of investments: certificates of deposit and 
repurchase (and reverse repurchase) agreements.  In order to anticipate market changes 
and provide a level of security for all funds, the collateralization level will be 102% of 
market value of principal and accrued interest. 
 
The City chooses to limit collateral to the following: 
 
• Obligations of the United States Government, its agencies and instrumentality’s, and 

government sponsored enterprises. 

127



 5 

 
Collateral will always be held by an independent third party with whom the City has a 
current custodial agreement.  A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping 
receipt) must be supplied to the City and retained. 
 
The right of collateral substitution is granted. 
 
 
XII. SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY 
 
All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements, entered into by 
the City shall be conducted on a Delivery-Versus-Payment (DVP) basis, with the 
exception of investment pool funds and mutual funds.  Securities will be held by a third 
party custodian designated by the Investment Officer and evidenced by safekeeping 
receipts. 
 
 
XIII. DIVERSIFICATION 
 
With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 30% of 
the City’s total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a 
single financial institution.  Additionally, total Federal Agency securities will not exceed 
70% of the total portfolio.  
 
 
XIV. MAXIMUM MATURITIES 
 
To the extent possible, the City will attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash 
flow requirements.  Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City will not directly invest 
in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase.  Additionally, the 
City will maintain a dollar-weighted average maturity of two years or less. 
 
 
XV. INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
The Investment Officer shall establish an annual process of independent review by an 
external auditor.  This review will provide internal control by assuring compliance with 
policies and procedures. 
 
 

128



 6 

 XVI. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
 
The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate of return 
throughout budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the investment risk 
constraints and cash flow needs. 
 
Given the passive investment strategy of the City, the benchmark to be used by the 
Investment officer to determine whether market yields are being achieved shall be the U.S. 
Treasury with a maturity that most closely matches the portfolios dollar-weighted average 
maturity. 
 
 
XVII. REPORTING 
 
The Investment Officer shall provide to the City Council quarterly investment reports that 
provide a clear picture of the status of the current investment portfolio.  The management 
report should include: 
 
• Comments on the fixed income markets and economic conditions.  
• Discussion regarding restrictions on percentage of investment by categories.  
• Possible changes in the portfolio structure going forward and thoughts on investment 

strategies. 
 
Schedules in the quarterly report should include the following: 
 
• A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period. 
• Average life and final maturity of all investments listed. 
• Coupon, discount or earnings rate. 
• Par value, Amortized Book Value and Market Value. 
• Percentage of the Portfolio Represented by each investment category. 
 
The report prepared by the Investment Officer in compliance with this section shall be 
formally reviewed by an independent auditor as provided under Section XV of this policy. 
 
 
XVIII. INVESTMENT TRAINING 
 

The Chief Financial Officer and the Investment Officer shall: 
 
- attend at least one training session within 12 months of assuming duties and 

containing not less than 10 hours of instruction from an independent source 
approved by the governing board or a designated investment committee;  

 

129



 7 

- receive training which includes education in investment controls, security risks, 
strategy risks, market risks, diversification of the investment portfolio, and 
compliance with the PFIA; and 

 
- attend a training session once every two years and receive not less than10 hours 

of training from an independent source approved by the governing board or a 
designated investment committee. 

 
 
 
XIX. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 
 
The City’s investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council.  The 
policy shall be reviewed annually by the City Council and any modifications made thereto 
must by approved by the City Council. 

130



10/19/07 1 

Investment Strategy for the  
City of College Station 

 
 
 
The City of College Station will pursue a passive investment strategy.  Investments will be 
purchased with the intent of holding to maturity and will only be sold early under 
exceptional circumstances.  In purchasing investments, the investment officer will attempt 
to follow a ladder strategy to ensure that the portfolio will have at least one investment 
maturing every month.  Investment priorities are as follows: 
 
 

1. Suitability - Any investment allowed under the Investment Policy is suitable. 
 
2. Preservation and Safety of Principal - Investments of the City shall be 

undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation of capital in the 
overall portfolio. 

 
3. Liquidity - The City’s investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to 

enable the City to meet all operational requirements that might reasonably be 
anticipated. 

 
4. Marketability - Investments should have an active and efficient secondary 

market to enable the City to liquidate investments prior to the maturity if the 
need should arise. 

 
5. Diversification - The Investment Officer will attempt to maintain a diversified 

portfolio with regard to security type, financial institution providing the 
security, and maturity. 

 
6. Yield - The City’s investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of 

attaining the maximum rate of return throughout budgetary and economic 
cycles, taking into account the City’s risk constraints and the cash flow 
characteristics of the portfolio.    

 
 

131



RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE CITY’S INVESTMENT POLICY AND INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 AND AUTHORIZING ITS IMPLEMENTATION. 
 
WHEREAS, the goal of the City of College Station is to create an Investment Policy to insure the 
safety of all funds entrusted to the City, while making available those funds for the payment of all 
necessary obligations of the City, and providing for the investment of all funds not immediately 
required in interest bearing securities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the safety of the principal invested shall always be the primary concern of the City of 
College Station; and 
 
WHEREAS, the management of monies in order to insure maximum cash availability and 
maximum yields on a short term investment is a primary goal of the City of College Station; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2008 designates the Chief Financial Officer or 
his Designee as the Investment Officer of the City and authorizes the Investment Officer to carry 
out the responsibilities of investing the City's funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Investment Policy FOR Fiscal Year 2008 contains the City’s Collateral Policy as 
required pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station has reviewed the City’s Investment 
Policy for Fiscal year 2008 and the City’s Investment Strategy for the Fiscal Year 2008; now, 
therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby approves the City’s Investment Policy and the 

Investment Strategy for Fiscal Year 2008. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the designation of the Chief Financial 

Officer or his Designee as the Investment Officer of the City and authorizes the 
Investment Officer to carry out the responsibilities of investing the City's funds 
consistent with the City’s Investment Policy.  

 
PART 3: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________________, A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
City Secretary      Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

132



 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2p 

Authorize Animal Shelter Expenditures 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion to authorize expenditures for 
the Brazos Animal Shelter in the amount of $65,334. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the funding in the amount of $65,334 
to the Brazos Animal Shelter. 
 
Summary: On September 13, 2007 Council approved the FY08 proposed budget which 
included funding for the Brazos Animal Shelter.  The allocation for this funding is based on 
an Interlocal Agreement originally approved on October 22, 1991 and amended July 27, 
1999.  On September 13, 2001, the Council approved another amendment to the Interlocal 
Agreement providing for the extension of a lease with the City of Bryan.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available and budgeted in the General Fund, 
Police Department Budget.  Payments are made in equal installments, monthly. 
 
The $65,334 is the same that has been paid in each of the last 2 years to the Brazos Animal 
Shelter. 
 
Attachments: none 
 
 
 

133



 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2Q 

Budget Approval and Funding Agreement With the George Bush Presidential 
Library Foundation 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, discussion and possible action on approving the budget of 
the George Bush Presidential Library Foundation; and presentation, discussion and possible 
action on a funding agreement between the City of College Station and the George Bush 
Presidential Library Foundation for FY08 in the amount of $100,000. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the George Bush Presidential Library 
Foundation budget and the funding agreement for FY08.   
 
Summary:  As part of the 2007-2008 budget process the City Council approved funding for 
the George Bush Presidential Library Foundation in the amount of $100,000.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The funds for this agreement are budgeted and available 
in the 2007-2008 Hotel Tax Fund Budget. A total of $100,000 is to be used for marketing 
and operational activities directly associated with the promotion of tourism and the hotel 
industry in College Station. State law requires that the City Council approve the budget of 
any organization that is to be funded through the Hotel Tax.     
 
Attachments: 

1. George Bush Presidential Library Foundation budget 
2. George Bush Presidential Library Foundation Funding Agreement 

 

134



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

FUNDING AGREEMENT PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT  

AND USE OF HOTEL TAX REVENUE 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made between the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a 
Home Rule Municipal Corporation incorporated under the State of Texas (hereinafter 
referred to as the “City”), and the The George Bush Presidential Library Foundation, d.b.a 
Bush Presidential Library Foundation, a Texas Non-Profit Corporation (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Agency”): 
 

WHEREAS, TEXAS TAX CODE §§351.002 and 351.003(a) authorize City to levy by 
ordinance a municipal hotel occupancy tax (“hotel tax”) not exceeding seven percent 
(7%) of the consideration paid by a hotel occupant; and  

 
WHEREAS, by ordinance, City has provided for the assessment and collection of a 
municipal hotel occupancy tax in the City of College Station of seven percent (7%); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, TEXAS. TAX CODE §351.101(a) authorizes City to use  revenue from its 
municipal hotel occupancy tax to promote tourism and the convention and hotel 
industry, yet limits such revenue use for historical restoration and preservation 
projects or activities or advertising and conducting solicitations and promotional 
programs to encourage tourists and convention delegates to visit preserved historic 
sites or museums; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Agency is well equipped to perform those activities; and  
 

WHEREAS, TEXAS TAX CODE §351.101(c) authorizes City to delegate by contract 
with Agency; as an independent entity, the management or supervision of programs 
and activities of the type described hereinabove funded with revenue from the 
municipal hotel occupancy tax; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the performance of the mutual 
covenants and promises contained herein, City and Agency agree and contract as 
follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 
 

1.1 The term “Agency” shall mean the The George Bush Presidential Library 
Foundation, a Texas Non-Profit Corporation to which the City has delegated the 
management or supervision of programs and activities funded with Hotel Tax Revenue.  
 
1.2 The term “City” shall mean the City of College Station, in the County of Brazos, and 
the State of Texas. 
 

1135



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

1.3      The term “Contract Quarter” shall refer to any quarter of the contract year in which 
this Agreement is in force.  Contract Quarters will end on December 31st, March 31st, June 
30th, and September 30th, of each contract year. 
 
1.4 The term “Event” shall include any and all banquets, ceremonial dinners, 
promotional programs, or other public or private event hosted by Agency. 
 
1.5 The term “Financial Activity Report” shall mean a quarterly report which includes a 
summary of Agency’s revenues and expenditures, and a summary of Agency’s assets and 
liabilities to be submitted to the City on the sample forms attached herein as Exhibit A or in 
a form agreed upon by Agency and City. 
 
1.6 The term “Financial Records” shall mean invoices, receipts, bank statements, 
reconciliations, cleared checks, financial statements and audit reports. 
 
1.7 The term “Hotel Tax Revenue” shall mean the gross monies collected and 
received by City as municipal hotel occupancy tax at the rate of seven percent (7%) of the 
price paid for a room in a hotel, pursuant to Texas Tax Code 351.003 (a) and City 
Ordinance.  Hotel Tax Revenue will include penalty and interest related to the late 
payments of the tax revenue by the taxpayer. 
 
1.8 The term “Narrative Summary of Activity Report” shall mean the quarterly 
summary report of the activities of Agency including a summary of how funds from City 
have been utilized to accomplish the Agency’s work.  Such report shall be submitted on the 
form attached herein as Exhibit B. 
   
1.9 The term “Performance Measure Report” shall mean the quarterly report to 
determine the levels of service that are being provided by Agency to be submitted to the 
City on the form attached herein as Exhibit C.  
 
1.10 The term “Program Report” shall mean a report as required by Texas Tax Code 
§351.108 listing each of the Agency’s scheduled activity, program, or event that: is directly 
funded with Hotel Tax Revenue or has its administrative costs funded in whole or in part by 
the Hotel Tax Revenue and is directly enhancing and promoting tourism and the convention 
and hotel industry.  Such report shall be submitted on the form attached herein as Exhibit D. 
 
 

ARTICLE II. 
HOTEL TAX REVENUE PAYMENT 

 
2.1 Consideration and Payment.  For and in consideration of the activities to be 
satisfactorily performed by Agency under this Agreement, City agrees to pay to Agency   
a portion of the Hotel Tax Revenue collected by City in the total amount of ONE 
HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($100,000.00), to be paid as follows:  
 

2136



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

 (a) The total amount of ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 
DOLLARS ($100,000.00) from the City’s Hotel Tax Revenue.  Payment will be 
made in four (4) installments of $25,000.00 each.  

 
2.2 Quarterly payments will be dependent upon the City receiving all reports required 
herein from the Agency.  Quarterly reports are due no later than thirty (30) days after the 
end of each Contract Quarter (no later than January 30th, April 30th, July 30th, October 
30th, of each contract year.)  
 
2.3 Other limitations regarding consideration. 
 (a) It is expressly understood that this contract in no way obligates the General 

Fund or any other monies or credits of City. 
 
 (b) City may withhold allocations if City determines that expenditures of 

Agency deviate materially from their approved budget or if the reports required 
herein are not submitted in a complete and timely manner. 
 

ARTICLE III 
USE OF HOTEL TAX REVENUE 

 
3.1 Use of Funds.  For and in consideration of the payment by City to Agency of the 
agreed payments of Hotel Tax Revenue specified above, Agency agrees to manage or 
supervise the programs and activities funded with Hotel Tax Revenue. Agency further 
agrees to use such Hotel Tax Revenue for historical restoration and preservation projects or 
activities or advertising and conducting solicitations and promotional programs to encourage 
tourists and convention delegates to visit preserved historic sites or museums: 
 
 (a) at or in the immediate vicinity of convention center facilities or visitor 

information centers; or  
 (b) located elsewhere in the City of College Station or its vicinity that would be 

frequented by tourists and convention delegates.   
 
The City Council and City Manager or their designees shall have the right to attend Agency 
events or promotional programs as representatives of the City to promote tourism and the 
convention and hotel industry at no additional cost to the City.  
 
3.2 Administrative Costs.  The Hotel Tax Revenue received from City by Agency may 
be spent for Agency’s day-to-day operations, supplies, salaries, office rental, travel 
expenses, and other administrative costs only if those administrative costs are incurred 
directly in the promoting of: tourism and the convention and hotel industry and the historical 
restoration and preservation projects or activities or advertising and conducting solicitations 
and promotional programs to encourage tourists and convention delegates to visit preserved 
historic sites or museums : 
 
 (a) at or in the immediate vicinity of convention center facilities or visitor 

information centers; or  

3137



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

 (b) located elsewhere in the City of College Station or its vicinity that would be 
frequented by tourists and convention delegates.   

 
3.3 Specific Restrictions on Use of Funds. 

(a)  That portion of total administrative costs of Agency for which Hotel Tax 
Revenue may be used shall not exceed that portion of Agency’s administrative costs 
actually incurred in conducting the activities specified in §3.1 above. 
 

 (b)    Hotel Tax Revenue may not be spent for travel for a person to attend an event 
or conduct an activity the primary purpose of which is not directly related to the 
promotion of tourism and the convention and hotel industry or the performance of 
the person’s job in an efficient and professional manner. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 
4.1 Budget. 
 (a) Prior to execution of this Funding Agreement, Agency shall submit to the 

City Manager of City an annual budget to be approved by the City Council for each 
fiscal year, for such operations of Agency funded by Hotel Tax Revenues.  This 
budget shall specifically identify proposed expenditures of Hotel Tax Revenue by 
Agency.  In other words, City should be able to audit specifically the purpose of 
each individual expenditure of Hotel Tax Revenue from the separate account 
relating to Hotel Tax Revenue.  City shall not pay to Agency any Hotel Tax 
Revenues as set forth in Article II of this Agreement during any program year of this 
Agreement unless a budget for such respective program year has been approved in 
writing by the College Station City Council.  Approval of the budget by the City 
Council shall not preclude the Agency from reasonably reallocating funds within the 
budget among line items to meet changing conditions. Such reallocation shall not 
necessitate a new approval by the City Council.  Failure to submit an annual budget 
may be considered a breach of contract, and if not remedied is considered grounds 
for termination of this Agreement as stated in paragraph 6.2. 

 
 (b) Agency acknowledges that the approval of such budget by the College 

Station City Council creates a fiduciary duty in Agency with respect to the Hotel 
Tax Revenue paid by City to Agency under this Agreement.  Agency shall expend 
Hotel Tax Revenue only in the manner and for the purposes specified in this 
Agreement, TEXAS TAX CODE §351.101(a), and in the budget as approved by City. 

 
4.2 Separate Accounts.  Agency shall maintain Hotel Tax Revenue paid to Agency by 
City in a separate account, or with segregated fund accounting, such that any reasonable 
person can ascertain the revenue source of any given expenditure.    
 
4.3 Financial Records.  Agency shall maintain a complete and accurate financial record 
of each expenditure of the Hotel Tax Revenue made by Agency. These funds shall be 
classified as restricted funds for audited financial purposes.  

4138



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

 
4.4 Agency shall maintain such records, accounts, reports, files or other documents 
for a minimum of five (5) years after the expiration of this agreement.  City’s right to 
access Agency’s files shall continue during this 5 year period and for as long as the 
records are retained by Agency. 
 
4.5 Upon written request of the College Station City Council, or other person, Agency 
shall make such financial records available for inspection and review by the party making 
the request.  Agency understands and accepts that financial records and any other records 
relating to this Agreement shall be subject to the Public Information Act, TEXAS 
GOVERNMENT CODE, Chapter 552, as hereafter amended. 
 
4.6 Program Report.  Agency understands that such report shall be completed in its 
entirety and the original report shall be submitted to the City prior to any funds being 
disbursed.     
 
 
4.7 Quarterly Reports.   

Agency shall submit the following to the City on a quarterly basis as provided in this 
Agreement: 

 
(a) Financial Activity Report. 

 
(b) Narrative Summary of Activity Report.   

 
(c) Performance Measure Report. 

 
  

4.8 Agency shall respond promptly to any request from the City Manager of City, or 
designee, for additional information relating to the activities performed under this 
Agreement. 

 
4.9 The Financial Activity Report, Narrative Summary of Activity Report and 
Performance Measure Report shall be submitted to the City within thirty (30) days of the 
end of each Contract Quarter (no later than January 30th, April 30th, July 30th, and 
October 30th of each contract year.)   
 
4.10 A copy of the Agency’s annual financial audit shall be made available to City no 
later than thirty (30) days following Agency’s receipt of same.  

 
4.11 If requested, Agency shall make an annual report and presentation to the City 
Council. 

 
4.12 The City shall conduct a monitoring review of the Agency as deemed necessary 
by the City so as to evaluate Agency's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. 
Said monitoring may consist of on-site monitoring reviews. 

5139



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

ARTICLE V 
AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
5.1 Agency shall provide the City with an agenda of all regular and non-regular 
Board meetings five (5) days prior to the meeting with information as to the date, time 
and place of meeting.  If a non-regular meeting is scheduled, Agency shall immediately 
notify the City of non-regular meeting.  Said notification should be in writing via 
facsimile or e-mail; or orally by telephone, depending on Agency’s own notification of 
the Board meeting. 

 
5.2 Agency shall submit minutes of each Board of Directors meeting and Executive 
Committee meeting to the City within ten (10) days after approval of the minutes. 

  
ARTICLE VI 

TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

6.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2007 and 
terminate at midnight on October 31, 2008.   However, the program period shall commence 
on October 1, 2007 and terminate at midnight on September 30, 2008.  Only those 
expenditures authorized by Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code which are actually incurred 
during the program period, for events and activities taking place within the program period, 
are eligible for funding under this Agreement, and any ineligible expenditures or unspent 
funds shall be forfeited to City upon termination of the Agreement. 
 
6.2 Termination Without Cause. 
(a) This Agreement may be terminated by either party, with or without cause, by giving 

the other party sixty (60) days advance written notice. 
 
(b) In the event this Agreement is terminated by either party pursuant to §6.2(a), City 

agrees to reimburse Agency for any contractual obligations undertaken by Agency 
in satisfactory performance of those activities specified in hereinabove and that 
were approved by the Council through the budget, as noted in §4.1.  This 
reimbursement is conditioned upon such contractual obligations having been 
incurred and entered into in the good faith performance of those services 
contemplated in §§3.1 and 3.2 above, and further conditioned upon such 
contractual obligations having a term not exceeding the full term of this 
Agreement.  

 
(c) Further, upon termination pursuant to §6.2(a), Agency will provide CITY:  
 

(1)  Within ten (10) business days from the termination notification, a short-
term budget of probable expenditures for the remaining sixty (60) day period 
between termination notification and contract termination.  This budget will be 
presented to Council for approval within ten (10) business days after receipt by 
City.  If formal approval is not given within ten (10) business days and the budget 
does not contain any expenditures that would be prohibited by the Texas Tax 

6140



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

Code, and is within the current contractual period approved budget; the budget 
will be considered approved;  
 
(2)  Within thirty (30) days, a full accounting of all expenditures not 
previously audited by City; 
 
(3)  Within five (5) business days of a request from City, a listing of 
expenditures that have occurred since the last required reporting period;  
 
(4)  A final accounting of all expenditures and tax funds on the day of 
termination. Agency will be obligated to return any unused funds or funds 
determined to be used improperly. Any use of remaining funds by Agency after 
notification of termination is conditioned upon such contractual obligations 
having been incurred and entered into in the good faith performance of those 
services contemplated in 3.1 and 3.2 above, and further conditioned upon such 
contractual obligations having a term not exceeding the full term of this 
Agreement. 

 
6.3 Automatic Termination.  This Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the 
occurrence of any of the following events: 
 

(a)   The termination of the legal existence of Agency; 
 

(b)   The insolvency of Agency, the filing of a petition in bankruptcy, either 
voluntarily or involuntarily, or an assignment by Agency for the benefit of 
creditors; 

 
(c)   The continuation of a breach of any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement by either City or Agency for more than thirty (30) days after written 
notice of such breach is given to the breaching party by the other party; or 

 
(d)   The failure of Agency to submit quarterly reports which comply with the 
reporting procedures required herein and generally accepted accounting principles 
within thirty (30) days from the date City notifies Agency of such breach. 
 
(e)    The failure of Agency to submit a Quarterly Financial Activity Report as 
required by Texas Tax Code §351.101(c) within thirty (30) days from the date 
City notifies Agency of such breach. 
 

 
6.4 Right to Immediate Termination Upon Litigation.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Agreement, to mitigate damages and to preserve evidence and issues for 
judicial determination, either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon 
immediate notice to the other party in the event that any person has instituted litigation 
concerning the activities of the non-terminating party, and the terminating party reasonably 
believes that such activities are required or prohibited under this Agreement. 

7141



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

 
6.5 In the event that this Agreement is terminated pursuant to §§6.3 or 6.4, Agency 
agrees to refund any and all unused funds, or funds determined by City to have been used 
improperly, within thirty (30) days after termination of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE VII 

HOLD HARMLESS 
 

7.1  Hold Harmless.  The parties agree to hold each other harmless 
from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, causes of action, 
suits and liabilities of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, 
court costs and attorney’s fees, for injury or death of any person, for 
damage to any property, or for any breach of contract, arising out of or 
in connection with the work done under this Agreement, as permitted by 
law. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
8.1 Subcontract for Performance of Services.  Nothing in this Agreement shall 
prohibit, nor be construed to prohibit, the agreement by Agency with another private entity, 
person, or organization for the performance of those services described in §3.1 above.  In the 
event that Agency enters into any arrangement, contractual or otherwise, with such other 
entity, person or organization, Agency shall cause such other entity, person, or organization 
to adhere to, conform to, and be subject to all provisions, terms, and conditions of this 
Agreement and to TEX. TAX CODE Chapter 351, including reporting requirements, separate 
funds maintenance, and limitations and prohibitions pertaining to expenditure of the agreed 
payments and Hotel Tax Revenue. 
 
8.2 This Agreement and each provision hereof, and each and every right, duty, 
obligation, and liability set forth herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit and 
obligation of City and Agency and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
8.3 The City and Agency attest that, to the best of their knowledge, no member of the 
City of College Station City Council and no other officer, employee or agent of the City, 
who exercises any function or responsibility in connection with the carrying out of the 
terms of this Agreement, has any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 

 
8.4 Agency covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, it will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin or disability.  Agency will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants who are employed are treated, during employment, without regard to their 
race, color, religion, sex, national origin or disability.  Such action shall include, but not 
be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 

8142



Contract No.  08-031  
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 George Bush Library\FY08 George Bush Library Foundation funding 
agreement.doc 
10/4/2007 

compensation and selection.  Agency agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to 
employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination requirement. 

 
8.5 Agency expressly agrees that, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees 
placed by or on behalf of Agency, there will be a statement that all qualified applicants 
will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin or disability. 

 
8.6 Agency certifies that it will not limit services or give preference to any person 
assisted through this Agreement on the basis of religion and that it will provide no 
religious instruction or counseling, conduct no religious worship or services, and engage 
in no religious proselytizing in the provision of services or the use of facilities or 
furnishings assisted in any way under this Agreement.  

 
8.7 No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless and until it 
is reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties. 
 
8.8 This Agreement has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Texas. 
 
8.9 Performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Brazos County, Texas, 
United States of America. 
 
8.10 Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this 
Agreement, and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each party has been 
properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement.  The persons executing 
this Agreement hereby represent that they have authorization to sign on behalf of their 
respective organizations. 

 
8.11 Failure of any party, at any time, to enforce a provision of this Agreement, shall in 
no way constitute a waiver of that provision, nor in any way affect the validity of this 
Agreement, any part hereof, or the right of either party thereafter to enforce each and 
every provision hereof.  No term of this Agreement shall be deemed waived or breach 
excused unless the waiver shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have 
waived.  Furthermore, any consent to or waiver of a breach will not constitute consent to 
or waiver of or excuse of any other different or subsequent breach. 
 
8.12 The parties acknowledge that they have read, understand and intend to be bound 
by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
8.13 This Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be 
assigned by any party without the prior written approval of the other parties to this 
Agreement. 

 

9143



144



145



Outside Agency:__________________________

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2008 Period _____________________________

2008 Current 
Period

2008 Current 
Period

2008 Year to 
Date

2008 Year to 
Date

 ASSETS Hotel Tax Non-Hotel Tax Hotel Tax Non-Hotel Tax
    Cash and cash equivalents

    Short-term investments

    Prepaid expenses

    Unconditional promises to give

    Cash restricted to purchase of equipment

    Long-term investments

    Contribution receivable—charitable lead trust

    Deposits on leased and other property

    Property and equipment

 TOTAL ASSETS

 LIABILITIES

    Accounts payable

    Compensation
    Refundable advances

    Long-term debt
 TOTAL LIABILITIES

 NET ASSETS
    Unrestricted
    Temporarily restricted

    Permanently restricted

 TOTAL NET ASSETS

 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Exhibit A

Statements of Financial Position

12146



Outside Agency:_______________________

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

2008 Period:__________________________

Permanently
Restricted

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

    Contributions

  —   —   —   — 

  —   —   —   — 

        Capital campaign   —   —   —   — 

        Equipment acquisition   —   —   —   — 

        Endowment   —   — -   — 

        Other   —   —   —   — 

    Federal financial assistance   —   —   —   — 

    Program service fees   —   —   —   — 

    Investment return   —   —   —   — 

    Change in value of split-interest agreement   —   —   —   — 

    Other   —   —   —   — 
    Net assets released from restrictions   —   —   —   — 

            Expiration of time restrictions   —   —   —   — 

            Restrictions satisfied by charitable lead trust 
receipts

  —   —   —   — 

        Restrictions satisfied by payments     —   —   — 

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

EXPENSES
    Program services

  —   —   —   — 

  —   —   —   — 
    Supporting services

        Management and general   —   —   —   — 

        Fund-raising   —   —   —   — 

TOTAL EXPENSES   —   —   —   — 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS   —   —   —   — 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR   —   —   —   — 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR   —   —   —   — 

Exhibit A

Statement of Financial Activities - Hotel Tax

Unrestricted
Temporarily 
Restricted

Total

  —   —   —   — 

13147



Exhibit B 
Narrative Summary of Activity Report 

 
 
 
 
Please provide a narrative summary of the activities funded with the Hotel Tax Revenue. 
Use additional sheets if more space is needed. 

14148



Exhibit C
Performance Measure Report

The George Bush Presidential Library Foundation

Description & Budget Explanation:
The George Bush Presidential Library Foundation will inform and enrich learners of all ages about American history
the general role of the President, and the administration of George H.W. Bush.

Yearly Budget Summary FY05 FY06 FY07 FY08
Actual Actual Actual Estimate

$42,767 $50,000 $50,000 $100,000
Quarterly Budget Summary Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed
$0 $0 $0 $0

Program Name: The George Bush Presidential Library Foundation

Service Level: The George Bush Presidential Library Foundation will promote and enhance tourism via 
educational programs, exhibits, and promotional activities

Performance Measures: Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Actual Proposed Proposed Proposed

Number of visitors

Number of new exhibits 

Number of existing exhibits

Number of advertising or promotional
activities conducted

Number of educational programs
conducted

15149



Exhibit D 
Hotel Tax Revenue Program Report 

 
Please list each scheduled 
activity, program or event 
directly funded from the 
Hotel Tax Revenue. 
 

Please list each scheduled 
activity, program or event 
which has its administrative 
costs funded in whole or in 
part by the Hotel Tax 
Revenue. 

Please list how the scheduled 
activity, program or event is 
directly enhancing and 
promoting tourism and the 
convention and hotel 
industry.  
 

Please itemize funds associated with 
the particular activity, program or 
event directly funded from the Hotel 
Tax Revenue. 
 

1. 
 
 
 

   

2. 
 
 
 

   

3. 
 
 
 

   

4. 
 
 
 

   

5. 
 
 
 

   

16150



Exhibit D 
Hotel Tax Revenue Program Report 

Please list each scheduled 
activity, program or event 
directly funded from the 
Hotel Tax Revenue. 
 

Please list each scheduled 
activity, program or event 
which has its administrative 
costs funded in whole or in 
part by the Hotel Tax 
Revenue. 

Please list how the scheduled 
activity, program or event is 
directly enhancing and 
promoting tourism and the 
convention and hotel 
industry.  
 

Please itemize each amount 
associated with the particular 
activity, program or event directly 
funded from the Hotel Tax Revenue. 
 

6. 
 
 
 

   

7. 
 
 
 

   

8. 
 
 
 

   

9. 
 
 
 

   

10. 
 
 
 

   

 
 
 
 

17151



152



 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2r 

Authorize Health Department Funding Addendum and Expenditures 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion to approve a funding 
addendum that will authorize expenditures for the Brazos County Health Department in the 
amount of $211,255. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the funding addendum in the amount 
of $211,255 to the Brazos County Health Department. 
 
Summary: On September 13, 2007 Council approved the FY08 proposed budget which 
included funding for the Brazos County Health Department.  This funding is based on an 
Interlocal Agreement originally approved on December 14, 1995.    
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available and budgeted in the General Fund.  
Payments are made in equal installments, monthly. 
 
Attachments: Brazos County Health Department Funding Addendum and Original ILA 
 
 
 

153



154



155



156



157



October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda 2s 

Funding Agreement With Keep Brazos Beautiful 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a funding 
agreement between the City of College Station and the Keep Brazos Beautiful for 
FY08 in the amount of $60,240. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the funding agreement. 
 
Summary:  As part of the 2007-2008 budget process the City Council approved 
funding for the Keep Brazos Beautiful in the amount of $60,240. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The funds for this agreement are budgeted and 
available in the 2007-2008 Sanitation Fund for the total amount of $60,240.  
$33,240 is to be used for the operations and maintenance of the Keep Brazos 
Beautiful next year.  $27,000 is to be used for beautification grants and projects of 
Keep Brazos Beautiful. 
 
Attachments: 
Keep Brazos Beautiful Funding Agreement  
 

158



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

FUNDING AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement is by and between the CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, a Home Rule 
Municipal Corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas (hereinafter referred to 
as the "City") and Keep Brazos Beautiful, Incorporated, a Texas Non – Profit Corporation 
(hereinafter referred to as “Agency”). 
 

WHEREAS, the City has the objective of improving the environment of the community 
via litter abatement, beautification, and public education, and 

 
 WHEREAS, Agency through its purpose shares this common goal with the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to assist Agency in providing litter abatement and 
beautification efforts; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the performance of the mutual 
covenants and promises contained herein, City and Agency agree and contract as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 
 
1.1 The term “Agency” shall mean Keep Brazos Beautiful, Incorporated, a Texas Non-profit 
Corporation.  
 
1.2 The term “Beautification Project” shall mean a project that improves the environment, 
reduces litter, and provides beautification or public education in College Station, Texas. 

 
1.3    The term “City” shall mean the City of College Station, in the County of Brazos, and the 
State of Texas. 
 
1.4 The term “Contract Quarter” shall refer to any quarter of the contract year in which this 
Agreement is in force.  Contract Quarters will end on December 31st, March 31st, June 30th, and 
September 30th, of each contract year. 
 
1.5 The term “Event” shall include any and all banquets, ceremonial dinners, promotional 
programs, or other public or private event hosted by Agency. 
 
1.6 The term “Financial Activity Report” shall mean a report which includes a summary of 
revenues and expenditures, and a summary of assets and liabilities to be submitted to the City on 
the form attached herein as Exhibit A or in a form agreed upon by Agency and City. 

 
1.7 The term “Narrative Summary of Activity Report” shall mean a report of the activities of 
Agency including a summary of how funds from City have been utilized to accomplish the 
Statement of Work to be submitted to the City on the form attached herein as Exhibit B. 
 

1159



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

1.8 The term “Performance Measure Report” shall mean a report to determine the levels of 
service that are being provided by Agency to be submitted to the City on the form attached 
herein as Exhibit C.  
 

ARTICLE II 
STATEMENT OF WORK 

 
2.1 Agency shall promote and facilitate activities that enhance the beautification of the local 
area through education, community events, and litter abatement programs in the City of College 
Station.  Agency agrees that no more than THIRTY THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED 
FORTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($33,240.00) from the City of College Station shall be spent 
for general operations of Agency to conduct such programs.   
 
2.2 Agency shall provide Beautification Projects.  Such project proposals shall be submitted 
to City in writing for approval. Upon written approval from City, Agency shall implement and 
complete the Beautification Project according to the requested timeline.  Agency agrees that no 
more than TWENTY SEVEN THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($27,000.00) from the 
City of College Station shall be spent for Beautification Projects.  Agency shall implement the 
following Beautification Projects: 
 

(a) FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($5,000.00) of Beautification 
Project funding shall be used for the purchase and distribution of wildflower seed to be 
spread in the City of College Station.  Agency shall coordinate and obtain approval of the 
locations of distribution from the City Manager or his delegate prior to implementing 
project.    
 
(b)  TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) of Beautification 
Project funding shall be used for the purchase of supplies, equipment, and services for the 
College Station Great American Cleanup event to be held in 2007. Agency shall submit 
and obtain approval of supplies, equipment and services from the City Manager or his 
delegate prior to implementing project. 
 
(c )  TWENTY THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($20,000.00) of 
Beautification Project funding will be used for future Beautification Projects located in 
the City of College Station.  Such projects shall be submitted for approval as stated in 2.2 
above.  
 

 (d) The City Council and City Manager or their designees shall have the right to 
attend Agency events or promotional programs as representatives of the City at no 
additional cost to the City.    
 

 
Agency understands and agrees that funding for future Beautification Projects, not specified in 
(a) or (b) above are to be approved in advance by City. City Manager or his/her delegate shall 
provide written approval of Beautification Projects prior to the implementation of projects or 
distribution of funds for said projects. Funds not utilized within the fiscal year are to remain in 
possession of City.  

2160



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

  ARTICLE III 
PAYMENT 

 
3.1 For and in consideration of the activities to be satisfactorily performed by Agency under 
this Agreement, City shall provide funding in the amount of SIXTY THOUSAND TWO 
HUNDRED FORTY  AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($60.240.00) to be paid as follows:  
 

(a) The total amount of THIRTY THREE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY 
AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($33,240.00) shall be paid from the City’s Sanitation Fund for 
the general operations of Agency.  Payments will be made in four (4) equal quarterly 
installments of $8,310.00. These appropriated funds shall be used during the period of 
October 1, 2007, to September 30, 2008. 

 
(b) The total amount of TWENTY SEVEN THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS 
($27,000.00) shall be paid from the City’s Sanitation Fund for Beautification Projects 
approved in writing in advance by City: 
 

a.  Agency shall submit invoice to City requesting payment for wildflower 
seeds.  Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice. 
 
b.  Agency shall submit invoice to City requesting payment for the purchase 
of supplies, equipment and services for the College Station Great American 
Cleanup event.  Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
invoice.   
 
c. Agency shall submit invoices to City requesting payment for 
Beautification Projects.  Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of invoice. 

 
3.2 Funding will also be dependent upon the City receiving all reports required herein from 
the Agency no later than thirty (30) days after the end of each Contract Quarter (no later than 
January 30th, April 30th, July 30th, October 30th of each contract year).  
 
3.3 City may withhold further allocations if City determines that Agency’s expenditures deviate 

materially from their Statement of Work or if the reports required herein are not submitted 
in a complete and timely manner. 

 
 

ARTICLE IV 
RECORDS AND REPORTS 

 
4.1 Agency shall maintain financial records and supporting documents in the form of 
receipts, canceled checks, payroll records, employee time sheets and other documentation to 
verify all expenditures of funds under the terms of this Agreement.  Said documentation shall 
conform to the City’s accounting practices. 
 

3161



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

4.2 Agency shall maintain written records and supporting documents as required under this 
Agreement for all applicable, generally accepted, and required administrative and operating 
policies. Agency shall maintain such records, accounts, reports, files or other documents for a 
minimum of three (3) years after the expiration of this Agreement.  City’s right to access 
Agency’s files shall continue during this 3-year period and for as long as the records are retained 
by Agency.  

 
4.3 Agency shall provide the City reasonable access during regular business hours to books, 
accounts, records, reports, files or other papers related to this Agreement belonging to or in use 
by Agency.  Agency understands and accepts that all such financial records and any other records 
relating to this Agreement shall be subject to the Public Information Act, TEX. GOV’T CODE, ch. 
552, as hereafter amended. 

 
4.4 Quarterly reports. Agency shall submit the following to the City on a quarterly basis as 
provided in this Agreement: 

 
(a) Financial Activity Report.   

 
(b) Narrative Summary of Activity Report.  

 
(c ) Performance Measure Report.   

 
Agency shall respond promptly to any request from the City Manager of City, or 

designee, for additional information relating to the activities performed under this Agreement. 
 

4.5   The Financial Activity Reports,  Narrative Summary of Activity Reports and 
Performance Measure Reports shall be submitted to the City within thirty (30) days of the end of 
each Contract Quarter (no later than January 30th; April 30th; July 30th; and October 30th of each 
contract year).   
 
4.6  A copy of the Agency financial audit shall be made available to City no later than thirty 
(30) days following Agency’s receipt of same.  

 
4.7 If requested, Agency shall make an annual report and presentation to the City Council. 

 
4.8 The City shall conduct a monitoring review of the Agency as deemed necessary by the 
City so as to evaluate Agency's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. Said 
monitoring may consist of on-site monitoring reviews. 
 

ARTICLE V 
AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
5.1 The City shall have the option to recommend one appointee for any vacancy that occurs 
on the Board of Directors of the Agency during the program year.  This provision shall not apply 
if the City is otherwise authorized to appoint members to the Board under the Agency’s Bylaws. 
 

4162



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

5.2 Agency shall provide the City with an agenda of all regular and non-regular Board 
meetings five (5) days prior to the meeting with information as to the date, time and place of 
meeting.  If a non-regular meeting is scheduled, Agency shall immediately notify the City of 
non-regular meeting.  Said notification should be in writing via facsimile or e-mail; or orally by 
telephone, depending on Agency’s own notification of the Board meeting. 

 
5.3  Agency shall submit minutes of each Board of Directors meeting and Executive 
Committee meeting to the City within ten (10) days after approval of the minutes. 

  
 

ARTICLE VI 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
6.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2007, and terminate at 
midnight on October 31, 2008.   However, the program period shall commence on October 1, 2007, 
and terminate at midnight on September 30, 2008.Only those expenditures authorized under the 
Statement of Work, which are actually incurred during the program period, for events and activities 
taking place within the program period, are eligible for funding under this Agreement, and any 
ineligible expenditures or unspent funds shall be forfeited to City upon termination of the 
Agreement. 
 
6.2 Termination Without Cause. 
 

(a) This Agreement may be terminated by either party, with or without cause, by giving 
the other party sixty (60) days advance written notice. 

 
(b) In the event this Agreement is terminated by either party pursuant to Section 
6.2(a), City agrees to reimburse Agency for any contractual obligations of Agency 
undertaken by Agency in satisfactory performance of those activities specified 
hereinabove. This reimbursement is conditioned upon such contractual obligations having 
been incurred and entered into in the good faith performance of those services 
contemplated in Article II above, and further conditioned upon such contractual 
obligations having a term not exceeding the full term of this Agreement.  

 
(c) Further, upon termination pursuant to §6.2(a), Agency will provide City: 1) Within 
thirty (30) days, a full accounting of all expenditures not previously reviewed by City; 2) 
Within five (5) business days of a request from City, a listing of expenditures that have 
occurred since the last required reporting period; 3) a final accounting of all expenditures 
on the day of termination. Agency will be obligated to return any unused funds or funds 
determined to be used improperly. Any use of remaining funds by Agency after 
notification of termination is conditioned upon such contractual obligations having been 
incurred and entered into in the good faith performance of those services contemplated in 
Article II above, and further conditioned upon such contractual obligations having a term 
not exceeding the full term of this Agreement. 

 

5163



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

6.3 Automatic Termination.  This Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the 
occurrence of any of the following events: 
 

(a)  The termination of the legal existence of Agency; 
 

(b)  The insolvency of Agency, the filing of a petition in bankruptcy, either voluntarily or 
involuntarily, or an assignment by Agency for the benefit of creditors; 

 
(c)  The continuation of a breach of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement by 
either City or Agency for more than thirty (30) days after written notice of such breach is 
given to the breaching party by the other party; or 

 
(d)  The failure of Agency to submit quarterly reports which comply with the reporting 
procedures required herein and generally accepted accounting principles within thirty 
(30) days from the date the City notifies Agency of such breach. 

 
6.4 Right to Immediate Termination Upon Litigation.  Notwithstanding any other provision 
of this Agreement, to mitigate damages and to preserve evidence and issues for judicial 
determination, either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon immediate notice 
to the other party in the event that any person has instituted litigation concerning the activities of the 
non-terminating party, and the terminating party reasonably believes that such activities are required 
or prohibited under this Agreement. 
 
6.5 In the event that this Agreement is terminated pursuant to §§6.3 or 6.4, Agency agrees to 
refund any and all unused funds, or funds determined by City to have been used improperly, 
within thirty (30) days after termination of this Agreement. 
 

 
ARTICLE VII 

INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE 
 

7.1 Agency agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, and 
employees from and against any and all loss, costs, or damage of any kind, nature, or 
description that may arise out of or in connection with this Agreement whether or not the 
claim or cause of action results from any negligence of the City or any of its officers, agents, 
or employees. 

 
7.2 Agency assumes full responsibility for the work to be performed and services to be 
provided hereunder, and hereby releases, relinquishes and discharges the City, its officers, 
agents, and employees from any and all claims, demands, causes of action of every kind 
and character, including the cost of defense thereof, for any injury to, including death of, 
any person (whether employees or agents of either of the parties hereto or third persons) 
and any loss of or damage to property (whether the property is that of either of the parties 
hereto or of third parties) that is caused by or alleged to be caused by, arising out of, or in 
connection with the Agency’s work or services provided hereunder whether or not said 
claims, demands, or causes of actions are covered in whole or part by insurance. 

6164



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

ARTICLE VIII 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
8.1 Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit, nor be construed to prohibit, the agreement by 
Agency with another private entity, person, or organization for the performance of those services 
described in Article II above.  In the event that Agency enters into any arrangement, contractual or 
otherwise, with such other entity, person or organization, Agency shall cause such other entity, 
person, or organization to adhere to, conform to, and be subject to all provisions, terms, and 
conditions of this Agreement, including reporting requirements, separate funds maintenance, and 
limitations and prohibitions pertaining to expenditure of the agreed payments. 
 
8.2 This Agreement and each provision hereof, and each and every right, duty, obligation, and 
liability set forth herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit and obligation of City and 
Agency and their respective successors and assigns. 
 
8.3 The City and Agency attest that, to the best of their knowledge, no member of the City of 
College Station City Council and no other officer, employee or agent of the City, who exercises 
any function or responsibility in connection with the carrying out of the terms of this Agreement, 
has any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 

 
8.4 Agency covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement, it will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin or disability.  Agency will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants 
who are employed are treated, during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, 
sex, national origin or disability.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection.  Agency agrees to post in 
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth 
the provisions of this nondiscrimination requirement. 

 
8.5 Agency expressly agrees that, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 
by or on behalf of Agency, there will be a statement that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin or 
disability. 

 
8.6 Agency certifies that it will not limit services or give preference to any person assisted 
through this Agreement on the basis of religion and that it will provide no religious instruction or 
counseling, conduct no religious worship or services, and engage in no religious proselytizing in 
the provision of services or the use of facilities or furnishings assisted in any way under this 
Agreement.  

 
8.7 The parties to this Agreement agree and understand that Agency is an independent 
contractor and not an agent or representative of the City and that the obligation to compensate its 
employees and personnel furnished or used by Agency to provide the services specified in 
Article II shall be the responsibility of Agency and shall not be deemed employees of the City 
for any purpose. 

7165



Contract No.  08-032   
O:\AFY 2008\Outside Agency Funding\FY08 Contracts\FY08 KBB\10-08-07 KBB Funding Agreement.doc 

 
8.8 No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless and until it is 
reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties. 
 
8.9 This Agreement has been made under and shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Texas. 
 
8.10 Performance and all matters related thereto shall be in Brazos County, Texas, United 
States of America. 
 
8.11 Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, and 
the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each party has been properly authorized and 
empowered to enter into this Agreement.  The persons executing this Agreement hereby 
represent that they have authorization to sign on behalf of their respective organizations. 

 
8.12 Failure of any party, at any time, to enforce a provision of this Agreement, shall in no 
way constitute a waiver of that provision, nor in any way affect the validity of this Agreement, 
any part hereof, or the right of either party thereafter to enforce each and every provision hereof.  
No term of this Agreement shall be deemed waived or breach excused unless the waiver shall be 
in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived.  Furthermore, any consent to or 
waiver of a breach will not constitute consent to or waiver of or excuse of any other different or 
subsequent breach. 
 
8.13 The parties acknowledge that they have read, understand and intend to be bound by the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
8.14 This Agreement and the rights and obligations contained herein may not be assigned by 
any party without the prior written approval of the other party to this Agreement. 
 
8.15 It is understood and agreed that this Agreement may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original for all purposes. 

 
8.16 If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by 
a court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the 
remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.  The parties shall use 
their best efforts to replace the respective provision or provisions of this Agreement with legal 
terms and conditions approximating the original intent of the parties. 

 
8.17  It is understood that this Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties 
and supersedes any and all prior agreements, arrangements, or understandings between the 
parties relating to the subject matter.  No oral understandings, statements, promises, or 
inducements contrary to the terms of this Agreement exist.  This Agreement cannot be changed 
or terminated orally.  No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee 
of any party before or after the execution of this Agreement shall affect or modify any of the 
terms or obligations hereunder. 
 

8166



167



168



Outside Agency:__________________________

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2008 Period _____________________________

2008 Current 
Period

2008 Year to 
Date

 ASSETS
    Cash and cash equivalents

    Short-term investments

    Prepaid expenses

    Unconditional promises to give

    Cash restricted to purchase of equipment

    Long-term investments

    Contribution receivable—charitable lead trust

    Deposits on leased and other property

    Property and equipment

 TOTAL ASSETS

 LIABILITIES

    Accounts payable

    Compensation
    Refundable advances

    Long-term debt
 TOTAL LIABILITIES

 NET ASSETS
    Unrestricted
    Temporarily restricted

    Permanently restricted

 TOTAL NET ASSETS

 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Exhibit A

Statements of Financial Position

11169



Outside Agency:_______________________

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

2008 Period:__________________________

Permanently
Restricted

REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

    Contributions

  —   —   —   — 

  —   —   —   — 

        Capital campaign   —   —   —   — 

        Equipment acquisition   —   —   —   — 

        Endowment   —   — -   — 

        Other   —   —   —   — 

    Federal financial assistance   —   —   —   — 

    Program service fees   —   —   —   — 

    Investment return   —   —   —   — 

    Change in value of split-interest agreement   —   —   —   — 

    Other   —   —   —   — 
    Net assets released from restrictions   —   —   —   — 

            Expiration of time restrictions   —   —   —   — 

            Restrictions satisfied by charitable lead trust 
receipts

  —   —   —   — 

        Restrictions satisfied by payments     —   —   — 

TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT

EXPENSES
    Program services

  —   —   —   — 

  —   —   —   — 
    Supporting services

        Management and general   —   —   —   — 

        Fund-raising   —   —   —   — 

TOTAL EXPENSES   —   —   —   — 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS   —   —   —   — 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR   —   —   —   — 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR   —   —   —   — 

TotalUnrestricted

  — 

Temporarily 
Restricted

Exhibit A

Statement of Financial Activities - Non Hotel Tax

  —   —   — 

12170



Exhibit B 
Narrative Summary of Activity Report 

 
 
 
 
Please provide a narrative summary of the activities funded with the money from the City 
of College Station. Use additional sheets if more space is needed. 

13171



Exhibit C
Performance Measure Report

Keep Brazos Beautiful, Incorporated

Description & Budget Explanation:
Keep Brazos Beautiful, Incorporated will increase interest in conservation of resources, reduce litter, improve
cleanliness, safety, and sanitation in College Station, Texas as well as preserve vegetation and trees.

Yearly Budget Summary FY 05 FY 06 FY 07 FY08
Actual Actual Actual Estimate

$45,000 $45,000 $55,000 $60,240
Quarterly Budget Summary Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed
$8,310 $8,310 $8,310 $8,310

** $27,000 will be distributed per the contract as beautification projects are identified and completed

Program Name: Keep Brazos Beautiful, Incorporated

Service Level:
Keep Brazos Beautiful, Incorporated will increase interest in conservation of resources, reduce litter, improve
cleanliness, safety, and sanitation in College Station, Texas as well as preserve vegetation and trees.

Performance Measures: Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Actual Proposed Proposed Proposed

Number of litter abatement programs

Number of conservation programs

Litter Index

Number of Memorial Trees planted in City

Number of beautification programs

Number of table and banquet events

14172



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item 2t 

Installation of an Ultra-Violet Disinfection System 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Coleman, Director of Water Services                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding adoption of a 
resolution authorizing the award of contract 07-278 to Bryan Construction Company in the 
amount of $483,000 for the installation of a new Ultra Violet Disinfection System at the 
Carters Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends Council adopt this resolution.   
 
 
Summary:  When wastewater is fully treated, the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality and the EPA require that it be disinfected before being released into a State 
waterway.  There are several options for disinfection, and the City of College Station uses 
an Ultra-Violet (UV) light system.  The UV System at the Carters Creek Wastewater 
Treatment Plant has reached the end of its service life and no longer meets some of the 
requirements.  The City has received a directive from TCEQ to return it to compliance.  On 
May 24, 2007, City Council approved the purchase of the UV disinfection equipment.  That 
equipment has been received, and is ready for installation. 
 
This contract with Bryan Construction will install the UV system equipment and provide 
associated improvements for proper UV System operation, such as new control gates and 
discharge flume. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Invitation to Bid 07-122 resulted in a single bid from 
Bryan Construction Company in the amount of $483,000.  Our consulting engineers, Camp 
Dresser McKee, recommend accepting this bid as it is less than their construction estimate 
and Bryan Construction has completed numerous projects for the City satisfactorily.  
Wastewater Capital Improvement Project funds are budgeted and available. 
 
 
Attachment: 

Resolution 
Bid Tabulation 
Recommendation letter 

173



RESOLUTION NO._______________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE INSTALLATION 
OF A NEW ULTRAVIOLET DISINFECTION SYSTEM AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited bids for the construction phase of the 
installation of a new ultraviolet disinfection system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Bryan Construction Company is being recommended as the lowest 
responsible bidder for the construction services related to installation of a new ultraviolet 
disinfection system; now, therefore,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Bryan Construction Company is 

the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Bryan 

Construction Company for $483,000.00 for the labor, materials, and 
equipment required for the improvements related the installation of a new 
ultraviolet disinfection system. 

  
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the 

Wastewater Capital Improvements Fund, in the amount of   $483,000.00 
 

PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

174



 

E-Signed by Mary Ann Powell
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

     
City Attorney 

175



 

Bryan Construction

Item Est. Unit Unit Item
No. Quan. Meas. Description Price Total

1 1 Lot CCWWTP UV Disinfection System Improvements $483,000.00 $483,000.00

Bid Certification Yes
Addendum Acknowledged 1
Bid Bond Yes
Conflict of Interest Yes
Number of calendar days to substantial completion 240

CCWWTP UV DISINFECTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
DEPARTMENT: Water Services

BID:  #07-122 - 9/27/07

 Page 1 of 1 
176



177



October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 1 

Rezoning for 3501 Longmire Drive 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Bob Cowell, AICP, Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance rezoning 12.55 acres located at 3501 Longmire Drive from C-2 Commercial-
Industrial to C-1 General Commercial. 
  
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the rezoning at the October 4th meeting. Staff also recommends 
approval. 
 
Summary: The subject request was analyzed for compliance with the review criteria for a 
rezoning as stated in the Unified Development Ordinance as follows: 
 
REVIEW CRITERIA 

1. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: The Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
identifies this area as Retail Regional.  The property has frontage on State Highway 
6, a Highway/Freeway and Rock Prairie, a Major Arterial, Longmire Drive, a Major 
Collector, and Birmingham Drive, a Minor Collector, as designated by the City’s 
Thoroughfare Plan.  Access is currently provided from all streets listed above.  
 

2. Compatibility with the present zoning and conforming uses of nearby 
property and with the character of the neighborhood: The development pattern 
of the area surrounding the subject property is largely commercial, including retail, 
banks, offices and health facilities.  These uses are allowed in C-1 and are consistent 
and compatible with the shopping center.  The current zoning of C-2 allows for more 
industrial retail development, which would be inconsistent with the majority of the 
conforming uses in the area. 

3. Suitability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted by 
the district that would be made applicable by the proposed amendment: The 
area is largely planned for retail sales and services, and shopping centers.  The 
property is suitable for general commercial uses. 

4. Suitability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted by 
the district applicable to the property at the time of the proposed 
amendment: The subject property was rezoned from A-O Agricultural-Open to C-2 
General Commercial in 1982.  The zoning ordinance at that time permitted all C-1 
uses, which included shopping centers, to also locate in the C-2 zoning district.  In 
2001, the Rock Prairie Crossing center was developed as a permitted use.  When the 
Unified Development Ordinance was adopted in 2003, retail centers over 50,000 
square feet were not permitted in C-2 meaning the existing shopping center a legal 
non-conforming use on the property.  The applicant is now interested in rectifying 
the non-conforming use by rezoning the property to C-1. 

5. Marketability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted 
by the district applicable to the property at the time of the proposed 

178



amendment:  Because the use on the subject property is a legal non-conforming 
use, the development would not be able to rebuild to its current use should it be 
demolished or damaged by a natural disaster.  Rezoning the property to C-1 will give 
the property owners the ability to rebuild as a shopping center.  

6. Availability of water, wastewater, stormwater, and transportation facilities 
generally suitable and adequate for the proposed use: The existing 
infrastructure and utilities are adequate to support the shopping center use and any 
future uses of this scale.  No additional infrastructure is required for this 
development.  

 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map & Aerial Map 
2. Zoning District Fact Sheets for C-2 and C-1 
3. Draft P&Z minutes 
4. Ordinance 

 
 

179



180



 181



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FACT SHEET  

C-1 General Commercial 
 
This district is designed to provide locations for general commercial purposes, that is, 
retail sales and service uses that function to serve the entire community and its visitors.  

Permitted:  
• Extended Care Facility / Convalescent / Nursing Home  
• Educational Facility, Indoor Instruction  
• Educational Facility, Outdoor Instruction  
• Educational Facility, Primary & Secondary  
• Educational Facility, Tutoring  
• Educational Facility, Vocational / Trade  
• Government Facilities  
• Health Care, Hospital  
• Health Care, Medical Clinic  
• Parks  
• Places of Worship  
• Animal Care Facility -Indoor  
• Art Studio / Gallery  
• Conference / Convention Center  
• Country Club  
• Day Care, Commercial  
• Drive-in / thru Window  
• Dry Cleaners and Laundry  
• Fraternal Lodge  
• Funeral Homes  
• Health Club / Sports Facility, Indoor  
• Health Club / Sports Facility, Outdoor  
• Hotels  
• Offices  
• Parking as a Primary Use  
• Personal Service Shop  
• Printing / Copy Shop  
• Radio / TV station / studios  
• Restaurants  
• Retail Sales -Single Tenant over 50,000 SF  
• Shooting Range, Indoor  
• Theater  
• Storage, Self Service  
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities -Unregulated  
 
Permitted with Specific Use Standards:  
• Fuel Sales 
• Golf Course or Driving Range  
• Car Wash 
• Commercial Garden/Greenhouse/Landscape Maintenance  
• Commercial Amusements 
• Retail Sales and Service 
• Sexually Oriented Business 
• Vehicular Sales, Rental, Repair and Service  

182



• Wholesales / Services 
• Utilities 
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities -Intermediate 

 
Permitted with a Conditional Use Permit:  
• Night Club, Bar or Tavern  
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities - Major  
 
 

183



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FACT SHEET  

C-2 Commercial-Industrial 
 
This district is designed to provide a location for outlets offering good and services to a 
limited segment of the general public. The uses included primarily serve other 
commercial and industrial enterprises.  

Permitted Uses:  
• Extended Care Facility / Convalescent / Nursing Home  
• Educational Facility, Indoor Instruction  
• Educational Facility, Outdoor Instruction  
• Educational Facility, Primary & Secondary  
• Educational Facility, Tutoring  
• Educational Facility, Vocational / Trade  
• Government Facilities  
• Health Care, Hospital  
• Health Care, Medical Clinic  
• Parks  
• Places of Worship  
• Animal Care Facility -Indoor  
• Animal Care Facility -Outdoor  
• Conference / Convention Center  
• Country Club  
• Dry Cleaners and Laundry  
• Fraternal Lodge  
• Funeral Homes  
• Offices  
• Parking as a Primary Use  
• Printing / Copy Shop  
• Radio / TV station / studios  
• Shooting Range, Indoor  
• Storage, Self Service  
• Bulk Storage Tanks / Cold Storage Plant  
• Industrial, Light  
• Scientific Testing / Research Laboratory  
• Storage, Outdoor -Equipment or Materials  
• Warehousing / Distribution  
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities -Unregulated  
 
Permitted with Specific Use Standards:  
• Commercial Garden/Greenhouse/Landscape Maintenance  
• Commercial Amusements 
• Golf Course or Driving Range 
• Retail Sales and Service 
• Sexually Oriented Business 
• Wholesales / Services 
• Vehicle Sales, Rental, Repair and Service 
• Recycling Facility -Large  
• Utility 
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities -Intermediate  
 

184



Permitted with a Conditional Use Permit:  
• Wireless Telecommunication Facility -Major 
 
 

185



 

October 4, 2007 P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 

 

MINUTES  
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 Regular Meeting 
Thursday, October 4, 2007,  

at 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers 

1101 Texas Avenue  
College Station, Texas  

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairman John Nichols, Derek Dictson, Glenn Schroeder, 
Marsha Sanford and Noel Bauman 
  
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Harold Strong and Bill Davis 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: David Ruesink 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Senior Planners Jennifer Prochazka and Lindsay Boyer, Staff 
Planners Crissy Hartl and Jason Schubert, Transportation Planner Ken Fogle, Graduate Civil 
Engineers Carol Cotter and Josh Norton, Acting City Engineer Alan Gibbs, Director Bob 
Cowell, Assistant Director Lance Simms, Planning Administrator Molly Hitchcock, First 
Assistant City Attorney Carla Robinson, Information Services Representative Dan Merkel, Staff 
Assistant Brittany Korthauer  

Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a rezoning for the Rock Prairie 
Crossing Shopping Center consisting of 1 lot on 12.55 acres from C-2 Commercial-Industrial to 
C-1 General Commercial located at 3501 Longmire Drive, generally located at the southwest 
corner of Rock Prairie Road and State Highway 6. Case #07-00500204 (CH) 

Crissy Hartl, Staff Planner, presented the rezoning and recommended approval.   

Ken Fogle, Tranportation Planner, stated that Birmingham was a minor collector and Longmire 
Drive was a major collector. 

Commissioner Bauman motioned to approve the rezoning.  Commissioner Dictson 
seconded the motion, motion passed (5-0). 
 

186



187



188



189



October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item No. 2 

Rezoning for 701 Luther Street West 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Bob Cowell, AICP, Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on the 
ordinance rezoning 1.583 acres located at 701 Luther Street West from R-1, Single-Family 
Residential to R-4, Multi-Family. 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of the rezoning at the October 4th meeting. Staff recommends 
approval. 
 
Summary: The subject request was analyzed for compliance with the review criteria for a 
rezoning as stated in the Unified Development Ordinance as follows: 
 
REVIEW CRITERIA 

1. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan: The Land Use Plan identifies this area 
as Residential Attached. The property has 221 feet of frontage on Luther Street 
West, a major collector on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan. 

 
2. Compatibility with the present zoning and conforming uses of nearby 

property and with the character of the neighborhood: The proposed rezoning 
will allow the lots to be developed at a density of up to twenty dwelling units per 
acre. The property is almost entirely surrounded by apartment development 
including Melrose Apartments and Fox Run Condominiums. The property is adjacent 
to the Novosad tracts which were the subject of a recent Comprehensive Plan 
amendment and rezoning for Residential Attached. The area is largely developed 
with only 4.9 acres of vacant property. All of the property except the convenience 
store at the corner of Holleman and 2818 are developed as apartments, condos, or 
duplexes. The area is primarily student housing. 

 
3. Suitability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted by 

the district that would be made applicable by the proposed amendment: The 
area is largely planned for multi-family residential and is largely built-out as such.  
Infrastructure in the vicinity supports the increased intensity of use.  The property is 
suitable for mult-family residential development. 

 
4. Suitability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted by 

the district applicable to the property at the time of the proposed 
amendment: The size of the property limits the ability to develop a large scale 
apartment complex given the parking and landscaping requirements of the Unified 
Development Ordinance. However, it is less suitable for single-family residential 
since the Unified Development Ordinance prohibits single-family driveway access off 
of collectors. Staff had hoped that the three vacant properties would have 
consolidated, however, the applicant is working with Ms. Novosad to deal with the 
issue of consolidated access which was brought up by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at the rezoning for her property. An access easement has been 
proposed, however has not been dedicated.  

190



5. Marketability of the property affected by the amendment for uses permitted 
by the district applicable to the property at the time of the proposed 
amendment: A rezoning to R-4 would enhance the marketability of this property 
since single-family driveway access would be prohibited on Luther West. Although 
the property is wide enough to accommodate a single row of standard single-family 
lots off a local street, the neighboring character supports a more intense use of the 
property. 

6. Availability of water, wastewater, stormwater, and transportation facilities 
generally suitable and adequate for the proposed use: The property is served 
by a 16-inch water main along Luther Street. Sewer is available approximately 200 
feet off-site on the Melrose Property. Development of the property would require the 
extension of sewer to the property and off-site easements may be required to 
accommodate this extension. There are no known requests for over-sized 
participation at this time. There are also no known drainage issues on the property. 
Infrastructure is suitable and adequate to serve multi-family on the tract. 

 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map (SAM) & Aerial 
2. Rezoning Map 
3. Ordinance 

 

191



192



 193



 194



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FACT SHEET  

R-1 Single-Family Residential 
 
This district includes lands planned for single-family residential purposes and 
accessory uses. This district is designed to accommodate sufficient, suitable 
residential neighborhoods, protected and/or buffered from incompatible uses, and 
provided with necessary and adequate facilities and services.  

Permitted Uses: 
• Single-family Detached  
• Educational Facility, Primary & Secondary  
• Parks  
• Country Club  
• Wireless Telecommunication Facility -Unregulated  
 
Permitted with Specific Use Standards: 
• Government Facilities  
• Places of Worship 
• Sexually Oriented Business 
• Utility  
 
 

195



UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE FACT SHEET  

R-4 Multi-family 
 

This district provides land for development of apartment and condominium units at low to 
medium densities. This district may serve as a transitional zone between lower density 
residential areas and other residential or non-residential areas.  

The following supplemental standards shall apply to this district:  

1. Duplex dwelling units shall conform to R-2, Duplex Residential standards.  
2. Townhouse dwelling units shall conform to R-3, Townhouse standards.  
 
The maximum allowable density is 20.0 dwelling units per acre  

The UDO subjects this district to supplemental standards requiring duplex dwelling 
units shall conform to R-2 Duplex Residential standards and townhouse dwelling 
units shall conform to R-3 Townhouse standards.  

Permitted Uses: 
• Boarding & Rooming House  
• Extended Care Facility / Convalescent / Nursing Home 
• Dormitory 
• Duplex  
• Fraternity / Sorority  
• Multi-Family  
• Multi-Family built prior to January 2002 
• Townhouse  
• Educational Facility, Primary & Secondary  
• Parks 
• Wireless Telecommunication Facilities -Unregulated  
 
Permitted with Specific Use Standards: 
• Governmental Facilities 
• Place of Worship 
• Sexually Oriented Business 
• Utilities 
 
Permitted with a Conditional Use Permit: 
• Day Care, Commercial 
 
 

196



 
 
 
 
 

 

MINUTES  
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

 Regular Meeting 
Thursday, October 4, 2007,  

at 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers 

1101 Texas Avenue  
College Station, Texas  

 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairman John Nichols, Derek Dictson, Glenn 
Schroeder, Marsha Sanford and Noel Bauman 
  
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Harold Strong and Bill Davis 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: David Ruesink 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Senior Planners Jennifer Prochazka and Lindsay Boyer, 
Staff Planners Crissy Hartl and Jason Schubert, Transportation Planner Ken Fogle, 
Graduate Civil Engineers Carol Cotter and Josh Norton, Acting City Engineer Alan 
Gibbs, Director Bob Cowell, Assistant Director Lance Simms, Planning Administrator 
Molly Hitchcock, First Assistant City Attorney Carla Robinson, Information Services 
Representative Dan Merkel, Staff Assistant Brittany Korthauer  

7. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on a rezoning for 
1.583 acres at 701 Luther Street West from R-1, Single Family Residential to R-4, 
Multi-family. Case #07-00500213 (LB) 

Lindsay Boyer, Senior Planner, presented the rezoning and recommended 
approval.   

Commissioner Dictson expressed concern regarding the safety of the driveway 
spacing between the three undeveloped properties. 

Rabon Metcalf, 1391 Sea Mist, College Station, Texas, stated that the applicant 
intends to propose a joint private access easement. 

Commissioner Sanford motioned to approve the rezoning.  Commissioner 
Schroeder seconded the motion, motion was approved (5-0). 

Commissioner Dictson proposed an amendment to the motion stating that 
the rezoning be approved with the condition that the proposed access 
easement be located where indicated on the rezoning map.  There was not a 
second and the motion failed. 

 

197



198



199



200



201



October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 3 

Construction Testing Costs 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Pubic Works 
 
Agenda Caption:  Public hearing, presentation, possible action and discussion of an 
ordinance amending the Subdivision Regulations making developers responsible for the cost 
of construction testing in new developments.   
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of this ordinance amendment. 
 
Summary:  This ordinance proposes to amend City of College Station Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 9:  Subdivisions to read as follows;  
“The City requires testing by an independent laboratory acceptable to the City of College 
Station to ensure compliance with the Bryan/College Station Unified Design Guidelines and 
the Bryan/College Station Unified Technical Specifications and approved plans and 
specifications of the construction of the infrastructure before final inspection and approval of 
that infrastructure.  Charges for such testing shall be paid by the project owner/developer.” 
 
During the budget scrubbing process, staff was directed to seek cost savings within the 
department.  After extensive search a savings of $70,000 was identified, by transferring the 
construction testing costs to the developer.  Previously this testing cost was paid from the 
Public Works Engineering budget in the City’s general fund and is not charged to the 
developer.   
 
It is common for developers to pay this cost in other cities. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  A service level adjustment reducing costs by $70,000 was 
discussed and approved during the FY 08 budget process. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Ordinance 
 

202



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9, “SUBDIVISIONS,” SECTION 9, 
“RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT OF INSTALLATION COSTS”, SUBSECTION 9-I.2, 
“ENGINEERING”, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 9, “Subdivisions,” Section 9, “Responsibility for Payment of 

Installation Costs”, Subsection 9-I.2, “Engineering”, of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached 
hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than 
Two Thousand Dollars ($500.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be 
permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a 
penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the 
City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College 
Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _____ day of ___________, 2007. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 

203



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 2 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

204



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 3 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
  
 

That Chapter 9, “Subdivisions,” Section 9, “Responsibility for Payment for Installation Costs”, 
Subsection 9-I.2, “Engineering”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, 
is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
“9-I.2 The City requires testing by an independent laboratory acceptable to the City of 

College Station to ensure compliance with the Bryan/College Station Unified 
Design Guidelines and the Bryan/College Station Unified Technical 
Specifications and approved plans and specifications of the construction of the 
infrastructure before final inspection and approval of that infrastructure.  Charges 
for such testing shall be paid by the project owner/developer.” 

 

205



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 4 

Proposed Change of Subdivision Regulations 
Street Signs 

 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, presentation, discussion, and possible action on 
consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 9, “Subdivision Regulations” Section 9, 
“Responsibility for Payment for Installation Costs”, Subsection 9-H, “Street Signs”, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas.  
 
 
Recommendation(s):     Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amendment. 
 
 
Summary:  Currently the City installs street signs at no cost to the subdivider. This 
amendment will transfer the responsibility of street name signs and associated poles and 
hardware to the subdivider at no cost to the City.   
 
During the budget scrubbing process, staff was directed to seek cost savings within the 
department.  After extensive search a savings of $12,000 was identified, by transferring the 
street sign installation cost to the developer. This cost includes signs, sign poles and 
brackets at an average cost of $75.00 per sign and $75.00 per pole including brackets. The 
Public Works traffic division previously installed nearly one-hundred (100) new traffic signs 
in newly developed subdivisions per year.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  A service level adjustment reducing costs by $12,000 
was discussed and approved during the FY 08 budget process.   
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Ordinance 
 

206



O/group/legal/ordinance/amendmentform.doc 

ORDINANCE NO. _______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9, “SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS”, SECTION 
9, “RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT FOR INSTALLATION COSTS”, SUBSECTION 9-H, 
“STREET SIGNS”, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 9, “Subdivision Regulations”, Section 9, “Responsibility for 

Payment of Installation Costs”, Subsection 9-H, “Street Signs”, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in 
Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 

chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof 
shall be punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor 
more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Each day such violation shall 
continue or be permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said 
Ordinance, being a penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date 
of passage by the City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the 
City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of _______________________, 2007. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

207



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 2 
 
 

cm\o:\agenda items\2007\10 25 07\street signs savings\ordinance.doc 
10/12/07 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

  
 

That Chapter 9, “Subdivision Regulations”, Section 9, “Responsibility for Payment for 
Installation Costs”, Subsection 9-H, “Street Signs”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
College Station, Texas, is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

“H. The subdivider will provide and install, at no cost to the City, all street name 
signs and associated poles, and hardware.” 

 
 

208



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 4 

Proposed Change of Subdivision Regulations 
Street Signs 

 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public Hearing, presentation, discussion, and possible action on 
consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 9, “Subdivision Regulations” Section 9, 
“Responsibility for Payment for Installation Costs”, Subsection 9-H, “Street Signs”, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas.  
 
 
Recommendation(s):     Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amendment. 
 
 
Summary:  Currently the City installs street signs at no cost to the subdivider. This 
amendment will transfer the responsibility of street name signs and associated poles and 
hardware to the subdivider at no cost to the City.   
 
During the budget scrubbing process, staff was directed to seek cost savings within the 
department.  After extensive search a savings of $12,000 was identified, by transferring the 
street sign installation cost to the developer. This cost includes signs, sign poles and 
brackets at an average cost of $75.00 per sign and $75.00 per pole including brackets. The 
Public Works traffic division previously installed nearly one-hundred (100) new traffic signs 
in newly developed subdivisions per year.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  A service level adjustment reducing costs by $12,000 
was discussed and approved during the FY 08 budget process.   
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Ordinance 
 

209



O/group/legal/ordinance/amendmentform.doc 

ORDINANCE NO. _______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9, “SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS”, SECTION 
9, “RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT FOR INSTALLATION COSTS”, SUBSECTION 9-H, 
“STREET SIGNS”, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS, AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 9, “Subdivision Regulations”, Section 9, “Responsibility for 

Payment of Installation Costs”, Subsection 9-H, “Street Signs”, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in 
Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 

chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof 
shall be punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor 
more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Each day such violation shall 
continue or be permitted to continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said 
Ordinance, being a penal ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date 
of passage by the City Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the 
City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of _______________________, 2007. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

210



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 2 
 
 

cm\o:\agenda items\2007\10 25 07\street signs savings\ordinance.doc 
10/12/07 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

  
 

That Chapter 9, “Subdivision Regulations”, Section 9, “Responsibility for Payment for 
Installation Costs”, Subsection 9-H, “Street Signs”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
College Station, Texas, is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 

“H. The subdivider will provide and install, at no cost to the City, all street name 
signs and associated poles, and hardware.” 

 
 

211



October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 5 

Comprehensive Plan Update - Phase II Contract 
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Bob Cowell, AICP, Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the 
approval of a resolution for a contract for consulting services (Contract #08-041) 
with Kendig Keast Collaborative for the preparation of Phase II of a new 
Comprehensive Plan, in the amount of $322,590. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends the approval of the attached contract for 
consulting services by Kendig Keast Collaborative (KKC) for Phase II of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Summary: The development of the Comprehensive Plan is being completed in two 
phases.  The first phase included the creation of a vision by the community, and 
goals and policies to support the vision.  The first phase was completed in September 
2007.  
 
Phase II of the Comprehensive Plan update will result in the creation of a planning 
document that will contain chapters or elements that include Community Character, 
Neighborhood Integrity, Economic Development, Parks, Art & Leisure, 
Transportation, Municipal Services & Community Facilities, Growth Management & 
Capacity, and Implementation and Administration.  Phase II of the Comprehensive 
Plan Update is anticipated to be complete in late 2008. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The total cost of Phase II of the Comprehensive 
Plan update is $322,590.   
 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. Firm Profile 
3. Scope of Work 
 
 
 
 

212



RESOLUTION NO.      
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, SELECTING A PROFESSIONAL CONTRACTOR, APPROVING A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF FUNDS FOR THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE - PHASE II PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited proposals for the consulting services 
for Phase II of the Comprehensive Plan Update and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Kendig Keast Collaborative is being recommended as the most 
highly qualified provider of the consulting services; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Kendig Keast Collaborative is the most highly 

qualified provider of the services for Phase II of the Comprehensive Plan Update 
Project on the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications. 

 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Kendig Keast Collaborative 

for an amount not to exceed $322,590.00 for the consulting services related to the 
Comprehensive Plan Update - Phase II Project. 

 
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the General Fund in the 

amount of $322,590.00. 
 
PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this 25th day of October, A.D. 2007. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
City Secretary      MAYOR 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
      
City Attorney 

213



Firm Profile 

Kendig Keast Collaborative (Lho n <15 icrrn1t.d as  I.JW Kcntlig, irlc. in Ilt~<r~rnht*r 1~182. ,111d 

I-rcr%n tly r r * n a r n ~ d  tr> r e f l t ~ t  tlw ~ c > l l , ~ b ~ l . ~ t ~ o ~ ~  c ) t  I - ~ ~ I I c '  1 I .  Ktlndig and Krct C. Kc,)st, AICI'. A.; I'rt~sidcut. 
I,dnc! dirt,rt\ J h i ~ l i l i  r j ~ ~ , i l ~ f i ~ d  s t a i t  in thc provisicri~ oc yl,lritiing 3crviccs in tht, ,lre;ls ot i ~ ~ r ~ ~ ~ > r ~ ~ i ~ ~ ~ t ~ . ; ~ t c  

plat~ning, grr l \ \mtl~ ijl,jn;lt;~~riit.nl, zoning ant1 l i j l ~ t l  u.;t. rcgi l l~~t  ions, dcvclc~pment i l~ ipa i t  ;II:,I~!..,I?. p.11.L- 

<111~1 ~.et-rt .~ti l~li  r~Ia.;ti~~- pl<~nnin;;, 1 ~ 1 1 ~ 1  pl~t in ing,  plt~nning suit\\ ,jrc ~ p p l i r ~ t i o n s ,  ~ 1 1 d  ,~drnit~~stt . , \ t io~l.  [ ' l l t y  

firm is prok~tl t b f  i l ~  tcputci tion fur providing ~-lir!lnts with higlily r. t~htorni/t>d ~ n d  rl..;pc~nsivc apprt>ac.l~cs t o  

innovativr !.tbt \,idblc planning so l~~ t ions .  ' I ' l i r ~  ~ ~ n i q t ~ c  a p p r o ~ c l i  i i 1 1 ~ l  l-l,~~nning prtlr7t1ss used by KKC is 
~ ~ ) L I I I L ~ L Y ~  in tlw cwr~o~lrngcrt~clnt o f  mt~aningtiil public participniion, ;l (lvilr undt:r.5;tarlrling oi p lanni t~g 

issucs and i r n ~ ~ l ~ ~ r i i e l l t ~ l t l ~ ~ t ~  optinns, and a direct lin kdge b c ~ i \ , ~ , ~ . n  yk111.. ~ n r l  t,rdin,lnces to t3ilsurc t h ~ t  

work prtlducts kjrt! poli tic;ill!. tcasiblc and thc)rtlughly irnplcnii~ntnblc. 

Depth of Experience 
L,anc I I .  Kcndig, IJrcsidc~-tt, hL1s rnorLa than 3.5 i-c3;rr.; cxpcricncc in p l ~ n n i n g  ,jricl gror\rtli rnarlngcmcnt. 

I-le has successfully worked for rcpon;rl ,ige11iiu5, icruntirs, citics, and tu\t7ns uf all sizes ,lnd planning 

envirunments. As a rt'si~lt of 111s yiLt3rs g c ~ v c r ~ ~ m c n t  scr\,icc, Mr. Kcndig is in t i i i i ,~ t~~Iy ,n\,art> nf thc 

issucs that cotlfront local c,ffic~als whcbn ttlcy tasu cnmplcx and difficult planning I S ~ I I L . ~  I ' ~ r t ~ ~ r i i ~ d ~ i t - v  

zoning, fur  inst,)ncc, was c o n c ~ ~ i v ~ ~ i  ,itld 11c1.c toprd by l,anc for Bucks County  in rCsponsLb f ~ )  wll~rrban 
g n ~ v t l i  problems that wcrt. n ~ l t  L i i l ~ q ~ ~ L ~ t c ' l !  m a n ~ g c d  by c o n ~ e n t i o n ~ i l  ~ o n i n g .  ~ f ) i ,~ - f i~ r t r~~ t~ t~ - t*  Z O ~ I I I I , < .  
A rn~hril-;ln 1'l;rnning .;4s,sc)ciati~~n, 1980.) 

l<rt:t C'. ktukt. :ZlC'I', Vice I'resitlent, juiticd Ihtl lirm 111 2003 as a principal and p;rrtnc.r lvitt~ hlr. hcl~d~;; .  

tlrpt 11.1s 17 yrar> r ~ i  cxpcricncc i l l  thc public dnd private .;c.ctor..; l iavin~;  ~rrjrkuri for a rc>giondl ~ : o ~ ~ n i i l  o f  

p,r ,\ ,1.17lnl~~n th i l l  Ccntral I(>wn (1 989-YO), tlw City ot C>lnIhc, K;ln,~;l:, ( 1 Y9P-05). J I + I ~  Wilbur Smith Associatt!~ 

( I  Y!J.T-U-;). Rret'? pr,It.ticr has tr,cuscd o n  c.ornpreht~i>~l\ c ~>l;lnning, land d c v c l o p n i c ~ ~ t  ordinanc.cs, Ik1nzl 

i13c <it~d tr,in>ptlrtd tion S ~ L I ~ ~ C S ,  parks ' ~ n ~ l  recrt~atirm ni,>stt.r plans, spccinl nrca plans, plan 
in i~ ) l c r~~c t i tn l lo~~ .  and public fi~cilitation. I3rt-t i s  co-author of hlccting I'roccdurus a n ~ l  1-idbility Issues for 

I'ublic OCficiials, published in t l ~ c  Luidc to Urban I'lanti~r~r in Texas Communities. He hc3s also madc 
p r~scn t~ i t ions  a t  foiir Niltiondj AI'A conf~rcnces  ,ir tt.t.11 &I.< rlilrllcrtlils statc and regional pI,jnniilg 
~-r,nfercnccs and ~ v o r k s h o p ~ .  l3rt.t hc35 17pcn rt.cognizt!d cacti y c ~  r qincc 1997 with slattlwidc ,jnd lvcdl 
awards For outstanding p l , m  and ~ K > I C " ~ + .  

Mac Birch, I'rincipal, has worked on o v e r  40 projccts over the pas1 1 2  yl.ar5 wit11 hKC. Ilc is an 

accomplished planner ~ 1 1 d  rc.c~>~nistld lucldcbr and innovator in the creatiun a n ~ l  IISL. of c u m p  t1.r r;uttrzrare 

applications, Sinrc 1992, I IC  I la? bee11 responsible fror the dcvolopmcnt and support ot thrcc >pccific, 
inttm-lct-based planning ~ o t t ~ v , ~ r c  product>: R a ~ i d R ~ g s l "  "Computcrizt.d Zoning Urdinancc" which has 

214



bccln i i i~ t~~l lc t l  in 27 rnmrnLlnitil..;>~ii~~~ii~~iti~~s across t11v 11~1tio11 ~ i i ~ c  I I , I L I ~ I ? ~  ('liirag(> \III\I,,~LILL>L, 5 ~ 1 7  1 ' 1 - ~ 1 1 i ~ i > ~ : t j ,  

fJrqr<tnn, atid I lilton l i cad Island); SAVi'S1\l, i111 i~ l~r* t ; r ;~~~%ri  r n . ~ p p i n ~  ; l i d  nir~~lr~lin:; kiitt~v~lrc llaii-kclgr,, 

, ~ n ~ l  hpp-l-l<AK1\l, a n  intc:mct basctl s!,stcn~ to1 mo~~il~,t . inq r 111% I.;\llanic, iii5ycitilrn ,~ncl I r : p ~ r t i r > y ,  I ~t 1,lnrf 

clsc ~ 1 1 ~ 1  buililing pclrmits. 

S d r ~ h  IJt~arsiln, Associntc I'ldnncr, joined Kent1 i;: Kt.n.L tl~,llabr>r,~ti\.c a:, ~ t 1  .\hso~i,ttt, 1'1,1111 Itnr tter . Sarah 

cnntribu te5 to K K C  hur cxpcricnctl worki~lg  in p~lblir: .lnd p s ~ i . ~ t c ~  ~ L ' L - ~ O Y  i lr~~~l~i;l , i t iorls.  I l t ' r  s~rcngth lics 

in thv rangc of project5 that shu has ~vorkt=d on  whiih II,IL t. I t ' q ~ l i r ~ ~ 1  s t ~ ~ l r l s  prohlt~lii!i-s~~(~ iclv~~tificilti(>i~ 

~ i i J  an;rl\,tii,il +kills, expcrtisc in .<tratt3gy d ~ ~ v t ~ l ~ ~ p r n c i ~ t .  ~ t ~ c l  c~\ccllctit i t>n~nli~l\i i , l t ior~ skrlls 

)oiiatI~on i;ro~.sh,~~is. A ~ s o i i d t ~  IJlannt!r, joincd Kcndig Kcdst Cc~tl,tbar,)ti~e. ,IS ,In Assoc.idte I'lannur 

i , l l l ~ > ~ ~ - l l ~ g  xt>\~ar,jl vc,~r ,  1 7 i  ~ ( ~ r n ~ ~ l u n i  ty ['lanning cxycsicnct. in tht, munic.ip,~l , in~l 11ur1-profit scctors. Jon 

,iLlrl> c ~ p t ' r i ~ n ~ c b  reid t t d  tv u~iivcrsity mastcr plans and watcrLront p i d l ~ n i ~ i ~ ,  i~ 1117 ,In ciiipl~dsis oti 

t ransptirt~litln and dcsign. I-It, also brirlgs his technical taxpi*ricncc rvith Ccographic [lllrlrmation Systcms, 

comrrltcr modcling, ant1 gr,~pllic ~ v c b  production cltasign. I lis arcas o f  tocus incluLic. ct~mprchcnsive 

pl.innlng, dcrclllprnei~t r : o ~ l e ~  and st,lndords, and grdphii. dtl5ign. 

Services 
K c l l ~ l i ~  Kci~st Coll,tborative provides planning stati for thc Illinois suburbs r,F Barrington Hills, Indi,ln 

CrccL, [Lakc Villa, ,ind Long Grove. -[-hest. conimr~ni ticls rang(: irorn low-dcnsity, rcsidcntinl conimlmi tic.5 

prntcc'tivc of bhcir cnvironmcnts to r,lpidly develupir~g dnd nlat~lre suburbs having a t ~ l l l  r ~ n g c  tit 

~ ~ n l p I ~ ) y ~ i i ~ n t  ,~nrl cnnlmc~rcial/rcsidcnLial nrtlns. KKC ~ v a s  rctaintd by tht~sc commui~i t~cs  bt'~rjl1~~' i t  

provi~lcs cte,lr, cuncisr, timely, and thorouglily profcssiunal dcvvlopmcnt rt.\,icw. I11 adrliti~)ii, thc firm 

c o n d ~ ~ c t s  rn,lic\r planiiir>g, n ~ n i n g ,  anrl other sprc i~ l  sti~dics tor llicsc clivnts. 

'rhV firm alsu prcjvidcs its clients tvitli innovative solutions to unlqilc (and not st, Lllnquc) pri,blcms. 

Or~linilncc revisior~s, special stud ics, ,lnd upda tcs to planning dr,cumt!nt.; ;lrLa othr!r scrvlccs pr~nridcd by 
thu firm. I:os cxamplc., working with private dcvclopers in Illinois, I,di~c is ; ~ t  tlrc tc-)refrunt r)t 

"collscr\,a!ion di!vclr,pmcnts," n strategy that can bind dt.\.t.lopt.rs tu site sp~citic' ptLjn5 ivitl,rlut tlits 

bi~rdcn of condi t i~n~i l  al~yrtwnls. Such work has kcpt hiin as  A Icadcr r)f contc5mpor,jry plL~nning, /otlillg. 

grtlwth managt.mcnt, ,intl cornputcr applicc>tianq in planning. 

Ide~~titicdtion ut n t -n~l lnluni  ty's I-harait17r ,2n J the, institution o f  dcsign ~otltr~ll . :  t i )  , ~ ~ I I I C I , ~  ,i dc.;ircd \ i<i1,11 

integrity art. otl1t:r drLeaq in whirl> h K c -  15 a lu;ldcr, l'hr, firln h,>.; dcvc!lopcd 311 a J v a n c ~ d  ~ C ~ I H I L T L I C  tor 
ct>mm~inity charaitcr ;~nalysis t h ~ t  h,i< now bt,cii r1st.d i l l  ,I \vide variety of jurisdictions dcro.;.; the n,iticln. 

The firm has nlimhcr r ) f  c u m p  tcr prt>Kl , ~ n i ~  tli,it ,iLltlrcns> cc lmplcx zoning and landscape i s s ~ ~ e s ,  impact 

analysis, tran<pi)rtntion, and non-point +<>uric palllition iqsues. 111 pnrticu l'ir, the firm is thc developer ot 
cnniputt.rizcd zoning orilinnnl-t.  tii it^ ~ r t l  % ~ ! l i t i ~  Pllt?; dncl a land use sccnarin modrling program known 

CIS Strafcgic Anillybi,. Vis~on t:\'i~l~:atic~n Svsturn (SAVES) th ,~t  l inks an  easily updated map with impact 

analvsis. 

215



Locations 
1 - h ~ ~  Iocatir>ns of our rdtic~.s i~~c.lu<lt- thi! cnrporalt1 clftlcc in Chicago, Illinois, and offices i l l  Sturgeon Ray, 
Wisconsin, drld Sugar Land, Texas. t)ur cnryointc officc is centrally I r ~ c a t ~ d  to proviiic c o ~ ~ v c n i t ~ n l  art-rbss 

[t> clic*nts across thc nation. 'I'htl firnj's ,~c.cn~~titin;: systt3tii is ct:n trali;rc:ci l o  cnsurc accurate '111d timely 

it~voiring and xc.uunt r-nan,~gcn-tcilt. Lt'hilt. ,111 ot thc ott'iCes m,lintnin a full ar ray  oi It:chnical and 5t,lfF 

~,uwu rccr;, tlic!?? LI ti1 in: iirm-rvicic ~.csou rccs to provide complctc prt1t'e5sion,jl schrv ict.5. 

Technology and Innovation 
I~inovation i s  our forte. I-hc f 1111 pi-ides itself in i t s  "lcuding cdge" npproarll tn crafting innovative yct 

pr,icticcll planning sr)l~~lions.  l , ~ ~ i c  con t in~~us  to bt. onc of the nation's i'espcctccl authurities utl thc 
furcCront ot: thc planning prut'essiun, I Iu is the authnr of 1'crfi)rtlrur;r-r. %ruri)rg (American Plailning 
Asst,ciation. 1980) and hds written nutneruus ,~rticlt.s fur I .and L s c  I.aw ,ind Zoning Iligcst, Planning 
Magaxint., Nd turcscapc hl;lgazi~irl, Urban i - a ~ ~ d ,  and Tht. U~.ban Lawycl-. Brct is ctl-,luthnr t ~ f  Mtacting 
I'rocc~l~~rcs ~ n d  I,iabili ty Issilcs for I'i~blii OCficials, puhli.;hcd in tlic C;uiclc to Urban I'lanninr in Ttlxas 
Communities. Hc is ~ l s u  011 the i ~ ~ t f r c ) i ~ t  of cdijcnti~ig ritij..cns and p ~ ~ h l i ~  otticialq through regional 
war kshops al-id na tiundl confercncta prusut~td ticms. 

The f i  I-in has se\,erdl pruyrictary cornpu tt!r appl iintions, inslud ing tlic Co1npi1 tcrizcd Zoning Ordi11anc.c 

(CZO), Strdtcgis Analysis: Vision I~va lu~t iun  Systcm (SAVl;S), and Appl'rack (applications tracking 

~ o f t w ~ ~ r e ) .  Thest> ~ p p l i c ~ t i o n s  have been installed in a vnricty of govcrnmc!nt sctfings throughout thc 
nation. Each appl icat io~~ is fuIIy c u s t o r n i ~ ~ ~ b l u  to nictxt t11c ~inique, indivirludl nec~ls of our 

Awards and Recognition 
I,,~nc t 1. Kcnriig, I'residcnt, and Brct C. Kcast, Vice I'rrsident, havr buutl rcsognii..ud tor quality results in 

plan m;lkitig, code drafting, and land design. 'l'he firm has rectlivud awards t r o m  the national 

~~rga~i iza t ion  of the American Planning Associdtion (APA),  state chapters of APA, the National 
Asst)ciatic~n of Cnuntics, anrl thtl Best in Amcrican Living Aw.ird from the N,ltiol-r,ll Humcbuilrlers 

Asst~ciatic~n, Bctter Homcs , ~ n d  C;arde~~s, ,md Professiondl I3uildt.r magazines. Thesc A wdrds cxcniplify 

thc firm's commitment t t ~  quality 1-csults that cxcce~i the ~xpcct~ltirlns of their clients and mcrit 

rccog~iition fur thcir innc~vati\,cncss, coin~rchc.nsivcncss, and successful outcomes. "I'hcir awards includc: 

National Awards 
Loudoun County, Virginia General Plan, Comprehensive Planning: SmaIl Jurisdiction, American 
Planning Association National Award, 1994. 

Ncw Castle County, Delaware, Comprchensivc Plan, National Association of Counties, 1988. 
Lake County, Illinois, Natural Resources IJlan and Zoning, NationaI Association of Counties, '1979. 
The Fields uf Long Grove (160-acre residentiaI development), Best in American Living, NationaI 
Homebuilders Association, Bcttcr Homes and Gardens, and lJrofessional Builder magazines. 

State and Local Awards 
Rosenberg Parks and Recreation Master Plan, Houston Section, American Planning Ass'n, 2004 
Nacogdoches Comprehensive Plan Update, Texas Chapter, American Planning Association, 2003 
Kerrville, Texas "LINK to the Futt~re" Comprehensive Plan, Texas Chapter, American Planning 
Association, 2002 

Bastrop, Texas Comprehensive Plan, Texas Chapter, American Planning Association, 2001 
Lockhart, Texas 2020 Comprehensive Plan, Professional Planning Award, Central Texas Section, 
American PIanning Association, 2000. 

216



Starr C o u ~ ~ t y  Con~prehensive Colonia Study and I'lan, I IonorabIe Mention Award, Texas Chapter, 
Amcrican Planning Association, 2000. 

Kryan, Texas Compr~hensive Plan Update a n d  Municipal Annexation I'lan, C o i n ~ n u ~ ~ i t y  r ~ f  thc 
Year, Texds Chapter, American Planning Association, 2000. 

+ New Braunfcls, Tcxas New Millennium Plan, Texas Chapter, American Planning Association, 
1999. 

+ Sugar Land, Texas Co~nyrehensive Zoning Study, Texas Chapter, American I'lanning Assr)ciation, 
1998. 

Harlingen, Texas Vision 2020 Cr)mprchensive Plan, Texas Chapter, American Planning 
Associa tion, 1997. 

Publications 
Too Big, Boring, or UgIy: Planning and Design TooIs to Combat Monotony, the Too-big I.louse, 

and Teardowns, American Planning Association, PAS Report Number 528,1995. 
Perfnrmance Zoning, Lane Kendig, et al. Planners Press, Chicago, Illinois, 1980. 
Performance Zoning, Bucks County I'1211ning Commission, 1973. Revised and repri~~ted,  1976. 

"Traffic Sheds, Rural Highway Capacity, and Growth Management," with Stcyhcn Tr~ckncll, 
Amcrican I'lanning Association, Planning Ad visury Servictl, Iieport N uirlber 485, MA rch 1999. 

"Computerized Zoning: The Future Is Now," ttrith Bi-ian Blrlcsscr, 1,anJ Use I,,lw < ~ n d  Zoning 
iligt", Amcrican I'lanning Asstlciation, April 1996, (Vol. 48, No. 4). 
"Meeting Procedures and Liability Issues for Public OliciaIs," Ciuidc to Urban I'l,inning i l l  Tcx,ls 

Comm~~nit i ts ,  1946. 
4 "Tomorrow's Planning Tools Today," with Marc Mylntt, % Manclgenien t Ideas, %ilckt.r Sys tcms' 

Mandgi~mcn t In fo  Scrviccs, July 1995 (Issue 31). 
"Stop the Insanity!" [,and Cstl I,acv and Zoning Iligust, American I'lanning Assr>ciation, January 
199.4, (Vol. 47, Nu. I) .  
"Pipe Dreams," I'lnnning, ir'ilncrican I'lanning Association, June 19S9. 

"Performance Zoning for Sensitive Land in Queen Anne's County, Maryland," 1;rhan I.anil, AugiisL 

1988. 

New Standards for Nonresidential Uses, A m c r i c n ~ ~  I'lanning Associdtion, I'AS lit~port N u m b c r  405, 

19x7. 

"Why Consider Fishing in Urban-Suburban Planning," Urhan ITisl~rng Symposium I'rt~cet.dings, The  
Amurican 1~'isI~urics Sociuty, 1984. 

"Performance Guaranties," Land Usc 1.aw ,lnd Zoning Uigcst, Fcbruary 19R3, Vol. 35, N u .  2. 

"Designer'sNotebnok,"Nr7[urcS~~ip~,S~p.1981,No~. I981,Jan.1YX2,May 1982. 
"Uevelopers and Performance Zoning" Urban Land, January 1982, (Vol. 4, Nu. 1 ) .  

"Performance Zoning - An Alternative to Euclidian Zoning," Planning 1977. 

"TUIZ - a IJragmatist's View," 'l'hc Urban l,awycr, S ~ ~ r n n i e r  1977, (VoI. C) Nn. 3). 
* "Carrying Capacity as a Planning 'Tool," Lrban Land, I3ccember 1977. 

"Community Planning: A Retrospective Evaluation," Bucks Countv Planning Comn>issic~n, 1974. 

217



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-1 

Exhibit A: 
Work Program - Comprehensive Plan Phase II 

 

Under contract to the City of College Station (COCS), Kendig Keast Collaborative (KKC) will continue, 
in a second phase of work (“Phase II”), to assist the City to update its Comprehensive Plan. KKC will be 
supported  in  this  effort  by  subconsultants  Kimley‐Horn  &  Associates,  Inc.  (Transportation)  and 
Economic Stewardship, Inc. (Economic Development). This consultant involvement and facilitation will 
be carried out according to this Work Program and contingent upon the support services outlined under 
the sections, “City Expectations” and “Joint Expectations.” 
 
Background 

The City of College Station began  the process of  re‐writing  its Comprehensive Plan  in mid  2006. The 
purpose of  the new Comprehensive Plan  is  to  create a more workable policy document  that will help 
guide decisions about the future growth and development of the community. The Comprehensive Plan is 
a statement of the communityʹs vision for the future and a guide to achieving that vision. It will anticipate 
growth and guide that growth in a manner that provides College Station with a balance of land uses that 
promote economic growth, while retaining the quality of life enjoyed by its residents. 

The City is updating the Comprehensive Plan in order to: 
 determine College Station’s vision for the future;  
 decide which types of development opportunities are compatible with the vision;  
 determine where and how College Station should grow;  
 provide guidance in making land use and transportation decisions;  
 preserve and improve the integrity of neighborhoods and overall quality of life;  
 promote economic development;  
 ensure that the City meets the expectation of its residents in the delivery of services; and 
 remain fiscally responsible on behalf of the citizens of College Station.  

The Comprehensive Plan will be  the guiding policy document  for  the decisions  that are made  for  the 
community.  

The development of the Comprehensive Plan is being completed in two phases. The first phase included 
the creation of a vision by the community, and goals and policies to support the vision. The first phase 
was completed in August 2007. Phase II of the Comprehensive Plan is anticipated to be complete in late 
2008.  
   
Delineation of Responsibilities 
for Work Program 

The purpose of this Work Program is to facilitate the preparation and adoption of the second phase of the 
Comprehensive  Plan.  This  scope  of  work  describes  the  chapters  and  elements  associated  with  the 
preparation of the City of College Stationʹs Comprehensive Plan. The chapters outlined in the following 
pages include work by both the consulting team and City staff. In order to create a plan that is unique 
to  the  City  of  College  Station,  City  staff, with  participation  from  the  Comprehensive  Plan Advisory 
Committee (CPAC), will craft several of the plan elements in cooperation with the consulting team. The 

218



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-2 

expectations of the consulting team and City staff are outlined in the table below and then described in 
more detail in the sections that follow. 
 

Responsibility for Comprehensive Plan Chapters/Elements 
 

Plan Chapter  Lead 
Responsibility 

Comments 

Introduction  COCS  ‐ KKC review (of City‐
prepared plan chapter) 

Existing Conditions Report 
(separate from Plan document) 

COCS  ‐ KKC review 

Community Character 
‐  including Unique 
Community Assets element 

KKC   

Neighborhood Integrity  COCS  ‐ KKC review 
Economic Development  ESI 

(KKC Sub) 
 

Parks, Art & Leisure  COCS / KKC 
(Parks Master 
Plan Update) 

‐ KKC summarization of 
Parks Master Plan key 
elements in plan chapter 

Transportation  KHA 
(KKC Sub) 

 

Municipal Services & 
Community Facilities 

COCS  ‐ KKC review 

Growth Management & 
Capacity 
‐  including Utilities element 

KKC 
COCS 

(Utility Master 
Plan Updates) 

‐ KKC summarization of 
Utility Master Plan key 
elements in plan chapter 

Implementation & 
Administration 

KKC   

NOTE:  In the table above and throughout this Work Program, text in black indicates 
items which are the responsibility of the consultant team while items in maroon are 
the responsibility of the City. 

 
Consultant Expectations 

The consulting team will: 
 Identify  a  single  individual  as  the  consultant  team’s Principal  in Charge, who will  have  ultimate 

responsibility  for  the  performance  of  the  contractual  services,  and  another  individual  as  the 
consultant Project Manager, who will  serve  as  the  consultant  team’s primary point of  contact  and 
source of day‐to‐day work program direction for this collaborative planning effort involving City and 
Consultant personnel, resources, and capabilities. 

 Provide monthly written progress reports to the City in a format that clearly indicates completion of –
or significant interim steps in preparation for or toward completion of – all project deliverables and 
meetings specified  in  this work program. The reports will also  indicate activities scheduled  for  the 

219



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-3 

next  progress  report  period  and  document  any  project  delays  or  difficulties  encountered  and 
measures taken in coordination with City staff to overcome them. 

 Provide general direction – and direct assistance as specified in this Work Program – on tasks that are 
identified to be led by City staff. 

 Establish document templates and associated style rules for all plan chapters and map figures to be 
included in the plan document to ensure consistent organization, format, appearance and quality. 

 Prepare brief, bulleted summaries of key points  raised, questions discussed, and  follow‐up actions 
identified  during  project meetings  for which KKC  is  the  lead  facilitator  (not  to  include meetings 
which City staff lead and KKC personnel only attend/observe). 

 Review  and provide  comments  on  all draft  and  revised  plan  chapters/elements  prepared  by City 
staff,  and  have  responsibility  for  identifying  necessary  revisions  to  all  plan  chapters/elements  to 
address  consistency  in writing  styles  and  in planning philosophy  throughout  the plan document. 
(City staff will be responsible for making all revisions to City‐prepared plan chapters/elements based 
on  specific  consultant  –  and  CPAC/other  –  review  comments.  The  consultant  team  will  not  be 
involved in any rewriting of City‐prepared draft text or drafting of new or supplemental text in City‐
prepared  plan  chapters/elements  except  as  specified  for  particular  tasks  in  this Work  Program. 
Additionally,  the consultant  team will not be  responsible  for  the accuracy of  technical data and/or 
content included or cited in any chapters/elements prepared by City staff.) 

 Provide  information  and  guidance  on  recommended  ordinance  changes  and  sample  ordinance 
provisions based on the proposed Comprehensive Plan goals, policies and actions. 

 Package all the final, approved plan chapters into a single, cohesive document which meets both the 
consultant team’s and the City’s quality standards. 

 Oversee  the production and delivery  to  the City of  the as‐adopted comprehensive plan document, 
including all illustrations and related attachments, and incorporating all final map figures as printed 
and provided to KKC by the City (in the quantity specified in the Project Deliverables section of this 
Work Program). 

 
Joint Expectations 

Both the City and the consulting team will jointly be responsible for: 
 Completing project status conference calls at least every three weeks throughout the duration of the 

project,  including  sharing  by  City  staff  of  an  up‐to‐date  “project  log”  of  plan‐related  activities, 
meetings, and work items completed by City staff (similar to that maintained by KKC throughout the 
project). 

 Allotting  time  for City  staff  and  consultant  team  representatives  to meet on  the day of  scheduled 
meetings  in  College  Station,  prior  to  such  meetings  (i.e.,  CPAC,  P&Z,  public  events,  etc.),  to 
coordinate on project issues and/or final meeting preparation and logistics. 

 Preparing  and  maintaining  a  workable  and  detailed  project  schedule  (of  all  deliverables  and 
meetings)  for  the Phase  II Work Program  that  ensures  steady  progress  and  prompt  results while 
assuring  adequate  time  for  citizen  and  stakeholder  involvement  and  meaningful  review  and 
comment prior  to  formal public hearings  and  adoption procedures. This  schedule must  especially 
clarify the planned work flow and associated coordination and interaction between City staff and the 
consultant  team  to  ensure  that  all  project milestones  are met  in  a  timely manner  and  the  overall 
Phase II  schedule  is maintained  throughout – allowing  for appropriate and mutually agreed upon 

220



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-4 

adjustments along the way based on project developments. An initial schedule will be drafted as an 
immediate work item as soon as Phase II is initiated. 

 Establishing mutually agreed upon deadline dates by which draft plan  chapters/elements or other 
project  handouts  or  materials  to  be  prepared  by  either  party  must  be  ready  and  available  for 
distribution or release – or for internal review and comment by the other party – prior to scheduled 
project meetings or  events  (and original  and/or PDF versions of  such materials  shall be promptly 
delivered  to  the  other  party  via  email  or  FTP).  In  particular,  all  deliverables  associated  with  a 
meeting, as prepared by the consultant team or City staff, shall be provided to the other (reviewing) 
party no less than three (3) weeks prior to the meeting. The reviewing party will have one (1) week to 
review  the materials, which will  be  revised  based  on  the  review  comments  and provided  one  (1) 
week in advance of the meeting. 

 Sharing  relevant  reference materials, data  (and data  sources), photos/graphics,  and  electronic  files 
that both parties have acquired and/or should be aware of as general background information or as a 
potential  input  to  preparation  and/or  revision  of  certain  plan  chapters/elements,  presentations,  or 
other project materials. 

 Establishing  a GIS  data  structure,  through  coordination  between  appropriate City  and  consultant 
technical personnel, to ensure the efficiency and reliability of necessary data‐sharing throughout the 
project. The City will be responsible for printing/plotting all draft and final maps during the project. 
KKC will provide  the City  a  “map  layout”  for use as a  template,  consistent with  the overall plan 
document  format,  for all map  figures  the City  is responsible  for preparing. For  those maps KKC  is 
responsible for preparing, KKC will provide the City appropriate data files (shapefiles) for the City to 
use in creating and printing the maps for stakeholder/public distribution. 

 Assuring  the basic quality of all work products prepared and delivered by each party  to  the other 
through  internal  review and quality  control procedures by both  the City and  consultant  team. All 
deliverables should receive final internal review and be delivered by the City’s Project Director and 
the consultant Project Manager,  respectively. Any work product  that upon delivery  is  found  to be 
substantially  below  basic  quality  standards  (e.g.,  not  prepared  in  agreed‐upon  templates,  not 
following  agreed‐upon  organization  and  style  rules,  containing  extensive  spelling  and/or 
grammatical errors, etc.) will be returned for further attention prior to review by the other party. 

 Preparing for and leading presentations and facilitating discussions at project meetings and briefings 
(CPAC, Planning & Zoning Commission, City Council, public meetings, etc.), depending on whether 
the  consultant  team  or  City  staff  had  lead  responsibility  for  preparing  the  relevant  plan 
chapter/element or other information/materials to be covered at each respective meeting or briefing. 
Necessary  handouts  or  graphic  aids  for  all meetings will  be  prepared  by  the  lead  party  (City  or 
consultant  team),  unless  otherwise  specified  in  this Work  Program  or mutually  agreed  upon  in 
advance of a particular meeting or event. 

 Exchanging with the other party, upon project completion, electronic files on compact disc of all plan‐
related documents  in their native format (e.g., Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint; ESRI‐compatible 
formats, etc.), including all supporting graphics, tables, illustrations, maps, and other elements of the 
plan. 

 

221



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-5 

City Expectations 

The City of College Station will: 
 Identify a single individual as the City’s Project Director, who will serve as the City’s primary point 

of  contact  and  source  of day‐to‐day work program direction  for  this  collaborative planning  effort 
involving City and Consultant personnel, resources, and capabilities. 

 Provide the consultant team written summaries, and copies of any handouts/materials, from all plan‐
related meetings not attended by the consultant team members. 

 Provide  to  the consultant  team all available data, maps, air photos, previous  reports/plans/studies, 
and other information that is available to the City in digital format and is pertinent and necessary for 
development of each plan  chapter/element  for which  the  consultant  team  is primarily  responsible. 
Prompt  compilation  and  delivery  of  such  resource  materials  to  the  consultant  is  an  essential 
prerequisite for  initiation of the Comprehensive Plan process and timely progress on various  initial 
study tasks.   The City will reproduce all hard‐copy materials such that they will not require return 
upon project completion (or will provide materials in PDF or other readily usable electronic formats). 

 Based  upon  guidance  provided  by  the  consultant  team,  make  contacts  with  agencies  and 
organizations  for  data  collection  and  coordination  purposes,  obtain  necessary  data  and  electronic 
maps, arrange meetings as needed, and make  these  entities aware of  the  comprehensive planning 
process. 

 Ensure  that  key City  personnel,  advisory  board members,  and  elected  officials will  participate  as 
needed  in  the planning process and be available upon request, through arrangements made by  the 
City’s  Project  Director,  to  provide  information  and  referrals  and  offer  opinions,  insights,  and 
suggestions that are necessary for development of the various plan chapters (for City staff, this will 
occur particularly  through  the Staff Resource Team, or SRT). This will  include potential  formal or 
informal meetings and briefings with City Council as specified in this Work Program. 

 Immediately  upon  initiation  of  Phase  II,  provide  an  updated,  detailed  list  of  spatial  data  and 
mapping  that  the  City  can  make  available  for  the  project,  including  data  sets  and  layers/GIS 
coverages already developed/maintained by the City for its entire planning area or readily available 
to  the City  from other  sources,  such as  the Brazos County Appraisal District. This will  enable  the 
consultant  team  to  identify and confirm any new data/information  that has become available since 
the initial data delivery from the City at the start of Phase I. 

 Reproduce and  forward each draft project  submittal provided via email by  the consultant  team  to 
each CPAC member and key City staff members. In addition, each draft deliverable will be provided 
to the City Council for courtesy review and discussion as the plan update process proceeds. An item 
should be added  to  the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council agendas  throughout  the 
duration of the comprehensive planning process to provide ongoing discussion opportunities for the 
Commission  and Council  and  to  allow  for  overall direction  of  the plan update. City  staff will  be 
responsible  for providing briefings  to  the Commission and Council at regular  intervals  throughout 
the process, except where consultant‐led briefings are provided for in this Work Program. 

 Conduct public  information  activities  in  conjunction with major public meetings  and  other  fitting 
project milestones. The City will be responsible for news media contacts, preparation and distribution 
of  news  releases  and  any  other public  information materials,  and posting  of meeting  notices  and 
project information and updates on the City’s website. 

 Use the City’s website to disseminate information and inform, update and educate the public about 
the ongoing comprehensive planning process. The consultant  team will provide already‐completed 

222



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-6 

Microsoft Word documents or ArcView GIS maps in PDF format, which can be easily posted on the 
City’s website. 

 Provide ongoing administrative support for the CPAC, which was established during Phase I. One or 
more members  of  the  Planning &  Zoning Commission  and City Council  should  be  included  for 
liaison  and  tracking  purposes  throughout  the  project.  The  City’s  support  services  will  include 
arranging  meeting  locations,  preparing  and  distributing  meeting  notices,  and  preparing  and 
reproducing agendas and other handouts  (from a reproducible original provided by  the consultant 
team when the consultant team had  lead responsibility for preparing such materials). The City will 
also provide three‐ring binders with section dividers for all CPAC members,  involved City officials 
and  staff,  and  others  as  needed  for  purposes  of  organizing  and  maintaining  project  materials 
throughout  the process. The project notebooks  should  include  rosters  and  contact  information  for 
members of  the CPAC, Planning & Zoning Commission, City Council, and key City staff, plus  the 
detailed project schedule. 

 Arrange and provide use of public meeting  facilities  for each  scheduled public  involvement event 
and meeting  identified  in  this Work  Program,  including  adequate  setup  for  presentations  (sound 
system,  screen or white wall,  reduced  lighting, extension  cord and power  strip  for multiple  three‐
prong plugs for laptop, projector, etc.). The City’s support services will include providing public and 
news media notification of public meetings, producing/mailing/distributing notices, preparing and 
reproducing  agendas  and  other  handout  materials,  providing  sign‐in  sheets  and  otherwise 
documenting meeting attendance, and providing refreshments. The City will also be responsible for 
inviting members of City Boards and Commissions  and  representatives of other key agencies and 
community organizations to attend public meetings related to the plan update process. 

 Commit the necessary resources to adequately prepare for and promote any significant community 
outreach  events  to be  conducted  in Phase  II  (similar  to  the Citizens Congress  event  in Phase  I)  to 
ensure  significant attendance, participation, and media  coverage. The City might  consider  inviting 
other  key  community  organizations  to  co‐sponsor  or  “co‐host”  the  event  and  provide  further 
logistical support. The City’s responsibilities will include securing a meeting location with adequate 
setup for  large gatherings and presentations (sound system, screen or white wall, reduced  lighting, 
extension  cord and power  strip  for multiple  three‐prong plugs  for  laptop, projector,  etc.),  creating 
and  distributing  promotional  posters  and/or  flyers,  preparing  and  distributing  any  other  public 
information  materials,  publicizing  the  event  through  informal  networks  and  “word  of  mouth” 
means, encouraging major businesses and institutions to highlight the event on high‐profile marquee 
signs  and message  boards, making  arrangements  for  snacks/beverages  and  entertainment  (school 
choir  or  orchestra,  local musician,  etc.),  providing  greeters  and City  staff  or  volunteers  to  staff  a 
sign‐in table, assigning City staff to assist with any planned small‐group breakout sessions, arranging 
for  City  officials  to  welcome  attendees  and  provide  brief  opening  remarks,  inviting  any  guest 
speakers  as  needed,  arranging  one  or  more  door  prizes  (optional),  and  reproducing  a 
program/agenda for the event which could include an insert or “tear‐off” form for submitting written 
comments and ideas. KKC will provide a checklist and other guidance and sample materials based on 
its experience in conducting and facilitating many similar events in other communities. 

 
 

223



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-7 

Phase II Tasks 
 

Community & Leadership 
Participation 

Community involvement is an essential part of preparing a comprehensive plan to ensure that the plan 
reflects the values and priorities of the community. A broad cross section of stakeholders, including those 
involved  in  local  organizations,  representatives  from  local  and  regional  coordinating  agencies,  and 
residents will be invited to participate in the continuing plan development process to provide input and 
react  to  plan  proposals  toward  defining  the  future  of  the  community.  The  public  and  leadership 
involvement process  initiated  in Phase I will carry over  into  this phase and will be closely coordinated 
with potential community education efforts envisioned by the City and to be carried out entirely by City 
staff. 

The following activities will be included in this task:  

Task Activities 

 Conduct  a  Phase  II  kick‐off meeting with  key City  staff members  to  review  the  scope  of work, 
data/information needs, and other project logistics; formulate a detailed project schedule; discuss the 
preferred  format  for  CPAC meetings;  and  coordinate  on  the  format  of  plan  chapters, maps  and 
graphics so templates may be established for use by City and consultant staff. 

 Participate in up to four (4) working meetings with the City’s Staff Resource Team (SRT) during the 
course of Phase II, all of which will be scheduled to occur during planned project trips. 

 Attend  up  to  twelve  (12)  working  meetings  with  the  City’s  Comprehensive  Plan  Advisory 
Committee (CPAC) for presentation, review and discussion of plan issues, draft plan materials, and 
other pertinent topics. 

 Attendance by one (1) KKC principal at up to two (2) additional meetings, yet to be specified prior to 
project initiation, but as needed on a contingency basis during the course of the project. 

 Concurrently with a planned project trip, provide a briefing to the City Council at a mid‐point in 
the  plan  development  process  to  inform  them  of  the  project  status,  receive  their  feedback  and 
direction on emerging plan proposals, and ensure the plan is consistent with their expectations. 

 Complete  a  community Open House  event when  an  overall  draft  of  the Comprehensive  Plan  is 
ready for public review. Individual stations will be set up to display the various plan elements and 
maps, highlight significant action recommendations, address questions, and allow informal dialogue 
and formal acceptance of public comments and feedback. The event will be advertised by the City as 
an open format over several hours on one evening. KKC will be responsible for producing an original 
of  a  one‐  to  two‐page  summary  of  each  plan  chapter,  applicable  exhibits,  and  an  overview 
PowerPoint presentation. 

 Complete an extended joint workshop with the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council 
to overview the draft plan, providing an opportunity for their detailed review and consideration. 

 Complete a “first‐and‐next‐step” implementation workshop, following and held concurrently with 
the  joint workshop  in  the  previous  item,  to  identify  plan  implementation  priorities,  timing,  and 
responsible  departments  or  entities.  KKC  will  prepare  a  series  of  poster  sheets  with  the  action 

224



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-8 

recommendations  that are potentially of highest priority. Then workshop participants will each be 
given  an  opportunity  to  “vote”  on  their  top  priorities  (number  to  be  determined).  Upon 
determination  of  the  consensus  priorities,  KKC  will  facilitate  discussion  of  the  timing  and 
administration  of  these  tasks.  The  outcome  of  this  exercise will  be  incorporated  into  a  summary 
action table in the final plan document. 

 Attend a City Council public hearing, at which KKC will present the highlights of the final proposed 
Comprehensive Plan in coordination with City staff. 

 In  coordination with City  staff,  help  to  identify  project‐related  items  to  be posted  on  the City’s 
website  by  City  staff  (e.g.,  project  schedule,  interim  draft  plan  chapters  and  maps,  and  other 
materials already provided by KKC in Adobe *.pdf format). 

 
Deliverables: 

 One (1) reproducible original of any handouts or display materials to be distributed or on display at 
particular meetings and workshops, as a supplement to the draft plan elements to be reviewed and 
discussed at such meetings. 

 PowerPoint presentations as needed for particular meetings and workshops (draft and final). 
 
Plan Introduction 

This element will include a definition of “Comprehensive Plan,” the benefits of having a Comprehensive 
Plan, a brief discussion of the importance of updating College Station’s plan, and the relationship of the 
update  to  the  1997  Comprehensive  Plan.  It  will  also  provide  background  information  on  the 
comprehensive planning process, including an overview of the public input opportunities and activities 
that facilitated the completion of the document. Lastly, it will include the resulting vision for the City of 
College Station. 

The following elements will be included in this chapter:  

 An educational component, including an explanation of what a Comprehensive Plan is, why College 
Station has one, the benefits of the plan, and the City’s authority to adopt a Comprehensive Plan. 

 An explanation of the Comprehensive Plan process used, including public input opportunities, the 
role of  the Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee  (CPAC),  the Staff Resource Team  (SRT),  the 
Planning & Zoning Commission, and the City Council. 

 The definition and delineation of the Comprehensive Plan study/planning area, which will include 
the existing city limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) plus any immediate contiguous areas that 
could reasonably be added to the ETJ over the 20‐year plan horizon through annexation activity by 
the City. 

 The Vision  for  the City  of College  Station,  including  a  graphic demonstration  of  the  relationship 
between the vision and the plan goals and policies. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Chapter 1, Introduction, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Map figure:  (1) Comprehensive Plan study/planning area. 

225



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-9 

 KKC  review  memorandum  with  specific  comments,  questions  and  suggested  revisions  to  the 
City‐prepared plan chapter/elements and associated map figure(s) (organized by referencing specific 
pages, paragraphs, tables/figures, etc. in the draft document). 

 
Existing Conditions Report 

To develop a meaningful plan, it  is  important to know what kinds of growth pressures are expected to 
influence the City’s future. Trends, projections, and assumptions provide numerical benchmarks to help 
determine  if  the plan  is realistic and reasonable. To  that end, a  thorough understanding of  the existing 
conditions  serves  as  the  springboard  for drafting  the  chapters  of  the plan. This  report will provide  a 
detailed  description  of  the  planning  area’s  natural  and  built  environment.  It  will  also  include  a 
demographic and economic profile of the planning area. 

The following elements will be included in this report:  

 A brief historical background on the City of College Station. 

 Brief description of College Station’s regional context, including its relationship to the adjacent City 
of Bryan. 

 Information  on  current  demographics  and  community  trends,  including  population  information, 
median age, household size, growth trends, building permit activity, etc. 

 A  housing  inventory,  to  include  information  on  the  current  inventory  of  dwelling  units  (single‐
family, duplex, and multi‐family) and housing characteristics such as median home value, size, mean 
density, owner versus renter occupied, etc. 

 A  brief  background  on  the  key  economic  indicators  in  the  area,  and  a  history  of  the  economic 
development strategy in College Station, including the role of the Research Valley Partnership (RVP). 

 Information  on  local  employment  and  job  creation,  including  household  income,  educational 
attainment, employment by sector, etc. 

 An overview of  the geography of  the area,  including  soil  type, vegetation,  topography,  floodplain 
and other physical attributes. 

 An  inventory  of  natural  environmental  features which  can  pose  constraints  to  significant  urban 
development  in particular areas and/or provide amenities and value  to nearby development when 
preserved and enhanced (e.g., creeks and other water features, wetland and riparian areas, forested 
areas and significant mature trees in the community, etc.). 

 Consideration will be given to tree protection and canopy cover, creeks and natural drainage areas 

 An inventory and assessment of the existing transportation system. 

 An inventory of existing land uses and existing zoning of property in the City of College Station (to 
be coordinated closely with  the community character  field work and mapping  to be conducted by 
KKC under the Community Character task). 

 Existing utility service areas, capacities and  information  relating  to  the multiple  service providers 
within the study area. 

 A review of and reference to other existing and viable plans such as the Wolf Pen Creek Master Plan. 

226



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-10 

 
Deliverables: 

 Existing  Conditions  Report,  formatted  and  published  as  a  separate,  stand‐alone  report  and 
complementary document in support of the Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Map  figures:  (1)  thematic  maps  related  to  demographics,  housing,  and  economic  indicators; 
(2) Existing Housing Inventory; (3) Physical Setting; (4) Existing Transportation System; (5) Existing 
Land Use; (6) Existing Zoning; and (7) Existing Utility Service Areas. 

 KKC/KHA/ESI review memorandum with specific comments, questions and suggested revisions  to 
the  City‐prepared  report  and  associated map  figure(s)  (organized  by  referencing  specific  pages, 
paragraphs, tables/figures, etc. in the draft document). 

 
Community Character 

Understanding  College  Station’s  character  as  a  city  and  the  character  of  individual  areas within  the 
community  is vital  to protecting  it. The purpose of this chapter  is  to  identify community character and 
establish  the  necessary  guidance  that will  be  used  in making  decisions  about  the  compatibility  and 
appropriateness of individual developments within the context of the larger community. The future land 
use plan will serve to direct development, manage the pattern and character of future growth, preserve 
valued areas and  lands, and protect neighborhoods. Urban design and the aesthetics of the community 
are recognized as a vital component of the quality of life of College Station residents. 

The following elements will be included in this chapter:  

 Identification and evaluation of College Station’s community character through field work, including 
a windshield  survey  (building upon preliminary  inventory work  completed during Phase  I). This 
element will include an analysis of the character and urban form of different areas of the community, 
focusing on existing development characteristics and future development potential. 

 A land use plan will be developed for the existing city limits and defined urban growth area for the 
time horizon of the Comprehensive Plan based on the need to protect existing land uses and provide 
for  future  economic  opportunities.  The  Land  Use  Plan  will  illustrate  both  the  pattern  and  the 
character of future growth and will provide guidance on how and where College Station will develop 
in the future. KKC will calibrate and apply its SAVES (Strategic Analysis: Vision Evaluation System) 
growth and land use scenario model to calculate the spatial requirements for future land use based 
upon population and economic growth forecasts, in relation to available developable areas (and this 
work will  be  coordinated with  related  SAVES  efforts under  the Growth Management & Capacity 
task). 

 Recommend  amendments  to  the Unified Development Ordinance  regarding  the delineation  and 
specification of character‐based zoning districts. This will be closely coordinated with the ordinance 
evaluation  for  the  Implementation & Administration  task  and will  particularly  focus  on  the  non‐
residential districts. Narrative description will be provided  regarding  the proposed  changes  to  the 
zoning district structure and content and  the similarities and contrasts  to  the existing districts and 
standards. 

 An urban design and community appearance element will identify opportunities for enhancing the 
physical  character  and  attractiveness  of  the  community. Public  rights‐of‐way, public projects,  and 

227



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-11 

development  and  redevelopment  will  be  considered  with  respect  to  urban  design.  Specific 
recommendations as to needed changes to the Cityʹs policies and standards will be included. 

 Based  on  the  natural  environment  inventory  in  the  Existing  Conditions  Report,  identify 
opportunities  for  preserving  College  Station’s  amenities  and  open  space  as  a means  to  enhance 
community character, particularly along corridors, at community gateways and  in other key areas. 
Consideration will be given to tree protection and canopy cover, creeks and natural drainage areas, 
and the aesthetic and health benefits that these natural assets offer to the community. Information on 
the benefits of density bonuses will be included. 

A special focus of the Community Character chapter will be Unique Community Assets. College Station 
recognizes  that  it  has  certain  assets,  or  areas  of  the  city,  that  contribute  to  the  uniqueness  of  the 
community.  These  areas  provide  for  a  sense  of  place  and  development  that  is  representative  of  the 
community’s values. The purpose of  this element  is  to  recognize and  incorporate  existing  special area 
plans and districts, gateways, and corridors into the Comprehensive Plan, and to identify where further 
refinement of the districts or their administration may be beneficial. In addition, the plan will establish a 
process  for protecting, measuring and monitoring  these community assets. The  following  items will be 
included in this element: 

 An administrative structure to reference and  integrate existing plans  into the Comprehensive Plan, 
including: 
- Wolf Pen Creek 
- Northgate Redevelopment Implementation Plan 
- Business Center at College Station Master Plan 
- City of College Station City Center Master Plan 
- Texas A&M University Campus Master Plan 

 An administrative structure to define, preserve, protect, and enhance the gateways to College Station 
that impact economic well‐being and aesthetics to and through the community, including: 
- University Drive 
- SH 6 / Texas Avenue 
- SH 6 / William D. Fitch Parkway 
- SH 6 / Rock Prairie Road 
- South College Avenue 

 An  administrative  structure  to  define,  preserve,  protect,  and  enhance  key  corridors  within  the 
community that impact economic well‐being and aesthetics in College Station, including: 
- University Drive 
- Earl Rudder Freeway South 
- Texas Avenue 
- Wellborn Road 
- Future Medical Area (SH 6, Rock Prairie Road & William D. Fitch Parkway) 

 Identification of opportunities for future partnership and cooperation with area educational systems 
(College  Station  Independent  School District  and Texas A&M University)  to promote  good urban 
design and provide enhanced  facilities and expanded educational opportunities  for College Station 
citizens. This  element will  include  identification  and  recognition of  these  entities’ plans  for  future 
expansion, growth and development. 

228



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-12 

 Development  of  criteria  and  a  methodology  for  the  identification  and  protection  of  future 
community assets. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Community character and urban form analysis (interim narrative and graphics for preliminary staff 
review prior to delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 2). 

 Land Use Plan background, description and rationale (interim narrative and graphics for preliminary 
staff review prior to delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 2). 

 Preliminary outline of UDO and zoning district  issues and potential  recommendations  likely  to be 
addressed  in Chapter  2  (interim  information  for  preliminary  staff  review  prior  to  delivery  of  the 
complete draft of Chapter 2). 

 Urban  design  and  community  appearance  findings  and  preliminary  outline  of  potential 
recommendations likely to be addressed in Chapter 2, including community character considerations 
related to environmental assets (interim narrative and graphics for preliminary staff review prior to 
delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 2). 

 Preliminary  outline  of  administrative  structure  considerations  and  likely  direction  in  Chapter  2 
related  to  Unique  Community  Assets  (interim  information  for  preliminary  staff  review  prior  to 
delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 2). 

 Preliminary  outline  of  criteria  and methodology  considerations  related  to  the  identification  and 
protection  of  future  community  assets  (interim  information  for  preliminary  staff  review  prior  to 
delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 2). 

 Chapter 2, Community Character, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Map  figures:  (1)  Existing  Community  Character,  (2)  Land  Use  Plan,  and  (3)  Community  Assets 
(highlighting special areas/districts/sites, key corridors, and gateway locations) – and reference to the 
Existing Land Use and Existing Zoning map figures in the Existing Conditions Report. 

 
Neighborhood Integrity 

The  purpose  of  this  chapter  is  to  ensure  the  continued  viability  and  long‐term  protection  of College 
Stationʹs  neighborhoods.  Neighborhoods  are  recognized  as  making  the  community  unique  and 
contributing to residents’ quality of life. Issues such as historic preservation, property maintenance, land 
use adjacency, neighborhood traffic and student housing can have an impact on the quality and stability 
of neighborhoods. This chapter will provide guidance for making decisions about the compatibility and 
appropriateness  of  proposed  developments  in  context  with  their  immediate  and  surrounding 
neighborhoods. 

The following elements will be included in this chapter:  

 A housing element, the data for which will be developed through field work, including a windshield 
survey,  to  evaluate  the  community’s  existing  housing  stock  and  future  housing  needs.  Existing 
housing market data from the 2000 Census, as well as the housing condition assessment conducted 
during  the 1997 Comprehensive Plan process  (and provided  in  the 2005‐09 Consolidated Plan) will 
supplement the field work. 

229



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-13 

 Identification and evaluation of neighborhood character through field work, including a windshield 
survey,  and  analysis  of  the  pattern  and  character  of  College  Station’s  existing  neighborhoods. 
Neighborhood identity will also be addressed – what makes each neighborhood special? 

 A  historic  preservation  element  based  on  the  findings  from  the Historic  Preservation  Study  and 
Historic  Resources  Survey  that  has  been  commissioned  by  the  City.  This  element  will  include 
recommendations on policy and code amendments to reduce teardowns in older neighborhoods and 
ensure that infill development is compatible in scale and character. (Through its review role for this 
element, KKC will offer insights and suggestions given its specialization in teardown impacts and the 
“too big house” phenomenon.) Consideration will be given  to  the  impacts of  infill development  in 
older residential areas and their proximity to Texas A&M University. 

 A  neighborhood  enhancement  element  which  recommends  changes  to  the  City’s  policies  and 
standards, including those related to single‐family property maintenance issues. 

 Discussion  of  gentrification  considerations, which  can  be  both  a  benefit  and  a  concern  in  older 
neighborhoods. Opportunities  for  preserving  neighborhood  character while  improving  physically 
deteriorated areas will be identified. 

 A neighborhood protection element addressing  issues and concerns regarding  land use adjacency, 
student rental housing, neighborhood traffic, and infill development. Areas where existing or future 
adjacency  issues  may  arise  will  be  identified,  and  needed  policy  and  code  changes  will  be 
recommended  to  ensure  that  existing  neighborhoods  are  adequately  protected  from  future 
development.  Existing  and  desired  land  uses  on  the  fringe  of  existing  neighborhoods  will  be 
identified, and the potential impact of future development on the pattern of a neighborhood will also 
be considered. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Chapter 3, Neighborhood Integrity, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Map  figures:    (1) Existing Neighborhood Areas,  and  (2) Historic Resources  –  and  reference  to  the 
Existing Housing Inventory map figure in the Existing Conditions Report. 

 KKC  review  memorandum  with  specific  comments,  questions  and  suggested  revisions  to  the 
City‐prepared plan chapter/elements and associated map figure(s) (organized by referencing specific 
pages, paragraphs, tables/figures, etc. in the draft document). 

 
Economic Development 

Recognizing that economic development is impacted and shaped by numerous community variables, this 
chapter will  identify, define and analyze  the major components and programming elements  impacting 
and driving economic development, redevelopment and reinvestment  in College Station.  In addition, a 
major outcome of this overall process will be the refinement and packaging of an economic development 
program and structure that is unique to the community and a tangible product of its many stakeholders. 
Finally,  a major  end  result  of  this  effort will  be  a  fully  developed  economic  development  plan  and 
reinvestment strategy that  is customized to the unique needs of College Station. This multifaceted plan 
will include economic development goals, strategies, and the necessary implementation actions to see it 
fully realized.  

230



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-14 

The  following  tabular  format  for outlining  the anticipated  flow of work  elements under  this  task was 
prepared, as requested, following coordination between subconsultant Economic Stewardship, Inc. (ESI) 
and the City’s Director of Economic & Community Development: 

 

Major 
Products 

Sub            
Product 

Master Task List 
Activities Encompassed 

Interim 
Findings 
Memo 

Timing 
(draft/final) 

Tax Incentive 
Evaluation 

 

A  thorough  assessment  of  the City’s  current 
Tax  Incentive  Policy  and  its  current 
application  and  impact.  Make  applicable 
recommendations  if  changes  are  warranted 
and necessary.  

    Month 1/2  

A dynamic and pro‐active, 
policy‐based Economic 
Development Plan  

    

  Systems 
Analysis    Month 4/5  

 

 

A  thorough  assessment of  the City’s  existing 
reinvestment  programming  structure  and 
analyze  the adequacy and/or appropriateness 
of  the  current  resource  allocations.  The 
assessment is to include an in‐depth review of 
the  administrative  structure  and  any 
applicable  development  processes  and 
procedures.  Make  applicable 
recommendations if warranted. 

    Month 2/3  

 

 

A  comprehensive  assessment  of  the  City’s 
redevelopment  environment  and  review  any 
applicable  development  processes  and 
procedures. This assessment  is  to  include  the 
development  of  the  appropriate  incentive 
structure  and  any  necessary  tools.  Make 
applicable recommendations if necessary. 

    Month 2/3  

 

 

Ways  to  enhance  and  measure  overall 
effectiveness  of  the  City’s  economic 
development  activities  with,  between  and 
among  regional  partners  and  organizations. 
Specific  attention  would  include  the 
relationships and benefits from the City. 

    Month 2/3  

 

 

An  administrative  structure  and  process  to 
plan,  administer  and  manage  an  effective 
Corridor,  Gateway  and  Special  Districts 
Development  Program.  This  effort  will 
include Neighborhood Reinvestment Districts 
as developed and  implemented as part of the 
City’s  future  community  development 
programming  and  an  appropriate 
administrative and management structure  for 
this effort. 

    Month 3/4  

         

231



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-15 

Major 
Products 

Sub            
Product 

Master Task List 
Activities Encompassed 

Interim 
Findings 
Memo 

Timing 
(draft/final) 

 

Tools 
Assess‐ 
ment & 
Restruc‐
turing 

Review of  existing programs and procedures 
for attracting new businesses, helping existing 
companies expand, nurturing entrepreneurial 
enterprises,  bolstering  workforce  training, 
redirecting  marketing  and  recruiting 
functions,  and  strengthening  inter‐
jurisdictional  cooperation  and  effectiveness. 
Recommendations  if  changes  are  warranted 
and necessary.    

 Month 2/3  

 

 

A comprehensive review of local and regional 
industry  targets  to  understand  which 
industries are most appropriate for the City to 
focus  its  economic  development  efforts  and 
resources.    

 Month 2/3  

 

 

A  comprehensive  review  and  assessment  of 
existing  marketing  materials  and  efforts;  to 
include an assessment of those sections of the 
City’s web site  that directly  impact economic 
development,  redevelopment  and/or 
reinvestment. 

    Month 3/4  

 
 

A  pro‐active  marketing  program  and  plan 
based  on  the  appropriate  programming 
initiatives and strategies. 

    Month 4/5  

 

 

A  generalized  ED  public  education  and 
relations  strategy  and  program.  This  effort 
will include specific elements that address the 
value of  regional  retail, use of  tax  incentives, 
etc.  

    Month 4/5  

  Retail 
Analysis     Month 5/6    

 

 

A  comprehensive  review  and  assessment  of 
the  current  retail  market  and  development 
environment  for  this  particular  sector.  Focus 
on  current  trends,  new  opportunities, 
established  weaknesses,  overall  absorption, 
and  sustainability  of  this  sector  of  the  local 
economy.  

    Month 5/6  

 
 

An  appropriate  and  realistic  retail 
development,  assistance  and  enhancement 
strategy.  

    Month 5/6  

Site Specific Reports 

A  responsive  and  cost‐effective 
implementation structure for the community’s 
major  facility and development projects. This 
item will include:  

  

 
 
 
     

  

232



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-16 

Major 
Products 

Sub            
Product 

Master Task List 
Activities Encompassed 

Interim 
Findings 
Memo 

Timing 
(draft/final) 

   

‐ Specific actions, responsible parties, required 
resources  and  budgets,  staffing  requirements 
and  timelines. Anticipate  the completion of a 
professionally‐packaged,  fully‐developed 
implementation plan  

  

   
‐  Appropriate  performance  measures  and 
accountability tools  

  

 
 

‐  Updated  and  refined  methodology  and 
procedures 

  

  a.      Hotel/Convention Center Project       Month 6/7  
  b.      Spring Creek Business Park       Month 6/7  
  c.      Business Center at College Station       Month 6/7  
  d.      Northgate Special Infrastructure Elements       Month 6/7  
  e.      Others TBD       Month 6/7  
Economic Development 
Element in Comprehensive 
Plan (Chapter 4) 

      Month 6/7  

 

 

New  Content:    Summary  of  key 
recommendations  from  Economic 
Development Plan, Retail Analysis and other 
deliverables produced during  this work plan, 
as appropriate. 

  

 

 

Review of  existing programs and procedures 
for attracting new businesses, helping existing 
companies expand, nurturing entrepreneurial 
enterprises,  bolstering  workforce  training, 
redirecting  marketing  and  recruiting 
functions,  and  strengthening  inter‐
jurisdictional  cooperation  and  effectiveness. 
Recommendations  if  changes  are  warranted 
and necessary.  

 see above    

 

 

A comprehensive review of local and regional 
industry  targets  to  understand  which 
industries are most appropriate for the City to 
focus  its  economic  development  efforts  and 
resources.  

 see above    

Input to Other 
Comprehensive Plan 
Elements 

The  economic  development  impact  of  any 
recommended  programming  improvements. 
The  economic  implications  of  land  use, 
transportation,  community  facilities,  utilities, 
public services, etc. recommendations, such as 
thoroughfare  extensions,  provision  of 
infrastructure  to  new  areas,  development 
constraints,  and  quality  of  life  enhancements 
will  all  be  reviewed  and  assessed.  Propose 
recommendations  or  changes  for  any 
modifications  that  are  important  from  an 
economic development perspective.  

 one per 
pertinent 
element  

 Linked to Comp 
Plan schedule  

233



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-17 

Parks, Art & Leisure 

The purpose of this chapter is to recognize and ensure the continued protection and enhancement of the 
cultural  resources and  leisure opportunities available  to  the citizens of College Station. College Station 
enjoys a diverse and educated population, and the City will support and celebrate this vital component of 
local quality of life. In addition, the City recognizes the value of leisure and the natural environment and 
their effects upon the physical and mental health of its citizens. 

The following elements will be included in this chapter:  

 The  proposed  Parks Master  Plan will  be  reviewed  and  revised  to  ensure  continuity with  future 
growth  patterns.  The  master  plan  will  identify  existing  and  future  improvement  needs  and 
generalized  locations  for  future parks consistent with  the  identified character of  the area  that each 
park is intended to serve. KKC will summarize key elements of the master plan for incorporation into 
the plan chapter, and results of this element will also be integrated into the Land Use Plan under the 
Community Character task. 

 The Greenways Master Plan will be  integrated  into  the Comprehensive Plan. Specific policies and 
implementation  strategies  related  to  acquisition,  land  development  and  preservation  will  be 
identified.  The  results  of  this  element will  be  coordinated with  the  Thoroughfare  Plan  under  the 
Transportation task, and integrated into the Land Use Plan under the Community Character task. 

 This chapter will also emphasize recognition and support of the Arts, including art in public places 
and the performing and visual arts. A methodology for preservation and protection will be included. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Preliminary  summary narrative and graphics drawn  from  the City‐updated Parks Master Plan  for 
potential inclusion in Chapter 5 (for preliminary staff review and concurrence prior to delivery of the 
complete draft of Chapter 5). 

 Preliminary  summary  narrative  and  graphics  drawn  from  the City’s Greenways Master  Plan  for 
potential  inclusion  in  Chapter  5,  along  with  a  preliminary  outline  on  potential  policy  and 
implementation strategies  likely  to be addressed  in Chapter 5  (interim  information  for preliminary 
staff review prior to delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 5). 

 Preliminary outline of priority arts‐related  issues and strategies  likely to be addressed  in Chapter 5  
(interim information for preliminary staff review prior to delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 5). 

 Chapter 5, Parks, Art & Leisure, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Map figures:  (1) Existing Parks and Service Areas, and (2) Future Park System. 

 KKC  review  memorandum  with  specific  comments,  questions  and  suggested  revisions  to  the 
City‐prepared plan chapter/elements and associated map figure(s) (organized by referencing specific 
pages, paragraphs, tables/figures, etc. in the draft document). 

 
Transportation 

A transportation plan is a vital component of a Comprehensive Plan to ensure adequate preservation of 
rights‐of‐way  concurrent  with  new  development.  The  purpose  of  this  task  is  to  ensure  orderly 
development of the community’s transportation network considering not only facilities for automobiles 

234



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-18 

but  other modes  of  transportation  as well,  such  as  pedestrian  and  bicycle  improvements  and  other 
mobility  issues  applicable  to  community  goals  and  objectives.  The  transportation  plan will  include  a 
Thoroughfare Plan to address foreseeable transportation  improvement needs over the 20‐year planning 
period. The Thoroughfare Plan will describe the transportation system needed to support the proposed 
future  land  use,  as  well  as  to  provide  consideration  of  preservation  of  future  rights‐of‐way  in 
development  plans  and  subdivision  platting  to  accommodate  the  transportation  system  needed  to 
support that development. 

The  following  elements will  be  included  in  this  chapter  (to  be  led  by  subconsultant Kimley‐Horn & 
Associates – KHA):  

 An updated  thoroughfare plan  for  the existing city  limits and  future growth area  in south Brazos 
County will provide for a balanced transportation system that provides a high level of connectivity 
within the community, as well as to the region. 

1) A travel demand model will be used to forecast traffic levels along each thoroughfare and ensure 
that these traffic levels are consistent with the thoroughfare type.  
a. Update and validate the base year model. This task will involve validation to counts already 

available  and  furnished by  the City. The City will be  responsible  for  additional  counts,  if 
needed. 

b. Run up to four (4) alternative land use scenarios. This will include coordination with KKC to 
validate the SAVES model with the model Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZs). 

c. Include the existing thoroughfare plan alignments and any planned TxDOT facilities. 
(i) Planned  and  existing  regional  transportation  corridors  will  be  considered  in  the 

planning of  the College Station  transportation  system. These existing corridors  include 
SH  6, SH 30, SH  40, FM  60, FM  2154,  and FM  2818, while  the  following  corridors  are 
being planned: TTC‐69/I‐69, SH 249, and the BCS regional loop. 

2) Develop  measures  of  effectiveness  (MOEs)  using  the  travel  time  index 
(mobility.tamu.edu/mmp) that can be used to evaluate the transportation system’s performance 
over  time  and  between  corridors.  These MOEs will  extend  further  than  the  typical  levels  of 
service  analysis  to  include  transit  walk  sheds,  street  density,  view  corridors,  and  access 
management. 

 Development of Context Sensitive Solutions (CSS) policies to encourage a transportation system that 
supports  and  enhances  the  desired  urban  form  of  the  community.  These  policies  will  consider 
mobility needs and surrounding land uses and encourage “complete streets” that balance each mode 
of transportation. This element will be coordinated with the Community Character chapter. 

1) Policy Guidelines: Developing a policy on how to develop Context Sensitive Streets  is aimed at 
finding  the best street solution  for a given area. Broad guidelines are not enough  to create  the 
livable street environment that most communities are striving for. The key to good street design 
can  be  accomplished  by  allowing  flexibility while  at  the  same  time working within  a  general 
acceptable design framework. This task will outline specific policies that need to be implemented 
to achieve the goal of creating livable streets. 

2) Design Guidelines: Will be developed to present a new series of street types that are intended to 
marry the  land use and transportation system. These street types will be developed for various 
land uses and functional classes. 

235



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-19 

NOTE:   This  task does  not  include  completion  by KHA  of  additional  traffic  counts, design  guideline 
updates or revisions, or detailed intersection operations modeling. 

KHA will attend up to five (5) meetings throughout the comprehensive planning process (this assumes 
one KHA representative will be present at each meeting). 
 
Deliverables: 

 Measures of effectiveness charts and tables. 

 Context Sensitive Solutions policy guidelines. 

 Context Sensitive Solutions design guidelines (cross sections and bulleted or narrative description for 
each section). 

 Chapter 6, Transportation, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Map figures:  (1) Thoroughfare Plan – and reference to the Existing Transportation System map figure 
in the Existing Conditions Report. 

 
Municipal Services & 
Community Facilities 

Over the last decade College Station has experienced dramatic growth that has increased demands on all 
City services. The high expectations of College Stationʹs citizens, and  the desire of City staff  to deliver 
high  quality  services,  necessitates  careful  and  thoughtful  planning  to  ensure municipal  services  are 
maintained at the highest possible level while maintaining fiscal responsibility on behalf of the residents 
of College Station. 

The  complexity  of  the municipal  service  delivery  system  requires  a  highly  integrated  and  strategic 
approach  to service delivery planning. Significant consideration must be given  to ensuring citizen and 
customer access to all desired services. Attention must be also given to the cost of services – for ongoing 
provision  as well  as  future  expansion  –  so municipal  services  are  both  cost  effective  to  deliver  and 
affordable to citizens. 

Municipal services such as Community Enhancement, Police, Fire, Emergency Management, Sanitation, 
and Development Services will be included in this chapter, along with the following elements: 

 Discussion of the services available to residents of College Station, and the benefits of the municipal 
services received upon annexation. 

 Definition of current Levels of Service. A Service Level Model will be created to define current levels 
of service  for six major service delivery systems operated by  the City of College Station,  including 
(1) Public  Safety,  (2) Utilities,  (3)  Community  Services,  (4)  Internal  Services,  (5)  Technology,  and 
(6) Administration. Measurable  indicators will be created  for current service  levels. A discussion of 
financial commitments needed to support current levels of service will be included in this element. 

 Development  and  recommendation of  three Policy Directives based on  current  service  levels  and 
using the Service Level Model: (1) a gap analysis of current service levels, (2) a policy statement on 
desired levels of service for each business line, and (3) goals for service levels for each business line. 

 Discussion of philosophies on the use of technology to deliver and enhance services. 

236



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-20 

 Refinement of a Future Municipal Service Paradigm. Municipal services must respond to the growth 
and  development  of  College  Station.  Based  on  the  Current  Service  Level Model  and  the  policy 
directives,  proposals will  be  presented  to  provide municipal  services  at  the  agreed  upon  service 
levels represented in the Policy Directives. A Future Municipal Service Matrix will be created which 
strategically identifies how the City will respond to future growth and development. A fiscal impact 
analysis will also be prepared to quantify the Future Municipal Service Matrix. 

This plan chapter will also address community facilities, which are another significant City responsibility 
and  a major  component  of College  Station’s physical,  social,  and  economic  fabric.  Such  facilities help 
define the identity of the community and contribute to College Station’s social and economic prosperity. 
Through  the  development  of  a  thoughtful  facilities  plan,  the  City  will  meet  both  the  needs  of  the 
community  and  the needs of City  employees. Population growth  and geographic  expansion  represent 
significant  challenges  to  the  City  of  College  Station.  Planning  for  community  facilities,  staffing,  and 
equipment must  be  done  well  in  advance  to  avoid  gaps  in  services.  Along  with  new  construction, 
adequate attention must be given to expansion, maintenance, and modernization of existing facilities. 

Facilities  often  involve  major  capital  investments  and  time.  Affordability  must  be  balanced  with 
community  needs. As  such,  new  facilities must  be  prioritized  in  terms  of  strategic  importance  to  the 
community to address current and future growth needs. The community facilities portion of this chapter 
will be prepared in the context of the Community Vision, Goals and Policies adopted by City Council. 

The  following  elements  related  to  community  facilities will  be  included  in  this  chapter  (and will  be 
coordinated with the Land Use Plan under the Community Character task):  

 An  inventory  and  assessment of  the City’s  current  facilities  (as  itemized below),  recognizing  that 
they serve a broad spectrum of purposes in support of the various programs and services delivered 
to College Station citizens. 
- Fire 
- Police 
- Library 
- City Center (including City Hall and all municipal buildings) 
- Convention Center/Hotel 
- Support facilities (maintenance yards, storage facilities, etc.) 
- Communications & Technology Infrastructure 
- Parking facilities 
- Landfill 
- Utility facilities (i.e., wastewater treatment plant) 

 Description  of  future  needs  based  on  the  City’s  anticipated  growth  and  geographic  expansion. 
Consideration will  be  given  to municipal,  state  and  national  standards  for  various  services  and 
programs; service level commitments; and a forecast of conditions under which the facilities will be 
expected to function. 

 Recommendations related to the library system expansion will be developed based on future growth 
projections. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Chapter 7, Municipal Services, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

237



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-21 

 Map figures:  (1) Community Facilities (existing facilities plus future needs). 

 KKC  review  memorandum  with  specific  comments,  questions  and  suggested  revisions  to  the 
City‐prepared plan chapter/elements and associated map figure(s) (organized by referencing specific 
pages, paragraphs, tables/figures, etc. in the draft document). 

 
Growth Management & Capacity 

The main emphasis of this chapter is to guide the future development of College Station in a responsible, 
controlled manner. This approach should be supported by policies that encourage compact and focused 
development and redevelopment in areas with adequate infrastructure while preserving open space and 
neighborhood character, as appropriate. The growth management element will provide  the context  for 
future  annexations  of unincorporated  land  into College  Station  and  establish  strategies  to  insure  that 
these new areas meet the overall vision, goals and objectives of the plan. 

Critical  to growth management and capacity considerations  is  the current status of and outlook  for  the 
City’s  utility  infrastructure  systems.  Utility  services  are  driven  by  a  number  of  factors,  including 
Certificate of Convenience  and Necessity  (CCN) geographic  service  territories, projected  land use and 
densities,  the  transportation  network,  existing  population  and  projected  growth,  annexation,  and 
regulatory  requirements. Utility  system upgrades and expansions must be planned well  in advance  to 
meet  projected  peak  demands  and  must  be  commensurate  with  the  Cityʹs  financial  capabilities. 
Maintenance  of  existing  systems  and  impact  on  current  utility  rates  are  other  fundamental 
considerations.  This  plan  chapter  will  include  summary  information  on  key  findings,  policy 
recommendations, and strategic priorities contained in the City’s utility master plans (which the City is in 
the  process  of  updating),  including  master  plans  for  water,  wastewater,  storm  water  and  drainage 
management, electric, solid waste, and water reuse. 

The following elements will be included in this chapter:  

 Description of the capacity of existing facilities and infrastructure to support future growth, through 
summarization of  the utility system and  facility assessments contained  in  the City’s various utility 
master  plans.  Information  will  also  be  included  on  CCN  service  territories  and  other  service 
providers in the City’s growth areas. 

 Description of projected infrastructure needs based on projected future population and the Land Use 
Plan, and through summarization of utility master plan information and conclusions. 

 Identification  of  areas  that  can  accommodate  the  requisite  acreage  for  future  growth  and 
development  based  on  analysis  conducted  using  KKC’s  SAVES  model.  This  will  lead  to 
recommendations regarding where infrastructure capital investments and future annexation activity 
by  the  City  should  be  focused. SAVES  will  be  used  to  quantify  more  precisely  the  spatial 
requirements  for accommodating projected growth  (in  coordination with  the Land Use Plan effort 
under the Community Character task). Two (2) future growth and development scenarios for College 
Station will be generated,  including a “baseline” scenario based on  the City’s current adopted  land 
use plan, and one other potential  scenario  for  review, modification and consideration. SAVES will 
project various impacts associated with the modeled scenarios (including factors such as population, 
employment, housing requirements, school enrollments, trip generation, and park demands). As part 
of this modeling process, the community will be divided into no more than 15 planning districts to be 
developed by KKC in coordination with City staff. Other geographic units for modeling and impact 

238



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-22 

scenario  planning  (such  as watersheds,  public  safety  and  community  facility  service  areas,  park 
zones, traffic analysis zones, etc.) may be generated on an additional services basis. 

 A  review  of  existing  annexation  plans,  with  recommendations  on  timing  and  areas  for  future 
annexations, in part based on the availability of adequate public facilities and services. This element 
will  also  include  information  on municipal  services  gained  by ETJ  residents  and  properties  upon 
annexation. 

 Specific  recommendations  to  discourage  the  unlimited  outward  growth  of  the  community  and 
encourage infill development in the core. 

 Specific  recommendations  related  to  funding  sources  and ways  to  pay  for  and manage  growth 
through such financing mechanisms, including impact fees and user fees. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Preliminary  summary  narrative  and  graphics  describing  the  capacity  of  existing  facilities  and 
infrastructure,  as  drawn  from  the  City’s  various  utility  master  plans,  for  potential  inclusion  in 
Chapter 8 (interim information for preliminary staff review prior to delivery of the complete draft of 
Chapter 8). 

 Preliminary  summary  narrative  and  graphics  describing  projected  infrastructure  needs,  as  drawn 
from the City’s various utility master plans, for potential inclusion in Chapter 8 (interim information 
for preliminary staff review prior to delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 8). 

 Memorandum  on  KKC’s  SAVES  modeling  approach  for  College  Station  following  initial  data 
acquisition  efforts  and meetings  and  staff  interaction  (for  staff  feedback prior  to  initiating  SAVES 
modeling efforts). 

 Preliminary narrative and graphics regarding  the SAVES modeling results and associated planning 
issues  and  potential  policies  and  recommendations  likely  to  be  addressed  in  Chapter  8  (interim 
information for preliminary staff review prior to delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 8). 

 Preliminary outline of findings and potential discussion and recommendations likely to be addressed 
in Chapter 8 related to annexation planning (interim information for preliminary staff review prior to 
delivery of the complete draft of Chapter 8). 

 Preliminary outline of potential policies and  recommendations  likely  to be addressed  in Chapter 8 
related  to  sprawl  prevention,  infill  encouragement,  and  financing  strategies  in  support  of more 
effective growth management  (interim  information  for preliminary staff review prior  to delivery of 
the complete draft of Chapter 8). 

 Chapter 8, Growth Management & Capacity, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Map figures:   (1) Growth Trends & Potential Annexation Phasing, (2) individual utility master plan 
maps  (as appropriate), and  (3) Generalized Future Utility System Needs – and reference to various 
growth‐related  map  figures  and  the  Existing  Utility  Service  Areas  map  figure  in  the  Existing 
Conditions Report and under the Community Character and Transportation tasks. 

 

239



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-23 

Implementation & Administration 

The  final phase of  the comprehensive planning process will  involve development of an administration 
element  to guide  implementation efforts and ongoing monitoring. The Comprehensive Plan will be  the 
basis for decision‐making on the future development of the City of College Station. The purpose of the 
administration element is to establish accountability for the implementation of the Comprehensive Plan 
and provide guidance on the processes to maintain its relevance to the City and its citizens. 

The following elements will be included in this chapter: 

 An implementation plan, recognizing that specific actions will be required to help realize the future 
goals of the Comprehensive Plan. To this end, it will be necessary to develop both  long‐ and short‐
range  implementation strategies with an action  timeframe and  the assignment of responsibilities  to 
specific entities. 

 Itemization  and  discussion  of  specific  ordinance  recommendations  for  effective  plan 
implementation. 

 An  evaluation  system  for  checking  the  implementation  strategies  against  the  goals  of  the 
Comprehensive Plan. The system will  include specific measures  that will be assessed on an annual 
basis and reported to the City Council. 

 A  defined  update  process,  recognizing  that  while  plans  are  created  with  the  most  accurate 
information and input available at the time, unforeseen situations and circumstances may necessitate 
minor alterations  in  individual elements of  the Comprehensive Plan. Goals of  the plan will not be 
considered negotiable, but processes will be defined to allow City Council to consider changes that 
may benefit the City as a whole in light of the goals. Also, pressures of growth may compel specific 
study  beyond what  can  be  provided  through  the  overall  plan.  Processes will  be  defined  for  the 
initiation  and  consideration  of  these detailed  studies  that will  enhance  the  implementation  of  the 
Comprehensive Plan. All update processes will incorporate public input. 

 
Deliverables: 

 Preliminary  outline  of  KKC’s  planned  approach  to  Chapter  9,  including  key  implementation 
considerations and procedures likely to be addressed in the chapter based on the results of Phase II to 
this point (interim information for preliminary staff review prior to delivery of the complete draft of 
Chapter 9). 

 Preliminary outline of initial findings and likely observations and recommendations to be included in 
the  eventual ordinance  evaluation memorandum  (interim  information  for preliminary  staff  review 
prior to delivery of the complete memorandum). 

 Chapter 9, Implementation & Administration, of Comprehensive Plan document (draft and final). 

 Summary memorandum outlining the ordinance evaluation findings and recommendations. 
 
Project Deliverables 

KKC will provide deliverables through each task of the Comprehensive Plan project. These deliverables 
will  facilitate advisory committee working meetings, periodic releases of  information  to  the media and 
public, and the orderly completion of the project. 

240



 
 
 
Exhibit A – Work Program (10.05.07) Page A-24 

KKC recognizes that all reports, maps and other deliverables prepared or developed in satisfaction of this 
contractual  work  program  become  the  property  of  the  City,  including  all  printed  deliverables  and 
associated digital files (including GIS shapefiles). All interim project deliverables will be provided to the 
City  in  Adobe  *.pdf  format  for  ease  of  file  transfer,  reproduction  and  distribution  to  the  advisory 
committee, Planning & Zoning Commissioners, City Council, and appropriate City staff members. The 
*.pdf versions  are  also  suitable  for posting on  the City’s website. Concurrently, KKC will provide  the 
native  electronic  files  associated  with  each  deliverable.  Likewise,  as  City  personnel  complete  draft 
chapters,  maps,  graphics  or  other  work  products  for  which  they  are  responsible  under  this  work 
program,  the City will  provide  both  *pdf  versions  and  the  native  electronic  files  to KKC  for  review 
purposes and so KKC can maintain all electronic files related to the emerging plan document. 

Upon project completion, KKC will deliver the following: 
 Hard copies  in an amount of  thirty  (30)  full‐color copies of  the  final adopted Comprehensive Plan 

document (in three‐ring binder format), including all maps (as printed and provided to KKC by the 
City), illustrations and related attachments.  

 The SAVES software will be released to the City upon project completion. On‐site training for City 
staff will  be  conducted  upon  substantial  completion  of  the model. KKC will  then  provide  up  to 
eight (8) hours of  service and maintenance  support over a one‐year period. Any  further  technical 
assistance  needed  would  be  provided  on  an  additional  services  basis.  After  the  first  year,  a 
maintenance  and  service  agreement  may  be  executed  to  allow  ongoing  technical  support  and 
provision of software upgrades (the cost of this service would be on an hourly basis of $125 per hour 
or negotiated through an annual service agreement). 

Whenever City staff or consultant personnel review draft deliverables prepared by the other party, it will 
be  the  responsibility  of  the City’s  Project Director  or  the  consultant  Project Manager,  respectively,  to 
coordinate,  compile  and  forward  in  a  consolidated manner  all  review  comments  on  and  requested/ 
suggested revisions to such deliverables. While some deliverables may require several rounds of review 
and  revision  to ensure  that all content  issues have been  satisfactorily addressed and quality  standards 
met,  it  benefits  all  project  participants  to  establish  an  orderly  and  concise  process  for  tracking, 
transmitting and  responding  to  review  comments  to maintain  the  integrity of  the project  timeline and 
budget. In the case of review comments provided by the City, guidance from the Project Director should 
be  included,  as  needed,  on whether  and  how  the  consultant  team  should  address  certain  comments 
which may be for information only (e.g., comments from advisory committee members or other outside 
reviewers) versus those involving specific, staff‐recommended revisions. 
 

241



 

 

October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 6 

Photographic Traffic Signal Enforcement System 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, discussion and possible action on 1) accepting the Red 
Light Camera Committee report; 2) approving a contract with American Traffic Solutions, 
LLC and authorizing expenditures not to exceed $300,000 annually; 3) approving the TxDOT 
Amendment to the Municipal Maintenance Agreement; and 4) public hearing, presentation, 
discussion and possible action on an Ordinance amending Chapter 10 of the Traffic Code in 
the Code of Ordinances by adding a new Section 11.    
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends 1) acceptance of the recommendations from the 
Red Light Camera Committee for the installation and operation of a photographic traffic 
signal enforcement system; 2) approval of a contract with American Traffic Solutions, LLC 
and authorizing expenditures not to exceed $300,000 annually; 3) approval of the TxDOT 
Amendment to the Municipal Maintenance Agreement; and 4) approval of the Ordinance 
amending the Traffic Code in the Code of Ordinances by adding Chapter 11, “Automated 
Traffic Signal Enforcement”. 
 
Summary: Staff has received approval from Council to move forward with a Photographic 
Traffic Signal Enforcement System in College Station based on several presentations made 
to Council over the last year.  At the September 13th and 27th Council meeting, Council 
approved appointments to a Red Light Camera Committee to advise the City of the 
installation and operation of a photographic traffic signal enforcement system in College 
Station.  This Committee has met on three (3) different occasions to review the staff 
research and findings of the red light photo enforcement program; they reviewed and 
accepted the report from our consulting traffic engineer regarding implementation of 
recommended cameras at selected intersections; and learned exactly how the program 
would operate in College Station.  
 
The following is the current timeline for this project. 

• September 2007 - Establish committee and conduct study of intersections. 
• October 2007 - Committee recommendations to Council; and Council consider 

contract and ordinance. 
• January 2008 - Warning period, develop and implement public education campaign. 
• February 2008 - Go live. 

 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available and budgeted in the Red Light Camera 
Fund.  First year expenses to ATS are expected to be approximately $300,000.  Projected 
revenue for the first year is approximately $486,000 (after 50% remitted to the State).  
Revenue proceeds can only be used for traffic safety programs, pedestrian safety programs, 
public safety programs, intersection improvements and traffic enforcement. 
 
Attachments: 

1) Red Light Camera Citizen Advisory Committee Report (to be provided at the Council 
meeting) 

2) Traffic Engineering Study – Jeff Milburn 
3) Contract with ATS for Photographic Traffic Signal Enforcement System Services 
4) TxDOT Amendment to the Municipal Agreement 
5) Ordinance amending Chapter 10 of the Traffic Code in the Code of Ordinances 

242



243



1

Table of Contents

Page
1. Introduction   2
2. Legislative Issues   3
3. Red light running   4
4. Program Goals   6
5. Prior Research   7
6. Site Selection  16
7. Red Light Camera Signs  18
8. Intersection Analysis  21
9. Conclusions  34
10. Recommendations  39
11. References  40

244



2

Introduction

Red light running is involved in  800-1000 fatality crashes in the United States every year.  An
additional 200,000 people are injured in such crashes.  These grim statistics indicate a real problem
in that people who run red lights are a hazard to themselves and others on the roadway.  The
fundamental problem is that traffic signals are supposed to create an orderly assignment of right of
way at a signalized intersection and drivers rely on that assignment when passing through such
intersections.  When someone runs a red light they are not only violating the law, they are violating
the expectation of the other drivers who are trying to use the intersection safely.  A crash occurs
when two vehicles use the same space at the same time.  Red light running creates this conflict
potential.

It is intuitively appealing that a reduction in red light running will reduce traffic crashes and
improve safety.  Based on this assumption, a number of municipalities and state transportation
agencies have begun programs to try to reduce red light running using a variety of methods.  One
such method is using red light cameras as an enforcement tool.  The use of red light cameras is
common in much of the world and both the technology and impetus to use that technology  has been
available since the late 1970's.   Some questions remain as to the effectiveness of red light camera
enforcement.  These questions will be explored in this report.  

The Texas Legislature passed SB 1119 which became effective on September 1, 2007.  This bill
authorizes and controls the municipal use of red light camera enforcement and was codified in the
Texas Transportation Code, Section 707.003.  That statute requires the completion of a traffic
engineering study to validate the need and applicability of red light camera enforcement and forms
the basis for this report.  This study was commissioned by the City of College Station to fulfill the
requirements of the statute.  

The City of College Station has proposed the use of red light cameras at five separate intersections
within their jurisdiction.  These intersections were proposed after an initial vetting process by the
City’s Engineering, Law Enforcement, Public Works  and Purchasing staff, particularly Troy Rother,
P.E., Cheryl Turney and others who must be credited with the excellent preliminary work done on
this project.  

The use of red light cameras for enforcement has been researched in the United States and abroad
for many years and recent studies in the United States indicate several interesting phenomena that
accompany the application of red light cameras.  This research and these issues will be discussed
in a following section.

245



3

Legislative Issues

The Texas Legislature recently passed Senate Bill 1119 ( Ref. 11.) which became effective
September 1, 2007.  This bill created Chapter 707 of the Transportation Code, entitled
“Photographic Traffic Signal Enforcement System” and amends Subtitle I, Title 7.  The act
authorizes local authorities (municipalities for example) to enact ordinances that require civil
penalties based on photographic traffic signal enforcement systems.  It provides that the owner of
a motor vehicle is liable to the local authority for such civil penalty if the vehicle violates the
instructions of the traffic control signal.  

It further authorizes the local authority to  implement and operate a photographic enforcement
system or contract for the implementation and operation of a system.  The statute prohibits payment
of a system contractor on the basis of a percentage of fines collected.  It requires that the local
authority conduct a traffic engineering study of each candidate approach for camera enforcement
to determine if alternatives to the system are likely to reduce the number of red light violations at
the intersection.

The Act requires that the results of the traffic engineering study be reported to a citizen advisory
committee established for that purpose and that the committee advise the local authority on the
installation and operation of the system.  The bill further requires that the local authority install
signs along each roadway that leads to an intersection at which the camera enforcement system is
in active use.  It requires that the signs be easily readable and located at least 100 feet in advance
of the intersection.  

The local authority is required, before installing the system, to compile a written report of the
number and type of traffic accidents that have occurred at the intersection for at least 18 months
prior to the date of the report.  The statute also requires that the local authority report to the Texas
Department of Transportation (TxDOT) a copy of that report within six months of the
implementation of the system.  The local authority is further required to monitor and annually
report to TxDOT the number and type of traffic accidents at each intersection to determine whether
or not the system results in a reduction in accidents or a reduction in the severity of accidents.  The
report to TxDOT shall be in writing and according to a form prescribed by TxDOT.  Reporting is
to begin in 2008.

The act specifically requires that signals subject to camera enforcement will have a change interval
(yellow plus all red) that meets the requirements of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devices (TMUTCD).   General surveillance using the system is prohibited so that only violation
of the traffic signal is at issue.  Normal enforcement measures at traffic signals are not precluded.

The statute provides for revenue sharing from the collection of civil penalties with the local
authority to retain an amount necessary to cover certain costs.  Fifty percent of the additional
revenue is to be sent to the State comptroller for deposit to the credit of the regional trauma
account.  It also caps the amount of civil penalty at $75 and prohibits a late payment penalty of
greater than $25.  The retained portion of the civil penalties over and above the costs must be spent
to fund certain programs, intersection improvements or traffic enforcement.  The act provides for
certain  procedures for administration of the program of enforcement.

246



4

Red Light Running

An operational definition is necessary for red light running (RLR).  There seems to be considerable
confusion among drivers on exactly what is meant by this term and what constitutes a violation
under the law.  The following sections of the Texas Transportation Code are applicable:

§ 541.303. INTERSECTION. 
(a) In this subtitle, "intersection" means the common area at the junction of two highways, other
than the junction of an alley and a highway. 
(b) The dimensions of an intersection include only the common area: (1) within the connection of
the lateral curb lines or, in the absence of curb lines, the lateral boundary lines of the roadways of
intersecting highways that join at approximate right angles; or (2) at the place where vehicles could
collide if traveling on roadways of intersecting highways that join at any angle other than an
approximate right angle. 

 
§ 544.007. TRAFFIC-CONTROL SIGNALS IN GENERAL. 
(a) A traffic-control signal displaying different colored lights or colored lighted arrows successively
or in combination may display only green, yellow, or red and applies to operators of vehicles as
provided by this section. 
(b) An operator of a vehicle facing a circular green signal may proceed straight or turn right or left
unless a sign prohibits the turn. The operator shall yield the right-of-way to other vehicles and to
pedestrians lawfully in the intersection or an adjacent crosswalk when the signal is exhibited. 
(c) An operator of a vehicle facing a green arrow signal, displayed alone or with another signal,
may cautiously enter the intersection to move in the direction permitted by the arrow or other
indication shown simultaneously. The operator shall yield the right-of-way to a pedestrian lawfully
in an adjacent crosswalk and other traffic lawfully using the intersection.
(d) An operator of a vehicle facing only a steady red signal shall stop at a clearly marked stop line.
(emphasis mine)  In the absence of a stop line, the operator shall stop before entering the crosswalk
on the near side of the intersection. A vehicle that is not turning shall remain standing until an
indication to proceed is shown. After stopping, standing until the intersection may be entered
safely, and yielding right-of-way to pedestrians lawfully in an adjacent crosswalk and other traffic
lawfully using the intersection, the operator may: (1) turn right; or (2) turn left, if the intersecting
streets are both one-way streets and a left turn is permissible. 

The first section, 541.303 gives the legal definition of an intersection while the second lays out the
driver’s responsibility in terms of stop location.  The underlined italicized section in 544.007 (d)
requires that when facing a steady red signal a driver must stop at (or before) the stop bar if present.
(See Figure ) This means that the driver may enter the intersection, crossing the stop bar on the last
portion of the yellow signal, but must be stopped at the stop bar when the red signal is displayed.
The yellow signal is supposed to tell drivers that caution is needed and that a red signal is
impending.  This should inform the driver to begin to slow their vehicle in anticipation of a stop

247



5

condition.  It is an unfortunate product of our times that some drivers’ response to a yellow signal
is to speed up so that they can go ahead and pass through the intersection.  When a particular

movement has a yellow signal
display, the signals for the  opposing
movements continue their red
indications to provide a clearance
interval.  

Clearance interval is defined as the
combination of yellow and all red
indications for a particular
movement at a signal.  Each green
signal indication terminates through
a clearance interval.  All red is
where all signal faces at the
intersection show a red indication so
that all traffic should be stopped at
their appropriate stop bars.

     Stop Bar and Pedestrian Marking at Intersection

This is a safety factor that is provided at some intersections to help prevent RLR crashes.  All red
intervals are typically from 1-2 seconds in length and are not required by the TMUTCD.
Additional all red does not seem to be effective in reducing RLR crashes.  Note that all red
intervals reduce the capacity of the intersection to pass traffic and increase stopped delay and
congestion.  Clearance interval is provided so that oncoming drivers may stop at the correct stop
location or, if they are too close to the intersection to stop when the signal changes to yellow, they
may proceed through the intersection safely.  

Clearance intervals are set according to guidelines in the Texas MUTCD which requires at least
3 seconds of yellow.  The values are generally set using approach speeds and may consider the
width of the intersection.  A convenient rule of thumb which has been used for many years is to
provide a yellow interval in seconds based on the speed limit in miles per hour divided by 10.  This
means that an approach speed of 60 mph would have about 6 seconds of yellow.  The Institute of
Transportation Engineers has a recommended practice for determining clearance interval based on
the approach speed, width of intersection and acceleration characteristics of the vehicle.  The
values from both methods generally are close to each other, except at very wide intersections.  ITE
values have been compared to existing values for each intersection in the individual intersection
analyses in a later section of this report.

It should be noted that once a vehicle enters the intersection legally, that is to say on a green or
yellow signal, it has the right of way to continue through the intersection.  Thus a green signal
requires that a driver yield to others already in the intersection legally under Section 544.007 ( c)
above.  The reader is referred to the section on prior  research where a discussion of the NHTSA
2005 study yielded some interesting observations on RLR incidents.  

248



6

Program Goals

The foundational goal of this red light camera (RLC) enforcement program is the improvement of
safety through the reduction of red light running (RLR) incidents.  It is based on sound research and
thorough investigation of technology by City Staff.  While the financial aspects are not a part of
this analysis, two things are relatively clear: (1 the program should be revenue neutral or positive,
and (2 the legislature intends for safety to be the primary goal of the RLC programs rather than
revenue production.  

It is also a goal of the program to train drivers to respect red light requirements.  Some drivers run
red lights by accident, simply by not paying sufficient attention. The additional awareness provided
by the required advance signs and the community awareness of the program may reduce this type
of RLR incident.  Another group of RLR develops from drivers being aggressive about how they
approach an intersection.  It is hoped that the consistent nature of this RLC enforcement program
will teach drivers who choose to drive this way that there are consequences to this path of action.
Such consistency is not available through conventional enforcement methods.  

The research shows an additional avenue of safety improvement from RLC enforcement.
Reduction in RLR incidents is not only reported at the intersections where RLC’s are installed but
at adjacent intersections as well.  This “halo” effect is reasonably the product of additional
community awareness and general driver improvement from the increased enforcement.  Typically
both RLR citations and RLR crashes decrease with increasing age of the system as has been the
experience of the Garland, Texas program.  In addition to these benefits it is generally the position
of law enforcement officials that RLC installations allow them to allocate their resources to other
enforcement applications.  

While the value of a RLC enforcement program may be limited to reduction in RLR incidents and
the attending crashes there is considerable benefit to be gained.  The reduction in crashes has been
shown to produce significant reductions in human and economic costs that result from crashes.
Reduction in lost wages, medical costs and other social costs related to injuries and deaths are
some of the justifications for RLC installations. 

The fact that a program produces revenue does not mean that safety is not its primary goal.  In this
case the legislature has required the use of excess revenues produced by the program to be used for
enforcement or traffic improvements.  This provision, which was already the intent of the City of
College Station, will produce additional safety benefits over and above those produced directly by
the reduction of RLR incidents.  The excess funds can be utilized to implement additional safety
improvements through additional enforcement at other intersections and geometric or signal
improvements at intersections in the area.   Some geometric improvement suggestions are included
in the intersection analysis section of this report.  Such improvements may be beneath the level of
a capital improvement project but may also be too large for City forces to implement.  The revenue
source anticipate from the RLC program might reasonably fill this niche requirement.  

Specific discussion of the anticipated safety improvements is included in the subsequent section
of this report on prior research.  It is clear that a reduction in RLR incidents is expected from the
implementation of this program.   

249



7

Prior Research

The following information has been distilled from various recent research on the subject of red
light running (RLR) and red light camera (RLC) enforcement.  The emphasis of much of this
research is to determine the nature of red light running and the effectiveness of such measures in
promoting safety.  As such research methods, data availability, depth of the investigation, statistical
methods and other factors can affect the conclusions presented.  This study does not specifically
adopt or contradict the existing research and is not intended to do so.  This information does,
however, form some basis for the conclusions and recommendations contained herein.  In some
cases the research reports cited include information from wider research sources.  That information
is included where appropriate.  

The research shows a clear correlation between the installation of RLC’s and a reduction in RLR
incidents.  The research further shows, with one exception, an increase in relative safety from the
introduction of RLC enforcement.  It is important to note that much of the research indicates an
accompanying increase in rear end collisions along with the reduction of crossing and turning
movement collisions.  Some reports indicate a slight increase in total collisions.  An important
variable to understand is that crossing or turning movement collisions tend to be more severe, with
more serious injuries and fatalities, than rear end crashes.  So, in effect, we are trading in more
severe crashes with the understanding that the installation of RLC enforcement may increase the
less severe crashes.  This is generally deemed acceptable and is considered an improvement in
intersection safety.  

The report that goes against all the others is the Burkey/Obeng study (2004) sponsored by the
Urban  Transit Institute.  This study indicates decreases in intersection safety from the introduction
of RLC enforcement measures.  It is also critical of other studies for their lack of rigorous statistical
analysis and experimental controls.  The criticism of the statistical analysis of the other reports is
interesting.  Its basis is that the individual reports fail to perform certain statistical procedures to
insure that the improvements in safety that were found are statistically significant, that is that the
improvement is not the result of mere chance.  The criticism is valid in that the individual reports
do not perform the statistical tests, chi square for example, on their data and cannot individually
say that the safety improvements reported are not the result of chance at a 95% confidence level.
Collectively,  however, the abundance of data indicating safety improvements from RLC
enforcement is clear.  RLC enforcement improves safety at intersections, subject to the above
mentioned trade-offs.  

HSIS Study (2000) (Ref. 1.)

The major questions addressed by this study are whether or not the width of the cross-street have
any effect on RLR crash risk, and whether or not other intersection characteristics affect RLR
crashes.

This analysis can lead to better targeting of urban intersections for RLC enforcement.  Records
from California’s crash information files were selected for analysis because the provide detailed
records on violations and fault,  along with the availability of intersection characteristic data.  The
analysis contained 1756 urban intersections and 4709 two vehicle RLR crashes for a 4 year period.

250



8

A limited contingency analysis was done to examine the similarities and differences between RLR
crashes and all crashes at the intersections.  Regression models were developed to examine the
effects of intersection characteristics on RLR crashes. 
Results were as follows:

1. Increases in the number of cross street lanes indicated increases in RLR crashes from the
cross street but not from the main street.

2. RLR crashes increased with increases in main street average daily traffic (ADT) as well as
increases in cross street ADT per lane.  

3. Fully actuated signals have higher incidence of RLR crashes than similar semi-actuated or
pre-timed signals.  There was a 35-39% increase in RLR crashes between similar fully
actuated and pre-timed signals. 

National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP)  310 (2003) (Ref. 2)

Synthesis was undertaken to address the safety issue of RLR.  The objective was to determine what
impact RLR camera enforcement has had on crashes and related severity.  Identification of factors
such as geometry, operations, signage, public outreach were considered important.  Existing
information was gathered and relied upon and no new data was collected.  

Findings:

1. A preponderance of evidence, though not conclusive, indicates that RLC improve the
overall safety of the intersections where they are used.

2. Angle crashes are usually reduced and in some cases rear end crashes increase, but to a
lesser extent.

3. There is evidence of a “spillover” effect to other nearby signalized intersections.
4. No research adequately addresses the effects of intersection design, warning signs, level of

fines or public outreach on observed crash changes.
5. Much of the research exhibited flaws in the design of the experiment, particularly the lack

of a proper control group and adequate statistical analysis.  

Data:

1. From 1992 to 1996 almost 6000 fatalities were involved in RLR crashes in the US.
2. Another 1,400,000 were injured in RLR crashes.
3. Approximately 260,000 RLR crashes were estimated to have occurred in the US annually.
4. In 1997, using a narrow definition of RLR crashes, 97,000 RLR crashes occurred resulting

in 961 fatalities.
5. A questionnaire was distributed to more than 50 jurisdictions that have installed RLC’s.
6. Effective experimental design for treatment evaluation uses a before/after design with a

randomized control group.
7. The “halo” effect may influence true comparison or control group sites.
8. The regression to the mean issue affects the analysis of the variability of crash statistics.
9. RLC  enforcement has been used in Australia since 1979.  Early results had mixed reporting

251



9

of the analysis of effectiveness.
10. Additional study in Australia based on 46 camera equipped intersections compared with 50

non-camera equipped intersections reported a questionable statistically significant
reduction in right-angle crashes with no statistically significant changes in all other
categories of crashes.  

11. Another Australian study of 8 RLC  sites concluded that there were observed reductions in
casualty producing crashes but since the cameras were rotated between sites the presence
of cameras themselves did not provide evidence of crash reduction.  Sites with RLC’s  and
other modifications such as geometric improvements showed greater reductions in crashes.

12. A 1995 Australian study of 41 signalized intersections in Melbourne concluded that RLC’s
did not provide a statistically significant reduction in crashes.

13. Studies in Great Britain yielded similar mixed results with some analyses claiming a
statistically significant reduction in crashes while some showed no statistically significant
improvement.   

14. A study in Singapore of some 125 camera locations indicated reductions in crash
experience despite a 22% growth in traffic volume during the study period.  A chi-square
test indicated a lack of statistical significance. 

15. Studies in Oxnard, San Diego and San Francisco, California; Mesa, Arizona; Polk County,
Florida and Howard County, Maryland similarly indicate a mixture of statistically
significant and non-statistically significant improvements in crash experience at RLC  sites.

16. All studies cited showed reduced crashes and reduced red light running at sites with RLR
cameras installed.  Occasional intersections were reported with no reduction in crashes or
slight increases in crashes. 

17. Many studies conclude that there is a reduction in RLR violations from the installation of
camera enforcement.

Proposed Scope of RLC  Studies:

1. Collect and archive detailed traffic flow data.
2. Collect detailed roadway inventory information and record when changes are programmed

at the intersections.
3. Collect and maintain good quality crash data and save as many years of collision data as

possible.
4. Employ robust study design, ideally before/after analysis with comparison group controls.
5. Consider not only the number of crashes but also the type and severity of crashes.
6. Carefully select comparison sites that are as similar as possible to the camera sites.
7. Be aware of the spillover or “halo” effect.
8. Use as many years of crash data as possible.
9. Use rigorous statistical analysis.

Remaining Questions:

1. Is there a spillover effect?
2. Are the safety benefits lasting?

252



10

Ontario Study (2003) (Ref. 3.)

The Ontario Red Light Camera Pilot Project Act of 1998 enabled municipalities in Ontario
province to operate RLR cameras for two years.  Six separate municipalities participated by
installing two treatment methodologies including RLC  placement at 68 signalized intersections
and stepped-up police enforcement at 27 signalized intersections.   Before/after evaluations were
made to assess the safety effects of the two treatments and the cost benefit relationship was
investigated.

Nineteen RLR camera sites and seventeen stepped-up police enforcement sites were selected along
with twelve local comparison sites.   The safety evaluation was completed using the Empirical
Bayes method.  Crash data was obtained for 179 signalized intersections to develop a Safety
Performance Function parameter to be used in estimating expected safety performance for collision
frequency.  These statistical predictors of collision frequency were then applied to the subject
intersections for the study period to develop the expected crash frequency had improvements not
been made.  All collision types were studied but the angle collisions and rear end collisions were
separated for analysis.  

The analysis of fatal and injury crashes indicated a 6.8% decrease overall collisions with a 25.3%
decrease in angle collisions and a 4.9% increase in rear end collisions.  Property damage crashes
showed an overall increase with a 17.9% decrease in angle collisions and a 49.9% increase in rear
end collisions.  

Benefits attributed to the program included cost savings from a reduction in fatalities and injuries,
the increased cost of property damages and a reduced burden on the health care system and
emergency services.  Costs of various types were included in the benefit/cost analysis including:
ongoing operational costs, capital costs, administrative costs, fine collection and disposition costs,
court costs, additional police costs.  The total benefit/cost indicated a 1.57 ratio of benefits to costs.

The study concluded that the implementation of the safety improvements should be continued and
was economically viable.  The improvements were shown to be an effective tool in reducing fatal
and injury collisions.

Urban Transit Institute, Burkey & Obeng (2004) (Ref. 4)

This study considers a large data set including 303 signalized intersections with 26 months of crash
data before the installation of RLC’s and 31 months of crash data after installation.  It further
considers presence or absence of RLC’s, weather, traffic and other variables in the analysis as well
as breaking the crash data down into crash types and severity classes.  Criticisms of this study
include the lack of non-RLC control intersections and regression to the mean considerations for
the use of only high crash intersections.  Conclusions were as follows:

1. The results do not support the view that RLC’s reduce overall crashes and may increase
crash experience.

2. RLC’s produced a statistically significant 40% increase in total crashes.

253



11

3. RLC’s produced a statistically significant increase in rear end, left turning from the same
roadway and sideswipe crashes.

4. RLC’s produced a reduction in right angle turning crashes from intersecting roadways.
5. RLC’s were found to have a statistically significant and 40-50% increase in property

damage only crashes.
6. There was a slight positive, but statistically insignificant increase in severe crashes.
7. Additional study is warranted because this study conflicts with many other studies of RLC

effects.

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) (2005) (Ref. 5.)

This study presents results from an analysis of almost 47,000 red light violation records from 11
intersections in Sacramento, California between May, 1999 and June, 2003.  The study reports
findings on driver and intersection factors and circumstances that may be used to predict red light
running rates.   The study finds that only 35 percent of the pictures taken by the Sacramento system
resulted in violation citations.  The study used only the valid citation data in its analysis.  Findings
are as follows:

1. Younger drivers under 30 years of age are more likely to run red lights than drivers of any
other age group.

2. Most red light violations occur during the day time.  
3. The peak hour for red light violations was the hour between 2:00 and 3:00 p.m.
4. The most frequent speeds recorded were 17-19 mph.
5. The average vehicle speed for a red light violation was 31.6 mph.
6. The highest posted speed limit in the study area was 45 mph.
7. 56 percent of the violators were traveling at or below the posted speed limit.
8. Approximately 94 percent of the violations occurred within 2 seconds of red onset.
9. About 3 percent of red violations occurred more than 5 seconds after red onset.
10. About 4 percent of the violators had previous red light violations.
11. Red light violators at intersections with heavy traffic volumes have a lower probability of

speeding.
12. Red light violators between 7:00 p.m and 6:00 a.m. have a higher probability of speeding.
13. Motorists who run a red light with high clearance intervals are more likely to drive through

the intersection when the elapsed time since red onset is greater than 2 seconds.

Virginia DOT Study (2005) (Ref. 6.)

RLR caused almost 5000 crashes in Virginia in 2003 resulting in at least 18 deaths and more than
3800 injuries.  Virginia Secretary of Transportation W. W. Clement directed an evaluation of RLR
camera enforcement for use in considering the statute which authorized such programs was set to
expire in July 2005.  The study considers technical feasibility, fiscal feasibility and operational
feasibility, that is whether the programs improve safety.   Operational and technical information
was collected from seven Virginia jurisdictions that operated RLC enforcement programs
including, Alexandria,  Arlington, Fairfax City, Fairfax County, Falls Church, Vienna, and Virginia

254



12

Beach.  Crash data and citation data were collected from as many entities as possible during the
six month study period.  Additionally, a public opinion study was made in five locations to support
the analysis.  

Findings:

1. Generally, Virginia’s RLC enforcement programs pass the test of technical feasibility.  The
systems work properly and are supported by case law in the three key areas of privacy,
equal protection and due process.  The programs also appear to have public support based
on the survey results which indicate that roughly two-thirds of the more than 500
respondents support the effort.  

2. The analysis of fiscal feasibility did not include social impacts such as changes in crash
related costs and injury costs which would normally be accounted for.  Based only on
current fiscal costs the program is questionable.  The equipment costs vary depending on
whether the vendor charges their fee based on gross citations or valid citations.  Equipment
malfunctions and data capture errors can result in invalid citations which reduce the
revenue stream.  

3. The revenue/cost ratios varied from 0.62 to 1.03 in the various jurisdictions.  Variations in
what administrative cost factors were included  and equipment costs probably account for
this difference.  The data show that generally local entities are not generating net revenue
when the social cost benefits are not included in the analysis.

4. Operational feasibility is defined as the impact of the RLC enforcement program on crashes
and citations.  Across the 23 intersections studied citations decreased by an average of 34%
while the greatest decreases were seen in the highest citation intersections.  The RLR
cameras are definitely reducing citations.

5. The data suggests that RLC enforcement reduced the number of crashes directly attributable
to RLR.  Further analysis indicates that the cameras are contributing to a definite increase
in rear end crashes and a possible decrease in right angle crashes.  There was a net decrease
in injury crashes attributable to RLR while total injury crashes increased.  The hypothesis
that the net severity would be reduced since the RLR crashes tend to be more severe is
plausible but unproven by this study since this data was not separated. 

6. The safety of police officers was not studied, however, for some intersections officers
indicated that they could not safely pursue motorists that had run a red light through the
intersections.  

7. Limitations to the study include lack of equipment and equipment testing standards, lack
of consistency between jurisdictions  in accounting for program costs, and lack of detailed
analysis of crash severity.

8. Consideration of the reduction in citations should be made in determining economic
feasibility.

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) (2005) (Ref. 7.)

The objective of this study was to determine the effectiveness of RLC systems in reducing crashes.
The study used Empirical Bayes (EB) before/after analysis using data from seven jurisdictions
across the United States including 132 treatment sites.  It includes consideration of the economic

255



13

effects of crashes and specially derived rear end and right-angle unit crash costs for various severity
levels.

The results of the economic analysis indicates a positive aggregate crash cost/benefit of RLC
systems.  The study found a decrease in right-angle crashes and an increase in rear end crashes,
which is consistent with prior studies.  The study indicates that the greatest benefits of RLC
systems are found at the highest volume sites and those with the highest ratio of right-angle to rear
end crashes.  There were weak indicators of a spillover effect and additional research is needed to
clarify that issue. 

The findings of this study are as follows:

1. RLR is a major safety problem at urban and rural intersections and produces more than
100,000 crashes and 1000 fatalities per year in the United States.

2. Literature review indicates a variety of results from previous studies of this topic with the
bulk of prior work tending to support the conclusion that RLR cameras reduce right-angle
crashes and could increase rear end crashes.  

3. Most prior research is tainted by methodological difficulties which render their conclusions
in doubt.

4. These difficulties include lack of consideration of regression to the mean (RTM), which
can exaggerate positive results while ignoring possible spillover effects which may lead to
an underestimation of RLC effectiveness.  

5. The EB method employed seeks to reduce the RTM problem. 
6. Unit crash costs were developed by FHWA using the KABCO crash severity scale and the

AIS injury severity scale.
7. Seven jurisdictions including El Cajon, San Diego and San Francisco, California; Howard

Bounty, Montgomery County and Baltimore, Maryland; and Charlotte, North Carolina were
used for data collection.

8. RLR crashes were rigorously defined.
9. The results indicate a modest spillover effect on right-angle crashes which was not mirrored

in the rear end crash effects.
10. Economic effects which do not include property damage only (PDO) crashes are estimated

at approximately $50,000 per year per intersection.
11. Economic effects including property damage only (PDO) crashes are estimated at $39,000

per year per intersection.
12. Disaggregate analysis found the greatest economic benefit at intersections with the highest

entering AADT and those with the largest ratio of right-angle to rear end crashes.
Additional factors included shorter cycle lengths, highest AADT on the major road, and
presence of protected/permissive left turn phases.  The use of warning signs and high
publicity levels also contributed to the benefits.

13. The RLC systems provide a modest aggregate crash-cost benefit.
14. Careful selection of sites can maximize the benefits.

256



14

City of Milwaukee (2006) (Ref. 8.)

This study was done largely by graduate students at LaFollette School of Public Affairs and
University of Wisconsin - Madison in conjunction with the budget office of the City of Milwaukee.
The primary goal of the study is to determine the economic feasibility of a RLC enforcement
program.  Benefits included were reducing the number of crashes at problematic intersections in
Milwaukee and the revenue stream produced by RLR citations.  

Findings are as follows:

1. In the United States more than 100 communities and 11 major cities use RLR cameras to
help mitigate the serious concern over RLR crashes.

2. More than 206,000 crashes and 934 fatalities along with 176,000 injuries were caused by
RLR incidents in the United States per year.  The societal cost of RLR is estimated at $14
billion per year.

3. In the three years analyzed, from 2001 to 2004, the City of Milwaukee averaged 1342
crashes, 650 of which involved injuries, and three involving fatalities per year. 

4. The estimated social cost of these crashes is $131 million per year. 
5. The report estimates the economic benefit from installing RLC’s at 13 of the cities 44 most

dangerous intersections.  The study assumes that right-angle crashes will be reduced by
35% while rear end crashes will increase by 58% during the period.  

6. The net present benefit was estimated to be $7.6 million for the 5 years.
7. An additional $4.8 million in citation revenue would be generated.
8. The study recommends the implementation of a RLC program.

Insurance Institute for Highway Safety (2007) (Ref. 9.)

This study evaluated the incremental effects of lengthening the duration of the yellow signal
interval and RLC enforcement on the reduction of RLR violations.  Six approaches to two
intersections in Philadelphia were selected to receive an increase of 1 second in yellow interval
duration followed several months later by the installation of RLR cameras.  The number of RLR
violations was monitored before the initial change, several weeks after the change in timing, and
about 1 year after the commencement of RLC enforcement.  Similar observations were made at
three comparison intersections in a neighboring state where RLR cameras were not used and timing
changes were not made. 

Findings are as follows:

1. The study shows that adequate yellow timing reduces RLR violations.
2. The study shows that longer yellow timing alone does not eliminate the need for better

enforcement.
3. An analysis of nationwide fatal crashes at signalized intersections in 1999-2000 indicated

that an estimated 20% of the vehicles failed to obey the traffic signal.   Another study

257



15

indicated the violation rate of 3.2 violations per hour during peak hours.
4. An Insurance Institute study indicates that in 2005 more than 800 people were killed and

more than 165,000 people were injured in crashes that involved RLR. About half of these
fatalities were pedestrians or occupants of other vehicles that were struck by the RLR
violator.

5. A cross sectional study of 20 intersections in three cities found that the frequency of RLR
was higher at locations where yellow signal intervals were below suggested engineering
guidelines.

6. An analysis of RLR violations where the yellow interval was increased from 3-4 seconds
at four urban intersections and from 5-6 seconds at two rural intersections resulted in a 50%
reduction in RLR violations. 

7. Two additional studies indicated significant reductions in RLR violations where ITE
guidelines for the yellow clearance interval were instituted.  

8. Several studies in the US of RLC enforcement programs indicated reductions in RLR
violations by from 40-78 percent.  Some of these decreases declined in the ensuing six
months. 

9. The intersections selected for this study were considered high crash locations.
10. Violation rates prior to implementation of any improvements ranged from 8-251 violations

per 10,000 vehicle entries at the study sites and from 9-21 violations per 10,000 entries at
the comparison sites. 

11. The probability of a violation at the study sites was reduced by 36% at a 95% confidence
interval based on improvements to the yellow interval.  

12. The probability of a violation at the study sites was reduced by an additional 96% at a 95%
confidence interval from the RLC enforcement.

13. Both probabilities were adjusted for the changes in the control group.
14. The study period for the increases in yellow interval were relatively short and some

adaptation to the longer interval may be shown by a longer study period. 

258



16

Site Selection

The selection of sites for the implementation of red light camera (RLC) enforcement is somewhat
subjective, although certain criteria may be used for guidance.  Keep in mind that each approach
to an intersection is a separate installation.   Generally, programs for RLC enforcement have relied
on certain data such as traffic volume, red light running (RLR) citations and crash experience to
select intersections at which to implement RLC enforcement installations.  There are several
potential issues when using these data, however.  It may be expected that RLR citations would be
an effective measure of potential safety improvements from reducing red light running.  The
problem with this is that conventional enforcement measures are not consistently applied at all
intersections within a jurisdiction.  Conventional enforcement of RLR requires that a police officer
watch for an RLR incident, usually sitting in a police car or on a motorcycle. Such officers are
exposed to significant risks when making these observations and understandably choose
intersections which offer locations for such observations from a position where the risk is reduced
and pursuit of the offender is reasonable.  Some intersections are just more difficult to perform
RLR enforcement on, however, such intersections may be good candidates for RLC enforcement.
Similarly, gross crash data may not be a reliable predictor of RLR crashes and may be highly
variable from year to year.  Traffic crashes are, fortunately, rare events and statistical factors make
reliance on crash data as an accurate predictor of future intersection safety difficult.

The best predictor of RLR incidents is to measure RLR incidents.  The correlation between RLR
incidents and intersection safety is relatively clear as discussed in the research section above.
Although none of the research reviewed utilized RLR incident frequency as a selection criterion
for RLC enforcement implementation, it is intuitively appealing since a reduction in RLR is
precisely what is desirable in RLC enforcement programs.  Fortunately, the site selection was based
on exactly this fundamental variable, RLR frequency.  

As most readers will know, there is a significant ongoing construction project along Texas Avenue
which has rendered the configuration of that roadway between George Bush Dr.  and Harvey
Mitchell Pkwy. variable.  Because of this, intersections along Texas Avenue which would
otherwise have been candidates for RLC enforcement have not been considered for this initial
phase of implementation.  The reasons for this are twofold.  Construction along a major
thoroughfare, which Texas Avenue is, and which carries significant traffic volumes, as Texas
Avenue does, creates a difficult and sometimes confusing environment for drivers.  As was
discussed in the section on research above, the introduction of RLC enforcement tends to increase
the occurrence of rear end crashes.  This question has not been the subject of adequate research at
this juncture to provide confidence that the introduction of RLC enforcement would not exacerbate
the safety hazards inherent in a complicated work zone.  As such, it is considered undesirable to
introduce an additional factor into this equation as the implementation of RLC enforcement might.

Additionally, the configuration of the camera equipment at an RLC location requires some care to
accurately observe the vehicles as they approach the marked stop location.  This observation forms
the basis of the determination of a RLR incident.  Some intersections along the Texas Avenue
project have temporary configurations of lane assignment and for the stop bar location.   If RLC
enforcement is implemented during the construction project the cameras may have to be re-targeted

259



17

after each phase of construction is complete.  These two items form the basis for not considering
intersections which are involved in the current Texas Avenue construction project during the first
phase of implementation of RLC enforcement.  These intersections could certainly be considered
for future phases of implementation.

The City of College Station has done an excellent job of pre-contract investigation and has selected
a vendor for the equipment and operational implementation of the potential  program based on a
complete program of proposals, questionnaires and visits to existing sites in other cities from three
separate candidate vendors.  This program utilized certain parameters including traffic volume and
judgement of local conditions as a basis for investigating eleven selected potential sites.  These
sites were as follows:

INTERSECTION DIR # RLR DIR #RLR

1. South College at University Dr. NB      2 SB      2
2. Texas Ave. At University Dr. NB      3 SB     3
3. University Dr. at Tarrow EB      1 WB     4
4. Texas Ave. at Walton Dr. NB    11 SB     4
5. Harvey Rd. at Munson EB    15 WB     6
6. Harvey Rd. at George Bush Dr. East EB      1 WB     9
7. Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr. NB    14 SB     3
8. Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy. NB      8 SB     2
9. Harvey Mitchell Pkwy. at Longmire Dr. EB      2 WB     3
10. Longmire Dr. at Rock Prairie NB      3 SB     2
11. Wellborn Rd. at Rock Prairie NB      3 SB     0

These potential sites were investigated using video detection of red light running on the two
specified  approaches for eight hours on a single day around the peak hours for traffic volume. 
The video investigation was done in early March, 2007 (prior to spring break) utilizing the finally
selected equipment vendor who reviewed the videos and selected candidate red light running
incidents.  The entire video for each intersection was provided for review as was a selection of the
video of red light running incidents (no citations were issued).  The vendor indicates that, based
on prior experience, the number of red light running incidents represented in the videos should be
about 75-80 percent of what would be expected in a 24 hour period at the same locations.  The
number of red light running incidents for the eight hour sample period is shown in the table above.

Of the intersections listed above, five approaches stood out as candidates for RLC enforcement
based on actual numbers of RLR incidents as identified in the video survey.  These are the selected
intersection approaches for RLC implementation:

1. Northbound Texas Ave. at Walton Dr.
2. Eastbound Harvey Rd. at Munson
3. Westbound Harvey Rd. at George Bush Dr. East
4. Northbound Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr.
5. Northbound Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy.

260



18

Red Light Camera Signs

As a part of the legislation that forms the basis of the installation of red light cameras (RLC) by
municipalities there is a requirement for signing on the chosen approach.  The language in SB 1119
is as follows:

“(g) The local authority shall install signs along each roadway that leads to an intersection at which
a photographic traffic signal enforcement system is in active use.  The signs must be at least 100
feet from the intersection or located according to standards established in the manual adopted by
the Texas Transportation Commission under Section 544.001, be easily readable to any operator
approaching the intersection, and clearly indicate the presence of a photographic monitoring system
that records violations that may result in the issuance of a notice of violation and the imposition
of a monetary penalty.”

The manual spoken of in this section is the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices
(TMUTCD) which is developed by the Texas Department of Transportation.  It is based on a
national manual that is approved by the Federal Highway Administration.  The manual sets forth
guidelines and principles for the signing of public roadways so that consistency of application is
achieved regardless of the location of the jurisdiction.   There is currently no sign in the inventory
of standard signs that meets the requirements of SB 1119.  

There are two specific types of signs in the TMUTCD which might be applicable to the subject
installation.  A regulatory sign, generally with black letters on a white background, may be used
to notify drivers of a regulatory condition or change in regulatory conditions.  Some familiar
regulatory signs are shown below:

It is obvious that as the legend becomes more complex the letters become smaller, the message will
be more difficult to comprehend by a passing motorist and the usefulness of the application may
decrease accordingly.   Since there is no standard sign it cannot be reasonably expected that
motorists will recognize the message by its size and content based on prior experience.  They will
have to read and comprehend the legend as they pass by.   One can recognize the potential
difficulty in having a complex  application work by considering what it might be like to see and
read the sign on the above right for the first time.   Regulatory signs are generally placed at or near
where the regulation apply.  They are intended to inform the driver of selected traffic laws and

261



19

indicate the applicability of legal requirements.  

Another applicable category of signs would be warning signs.  Warning signs are generally yellow
and diamond shaped and have word or symbol legends in black.  Warning signs are placed in
advance of a condition which requires warning the driver of some condition of the roadway that
requires extra care.  Some typical warning signs are shown below:

  

These warning signs vary from obvious in the condition warned of in the case of the left sign,  to
perhaps less than obvious in the case of the middle sign.  A supplemental plaque may be attached
to any warning sign when engineering judgement indicates a need for additional information for
the driver.  Supplemental plaques are generally square or rectangular and are yellow as well.  

The requirements of the legislature are as follows:
1. Signs are required for any system in active use
2. At least 100 feet from intersection
3. According to TMUTCD
4. Easily readable
5. Clearly indicates presence of RLC system that records violations and may result in notice

of a violation and imposition of monetary penalty.

Each of these requirements is clear and relatively straight forward under the TMUTCD, except for
the last one.  The limitations of both regulatory and warning signs in terms of simplicity and
standardization prevent the use of complex messages which might specifically indicate monetary
penalties or notice of violation.  These concepts must be communicated through simple
comprehensible messages that meet the guidelines of the TMUTCD.   

An additional factor that bears consideration is the tendency for RLC installations to result in
potential increases in rear end crashes.  Part of the problem here is that this requirement is so new
that no research has been done on the subject.  The use of regulatory signs would tend to support
the fulfillment of Item 6 above but would generally be placed near the intersection, perhaps at the
100 foot distance.  The use of warning signs may reduce the incidence of rear end crashes and
would generally be placed in advance of the intersection based on TMUTCD guidelines with
increased separation distance related to the approach speed.    The TMUTCD generally stands for
consistency in application and there is little chance of that at this point because there is very little
application of these signs to this point. 

The following sign application reasonably fulfills the requirements of the legislature when coupled

262



20

with a reasonable public information campaign.  The sign combination recommended uses one
regulatory sign to reinforce the stop location and an advance warning sign to alert drivers well
ahead of the intersection of a specific condition that may require adjustment of speed.  TxDOT,
by recent memorandum, has indicated that it will allow either regulatory or warning signs to be
used with RLC installations.

                                   

The sign on the left would be placed on the right side of the road adjacent to the stop bar at the
intersection approach where the RLC installation is made.  The stop bars should be well marked
and well maintained.  The warning sign should be placed in advance of the intersection on the right
hand side of the road, separated from other signs and driveways and clearly visible to traffic.  The
warning sign is a standard signal ahead sign and should be 48" by 48" since the intersections
recommended for RLC enforcement are generally major arterial streets.  The supplemental plaque
should be 30" by 24" and should use standard lettering sizes.   All signs used should be
reflectorized.    The minimum distance from the stop bar to the warning sign should be based on
approach speed according to the following table which is based on accepted stopping sight
distances (AASHTO, Ref. 13):

Approach Speed (Mph.) Distance from Stop Bar (Ft.)

1.           30 mph. 200 ft.
2.           35 mph. 250 ft.
3.           40 mph. 305 ft.
4.           45 mph. 360 ft.
5.           50 mph. 425 ft.
6.           55 mph. 495 ft.

263



21

Intersection Analysis

In this section of the report each candidate intersection will be analyzed and discussed as to the
applicability of red light camera (RLC) enforcement, existing signalization and alternative
improvements.   Some of the data is best presented together as in Table 2 below.  This features
traffic volumes, citation data and crash history for the candidate approaches.   Recall that only one
approach to each intersection is chosen for RLC implementation during this phase.  Volume data
(2005) is presented as average daily traffic (ADT) for both approaches on the subject roadway (not
the cross street) and crash data is for years 2005-2007 (to date).  Traffic volumes are from TxDOT
data provided on the diagram below.  

Each intersection has been analyzed to
determine if certain elements are present
that might make the subject approach a
good or bad candidate for RLC
enforcement.  Such elements include
traffic volume, geometry of the
intersection approach, existing signal
timing, clearance interval, approach sight
distance and approach speed.  Other
factors considered include potential
improvements that could increase
intersection safety without camera
enforcement.  These potential
improvements are not prioritized nor is it
indicated that such improvements are
needed to render the intersection
reasonably safe.  There are frequently
intersection improvements available for
potential implementation whether or not
funding exists to do them.  In the
following detailed sections north is at the
top of the page in the overhead photos. 

Traffic Volume Map

The following intersection data is provided in tabular form.

INTERSECTION DIR # RLR #RLR # RL Total ADT

Video Citations Crashes Crashes Volume

1. Texas Ave. at Walton Dr. NB    11  783    6    16 48000

2. Harvey Rd. at Munson EB    15    29    6    12 19330

3. Harvey Rd. at George Bush Dr. East WB      9    29    6    14 17950

4. Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr. NB    14    36    2    41 22980

5. Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy. NB      8    10    4    60 24360

264



22

Texas Avenue at Walton Drive - Northbound Approach

Certainly a familiar location, this major intersection forms the “east gate” for Texas A&M
University, the heart of College Station.  The study approach is northbound on Texas Avenue, the
major north-south surface arterial in the city.  This section of Texas Avenue has recently undergone
a major expansion project which added traffic lanes, expanded raised curb medians and provide
some access management through restricted median openings and driveway restrictions.   This is
one of the older areas in the city with major neighborhoods to the east and commercial
development to the south.  Southern sections of Texas Avenue are currently being widened and
improved.  

As can be seen on the adjacent figure, the
northbound approach is straight and level for
some considerable distance.  There are three
through lanes with one left turn lane. No sight
line obstructions or stopping distance issues
exist on this approach.  A long left turn bay is
provided for traffic turning into the University
and abnormal congestion is not a common
occurrence here.  The speed limit on the
approach is 40 mph. and reasonably represents
the 85 percentile speeds.   As can be seen
from the table above this is a favorite and
productive location for conventional
enforcement.  There are numerous areas for
observation by Police for RLR citations.
There are generous right turn lanes provided
on all approaches and the traffic flow at the
intersection is relatively smooth and free
flowing for most hours of the day.  

   Texas Ave. at Walton Dr.

Signal timings along Texas Avenue are well maintained in this area.  While excellent progression
on some other sections of the corridor is an elusive goal, this section performs well at most times
of day.  Existing clearance intervals are generous.  Texas Avenue is given 4 seconds of yellow and
2 seconds of all red for a total clearance interval of 6 seconds.  The ITE value for this approach is
5.5 seconds. All red intervals in excess of 2 seconds are not recommended and no improvement
from adjustments to signal timing can be expected for reducing RLR experience on this approach.

Geometrically there are few improvements to make at this intersection.  Signals are clearly visible
on this approach and adherence to required stop location should be good.   The voluminous citation
numbers for this intersection are a testimony to the relative safety of an officer making those traffic
stops and the volume of red light running traffic here.  The northbound approach and stop area
condition are portrayed below.

265



23

It is expected that RLC
enforcement will work well at
this intersection.  The
roadside areas are relatively
clear of above ground utilities
except for street lights and
traffic signal installations.
Subsurface utilities have not
been investigated but there is
some flexibility in the
location of RLC hardware so
that this should not be a
significant problem.  As can
be seen below, the stop
location is clearly marked in
advance of a well marked and
well used pedestrian crossing.

Northbound Approach - Texas Ave. at Walton Dr.

 Numerous pedestrians and
b i c yc l i s t s  f r o m  t h e
University  access the
residential areas to the east
of this intersection. The
approach speed limit is 40
mph in this vicinity.  This
should lead to a location for
the warning sign about 305
feet in advance of the stop
bar.  This should provide
sufficient warning for a
potential stop condition.
The treatment of this
intersection with RLC
enforcement measures
appears to be justified in
terms of the nature and

 Stop Location - NB Texas Ave. at Walton Dr.

configuration of the intersection and the degree of RLR incidents measured there.  The crash
history forms some basis for this as the ratio of RLR crashes to other crashes is relatively high.  As
such, improvement in crash history may be expected from RLC enforcement application.  This
intersection is a good candidate for RLC implementation.

266



24

Harvey Road at Munson Drive - Eastbound Approach

This location is the intersection of a major residential collector, Munson Drive, with a major
arterial street, Harvey Road.  Harvey Road runs nominally east and west and Munson runs north
from this “T” intersection.  This intersection forms the eastern portion of an offset pair with
Dartmouth which intersects Harvey Rd. just to the west of Munson and heads south from there.
The function of this offset pair has been a thorn in the side of the City of College Station for many
years and will continue to be so.  That being said, Harvey Rd. functions reasonably well at most
hours of the day, the exception being the peak evening period when congestion is significant.  The
intersection is portrayed below:

As can be seen in the overhead view, the roadway is straight and relatively level for a considerable
distance on the eastbound approach.  There
are two through lanes in each direction with
a left turn bay provided for the eastbound
movement.  A remnant of an extremely
narrow raised curb persists in this vicinity
although its delineation and separation
capability is nearly negligible.  The lanes are
relatively narrow, including the left turn lane.
The left turn bay is short due to the proximity
of the Dartmouth intersection, therefore
traffic queues in the left turn lane frequently
block the inside through lane.   The south side
of the intersection is a private driveway that
is aligned with Munson and is not signalized
for crossing traffic.  Right turns in and out of
this driveway are allowed, although they
probably would not be if the intersection were
designed today.  The approach speed limit is
40 mph.

Harvey Rd. at Munson Dr.

The existing signal timings are adequate considering the configuration of the intersection and its
presence so near the Dartmouth intersection.  Progression bandwidth is generally limited on closely
spaced intersections like these two.   Yellow intervals of 4 seconds are provided on all approaches.
The Harvey Road approaches include a 1.5 second all red interval.  This combined clearance
interval is generous in that the time allotted is greater than the calculated ITE value of 5 seconds
for this small an intersection and the approach speeds.  Although it is sometimes difficult to justify
removing portions of the clearance interval, that possibility could be considered in order to provide
additional through movement green time.  The gains would be small. 

As for geometric improvements, they could be many and varied.  They would all require significant
purchase of expensive right of way.  There is really no help for the offset nature of the Dartmouth

267



25

Munson pair at this point.  It is a good example, however, of why this type of intersection should
be avoided in the future.  The  approach view and stop area for the eastbound approach are shown
below.

Additional lane widths,
improved raised medians,
increased curb radii, reduction
in number of driveways and
increased driveway spacing and
closure of the driveway to the
south a t  the  Munson
intersection would all improve
the performance of the Harvey
Rd. corridor which carries
substantial volume.  The last
widening project along Harvey
Rd. was in the 1980's and the
volumes here make it a good
candidate for improvement.

Eastbound Approach - Harvey Rd. at Munson

The right of way restrictions, however, would make these improvements very expensive.  The
properties adjacent to this
a r t e r i a l  a re  ge n e r a l l y
commercial or medium density
residential and have limited
space to allow for ROW
expansion.   If major expansion
of Harvey Rd. were to be
investigated, substantial
improvement might be made
u t i l i z i n g  good  acces s
management practices and
innova t i ve  i ntersec t ion
treatments which remove left
turning traffic from the
intersection.  

  Stop Location - EB Harvey Rd. at Munson Dr.

This being said, the improvements mentioned might do little to improve the incidence of red light
running (RLR) or the attending crashes other than the general improvement to be had from
reducing congestion.  No sight distance obstructions are evident on the eastbound approach which
would be expected to produce inadvertent RLR incidents.  The proximity of Dartmouth and turning
traffic into the shopping center to the south of the intersection may present some distractions but
these phenomena are not uncommon on urban arterial streets.  All in all, while the intersection does

268



26

present excellent opportunities for improvement, the installation of RLC enforcement measures
is justified as an alternative treatment.   The advance warning sign should be placed approximately
305 feet in advance of the stop bar and east of Dartmouth.  The stop location sign should be placed
at the stop bar location.  Back plates should be installed at this traffic signal for increased
recognition.

Harvey Road at George Bush Drive East - Westbound Approach

This intersection is similar in nature to its sister intersection analyzed above.  The intersections are
little more than half a mile from each other.  The presence of numerous RLR incidents at this
intersection is a little surprising in that Harvey Rd. here is approaching Texas Avenue from the

westbound direction and congestion at
that intersection is a general condition
over much of the day.  This hardly seems
the right condition for RLR.  The video
survey clearly indicates a significant
number of RLR occurrences, however.
Harvey Rd. is a major surface arterial
street with two lanes in each direction and
continuous two way left turn lanes
(TWLTL) in this vicinity.  The
intersection is shown here.

George Bush E. south of Harvey Rd. is a
relatively recent addition to the city street
system.  It serves as a reliever to
north/south Texas Avenue.  Most of the
George Bush E. traffic turns left or right at
the intersection.  Considerable
commercial and medium density
residential development abuts Harvey Rd.
in this vicinity and right of way is
relatively restricted in width.  

  Harvey Rd. at George Bush E.

There are no sight distance obstructions on the westbound approach although driveways are
frequent.   Left turn storage is adequate from the TWLTL.  Approach speed limit is 35 mph. but
these speeds are not generally seen during the peak hours due to the typical but minor congestion.
Options for conventional enforcement are minimal and pursuit would be potentially hazardous.
Harvey Rd. volumes are heavy, particularly at peak hours.

Progression along Harvey Rd. is limited because of irregular and insufficient signal spacing.
Driveways are numerous and poorly spaced.   Curb return radii are short and turning movements
are  generally slow, further restricting traffic.  Clearance intervals on the study approach consist
of 4 seconds of yellow plus 1.5 seconds of all red.  These values are again generous because of the
minimal approach width of George Bush E. compared to the ITE values of 5 seconds.  Similar to

269



27

the Munson, removal of a small amount of clearance interval, perhaps half a second of yellow,
may be considered, although the improvement would be slight.  There is no reason to believe that
increasing the clearance intervals here would reduce RLR incidents.  

There are reasonable potential improvements to the intersection which might improve its crash
history.  These improvements might not affect RLR crashes, but might improve other types of
crashes.  Such improvements might consist of removal of driveways directly adjacent to the
intersection on the southwest and northeast quadrants.  Improvement of the minimal lane widths

on the southbound approach
on George Bush E.  may be
effective in increasing the
capacity of that approach and
thereby allowing an increase
in green time to the through
movements on Harvey Rd.
Minimization of cross street
green time is essential.    The
northbound approach on
George Bush E. appears
adequate.  The westbound
approach which is the
candidate for RLC application
and the existing stop location
are shown here.

   Westbound Approach - Harvey Rd. at George Bush E.

Other potential improvements
include raised curb medians
along Harvey Rd. along with
restricted median openings.
This will control crossing
traffic and produce better
arterial flow.   Median
improvements could provide
adequate turn bays and
removal of the TWLTL could
be advantageous. The stop
location is well delineated, as
s h o w n ,  h o w e ve r ,  n o
pedestrian markings are
present.  Such markings not
only make intersection 

Stop Location - WB Harvey Rd. at George Bush E.

recognition better but may provide improved pedestrian access to the Wolf Pen Creek area.  There

270



28

may be conflicts between pedestrian crossing and existing improvements.  There are no obvious
impediments to RLC implementation from surface improvements.  Subsurface investigation should
be required prior to installation.   Traffic signal backplates should be installed at this intersection.

The warning sign should be placed at least 305 feet in advance of the intersection since the
majority of this distance is still at the 40 mph. speed limit.  The sign should be placed separated
from other signs and driveways.  The stop location sign may be placed directly adjacent to the stop
bar. 

Crash history at this intersection is significant with 6 of the total 14 crashes the result of RLR
incidents.  As such, significant improvement in crash history may be expected from implementation
of RLC enforcement.  Given the traffic volume, presence of existing RLR incidents and high
proportion of RLR crashes, this approach is an excellent candidate for RLC implementation.  

Wellborn Road at George Bush Drive - Northbound Approach

This intersection is a clear local problem from traffic volume and geometric configuration.  The
location is additionally complicated since a major rail line is located within the functional area of
the intersection to the west.  The rail line serves numerous trains per day, both freight and
passenger, and is a major service line from Houston northward.  In fact, the college station, for
which the city is named was adjacent to this intersection.  If this were not enough, Texas A&M
University has made major expansions to the west across the tracks in recent years, further
increasing traffic loading at this location.  And finally, a tremendous increase in medium density
student housing has occurred in recent years, much of it in the areas to the south and west of this

intersection.  Based on some of these
factors, TxDOT has proposed to rebuild
this area in the not too distant future.
The precise time line for such
improvements has been set and altered
several times and TxDOT funding is an
ever precarious variable in recent times
so that the timing of these
improvements is uncertain.   The
intersection is shown here.

Wellborn Rd. serves as a major entry
point from the south  to both the main
and west campus areas of Texas A&M
University.  The traffic volumes are
extremely heavy and the roadway
geometry is limited significantly
because of the mentioned railroad
tracks.  The northbound approach has
two lanes through and a left turn lane

              Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr.

271



29

which is marked as a two way left turn lane (TWLTL) to the south.  Storage capacity is not a
problem.  The approach lanes are relatively narrow and the curb lines are deteriorated.  Other
approaches to the intersection are similarly troubled.  Much of the traffic volume consists of
through movement but the northbound left turns are significant as well.  

No right turn lane exists on the northbound approach and commercial development occupies the
southeast corner preventing easy expansion in that direction.  There has been limited exercise of
restraint in the placement of driveways in the vicinity and several exist within the functional area
of the intersection to the south.  Fortunately driveways do not exist on the westbound and

northbound approaches
because of the University and
railroad respectively.  No
median access control exists
on the northbound approach,
however, the existing traffic
volume essentially prevents
crossing movements during
most hours of the day.  The
northbound approach is shown
here. 

There are no visibility
o b s t r u c t i o n s  o n  t h e
northbound approach, and
Wellborn Rd. is straight and
relatively flat for more than a

 Northbound Approach - Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr.

mile in advance of the
intersection.  The approach
speed limit is 40 mph and the
85 percentile speed is likely
higher except during peak
hours.  Conventional RLR
enforcement would be very
difficult and hazardous to the
a t t end i ng o f f i ce r .   
Congestion is a way of life at
this intersection on all
approaches, with the morning
northbound (inbound) traffic
dominating the intersection,
and evening southbound
(outbound) traffic being just as
dominant.  Stop Location - Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr.

272



30

Traffic is heavy at all times of day. This intersection is not isolated but does function as a
controlling intersection for Wellborn Rd.  

The Holleman Drive intersection is signalized about 0.7 miles to the south.  Progression is
generally good northbound at off peak hours as cross street green time is limited.  This can lead to
long stopped delays at cross streets however.  The signal at this intersection is interconnected with
the crossing protection measures for the railroad which activates around 24 times per day. 

Clearance intervals for the intersection currently consist of 4 seconds of yellow with 1.5 seconds
of all red.  These values are consistent with accepted practice when compared to the 5.5 seconds
from ITE, and require no modification.  No improvement in RLR performance would be expected
from additional clearance interval.  

There is significant pedestrian traffic at this intersection.  Major student housing developments to
the west and the presence of West Campus traffic produce much of this pedestrian volume.  The
intersection is marked with crosswalks and pedestrian indications are a part of the signalization of
the intersection.

Improvements are clearly desirable at this intersection, including the northbound approach.  Right
of way is the current problem.  The railroad to the west of Wellborn Rd. has been present for at
least as long as the roadway and is not subject to eminent domain.  There have been long standing
plans to relocate the tracks well to the west of the campus, however, the expense has been
prohibitive to date.  TxDOT does have plans to make significant improvements to this intersection
as discussed above.  The planned improvements will carry through traffic on Wellborn Rd. over
George Bush and allow the surface connections to carry significantly less volume.  This
improvement is not expected to be completed until sometime after 2010.

Crash experience is significant at this intersection.  It had 41 crashes in the period including 2005-
present although the crashes attributed to RLR incidents were small at only 2.  Given the high
number of RLR incidents shown on the video detection, the actual number of crashes from RLR
may be higher.  Given the number of crashes, the number of RLR incidents and the inherent
difficulty in conventional enforcement at this location, RLC enforcement is a valid alternative. 
RLC enforcement should reduce the incidence of RLR and improve overall safety at this
intersection.

Warning signs should be placed no less than 305 feet in advance of the stop line and should be
located well separated from existing signs and driveways where clear visibility exists.   The stop
location sign should be placed at the stop bar.  Both the stop bar and the crosswalks should be
remarked for the installation of the RLC system.  

Wellborn Road at Harvey Mitchell Parkway - Northbound Approach

This intersection is one of the most significant intersections in the community.  It connects major
arterial streets and carries large volumes of traffic on all approaches.  The approach speeds are the
highest in the study group and the intersection is physically large.  Similar to the above intersection

273



31

the railroad tracks mentioned previously are within the functional area of the eastbound approach.
Current crossing protection measures are similarly interconnected to the traffic signal.  

Wellborn Road in this vicinity connects much of the southern reach of Brazos County to Texas
A&M University.  Growth in College Station in recent years has followed a consistent pattern of
expansion to the south and development barriers, such as creeks and lack of infrastructure,  to the
east and west are just recently beginning to be overcome.  These factors combine to make this
intersection one of the most heavily traveled in the area.  The crash history represents these issues
as well with the largest number of crashes in the study group.  
To further complicate the picture, Wellborn Rd. to the south is significantly deficient in capacity,
lacking sufficient lanes for its intended function.  Recent modifications added a two way left tun
lane in some portions of that stretch but failed to add through lanes.  Existing development and the
right of way restrictions from the railroad tracks are cited as preventing further improvement.
While this lack of improvement has proved difficult, there are excellent opportunities for making
things right in the future.  The traffic will not go away.  The intersection is shown below.

The northbound approach contains two
through lanes and two left turn lanes.  A free
right turn lane takes off well before the
intersection providing a moderate speed
connection to eastbound Harvey Mitchell
Pkwy.  Harvey Mitchell has two through
lanes and single left turn lanes on both
approaches.  The westbound right turn lane
is excellent but the eastbound right turn lane
is only adequate and sometimes the queue
for right turns at that location blocks through
lanes eastbound.  Turn storage is generally
adequate except at maximum periods.
There is no median provided on any
approach, but shoulders exist on all
approaches.  There are no driveways in the
functional area of the intersection and right
of way is not particularly restricted.  The
northbound approach is  curved to the south
of the intersection with approximately 1000
feet of approach visibility. Conventional
enforcement should be relatively easy at this
intersection due to the ample shoulder areas.

     Wellborn Road at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy.

The existing signal functions essentially as an isolated intersection with relatively high speed
approaches on all fronts.  The northbound speed limit drops to 45 mph a reasonable distance ahead
of the intersection, although observed approach speeds may be much higher.  The clearance
intervals for this intersection consist of 5 seconds of yellow with 2 seconds of all red.  These are
generous given the approach speeds and width of the intersection which yield an ITE value of 6

274



32

seconds.  No adjustment to signal operations is needed and no improvement to RLR would be
reasonably attributed to signal timings. 

Improvements to this
intersection have been
considered by TxDOT for
some years.  Recent and
proposed development in
the northeast and southeast
q u a d r a n t s  o f  t h i s
intersection may speed up
the timetable.  A grade
separation is desirable
across the railroad tracks to
the west and should
i m p r o ve  o p e r a t i o n s
considerably.  The main
line railroad closes Harvey
Mitchell many times a day,
and during these times the
left turn traffic northbound
can block through lanes of

             Schematic Plan for Intersection

travel.  A time schedule for the improvements is set for late 2008 although TxDOT funding has
been curtailed across the state.  The possible configuration of the intersection is shown above
according to a preliminary set of schematic drawings.  This figure shows Harvey Mitchell Pkwy.
going over Wellborn Rd. with loop type ramps making the northbound and southbound connections
to Wellborn Rd.  Wellborn Rd. itself moves west toward the railroad tracks to provide room for the

connections.

  This configuration, although
schematic provides vastly
improved operation for both
Wellborn Rd. and  Harvey
Mitchell Pkwy.  The present
northbound approach appears
here.  The clear visibility is
apparent as are the provided
shoulders and approach lanes.
It is also clear that the single
approach lane divides into two
through lanes and two left turn
lanes just prior to the
intersection.  

Northbound Approach - Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy.

275



33

This limits capacity of the intersection at peak periods and significant improvements may be
available in the operational characteristics of the intersection.  The stop location is shown below.

Crash history at  this
intersection is important.  The
highest crash experience of
the studied intersections, some
61 crashes have occurred in
the study period.  Of these 4
have been attributed to RLR
incidents.  Again, given the
high number of RLR incidents
from the video study, more
RLR related crashes may be
among the crash experience.
W h i l e  c o n v e n t i o n a l
enforcement methods may be
applicable and relatively safe,
the conventional methods

Stop Location - Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy.

have not been proportionally successful at this intersection.  Improvement using the RLC
enforcement method can be expected. 

Advance sign placement may be made at least 360 feet in advance of the intersection.  Some
consideration may be made to increasing this distance since the speed limit reduces near the
intersection.  

The stop location sign may be difficult to place at this intersection due to the wide shoulders
provided here.  Some judgement must be made as to whether or not this sign is applicable at this
intersection.  Increased intersection recognition may be provided with a wide stop bar at this
location.  The stop bar may also be moved back slightly to the south to provide a location for the
stop location sign.  

276



34

Conclusions

The following are conclusions developed from the study and from the review of recent research
in the area of red light running (RLR) and red light camera (RLC) enforcement.  They come in no
particular order but are generally organized in the order of the information in this study.  The
conclusions are made by the author and do not necessarily represent the conclusions or opinions
of the City of College Station or of its staff.  This section may serve as an executive summary of
he larger report.

1. Based on the information reviewed reduction in red light running (RLR) can be expected
from the implementation of red light camera (RLC) enforcement.

2. Based on the research some improvement in intersection safety can be expected from the
implementation of RLC enforcement.

3. Crashes from red light running are a real problem in the United States taking some 800 to
1000 lives annually and causing more than 200,000 injuries.

4. The orderly assignment of right of way provided by properly designed and maintained
traffic signals is not sufficient in and of itself to prevent these RLR crashes.

5. A significant number of pedestrians are the victims of RLR crashes.

6. SB 1119 became effective on September 1, 2007 putting into place certain authority for
municipalities to implement RLC enforcement on a conditional basis.  

7. In placing conditions on the implementation of RLC enforcement the legislature is trying
to prevent RLR citations from simply becoming another revenue stream.

8. Section 707 of the Transportation Code requires a traffic engineering study of each
approach along with crash histories for each intersection.

9. The Code requires the placement of signs which meet certain guidelines along the roadway
leading to the RLC installation.

10. The local authority is to monitor and report crash statistics for each intersection to TxDOT
annually. 

11. Revenue sharing provisions are mandatory so that excess revenue is spent on traffic or
enforcement provisions within the local jurisdiction and half of the revenue over expenses
is shared with regional trauma centers.

12. The statute was limited with a sunset provision requiring renewal in 2009.

13. Red light running is defined as failing to stop before crossing a clearly marked stop line at
a signalized intersection when facing a steady red signal.  

14. Clearance intervals consisting of yellow signals of certain duration  are required at all
traffic signals when the light changes from green to red.  

15. An interval of all red may be provided, but is not required, where all approaches are to be
stopped for a brief period of time, thereby providing some safety factor.

16. All red intervals reduce green time and therefore capacity of the signalized intersection.
17. Drivers may not proceed on a green signal until other traffic that has entered the

intersection legally has cleared.

18. The foundational goal of RLC programs is improvement in safety through reducing RLR

277



35

crashes.
19. RLC programs may improve drivers respect for red light requirements.
20. The “halo” effect may increase safety at adjacent intersections.

21. RLC enforcement has been used in many venues around the world since about 1979 with
hundreds of installations in Australia, Singapore, England and Canada.

22. RLC enforcement has become common in the United States since about 1998 in California,
Arizona, Florida, Maryland and Texas.

23. Most studies report a reduction in RLR crashes and safety improvements from RLC
enforcement.

24. Some studies report an increase in overall intersection crashes.
25. Percentage of crash reduction varies from slight increases to 35% reductions.
26. Some reports indicate an increase in rear end crashes, which tend to be less severe than

crossing collisions, from RLC enforcement.
27. RLC enforcement decreases citations over time.
28. Several studies report decreases in crash history from RLC implementation that cannot be

attributed to RLC enforcement to a degree of statistical significance.
29. The research collectively represents a clear probability, though not certainty, that

installation of RLC enforcement will improve safety at intersections.

30. Site selection is a critical segment of the RLC implementation process.
31. Sites should be selected based on a traffic engineering study.
32. Sites with high traffic volumes, high crash experience and high RLR experience should

show the largest safety improvement.
33. Conventional enforcement method potential and potential for other improvements which

may improve safety at the intersection should be considered.
34. The current construction project along Texas Avenue is a reasonable basis for not

considering some intersections that are involved in that project.
35. These intersections may be included in a later phase of implementation.
36. Eleven intersections were studied by the RLC vendor yielding information on RLR

incidents on 22 approaches.  
37. The five approaches selected for further analysis were the five highest RLR locations from

the preliminary data.
38. The candidate intersections are:

a. Northbound Texas Ave. at Walton Dr.
b. Eastbound Harvey Rd. at Munson Dr.
c. Westbound Harvey Rd. at George Bush E.
d. Northbound Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr.
e. Northbound Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy.

39. Red light camera signs are required by Section 707 of the Transportation Code in advance
of RLC installations.

40. These signs shall be in accordance with the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devices and shall be at least 100 feet in advance of the intersection.

41. No standards for these advance signs currently exists.
42. A pair of signs has been proposed on page 21 of this report for use in this application.

278



36

43. Approach distances are also suggested on page 21.
44. The use of an advance warning sign, as proposed, may negate some of the potential for

increased rear end crashes. 
45. Each candidate intersection was considered separately for the applicability of RLC

enforcement and other potential safety improvements.
46. An informational table was provided as below:

INTERSECTION DIR # RLR #RLR # RL Total ADT

Video Citations Crashes Crashes Volume

Texas Ave. at Walton Dr. NB    11  783    6    16 48000

Harvey Rd. at Munson EB    15    29    6    12 19330

Harvey Rd. at George Bush Dr. East WB      9    29    6    14 17950

Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr. NB    14    36    2    41 22980

Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy. NB      8    10    4    60 24360

47. Northbound Texas Avenue at Walton Drive
a. The large number of RLR citations at this intersection are a clear indication that

RLC enforcement may be effective here.
b. The large number of RLR citations at this intersection may be due to relatively safe

and easy conventional enforcement potential.
c. Existing traffic volume on Texas Ave., general crash experience and specific RLR

crash experience  support the use of RLC enforcement at this intersection.
d. The existing signal timing and clearance intervals are sufficient.
e. Increases in clearance interval should not reduce RLR at this intersection.
f. No sight distance obstruction which may contribute to RLR was found.
g. The intersection is geometrically sound and improvements would not generally be

expected to reduce RLR here.
h. An RLC warning sign should be placed approximately 305 feet in advance of the

intersection and clear of other signs or driveways.
i. A”Stop Here” sign should be placed at the stop bar location.

48. Eastbound Harvey Road at Munson Drive
a. This intersection is part of an offset pair with Dartmouth which is an undesirable

geometric configuration and increases congestion along Harvey Rd;
b. The large traffic volume, RLR incidence, crash history and high percentage of RLR

crashes support the use of RLC enforcement on this approach.
c. The existing signal timing is acceptable at this intersection although some

congestion exists during peak periods.
d. The clearance interval provided is generous for the approach speed and narrow

width of the cross street.
e. No reduction in RLR from increases in clearance interval are likely.
f. No sight distance obstruction which may contribute to RLR was found.
g. Conventional RLR enforcement would be difficult and hazardous at this

intersection.
h. Geometric improvements such as lane widening, median improvements, increasing

curb return radii, reduction in number of driveways, increases in driveway spacing
and closure of the driveway access for the southern intersection opening would

279



37

improve the performance of Harvey Rd., reduce congestion, and may have a
positive effect on RLR incidents. 

i. Most of these improvements would generally be a part of a large construction
program and would require additional right of way, however, some minor
improvements may be made on a spot improvement basis. 

j. No specific improvements are clearly evident that will significantly reduce RLR.
k. An RLC warning sign should be placed about 305 feet in advance of the stop

location.
l. A “Stop Here” sign should be placed at the stop bar location.
m. Signal backplates should be added at this intersection.

49. Westbound Harvey Road at George Bush East
a. The large traffic volume, RLR incidence, crash history and high percentage of RLR

crashes support the use of RLC enforcement on this approach.
b. The existing signal timing is acceptable at this intersection although some

congestion exists during peak periods.
c. The clearance interval provided is generous for the approach speed and narrow

width of the cross street.
d. No reduction in RLR from increases in clearance interval are likely.
e. No sight distance obstruction which may contribute to RLR was found.
f. Geometric improvements are possible at this intersection in the form of increased

curb return radii, removal of the two driveways directly adjacent to the intersection,
and median improvements.

g. Such improvements may improve congestion along Harvey Rd. but may or may not
improve RLR experience at this intersection.

h. Conventional RLR enforcement would be difficult and hazardous at this
intersection.

i.  An RLC warning sign should be placed about 305 feet in advance of the stop
location.

j. A “Stop Here” sign should be placed at the stop bar location.
k. Signal backplates should be added at this intersection.

50. Northbound Wellborn Road at George Bush Drive
a. A high number of overall crashes and high number of RLR citations and video

detections support  this intersection a good candidate for RLC implementation.
b. This is an intersection with significant congestion which would be difficult for

conventional RLR enforcement.
c. There are no sight distance obstructions which might reasonably contribute to RLR

experience on this approach.
d. The signal timing at this intersection appears reasonable although improvements are

possible in the corridor.
e. The signal operation is made more difficult by the presence of the main line

railroad crossing just to the west along George Bush Drive  within the functional
area of the intersection.  

f. The crossing protection measures and traffic signal are interconnected so that the
signal operation is preempted by an oncoming train.

280



38

g. The clearance intervals are reasonable for this approach.
h. No improvement in RLR should be expected from increases in clearance interval.
i. TxDOT plans to rebuild this intersection completely providing a grade separation

for Wellborn Road traffic.
j. This grade separation is not scheduled for completion in the near future but would

greatly reduce the traffic volume at this intersection.
k. There is considerable pedestrian traffic at this intersection which would benefit

from a reduction in RLR.
l. Short term geometric improvements at this intersection are possible including curb

return radii improvements and removal of nearby driveways.
m. Right of way is highly restricted and would likely be very expensive.
n.  An RLC warning sign should be placed about 305 feet in advance of the stop

location.
o. A “Stop Here” sign should be placed at the stop bar location.
p. The stop bars and crosswalks should be re-striped as a part of this project.

51. Northbound Wellborn Road at Harvey Mitchell Parkway
a. A high number of overall crashes and high number of RLR citations and video

detections support  this approach a good candidate for RLC implementation.
b. Conventional enforcement would be relatively safe and easy at this intersection.
c. There are no sight distance obstructions which might reasonably contribute to RLR

experience on this approach.
d. The signal timing at this intersection appears reasonable as this signal operates

essentially as an isolated intersection.
e. The signal operation is made more difficult by the presence of the main line

railroad crossing just to the west along Harvey Mitchell Parkway within the
functional area of the intersection.  

f. The clearance intervals are reasonable for this approach.
g. No improvement in RLR should be expected from increases in clearance interval.
h. TxDOT plans to rebuild this intersection completely providing a grade separation

for Harvey Mitchell Parkway traffic.
i. This grade separation is not scheduled for completion in the near future but would

greatly reduce the traffic volume at this intersection.
j. No real short term geometric improvements are applicable.
k.  An RLC warning sign should be placed about 360-400 feet in advance of the stop

location.
l. A “Stop Here” sign should may be placed at the stop bar location.
m. To accommodate this sign the stop bars may need to be moved back so that the sign

is off the eastbound shoulder.

281



39

Recommendations

The following recommendations are based on the information contained in the study and are the
product of engineering judgement and experience in the traffic engineering profession.  Reasonable
minds may differ and this report may serve as a starting point for some of the recommendations
rather than an ending point.  The recommendations reflect the opinions and judgement of the
author.

1. It is recommended that red light camera enforcement be implemented on the following
approaches:
a. Northbound Texas Ave. at Walton Dr.
b. Eastbound Harvey Rd. at Munson
c. Westbound Harvey Rd. at George Bush Dr. East
d. Northbound Wellborn Rd. at George Bush Dr.
e. Northbound Wellborn Rd. at Harvey Mitchell Pkwy.

2. Advance warning signs and “Stop here” signs should be placed on the recommended
approaches at the locations identified in the report.

3. It is recommended that stop bars and marked crosswalks, if present, be re-striped as a part
of this project as needed.

4. It is recommended that traffic signal backplates be added to the two Harvey Road
intersections.

5. Detailed reporting on the crash histories of the intersections should be made to TxDOT
within six months of the date of implementation of red light camera enforcement, as
required by Texas Transportation Code, Section 707.

6. Continued annual reporting of crash histories at the recommended intersections should be
made to TxDOT as required by Texas Transportation Code, Section 707.

7. It is recommended that no red light camera enforcement installations be considered during
this initial phase for intersections within the current Texas Avenue construction project. 

8. It is recommended that candidate intersections within the current Texas Avenue
construction project be considered for future phases of implementation of red light camera
enforcement.

9. There are no traffic engineering reasons to delay the implementation of red light camera
enforcement on the recommended approaches.

282



40

References

1. “Association of Selected Intesection Factors with Red-Light-Running Crashes”, Highway
Safety Information System, FHWA, May 2000

2. “Impact of Red Light Camera Enforcement on Crash Experience”, National Cooperative
Highway Research Program, Synthesis 310, Transportation Research Board, 2003

3. “Evaluation of the Red Light Camera Enforcement Pilot Project, Final Technical Report”,
Ontario Ministry of Transportation, December 2003

4. “A Detailed Investigation of Crash Risk Reduction Resulting from Red Light Cameras in
Small Urban Areas”, Urban Transit Institute, North Carolina, Burkey, Obeng, July 2004

5. “Analysis of Red Light Violation Data Collected from Intersections Equipped with Red
Light Photo Enforcement Cameras”, NHTSA, Yang, Najm,  March 2005

6. “Final Report, An Evaluation of Red Light Camera Enforcement Programs in Virginia”,
Virginia Transportation Research Council, Garber, Miller, et al, January 2005

7. “Safety Evaluatin of Red-Light Cameras”, FHWA HRT-05-048, Council, Persaud, et al,
April, 2005

8. “An Analysis of a Red-Light Camera Program in the City of Milwaukee”, Kriz, Moran, et
al, City of Milwaukee, Spring 2006

9. “Reducing Red Light Running Through Longer Yellow Signal Timing and Red Light
Camera Enforcement: Results of a Field Investigation”, Retting, Ferguson, et al, Insurance
Institute for Highway Safety, January 2007

10. “Red Light Cameras in Texas: A Status Report”, House Research Organization, July 2006

11. Senate Bill 1119, Chapter 707, Subtitle I, Title 7, Transportation Code

12. Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, Texas Department of Transportation,
2006

13. A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, AASHTO, 2001

14. Manual of Traffic Signal Design, Institute of Transportation Engineers, Third Edition

15. “Red Light Running Handbook: An Engineer’s Guide to Reducing Red Light Related
Crashes”, Texas Transportation Institute, Bonneson and Zimmerman, 2004

283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



 

MMA Amendment                      Page 1 of 5                                      November 3, 2006 

THE STATE OF TEXAS      § 
 
THE COUNTY OF TRAVIS   § 
 

AMENDMENT TO MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR THE 
FURNISHING, INSTALLING, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE  

OF CAMERAS ON STATE HIGHWAY RIGHTS-OF-WAY TO MONITOR 
COMPLIANCE WITH TRAFFIC-CONTROL SIGNALS  

 
THIS AMENDMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting through the Texas 
Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “State”, and the City of College Station, 
hereinafter called the “City”, acting by and through its duly authorized officers. 
 

W  I T N E S S E T H 
 
WHEREAS, the State owns and maintains a system of highways and roadways in the City of 
College Station pursuant to Transportation Code, Section 201.103; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State and the City executed a Municipal Maintenance Agreement on November 7, 
2002; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has requested permission to install cameras on state highway rights-of-way 
to monitor compliance with traffic-control signals, hereinafter referred to as “camera monitoring 
equipment”, at the locations listed on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part of hereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State has determined that when the City’s installation of camera monitoring 
equipment will not damage the highway facility, impair safety, impede maintenance, or in any way 
restrict the operation of the highway, the proposed camera monitoring equipment may be installed 
by the City or its contractor;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties hereto to be by them respectively kept and performed as hereinafter set 
forth, it is agreed as follows: 
 

A M E N D M E N T 
 
ARTICLE 1.  CONTRACT PERIOD 
This amendment becomes effective on final execution by the State and shall remain in effect as 
long as said camera monitoring equipment is in operation at the described locations. 
 
ARTICLE 2.   TERMINATION 
This amendment may be terminated by one of the following conditions: 

1) By mutual agreement of both parties; 
2) By the State giving written notice to the City as consequence of failure by the City or its 

contractor to satisfactorily perform the services and obligations set forth in this amendment, 
with proper allowances being made for circumstances beyond the control of the City or its 
contractor.  The State’s written notice to the City shall describe the default and the 

336



 

MMA Amendment                      Page 2 of 5                                      November 3, 2006 

proposed termination date.  If the City cures the default before the proposed termination 
date, the proposed termination is ineffective; or 

3) By either party upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other. 
 
Termination of this amendment shall not serve to terminate the underlying Municipal Maintenance 
Agreement between the State and the City.  

 
ARTICLE 3.  COMPENSATION 
No compensation shall be paid for this amendment. 
 
ARTICLE 4.   PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIAL 
A. The City will use labor and supervisory personnel employed directly by the City or its 

contractor, and use City owned or contractor owned machinery, equipment, and vehicles 
necessary for the work. In the event that the City or its contractor does not have the machinery, 
equipment, and vehicles necessary to perform the work, the machinery, equipment, and 
vehicles may be rented or leased as necessary. 

B. No reimbursement shall be paid for any materials supplied by the City or its contractor.  
C. Any adjustment, replacement, or reinstallation of the camera monitoring equipment due to 

reconstruction or alteration of the intersection shall be performed by the City at the City’s 
expense.  The State will work with the City to provide adequate notice of any planned work to 
allow for the necessary modification or removal.  

D. All installation or maintenance work performed by the City or its contractor requiring traffic 
control shall be performed in accordance with the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices. 

 
ARTICLE 5.  INSPECTION OF WORK 
A. The City or its contractor will furnish the State a complete set of design drawings and 

installation plans for review.  The installation plans shall include all electrical, electronics, 
signing, civil and mechanical work pertaining to the camera monitoring equipment.   

B. The State reserves the right to inspect and request modification of any camera monitoring 
equipment under this agreement both prior to and after installation.  No installation may occur 
until the State has approved the proposed installation.   

C. The State reserves the right to inspect and approve the completed installation.   
D. The State will promptly notify the City or its contractor of any failure of materials, equipment, or 

installation methods, and the City or its contractor will take such measures necessary to obtain 
acceptable systems components and installation procedures without delay. 

 
ARTICLE 6.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES  
The parties agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or employee of the other party and each 
party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its 
contractors, employees, representatives, and agents.  The State shall not be held responsible for 
the operation (or non-operation) of the camera monitoring equipment or for any effect it may have. 
 
The City is responsible for any damage that may occur to state equipment during the installation, 
maintenance or operation of the camera monitoring equipment.  The City is responsible for 
maintaining the camera monitoring equipment and related signing in good working order and 
keeping such equipment free from graffiti.   
 
ARTICLE 7.  DE-ACTIVATION OF CAMERA MONITORING EQUIPMENT  

337



 

MMA Amendment                      Page 3 of 5                                      November 3, 2006 

The State reserves the right to disconnect and remove camera monitoring equipment from the 
traffic signals should any problem arise affecting the State. The State will notify the appropriate 
City office of the de-activation of the camera monitoring equipment. Upon correction of the 
problem, the City may reconnect the camera monitoring equipment.   
 
ARTICLE 8.  INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS 
The City or its contractor shall furnish and install all equipment related to the camera monitoring 
equipment installation.  This includes, but is not limited to, camera equipment, camera housing 
and supporting structure, intersection lighting, vehicle detection system, communications 
equipment, electrical service and connections, roadway signing, and any interconnection with the 
signal.  The City or its contractor will be responsible for all power costs associated with the 
operation of the camera monitoring equipment.   
 
Electrical connections made to the State’s signal equipment shall be optically or otherwise 
isolated as approved by the State and shall not affect the operation of any component of the traffic 
signal system including both the signal controller and the conflict monitor/malfunction 
management unit.   
 
ARTICLE 9.  REPORTS 
Upon written request, the City will be required to supply the State with data related to the 
operation of the camera monitoring equipment.   
 
ARTICLE 10.  REMEDIES 
Violation or breach of contract terms by the City shall be grounds for termination of the 
amendment, and any increased cost arising from the City default, breach of contract, or violation 
of terms shall be paid for by the City. This amendment shall not be considered as specifying the 
exclusive remedy for default, but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by 
either party and shall be cumulative. 
 
ARTICLE 11.  INSURANCE 
Before beginning work, the entity performing the work shall provide the State with a fully executed 
copy of the State’s Form 1560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the existence of coverage in the 
amounts and types specified on the Certificate of Insurance for all persons and entities working on 
State right of way.  This coverage shall be maintained until all work on the State right of way is 
complete.  If coverage is not maintained, all work on State right of way shall cease immediately.   
 
ARTICLE 12.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
The City shall not assign or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under this amendment 
except with the prior written consent of the State. 
 
ARTICLE 13.  LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 
In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision thereof and this amendment shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

338



 

MMA Amendment                      Page 4 of 5                                      November 3, 2006 

ARTICLE 14.   NOTICES  
All notices to either party by the other required under this amendment shall be delivered 
personally or sent by certified or U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the 
following respective addresses:  

City: 
 

     City of College Station 
 

    ATTN: Troy Rother 
    

    1101 Texas Avenue 
    

    College Station, TX  77840 
 

State: 
 

__________________________________ 
 

    __________________________________ 
    

    __________________________________ 
    

    __________________________________ 
 

 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless 
otherwise provided herein.  Either party hereto may change the above address by sending written 
notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein. 
 
ARTICLE 15.  GOVERNING LAWS AND VENUE 
This amendment shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 
Any legal actions regarding the parties’ obligations under this agreement must be filed in Travis 
County, Texas. 
 
ARTICLE 16.  PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 
This amendment constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties hereto and supersedes 
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the within 
subject matter. 
 
ARTICLE 17.  REVISIONS TO EXHIBIT A 
Revision to the locations listed in Exhibit A may be made if submitted in writing by the City and 
initialed by both parties.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the State and the City have signed duplicate counterparts of this 
agreement. 
 

339



 

MMA Amendment                      Page 5 of 5                                      November 3, 2006 

   
THE STATE OF TEXAS  
Executed for the Executive Director and approved for the Texas Transportation Commission for 
the purpose and effect of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or work 
programs heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Transportation Commission. 
 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________       
     District Engineer 
 
 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
 
 
By:       
      Mayor 
Date:     

 
 

ATTEST: 
       
City Secretary 
Date:_____________ 

 
 

APPROVED: 
       
City Manager 
Date:_____________ 
 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

       
City Attorney 
Date:_____________ 
 
 
       
Chief Financial Officer 
Date:_____________ 
 

340



C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

ORDINANCE NO.     
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, “TRAFFIC CODE”, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY ADDING A NEW 
SECTION 11 AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 

Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part 
of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be 
punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) nor more than Five 
Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Each day such violation shall continue or be permitted to 
continue, shall be deemed a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a penal 
ordinance, becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the City 
Council, as provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ________ day of ______________________, 2007. 
 

     APPROVED: 
 
 

   ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Mayor 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_______________________________ 
City Attorney 

341



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 2 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

  
 

That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, 
Texas, is hereby amended, by adding a new Section 11 as set out hereafter to read as follows: 
 
 
“SECTION 11: AUTOMATED TRAFFIC SIGNAL ENFORCEMENT 
 

A. Definitions. 
 

In this section: 
 

(1) Owner shall mean the owner of a motor vehicle as shown on the motor vehicle 
registration records of the Texas Department of Transportation or the analogous 
department or agency of another state or country.   

 
(2) Photographic traffic signal enforcement system shall mean a system that:   

 
(a)  Consists of a camera system and vehicle sensor installed to exclusively 

work in conjunction with an electrically operated traffic-control signal; 
and 

 
(b) Is capable of producing at least two (2) recorded images that depict the 

license plate attached to the front or the rear of a motor vehicle that is not 
operated in compliance with the instructions of the traffic control signal. 
 

(3) Recorded image shall mean a photographic or digital image that depicts the front 
or the rear of a motor vehicle. 

 
 (4) Traffic control signal has the meaning assigned by Section 541.304 of the Texas 

Transportation Code.  
 

B. Imposition of Civil Penalty for Violations. 
 
(1) Except as provided below, the owner of a motor vehicle is liable for a civil 

penalty of seventy-five dollars ($75.00) if, while facing only a steady red signal 
displayed by an electronically operated traffic-control signal located in the City, 
the motor vehicle is operated in violation of the instructions of that traffic-control 
signal as specified by Section 544.007(d) of the Texas Transportation Code. 

   
(2) An owner who fails to timely contest or pay the civil penalty shall be subject to a 

late payment penalty of twenty-five dollars ($25.00). 

342



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 3 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

 
C. Enforcement Procedures. 
 

(1) The College Station Police Department is responsible for the enforcement of this 
section. The College Station Municipal Court is responsible for the administration 
of this section.  The Police Chief, Presiding Judge of the Municipal Court, and the 
Municipal Court Administrator shall establish and implement appropriate 
procedures to effect the policy of this section. 

 
(2) In order to impose a civil penalty under this section, the Municipal Court shall 

cause to be mailed a notice of violation to the owner of the motor vehicle liable 
for the civil penalty not later than thirty (30) days after the date the violation is 
alleged to have occurred to: 

 
(a) The owner's address as shown on the registration records of the Texas 

Department of Transportation; or 
 
(b) If the motor vehicle is registered in another state or country, the owner's 

address as shown on the motor vehicle registration records of the 
department or agency of the other state or country analogous to the Texas 
Department of Transportation. 

 
(3) A notice of violation issued under this section shall contain the following: 

 
(a) A description of the violation alleged; 
 
(b) The location of the intersection where the violation occurred; 

 
(c) The date and time of the violation; 
 
(d) The name and address of the owner of the motor vehicle involved in the 

violation;  
 

(e) The registration number displayed on the license plate of the motor 
vehicle involved in the violation; 

 
(f) A copy of a recorded image of the violation limited solely to a depiction of 

the area of the registration number displayed on the license plate of the 
motor vehicle involved in the violation; 

 
(g) A statement that a recorded image is evidence in a proceeding for the 

imposition of a civil penalty; 
 

(h) The amount of the civil penalty for which the owner is liable; 

343



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 4 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

 
(i) The number of days the person has in which to pay or contest the 

imposition of the civil penalty and a statement that the person incurs a late 
payment penalty of $25.00 if the civil penalty is not paid or imposition of 
the penalty is not contested within that period; 

 
(j) A statement that the owner of the motor vehicle in the notice of violation 

may pay the civil penalty by mail sent to a specified address in lieu of 
appearing at the time and place of the administrative adjudication hearing; 

 
(k) Information that informs the owner of the motor vehicle named in the 

notice of violation: 
 

(i) of the owner’s right to contest the imposition of the civil penalty 
against the person in an administrative adjudication hearing; 

 
(ii) that imposition of the civil penalty may be contested by submitting 

a written request for an administrative adjudication hearing before 
the expiration of the period specified in (i) above; and 

 
(iii) that failure to pay a civil penalty or to contest liability in a timely 

manner is an admission of liability in the full amount of the civil 
penalty assessed in the notice of violation, and is a waiver of the 
right to appeal under Section G.  

 
(l) A statement that if the owner of the motor vehicle fails to timely pay the 

amount of the civil penalty imposed against the owner an arrest warrant 
may not be issued and the imposition of the civil penalty may not be 
recorded on the owner’s driving record. 

 
(m) Any other information deemed necessary by the City. 

 
(4) A notice of violation under this section is presumed to have been received on the 

5th day after the date the notice of violation is mailed. 
 
(5) In lieu of issuing a notice of violation, the Municipal Court may cause to be 

mailed a warning notice to the owner. 
 

D. Presumption.   
(1)  It is presumed that the owner of the motor vehicle committed the violation alleged 

in the notice of violation mailed to the person if the motor vehicle depicted in a 
photograph or digital image taken by a photographic traffic signal enforcement 
system belongs to the owner of the motor vehicle. 

344



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 5 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

(2)  If, at the time of the violation alleged in the notice of violation, the motor vehicle 
depicted in a photograph or digital image taken by a photographic traffic signal 
enforcement system was owned by a person in the business of selling, renting, or 
leasing motor vehicles or by a person who was not the person named in the notice 
of violation, the presumption under Subsection (1) is rebutted on the presentation 
of evidence establishing that the vehicle was at the time: 
(a) being test driven by another person; 
 
(b)  being rented or leased by the vehicle’s owner to another person; or 

 
(c)  owned by a person who was not the person named in the notice of 

violation. 
 

(3)  Notwithstanding Section E below, the presentation of evidence under Subsection 
(2) above by a person who is in the business of selling, renting, or leasing motor 
vehicles or did not own the vehicle at the time of the violation must be made by 
affidavit, through testimony at the administrative adjudication hearing under 
Section E, or by a written declaration under penalty of perjury.  The affidavit or 
written declaration may be submitted by mail to the City or the entity with which 
the City contracts. 

(4)  If the presumption established by Subsection (1) is rebutted under Subsection (2), 
a civil penalty may not be imposed on the owner of the vehicle or the person 
named in the notice of violation, as applicable. 

(5)  If, at the time of the violation alleged in the notice of violation, the motor vehicle 
depicted in the photograph or digital image taken by the photographic traffic 
signal enforcement system was owned by a person in the business of renting or 
leasing motor vehicles and the vehicle was being rented or leased to an individual, 
the owner of the motor vehicle shall provide to the City or the entity with which 
the City contracts the name and address of the individual who was renting or 
leasing the motor vehicle depicted in the photograph or digital image and a 
statement of the period during which that individual was renting or leasing the 
vehicle. The owner shall provide the information required by this subsection not 
later than the 30th day after the date the notice of violation is received. If the 
owner provides the required information, it is presumed that the individual renting 
or leasing the motor vehicle committed the violation alleged in the notice of 
violation and the City or contractor may send a notice of violation to that 
individual at the address provided by the owner of the motor vehicle. 

 
E. Administrative adjudication hearing. 
 
 

345



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 6 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

(1) A person who receives a notice of violation may contest the imposition of the 
civil penalty by requesting in writing an administrative adjudication of the civil 
penalty within thirty (30) days after the date the violation was mailed.  Upon 
receipt of a timely request, the City or its contractor shall notify the person of the 
date and time of the administrative adjudication hearing which shall be heard 
within thirty (30) days from receipt of the request.  The administrative 
adjudication hearing shall be heard before and conducted by and adjudicative 
hearing officer appointed by the City Manager or his delegee.  The adjudicative 
hearing officer shall have the authority to administer oaths and issue orders 
compelling the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents.  

 
(2) A person who fails to pay the civil penalty or to contest liability for the penalty in 

a timely manner or who requests an administrative adjudication hearing to contest 
the imposition of the civil penalty against the person and fails to appear at that 
hearing is considered to: 

 
(a) admit liability for the full amount of the civil penalty stated in the notice 

of violation mailed to the person; and 
 
(b) waive the person’s right to appeal the imposition of the civil penalty. 
 

(3) If a person liable for the violation fails to pay the civil penalty in a timely manner, 
the City will request that the County Assessor-Collector and the Texas 
Department of Transportation refuse to register the motor vehicle alleged to have 
been involved in the violation. 

 
(4) In an administrative adjudication hearing, the issues must be proved by a 

preponderance of the evidence.  The reliability of the photographic traffic signal 
enforcement system used to produce the recorded image of the motor vehicle 
involved in the violation may be attested to in an administrative adjudication 
hearing by affidavit of an officer or employee of the city or the entity with which 
the city contracts to install or operate the system and who is responsible for 
inspecting and maintaining the system.  An affidavit of an officer or employee of 
the City that alleges a violation based on an inspection of the pertinent recorded 
image is admissible in a proceeding under this section and is evidence of the facts 
contained in the affidavit. 

 
(5) The civil penalty shall not be imposed against a person if, after the administrative 

adjudication hearing, the administrative hearing officer enters a finding of no 
liability. 

 
(6) A person who is found liable for a civil penalty after the administrative 

adjudication hearing shall pay the civil penalty within ten (10) days after the 
hearing. 

346



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 7 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

 
(7) The city attorney or his designee is not required to attend the administrative 

adjudication hearing.  However, if the person charged is represented by legal 
counsel at the hearing, the adjudicative hearing officer shall notify the city 
attorney or his designee who shall have a right to appear on behalf of the city at 
said hearing. 

 
(8) It shall be an affirmative defense to the imposition of civil liability under this 

section, to be proven by a preponderance of the evidence, that: 
 

(a) The traffic control signal was not in proper position and sufficiently 
visible to an ordinarily observant person; 

 
(b) The operator of the motor vehicle was acting in compliance with the 

lawful order or direction of a police officer; 
 
(c) The operator of the motor vehicle violated the instructions of the traffic 

control signal so as to yield the right-of-way to an immediately 
approaching authorized emergency vehicle; 

 
(d) The motor vehicle was being operated as an authorized emergency vehicle 

under Chapter 546 of the Texas Transportation Code and that the operator 
was acting in compliance with that Chapter; 

 
(e) The motor vehicle was a stolen motor vehicle and being operated by a 

person other than the owner of the motor vehicle without the effective 
consent of the owner; 

 
(f) The license plate depicted in the recorded image of the violation was a 

stolen plate and being displayed on a motor vehicle other than the motor 
vehicle for which the plate had been issued; 

 
(g) The presence of ice, snow, unusual amounts of rain or other unusually 

hazardous road conditions existed that would make compliance with this 
section more dangerous under the circumstances than non-compliance; or 

 
(h) The person who received the notice of violation was not the owner of the 

motor vehicle at the time of the violation. 
 

(9) To demonstrate that at the time of the violation the motor vehicle was a stolen 
vehicle or the license plate displayed on the motor vehicle was a stolen plate, the 
owner must submit proof acceptable to the adjudicative hearing officer that the 
theft of the motor vehicle or license plate had been timely reported to the 
appropriate law enforcement agency. 

347



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 8 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

 
 (10) Notwithstanding anything in this section to the contrary, a person who receives a 

notice of violation under this section and who fails to timely pay the amount of 
the civil penalty or fails to timely request an administrative adjudication hearing is 
entitled to an administrative adjudication hearing if: 

 
(a) the person submits a written request for the hearing to the designated 

administrative hearing officer accompanied by  an affidavit that attests to 
the date on which the person received the notice of violation; and 

 
(b) the written request and affidavit are submitted to the hearing officer within 

the same number of days after the date the person received the notice of 
violation as specified under Subsection C(3)(i) above.  

 
F. Order of the adjudicative hearing officer 
 

(1) At the conclusion of the administrative adjudication hearing, the hearing officer 
shall enter a finding of liability for the civil penalty or a finding of no liability for 
the civil penalty.  A finding under this section must be in writing and dated by the 
hearing officer.  

 
(2) A finding of liability or a finding of no liability entered under this section: 
 

(a) shall be filed with the Municipal Court Administrator.  All such orders 
shall be kept in a separate index or file by the Municipal Court 
Administrator; and 

 
(b) may be recorded on microfilm or microfiche or using data processing 

techniques. 
 
G. Appeal 
 

(1) The owner of a motor vehicle determined by a hearing officer to be liable for a 
civil penalty may appeal that determination to the City’s municipal judge by filing 
a petition with the City’s Municipal Court. 

 
(2) The petition must be filed before the 31st day after the date on which the 

administrative adjudication hearing officer entered the finding of liability for the 
civil penalty and must be accompanied by payment of the costs required by law 
for the court. 

 (3) The court clerk shall schedule a hearing and notify the owner of the motor vehicle 
and the City’s Legal Department of the date, time and place of the hearing. 

 

348



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 9 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

(4) An appeal stays enforcement and collection of the civil penalty imposed against 
the owner of the motor vehicle.  The owner shall file a notarized statement of 
personal financial obligation to perfect the owner’s appeal. 

 
(5) An appeal under this section shall be determined by the court by trial de novo. 

 
 

H. Effect of liability; exclusion of civil remedy; enforcement. 
 

(1) The imposition of a civil penalty under this section is not a conviction and may 
not be considered a conviction for any purpose. 

 
(2) The implementation of a photographic traffic signal enforcement system by the 

City under this section does not prohibit a peace officer from arresting a violator 
of Section 544.007(d) of the Texas Transportation Code as provided by Chapter 
543 of the Texas transportation Code, if the peace officer personally witnesses the 
violation, or from issuing the violator a citation and notice to appear as provided 
by Chapter 543. 

 
(3) The City may not impose a civil penalty under this section on the owner of a 

motor vehicle if the operator of the motor vehicle was arrested or was issued a 
citation and notice to appear by a peace officer for the same violation of Section 
544.007(d) of the Texas Transportation Code recorded by the photographic traffic 
signal enforcement system. 

 
(4) The city attorney is authorized to file suit to enforce collection of a civil penalty 

imposed under this section. 
 
(5) If the owner of the motor vehicle fails to timely pay the amount of the civil 

penalty imposed against the owner: 
 

(a) an arrest warrant may not be issued for the owner; and 
 
(b) the imposition of the civil penalty may not be recorded on the owner’s 

driving record. 
 
I. Disposition of fees. 
 

(1) Not later than the 60th day after the end of the City’s fiscal year, after deducting 
amounts the City is authorized by Subsection (b) to retain, the City shall: 

 
(a) send 50 percent of the revenue derived from civil or administrative 

penalties collected by the City under this section to the comptroller for 

349



ORDINANCE NO. ______________                Page 10 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\CHOOKS~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Ordinance.doc 

deposit to the credit of the regional trauma account established under 
Section 782.002, Texas Health and Safety Code; and 

 
(b) deposit the remainder of the revenue in a special account in the City’s 

treasury that may be used only to fund traffic safety programs, including 
pedestrian safety programs, public safety programs, intersection 
improvements, and traffic enforcement. 

 
(2) The City may retain an amount necessary to cover the costs of: 
 

(a) purchasing or leasing equipment that is part of or used in connection with 
the photographic traffic signal enforcement system in the City; 

 
(b) installing the photographic traffic signal enforcement system at sites in the 

City, including the costs of installing cameras, flashes, computer 
equipment, loop sensors, detectors, utility lines, data lines, poles and 
mounts, networking equipment, and associated labor costs; 

 
(c) operating the photographic traffic signal enforcement system in the City, 

including the costs of creating, distributing, and delivering violation 
notices, review of violations conducted by City employees, the processing 
of fine payments and collections, and the costs associated with 
administrative adjudications and appeals; and 

 
(d) maintaining the general upkeep and functioning of the photographic traffic 

signal enforcement system, including but not limited to, the proportional 
salaries and benefits for the City’s Traffic Superintendent, Traffic 
Engineer and Traffic Planner.”   

 
 

 

350



October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item7 

Employee Health Insurance 
 

To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Julie O’Connell, Human Resources Director 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of 
expenditures for administrative fees for employee medical and dental insurance with Blue 
Cross/Blue Shield of Texas, employee prescription drug plan with Caremark (formerly 
Pharmacare), employee assistance program with Deer Oaks, voluntary vision plan with 
Spectera, and the approval of expenditures for projected claims for a total amount of 
$5,336,494 for 2008. 
 
Recommendation(s): Approve expenditures for administrative fees and projected claims 
with Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Texas, Caremark, Deer Oaks, and Spectera for 2008. 
 
Summary:  The Cities of College Station and Bryan, and Brazos County, entered into a 
joint health plan agreement in January 2004.  These contracts will expire in December of 
2007.  The three entities issued a joint RFP in July of this year, with the intent to continue 
the joint arrangement.  We received 40 quotes for various components of our health plan.  
Based on criteria set forth in the RFP, the entities are recommending to continue with 
Blue Cross/Blue Shield for medical and dental, Caremark for our prescription plan, 
changing to Deer Oaks for our employee assistance program, and adding two additional 
benefits:  a voluntary vision plan and a wellness program through Blue Cross called Blue 
Care Connection.  The contracts will be brought to the Council at a later date for 
approval. 
 
Budget and Financial Summary:  Associated per employee per month costs for 
administrative fees are attached.  Annual administrative fees based on current number of 
employees are $365,788.  Annual claims for 2008 are projected to be $4,970,706.  This 
represents an overall increase in projected claims of 16% from 2007.  Funds are budgeted 
and available in the employee benefits fund. 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Consultant’s Recommendation Letter 
2. 2008 Cost Projections 

351



MEMORANDUM 
MCGRIFF, SEIBELS & WILLIAMS, INC. 

5949 SHERRY LANE, SUITE 1300, DALLAS, TX  75225 
PHONE – (469) 232-2100     FAX – (469) 232-2105 

 
Date: October 25, 2007 
 
To: City of College Station 
 
From: Dodd Dorsey, McGriff, Seibels & Williams 
 
Re: Request for Proposal on:  Medical, RX, Dental, Vision, and     

Employee Assistance Program 
   
 
Purpose 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide the recommendations of the “Joint 
Health Plans” consisting of the City of College Station, City of Bryan, and Brazos 
County. An extensive marketing analysis was performed for Administrative Services 
Only (ASO) for Medical, RX, Dental, a Voluntary Vision plan, and an Employee 
Assistance Program with an effective date of January 1, 2008. 
 
Quotes were solicited from various market segments providing comprehensive 
feedback on the competitiveness of current and proposed services for all three 
entities.  We were successful in obtaining a total of forty quotes.  All recommendations 
were based on the following: 
 

1. Reference and Qualifications 
2. Proposed Services and Information Requested 
3. Questionnaires/Performance Standards/Guarantees 
4. Overall Cost (Fees, rates, discounts, etc.) 

 
Current Programs    Recommended Programs 

Program Carrier Program Carrier 

• ASO Medical BlueCross BlueShield  • ASO Medical BlueCross Blue Shield 

• ASO Dental BlueCross BlueShield  • ASO Dental BlueCross Blue Shield 

• ASO RX Caremark / Pharmacare • ASO RX Caremark / Pharmacare 

• Voluntary 
Vision N/A • Voluntary Vision Spectera 

• Employee 
Assistance  
Program 

Interface • Employee Assistance 
Program Deer Oaks 

352



 
Recommendations 
 
ASO Medical & Dental – BlueCross BlueShield (BC/BS) – BlueCross BlueShield provides 
all three entities with the most extensive Network, highest discounts, and best overall 
cost.  Furthermore, the current service and available providers/facilities with BC/BS 
has been well received by the current participants.   
  
ASO RX – Caremark/Pharmacre – Caremark/Pharmacare provided the strongest 
contract along with the deepest savings.  Caremark is the current PBM (Pharmacy 
Benefit Manager) and has established a positive track record with all parties.  They are 
currently the largest Phamacy Benefit Management company in the world with many 
federal and government entities as clients. 
 
Voluntary Vision  – Spectera – The Voluntary Vision program is not currently being 
offered.  As stated it is a Voluntary Benefit; therefore, there will be no additional cost 
applied to the employers.  All premiums will be accounted for by the employees 
wishing to participate.  Spectera is an A rated carrier, that provided the lowest rates 
with the most expansive plan.  
 
Employee Assistance Program – Deer Oaks – Deer Oaks provided a comprehensive 
EAP benefit with the greatest value and lowest cost.  Deer Oaks has become the 
largest provider of EAP, Work/Life, and Wellness services to public employer groups in 
the states of Texas, Arizona, and North Carolina. 
  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to work with the City and its employees.  Should the 
City desire further clarification and/or need any supporting documentation related to 
this marketing analysis, please feel free to contact me at 469-232-2168 or Sandy 
Brown at 469-232-2174. 
 
 
 
Dodd Dorsey 
Assistant Vice President 

353



Executive Summary

Projected Program Costs for Administrative Fees
01-01-2008 to 12-31-2008

Average Monthly Employees on Health Plan 782

Administration PEPM Annual Expense

Medical (including wellness) $33.99 $318,962.00
Dental $3.72 $34,908.00
Pharmacy $0.00 $0.00
Vision Voluntary Voluntary
EAP $1.27 $11,917.00

Total Fixed Costs $38.98 $365,788.00

Claims PEPM Annual Expense

Medical $375.52 $3,523,880.00
Dental $40.28 $377,988.00
Pharmacy $113.90 $1,068,838.00

Total Claims $529.70 $4,970,706.00

Total Projected Cost $568.68 $5,336,494.00

354



October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 8  

Employee Life and AD&D Insurance 
 

To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Julie O’Connell, Human Resources Director 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of 
expenditures for employee life, accidental death & dismemberment (AD&D), voluntary 
life and AD&D, and dependent life insurance in the amount of $98,276 to Minnesota Life 
Insurance Company for 2008. 
 
Recommendation(s):  Approve expenditures of $98,276 with Minnesota Life Insurance 
Company for all lines of life insurance coverage stated above for 2008. 
 
Summary:  The City currently provides life insurance and AD&D insurance at two times 
annual salary for each line of coverage.  The City also provides a line of duty benefit for 
all sworn police and fire personnel.  This benefit is equal to the lesser of two times annual 
salary of $50,000.  Employees may also purchase supplemental life insurance on 
themselves and their dependents at a group rate.  The City of College Station and the City 
of Bryan issued a joint RFP in September 2007, for all lines of life insurance coverage.  
By pooling our numbers together, we were able to retain our current rates.  Minnesota 
Life Insurance Company will offer a three year rate guarantee.  A contract will be 
brought to Council at a later date for approval. 
 
Budget and Financial Summary:  Associated costs are attached.  The annual cost 
projection for 2008 will be $98,276, based on our current number of employees.  This is 
an increase from last year due to salary increases and additional employees.  Funds are 
budgeted and available in the employee benefits fund. 
 
Attachments: 
 
 1.  2008 Cost Projections 

355



City of College Station
Schedule of Rates and Costs
Basic Life and Basic AD&D Insurance

Basic Life Monthy Cost Basic AD&D Monthly Cost Rate Guarantee Total Yearly Cost
Minnesota Life .09/$1,000 $6,142 .03/$1,000 $2,047 3 Years $98,276

Basic Life $73,707 Basic AD&D $24,569

356



October 25, 2007 
Regular Agenda Item 9  
Long Term Disability 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Julie O’Connell, Director of Human Resources 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion on approval of 
expenditures for long term disability insurance (LTD) with the Standard Insurance 
Company in the amount of $60,855 for 2008. 
 
Recommendation(s):  Approve expenditures of $60,855 with The Standard Insurance 
Company for employee long term disability insurance for 2008.   
 
Summary:  LTD insurance is income protection for employees who would no longer be 
able to perform their jobs due to illness or injury.  Income replacement could reach as 
high as 60% of the employee’s salary.  The City of Bryan and the City of College Station 
issued a joint RFP for LTD coverage this past September.  The City of College Station 
was able to retain the same rate as last year for 2008.  A contract will be brought to the 
Council at a later date for approval. 
 
Budget and Financial Summary:  Associated costs are attached.  The annual cost 
projections for LTD coverage based on the current number of employees for 2008 will be 
$60,855.  This is an increase from last year due to salary increases and additional 
employees.  Funds are budgeted and available in the employee benefits fund. 
 
Attachments: 
 
 1.  2008 Cost Projections 

357



City of College Station
Schedule of Rates and Costs
Long Term Disability 2008

Rate Monthly Total Rate Guarantee Total Yearly Cost
The Standard Insurance Co. .18/$100 $5,071 1 $60,855

358


	Agenda
	Consent Item 2a:  Minutes
	Workshop minutes October 11, 2007 
	regular minutes October 11, 2007 

	Consent Item 2b  Annual price agreement for the purchase of protective clothing.
	Coversheet
	renewal agreement 
	Resolution 

	Consent Item 2c  Adamson Bath House Replacement Rejection of Bids
	Coversheet
	Bid Tabulation 07-115

	Consent Item 2d:  Mix Asphalt Annual Price Agreement renewal
	Coversheet
	renewal letter

	Consent Item 2e  Renewal Agreement with National Reimbursement Services for Ambulance Billing Services
	Coversheet
	Renewal agreement 

	Consent Item 2f:  Rental of Heavy Machinery
	Coversheet
	Bid Tabulation 

	Consent Item 2g:  Construction Contract #07-275 for Phase II-A of the Veterans Park and Athletic Complex
Extension of Veterans Parkway

	Coversheet
	Resolution 
	Bid Tabulation 
	Project Location Map
	Extension site plan 

	Consent Item 2h: Click2Gov for Customer Information Systems
	Coversheet
	HTE Contract Supplemental 

	Consent Item 2i:  Clinical Affiliation Agreement with Texas Engineering Extension Service 
	Coversheet 
	Clinical Affiliation Agreement 
	Resolution 

	Consent Item 2j:  Texas Avenue Streetscape Project
	Coversheet
	Resolution 
	Location Map 

	Consent Item 2k:  Wesley Foundation - Church Street Easements
	Coversheet
	Location Map 
	Real Estate Contract 

	Consent Item 2L:  Manuel Drive – Streets Oversize Participation Request
	Coversheet
	OP Agreement
	Vicinity Map 
	Street Extension Location Map 
	Exhibit A Plat 
	Exhibit B  Engineers estimate and request letter 

	Consent Item 2m  2005 Bike Loop Project
	Coversheet
	Resolution 
	Project Location Map 

	Consent Item 2N  Real Estate Contract for the purchase of land needed for the Carters Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant
	Coversheet
	Location Map 
	Real Estate Contract

	Consent Item 2O:  Investment Policy and Strategy Resolution
	Coversheet 
	Investment Policy 
	Investment Strategy 
	Resolution 

	Consent Item 2p:  Authorize Animal Shelter Expenditures
	Coversheet

	Consent Item 2Q:  Budget Approval and Funding Agreement With the George Bush Presidential Library Foundation
	Coversheet 
	Library Foundation Funding Agreement 
	Library Foundation Budget 

	Consent Item 2r:  Authorize Health Department Funding Addendum and Expenditures
	Coversheet
	Health Dept funding agreement and ILA 

	Consent Item 2s:  Funding Agreement With Keep Brazos Beautiful
	Coversheet
	Funding Agreement 

	Consent Item 2t:  Installation of an Ultra-Violet Disinfection System
	coversheet
	Resolution 
	Bid tabulation 
	Recommendation Letter

	Regular Item No. 1.  Rezoning for 3501 Longmire Drive
	Coversheet 
	Area Map and Aerial Photo 
	Zoning District Fact Sheet
	Zoning District Fact Sheet 2
	Draft P&Z minutes 
	Ordinance

	Regular Item No. 2:  Rezoning for 701 Luther Street West
	Coversheet 
	Map and aerial photo 
	Rezoning Map 
	Zoning Fact Sheet R1
	Zoning Fact Sheet R4
	Draft P&Z minutes 
	Ordinance 

	Regular Item No. 3:  Construction Testing Costs
	coversheet
	Ordinance

	Regular Item No. 4:  Proposed Change of Subdivision Regulations - Street Signs

	Coversheet
	Ordinance
	Coversheet
	Ordinance

	Regular Item No. 5:  Comprehensive Plan Update - Phase II Contract
	coversheet
	Resolution 
	KKC firm profile 
	Scope of work 

	Regular Item No. 6:  Photographic Traffic Signal Enforcement System
	Coversheet
	traffic engineering study 
	ATS Agreement
	TxDot amendment to the municipal agreement
	Ordinance

	Regular Item 7:  Employee Health Insurance
	Coversheet
	Consultant Recommendation 
	2008 Cost Projections 

	Regular Item No. 8:  Employee Life and AD&D Insurance
	coversheet
	2008 Cost projections 

	Regular Item No. 9:  Long Term Disability
	Coversheet
	2008 Cost Projections 


